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We're all busier than ever before. The pace of change
is increasing. This creates challenges for people but
also offers new opportunities to serve them better.
New trends are re-defining the customer experience.
As leaders in digital banking, we are stepping up

our own transformation to ensure we stay relevant
to customers in this changing environment. Now is
the time to accelerate.

Empowering people to stay a step
ahead in life and in business



Welcome to ING’s Annual Report

This report aims to inform stakeholders
about our financial and non-financial
performance in 2016. This includes a look
at how we create value over time and
how the Think Forward strategy addresses
the challenges, risks and opportunities
ING faces in a fast-changing world.

The elements of the report include:

- the Report of the Executive Board, with topics including
trends, market developments and what stakeholders
expect from us; our strategy and how we create value;
as well information on our businesses and various key
areas and how they developed in 2016.

- the Corporate Governance section detailing the
activities of ING's Supervisory Board and various
corporate governance issues.

+ ING's 2016 Annual Accounts.

- the Non-Financial Appendix, featuring detailed
information on a number of non-financial areas.

- a glossary of financial, ING-specific and other terms to
help readers.

The 2016 ING Annual Report is available digitally and as
print-on-demand, reflecting an increased focus on online

presentation and our experience with how readers prefer
to access the report.

Icons used in the report

m Read more

%, Find out more online

ING Group annual reports

These reports can be read on desktop, tablet and
mobile devices at www.ing.com

For any questions on these reports:
communication@ing.com


http://www.ing.com
mailto:communication@ing.com

Contents

Report of the Executive Board

Facts and key figures 2
CEO statement 5
The world around us 8
Our strategy and how we create value 19
Retail Banking 28
Wholesale Banking 36
People 45
Improving the customer experience 50
Risk and capital management 54
Composition of the Executive Board and Management Board Banking 62
ING shares 63
About this report 66
Assurance report of the independent auditor 68
Corporate Governance

Chairman'’s statement 70
Report of the Supervisory Board 72
Corporate Governance 77
Report of ING Trust Office 90
Report of ING Continuity Foundation 93
Conformity statement 94
Section 404 Sarbanes-Oxley Act 95
Report of independent registered public accounting firm 96
Remuneration report 97
Works councils 107
Consolidated annual accounts

Consolidated statement of financial position 111
Consolidated statement of profit or loss 112
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 114
Consolidated statement of changes in equity 115
Consolidated statement of cash flows 118
Notes to the consolidated annual accounts 121
Risk management 247
Capital management 316
Parent company annual accounts

Parent company statement of financial position 322
Other and additional information

Independent auditor’s report 337
Articles of Association - Appropriation of results 344
Risk factors 345
Additional Pillar Il information 366
Non-financial appendix 426
Non-GAAP measures L4b4
Glossary 445
General information 456



Report of the
Executive Board

Facts and key figures

Who we are

We are a global financial
institution with a strong

European base offering
banking services. Our
customers are at the
heart of what we do.

Where we operate

We operate in more than 40 countries in
Europe, North America, South America,
the Middle East, Asia and Australia

M Market leaders

2

016 highlights

Attracted almost 1.4 million new retail customers; primary
relationships grew by 8% to 9.7 million.

- Net core lending to customers grew by almost EUR 35 billion and

savings entrusted rose by over EUR 28 billion, both increasing by
around 6% compared to 2015.

- Capital base strengthened, with ING Group’s CET1 ratio rising to a robust

14.2% at year-end 2016; underlying return on equity rose to 10.1%.

- ING again performed strongly in the area of sustainability in 2016.

Sustainalytics ranked ING number 1 out of its 395 financial peers.
The Dow Jones Sustainability Indices also named ING among world
leaders in the category “Banks”.

- ING is working to increase the pace of innovation, developing new

services and business models. As of the end of 2016, we were
partnering and in some cases also investing in more than 65 fintechs
in various areas, like instant lending, factoring and customer loyalty.

+ The sale of our remaining stake in NN Group in April 2016 was the

final step in ING’s programme to divest all of its insurance and
investment management businesses as part of the restructuring
agreement with the European Commission.

- FY 2016 dividend of EUR 0.66 per ordinary share.

\ o
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The Netherlands, Belgium, Luxembourg

M Challengers

Germany, Austria, Spain, ltaly, France, Australia, Czech Republic

Il Growth markets

Poland, Turkey, Romania and business units in Asia

Il Wholesale Banking activities only

Our customers

© O
o

35.8 million

(year-end 2016)

Top NPS ranking

Our customer-centric focus
has resulted in seven countries
achieving first place in NPS
compared with two or more
selected local peers. NPS
surveys were held in 13
countries with retail banking
activities.

Our employees
(by head count)

—{—

54,000+

(year-end 2016)

Our brand value

Number 27 most valuable bank
brand in the world ((EUR 7.7
billion, 1 January 2017).*

1 Source: Brand Finance plc, February
2017. The valuation date is each
year on the 1st of January.



Facts and key figures - continued

Performance highlights

Our financial goals

Ambition 2020 2016 2015 2014
Common equity Tier 1 ratio fully loaded ING Group > Prevailing fully-loaded requirements 14.2% 12.7% 10.5%
Common equity Tier 1 ratio fully loaded ING Bank 12.6% 11.6% 11.4%
Leverage ratio ING Group * >4% 4.8% 4.4%
Leverage ratio ING Bank ! 4.2% 4.1% 3.6%
Underlying cost/income ratio 50-52% 54.2% 55.9% 58.7%
Underlying return on equity ING Group awaiting requlatory clarity 10.1% 8.6% 7.2%
Underlying return on equity ING Bank 11.6% 10.8% 9.9%
Dividend per share (in euros) progressive dividend over time 0.66 0.65 0.12

Consolidated result 2

in EUR million 2016 2015 2014
Net result attributable to ING Group's shareholders 4,651 4,010 1,251
Underlying net result Banking 4,976 4,219 3,424
Underlying result before taxation Banking 7,028 5,959 4,724
of which underlying income 17,458 16,552 15,296
of which underlying operating expenses 9,456 9,246 8,979
of which underlying addition to loan loss provision 974 1,347 1,594

Balance sheet

in EUR billion, year-end 2016 2015 2014
Total assets ING Groep NV. * 845 1,005 1,179
Total assets ING Groep NV. > 845 842 993
Shareholders' equity ING Groep NV. 50 48 51
Customer lending ING Bank NV. > 561 533 514
Customer deposits ING Bank NV. ® 531 509 489

Other indicators

2016 2015 2014
Effective underlying tax rate (in %) Banking 28.1 28.0 25.8
Risk-weighted assets ING Bank (EUR billion, year-end) 312 318 296
Underlying risk costs in bps of average RWA 31 Lh 55

Share information

2016 2015 2014
Net result per share (in euros) 1.20 1.04 0.32
Shareholders' equity per share (end of period in euros) 12.84 12.36 13.08
Dividend per share (in euros) 0.66 0.65 0.12
Price/earnings ratio ® 111 12.0 33.8
Price/book ratio (end of period) 1.04 1.01 0.83

Non-financial key figures

2016 2015 2014
Net Promoter Score Retail Banking (number of countries with number one ranking, rolling average) 7 7 9
Total number of Retail Banking primary relationships (in million, as of year-end) 9.7 9.0 8.4
Sustainable transitions financed (in EUR billion, as of year-end) 34.3 23.8 19.5
Sustainable assets under management (in EUR million, as of year-end) 3,306 2,573 1,538
Number of customers that felt financially empowered (in million, as of year-end) 23.9 20.5 -
Total extrapolated CO,e emissions (in kilotonne) 74 94 101
Human Capital Return on Investment indicator 2.59 2.48 2.30
System availability in the Netherlands and Belgium (in percentage) 99.75 99.6 99.3

[y

The leverage ratio of ING Bank/ING Group according to the Delegated Act (including grandfathered securities) takes into account the impact of grossing up the notional
cash pool activities.

For further explanation of non-GAAP measures, see “Additional Information” section of the Annual Accounts, page 345.

ING changed its accounting policy for the netting of cash pooling arrangements in 2Q 2016. In accordance with IFRS, the comparable amounts were adjusted.
Customer lending is defined as: loans & advances to customers -/- securities at amortised costs -/- provision for loan losses.

The comparable cash pool balances in Customer lending and Customer deposits are still presented on a net basis in order to provide consistent information.

Based on the share price at year-end and the earnings per ordinary share for the financial year.

Sustainable transitions financed describes the business that we do with clients who are environmental outperformers in their sectors as well as projects that
provide sustainable solutions. For a more detailed definition see the glossary on page 445.

~No v N
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Facts and key figures - continued

Financial review

Net result ING Group

|_|_ + 16%

The strong increase was driven by the higher
underlying net result from Banking, as the
negative impact of special items in 2016 (due
to the restructuring charges taken in the
fourth quarter) were largely offset by higher
results from the discontinued Insurance
operations in 2016 compared with 2015. ING
sold its final stake in NN Group in April 2016.

Addition to the loan loss provision

4N -28%

>

Risk costs declined to 31 bps of average
RWA (which is below ING's through-the-
cycle guidance range of 40-45 bps), as
macroeconomic conditions improved,
especially in the Netherlands.

Non-financial review

Net Promoter Score Retail Banking

© O

o

Our customer centric focus helped us
achieve a first place ranking in seven
countries, compared with two or more
selected local peers. NPS surveys were held
in 13 countries with retail banking activities.

Top
Ranking

7 out of 13 countries

Financial empowerment

23.9 min

customers felt financially
empowered

Since 2015 we measure our performance
in this area to be sure our efforts are
really driving sustained improvements in
the financial behaviour of our customers
and society. In 2016, 23.9 million people
felt financially empowered as a result of
interactions with our financial
empowerment initiatives.

Underlying net result Banking 2

+ 18%

The increase reflects higher net interest
results and lower risk costs, despite a
sharp increase in requlatory costs in 2016.
Commercial performance was robust with
6.5% net growth in the core lending book.

Fully loaded CET 1 ratio ING Group

@ 14.2%

The CET1 ratio improved strongly from 12.7%
in 2015, due to an increase in CET1 capital
combined with lower RWA supported by
positive risk migration. CET1 capital mainly
increased due to strong capital generation
from net profit (partly offset by the proposed
dividend payment) and the completion of the
NN Group divestment in 2016.

Sustainable transitions financed and
sustainable assets under management

34.3 bln

Sustainable transitions
financed

3.3bln

Sustainable assets under
management (SAuM)

Our focus on sustainability driven business
resulted in EUR 34.3 billion sustainable
transitions financed at year-end 2016. SAUM
increased to EUR 3.3 billion, which underlines
our client’s appetite for products and services
that apply sustainability criteria.

Effective employer Human Capital ROI

2.59

We measure and report on our human capital
investments to ensure we do the right things
to support our employees’ performance. The
Human Capital Return on Investment indicator
helps us identify the influence of HR inputs on
the organisation’s productivity. This ratio of
profitability divided by employee costs was
2.59in 2016, up from 2.48 in 2015.

ING Group’s underlying return on equity ?

®>(®) 10.1%

ING Group’s ROE improved from 8.6% in 2015,
reflecting a higher underlying net result. Given
the regulatory uncertainty, we believe it is
prudent to wait for further clarity before we
announce a Group ROE target. ING Bank’s ROE
rose to 11.6% from 10.8% in 2015 and is within
the earlier announced Ambition 2017 target
range of 10-13%.

Underlying cost/income ratio ING Bank 2

@ 54.2%

This includes CVA/DVA impacts and EUR

120 million of redundancy costs in 4Q2015.
Excluding these items, the cost/income ratio
improved to 53.9% in 2016 from 55.9% in 2015,
in spite of higher regulatory costs.

CO,e emissions

74
kilotonnes

The environmental performance of our

own organisation improved as a result

of anincrease in renewable electricity
consumption. The total extrapolated amount
of carbon emissions decreased from 94 to 74
kilotonnes CO,e.

System availability

o

99.75%

in the Netherlands
and Belgium

In early 2015, an initiative was launched to find
a permanent solution for system reliability
issues we experienced in the Netherlands and
Belgium with our online payments channels.
At the end of 2016, systems reliability
improved to 99.75 percent, up from 99.6
percent in 2015.



Report of the
Executive Board

CEO statement
“Accelerating Think Forward”

2016 was a successful year for ING. We made
good progress implementing our strategy and
achieved strong growth in customer numbers,
savings and lending. But the competitive
landscape for banks is changing. The pace of
digitalisation is increasing, and this is changing
customer expectations. We will accelerate our
transformation, creating an integrated digital
platform to cater to all our customers’ financial
needs and provide new and relevant offers to
enhance the customer experience.

The Think Forward strategy with its purpose to empower
people to stay a step ahead in life and in business
continued to guide our direction in 2016.

At the core of that strategy is our Customer Promise:

to be clear and easy, available anytime and anywhere,
to empower our customers and to keep getting better.
These pledges underpin ING's ambition to provide a
differentiating experience for our increasingly digital
and self-directed customers. We took important steps
in 2016 to fulfil this promise, and the growing number
of customers and the high ratings we receive from them
confirm the success of those efforts.

These included the development of more tools that
make financial planning and decision-making easier.
My Money Coach, launched last year by ING in Spain,
is a free digital adviser that helps customers create a
personalised plan to achieve their savings, investment
and retirement goals. Similar tools are part of our
offering or are being developed in Belgium, France, the
Netherlands and Poland.

We also introduced new tools to improve the customer
experience on mobile devices, which are fast becoming
the main interface between us and our customers. One
of these was Kijk Vooruit (“Look Ahead"), a mobile app
feature in the Netherlands. It helps improve customers’
grip on their daily finances by giving them insights into
future planned and predicted transactions.

And we continued to develop instant lending platforms
for both consumer and SME lending, two priority areas to
diversify lending.

In Wholesale Banking, we expanded the reach of
InsideBusiness, our digital, cross-border banking
platform. It gives clients real-time insights and a single
point of access to manage financial transactions from
any device. The platform is now available to clients in 17
countries. We plan to complete its global roll-out by the
end of 2017. We aim for Inside Business to become an
all-in-one business banking platform for clients’ needs.

These and other initiatives reinforcing our brand and our
track record as leaders in digital banking were recognised
by customers. The number of customers choosing us

for their banking needs again increased and has grown

by around 3 million to 35.8 million since we launched

the Think Forward strategy. The number of primary
relationships - customers with a current account with
recurring income and at least one other product - grew
eight percent to 9.7 million, close to our 2017 ambition of
10 million customers. We have now updated the ambition
to 14 million primary customers by 2020. We also enjoyed
number one Net Promoter Scores (NPS) in 7 of our 13
retail markets, a key indicator of customer satisfaction.

It is a compliment to our staff that their hard work and
focus on helping our customers has received important
external recognition. This included ING being cited by The
Banker as 2016's Best Global Bank, Best Bank in Western
Europe, Best Bank Netherlands and Best Bank Belgium.

Robust growth

These strong relationships with customers helped to
drive ING's robust commercial and financial growth in
2016. ING Group recorded a full-year 2016 net profit

of EUR 4,651 million, an increase of 16% year-on-year.
Our net core lending to customers grew by almost EUR
35 billion and savings entrusted to us rose by over EUR
28 billion, both increasing by around 6% compared to
2015. Lending growth came from all regions and was
particularly strong from Industry Lending and Working
Capital Solutions within Wholesale Banking and from
mortgages in retail Challengers & Growth Markets.
Against the backdrop of this growth, operating expenses
remained stable and risk costs declined further from

an already low level. Our capital base strengthened,
with ING Group's CET1 ratio rising to a robust 14.2% at
year-end 2016. ING Group’s IFRS-EU underlying return on
equity rose to 10.1%. We are on track to meet all of our
Ambition 2020 targets.

Reflecting these strong results, the Board proposes to
pay a total 2016 dividend of EUR 0.66 per ordinary share,
subject to shareholder approval at the AGM in May

2017. This is in line with our goal of paying a progressive
dividend over time, while maintaining healthy

capital levels.
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Executive Board

CEO statement - continued

Accelerating Think Forward

With our Think Forward strategy we have been able to
successfully respond to changing customer needs. This
has been helped by our focus on innovation and its role
in our business as a driver for improving the customer
experience.

But we also see the pace of change rapidly increasing.
Digitalisation is speeding up and it is shaping customer
expectations across borders. Banking products are now
commodities where customer experience is the key
differentiator. New entrants to the market, like fintechs,
are making it more challenging to compete. And this

is happening against the backdrop of persistent low
interest rates that are putting pressure on bank margins,
as well as rapidly increasing regulatory costs.

| feel strongly that the bank of the future will not look like
banking as we know it today. | see this in particular in the
development of digital ecosystems that connect people
and businesses. They include features like shopping

and paying for goods and services to become the one
stop for all of their users’ needs. This trend makes it
important for us to also develop an open platform where
customers can go not only for their financial needs but
also for relevant offers and services from third parties,
and even for an overview of their accounts with other
financial services providers. We believe this will provide
them with an enhanced customer experience and us
with opportunities to generate fee and other revenue
from services beyond traditional banking. ING's digital
systems also must be capable of integrating seamlessly
into other ecosystems so that we are present where our
customers spend their time online - available anytime
and anywhere.

On the Wholesale Banking side, an open platform
approach is also needed to tap into important
developments like blockchain. This distributed ledger
technology has the potential to develop into a digital
standard between banks, enabling them to offer faster,
safer and cheaper services to their clients.

To succeed in this we must move faster as an
organisation. In October 2016 we announced that we
will accelerate the implementation of our strategy. We
aim to converge over time to a single digital and scalable
banking platform across borders. In our Wholesale
Banking business we have already made significant
progress toward this goal.

Converging our various banking models in one go,
however, would be impractical and runs the risk of being
burdensome for customers and for our organisation. So
we will first move to an intermediate state where we
converge businesses with similar value propositions.

Though we will still be operating several platforms,

all new elements of these platforms will be built to
meet the requirements of the future single platform.
This will give us efficiencies of scale and speed up our
pace of innovation by allowing us to rapidly share new
products and services. These steps will make it possible
to deliver a superior customer experience, enhanced

digital financial management tools and better data
management so we can provide customers with more
tailored offerings that meet their needs.

This convergence will also be reflected in our brand. Since
the start of the Think Forward strategy we have pursued
a shared brand direction and strengthened our brand
positioning across our markets. In the coming years we
will increasingly move towards a single brand experience
across our markets.

This transformation will benefit our customers and put
our business on a solid footing for the future. But we also
realise that change does not come only with benefits.
We anticipate that the creation of an integrated banking
platform in the Netherlands and Belgium, together with
the other initiatives announced, will impact around 7,000
jobs in various countries over the next five years. This
will result in job losses, changed functions or functions
moving to new locations. We are well aware that the
change we need to make to be successful in the future
will have a major impact on many employees who

have worked hard to get ING to where it is today. We

are committed to building on our track record as a
responsible employer, to treating all those affected with
respect and care and to helping employees who face job
losses to find suitable new job opportunities.

Sustainability embedded in our business
At ING we believe that our role as a financial institution
is to support and encourage economic, social and
environmental progress that leads to a better quality of
life. Sustainability forms an integral part of our strategy
and is embedded in our business.

Sustainability is inherent in our purpose to empower
people to stay a step ahead in life and in business. We
empower people by striving to make banking clear and
easy, available anytime and anywhere and by making
financial empowerment tools available to them so they
better understand their financial needs and can make
well informed financial decisions. Our success in that is
reflected by the 23.9 million ING customers in 2016 who
said they felt empowered by ING.

Our commitment to sustainable progress is also reflected
in our support for the UN Sustainable Development
Goals, particularly the goals of sustainable and inclusive
economic progress and of sustainable consumption and
production.

In the area of sustainability and inclusion, ING is a
founding member of the Think Forward Initiative that
brings together experts and consumer advocates to
research how people make financial decisions. Many
consumers struggle with money matters. The initiative
aims to contribute to awareness, policies and tools to
help consumers manage their finances better.

I am proud that ING is also playing an important role
in creating a fairer and greener economy. We do
that by financing projects that accelerate corporate
clients’ transitions to becoming more sustainable
and by supporting clients who develop solutions to
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CEO statement - continued

environmental and social challenges. The value of these
sustainable transitions financed (STF) in 2016 came to
more than EUR 34 billion, close to our 2020 target of EUR
35 billion, which we will now revisit. It is also our ambition
to promote sustainable transitions among our retail
customers in the future.

A particular focus for our sustainable financing is the
circular economy, which seeks to create a zero-waste
world by making new products out of waste. We served
as advisor and underwriter in a notable merger of
Shanks Plc of the UK with Dutch waste processor Van
Gansewinkel Groep. When finalised it will create one of
Europe’s leading players in recycling.

| believe strongly in the positive role banks can play

in promoting a better and fairer world through their
financing. In 2016, ING joined other Dutch banks, labour
unions, NGOs and the Dutch government in a covenant
to ensure that global corporate and project finance done
by Netherlands-based banks protects and improves
human rights in areas like labour practices, the freedom
to form labour unions, child labour and land rights.

Our longstanding commitment to human rights is also
reflected in our involvement in the OECD Advisory Group,
our role on the steering committee for the Equator
Principles and through the human rights policy in the
Environmental and Social Risk Framework that we apply
in the more than 40 countries where we operate.

ING's achievements in the area of sustainability continue
to be recognised and we are ranked among leaders in
this area. In 2016, ING was ranked number one out of
395 publicly listed banks, up from third last year, by
global sustainability research leader Sustainalytics. ING
also scored 90 out of 100 in the Dow Jones Sustainability
Index (DJSI), up from 86 last year and compared to an
average industry score of 61. ING was also “A-listed”

by CDP, the UK-based not-for-profit that discloses
corporations’ environmental impact. This places us
among 193 global leaders out of the thousands of
companies rated.

Regulation

The competitive landscape is changing, and so too is the
regulatory context. We welcomed the further progress
during 2016 in implementing a harmonised approach

to requlation of Europe’s banks by the ECB. At the same
time, banks were again faced with an increasing amount
of new regulations and rising requlatory costs. | am

also concerned about the lack of coordination among
regulators leading to a sustained unlevel playing field,
as for instance in the case of bank taxes, where banks
operating across borders often face double taxation.

We are also disappointed by the continuing lack of
clarity around reforms to capital rules to be set by the
Basel Committee. This uncertainty makes it increasingly
difficult for banks to actively support the economies
where they operate, particularly in financing areas such
as mortgages, SMEs and areas that structurally support

economic recovery, including utilities, renewables and
infrastructure. | feel it is important that regulators
recognise this and support banks in their important role
as facilitators of the economy. Regulation should also
take into account the changing competitive landscape. It
should support financial services providers who embrace
innovation and new ways of doing business.

Foundation for success

Banking is undergoing disruption as never before.
Together with the pace of change in the world around
us, this creates uncertainty regarding the way forward.
But I believe ING's strong brand, our position as a digital
leader, our innovative strength and our social and
environmental engagement put us on a solid foundation.
We have the ability to adapt and succeed in this new
environment so we can continue to meet the needs
and expectations of customers and society and play an
important role in building a sustainable and prosperous
future for all.

The past year was one in which we made much progress
and took important steps to ensure future success. |
would like to express my gratitude to our customers

and shareholders, without whose confidence these
achievements would not have been possible. And |

want to thank our employees for their hard work and
commitment to ING and our customers.

IQGJPL. vL!amues

Ralph Hamers
Chief Executive Officer ING Group

13 March 2017
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The world around us

The world around us is constantly changing.
This chapter highlights several trends that
have a major impact on both our operating
environment and that of our competitors.
This includes the economy and current

low interest rate environment, increasing
requlatory scrutiny and costs, digitalisation
and changing customer behaviour, and what
our stakeholders expect of us.

Global economic developments

Similar to 2015, 2016 was not a strong year for the
global economy. Growth in the US regained momentum,
but the recovery in the eurozone was not able to shift
into higher gear and the Chinese economy continued

to slow. Uncertainty about the global economic outlook
and (geo)political uncertainty led to flares of financial
market volatility, but the global economy held up
relatively well.

Concerns about the global economy started in the
first quarter, with disappointing data on the Chinese
economy and a decline in oil prices. The world's main
stock market indices fell 10 to 15 percent below

2015 year-end levels and corporate credit risk rose
to levels not seen during the previous two-and-a-half
years. Currencies of a number of important emerging
economies came under downward pressure.

Worries eventually faded, and stock markets and oil
prices recovered, as the US Federal Reserve signalled
it would be cautious and take the state of the global
economy into account when raising interest rates and
the Chinese authorities implemented measures to
support the economy.

Brexit

In late June, financial market volatility increased as
Britain surprised markets by deciding to leave the
European Union (“Brexit”). While the British pound
depreciated to record lows against the US dollar and
the Bank of England loosened monetary policy as a
precaution, the immediate economic impact appears
relatively limited. Still, there is long-term uncertainty, as
the actual Brexit probably won't take place until 2019
at the earliest. It is still unclear what the relationship
between the UK and the EU will be after Brexit.

Eurozone developments

Persistent low growth and declining inflation led the
European Central Bank (ECB) to further loosen monetary
policy in 2016. This triggered spectacular falls in market
interest rates. Also because of Brexit fears, yields on
German government bonds with a remaining maturity
of 10 years became negative. While similar bonds
issued by other eurozone governments still carried
positive yields, they were at historic low levels as well
and often negative for shorter maturities. However,

in the second half of the year, expectations about a
more expansionary fiscal policy in the US following the
presidential election victory of Donald Trump, an interest
rate increase by the Federal Reserve, and an increase in
oil prices pushed up capital market interest rates again.

ECB policies also resulted in a further decline in the cost
of borrowing for eurozone households and businesses
and contributed to a modest increase in credit demand.
Marked differences between countries remain, with credit
growth generally more positive in northern European
countries, while low or negative in southern ones.

Low interest rate environment

Persistent low interest rates will, over time, put banks’
net interest income under pressure. On mortgages for
instance, ING could be confronted with higher than
expected prepayment rates as the difference between
rates on existing mortgages and the prevailing market
rate lead customers to refinance.

On savings, net interest income may decrease as savings
rates approach zero and options to further reduce

client rates on savings deposits diminish. ING actively
manages its interest rate risk exposure and successfully
maintained the net interest margin on its core lending

in 2016. To address the challenge of interest-income
erosion, containing costs remains an important goal. We
are also putting more emphasis on generating fee-based
income and are reassessing our product characteristics.

[T] Rread more in the “Risk and capital management”
chapter.

Progress on relevant regulatory initiatives
The Single Supervisory Mechanism (SSM), the system
of banking supervision for Europe, was in effect for the
second full year in 2016. In this second year, the daily
interactions on supervision between the European
Central Bank (ECB), national competent authorities like
the Dutch Central Bank in the Netherlands and banks
were streamlined further.

The ECB in particular took important steps to
communicate its expectations to the banking sector and
public at large. For example, the ECB provided detailed
information about its annual Supervisory Review and
Evaluation Process (SREP) and its findings based on its
sector-wide thematic review on risk governance and
appetite. Such transparency helps support the banking
union in coming together, as well as the efficiency and
effectiveness of the ECB's supervision.

ING remains a supporter of the SSM. With our strong
European footprint, we have a clear interest in the proper
functioning of European financial markets and in a
harmonised approach to European banking supervision.
We believe that this will contribute to a more efficient
use of capital across Europe. As banks' customers are
more able to realise their ambitions, the European
economy’s growth prospects will benefit. Harmonisation
will also help us accelerate our Think Forward strategy to
create one digital banking platform across borders.
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ING expects benefits from harmonised supervision to
materialise over the coming years with converging
supervisory practices, stress testing, streamlined
reporting, and the cross-border flow of capital and
liquidity.

Alongside the SSM, the Single Resolution Mechanism (SRM)
came into force on 1 January 2016. It aims to ensure an
orderly resolution process for failing banks. With SSM and
SRM, two of the three pillars of the Banking Union have
been established. More on this can be found below.

The last remaining pillar, mutualisation of deposit
guarantee schemes, is progressing at a much slower
pace than the first two pillars. Lack of a common
European deposit guarantee scheme leaves the eurozone
potentially vulnerable to interdependence between banks
and governments, despite the existence of the SSM and
SRM.

The second EU Directive on Payment Services (PSD2) was
adopted in October 2015 and will be implemented in the
coming years. It will create an EU-wide single market

for payment initiation services and account information
services. Its main objective is to promote innovation and
competition in the EU payments market. ING welcomes
this development and sees the PSD2 as an opportunity
to develop new and innovative ways of serving our
customers. At the same time, we find it important
regulators take into account the changing competitive
landscape and support financial services providers who
embrace innovation and new ways of doing business
and should ensure they can compete on a level playing
field with newcomers.

In November 2016 the EC launched the review of the
existing Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR) and
Directive (CRD), and Bank Recovery and Resolution
Directive (BRRD) regulation. These draft EC proposals
are subject to approval by the European Parliament
and Council. They consist of important new regulatory
requirements for banks, including the Net Stable Funding
Ratio (NSFR), the leverage ratio, review of the trading
book and counterparty credit risk. The proposal also
includes changes to transpose the FSB TLAC term sheet
into EU law and introduces a harmonised approach for
creditor hierarchy in Europe.

Regulatory costs and uncertainty

ING's regulatory costs increased 36.3% in 2016. One
main reason were costs for the new Dutch deposit
guarantee scheme (EUR 129 million in 2016 compared
with zero in 2015). A new European rule says that banks
must pay into these deposit guarantee schemes on a
regular basis and not just after a bank failure.

Bank taxes were also a major reason for higher costs

in 2016; specifically a Polish bank tax of EUR 64 million
compared with zero in 2015. This taxes a part of

ING's balance sheet on which we already pay tax in

the Netherlands. There is no European regulation on
bank taxes and little coordination between countries
addressing the fact that banks pay the same taxes in
more than one country. We hope that, as is already the

case in Germany and foreseen in France, bank taxes will
be abolished in the Netherlands and in other countries
that still require them.

Other new regulation also contributed to the rise in
costs for 2016, such as the European Single Resolution
Mechanism (SRM) mentioned above. This required banks
to begin paying contributions to the Single Resolution
Fund as of January 2016.

A prominent source of regulatory uncertainty in 2016
was the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS)
proposals regarding risk-weighted assets. The proposals
are intended to make risk-weight calculation simpler
and more comparable across banks, limiting the use of
banks’ own internal models. ING believes that the Basel
proposals could allocate too high a risk weight to various
lending activities, in particular mortgages, corporates
and specialised lending. This would not be in line with
historical loss rates and distorts sound economic
incentives. ING does support increased comparability

of internal models and therefore supports initiatives to
address undue risk variability. It is involved in ECB and
European Banking Authority (EBA) work underway to
address this, such as the Targeted Review of Internal
Models (TRIM) by the ECB. Apart from the proposals

in the area of credit risk, the BCBS is also considering
changes in the areas of operational and market risk. The
continuing uncertainty is detrimental for banks and the
economy at large.

Other uncertainties concern loss-absorption
requirements, which haven't yet been finalised in the
EU. The Financial Stability Board's total loss-absorbing
capacity term sheet still has to be transposed into EU
law before it is clear how to calculate the minimum
requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL).

m Read more in the “Risk and capital management”
chapter.

The range and complexity of non-prudential regulation
is increasing. Requlation is becoming more stringent in
areas like customer due diligence (CDD) and transaction
monitoring to prevent and report money laundering
(AML), terrorist financing, and fraud. Regulations such
as the Common Reporting Standard (CRS) and FATCA,
which require financial institutions to report detailed
client-related information to competent authorities,

are also adding to banks’ regulatory burden. There are

a number of risks in areas where applicable regulations
are unclear, subject to multiple interpretations or under
development, are in conflict with each other, or where
regulators revise their guidance or courts overturn
previous rulings. Meeting all these requirements within
the strict timelines that have been set poses a significant
operational challenge for banks. Regulations also need
to strike a proper balance between consumer protection
and innovation to allow banks to compete in the new
competitive environment.



Report of the
Executive Board

The world around us - continued

Competitive landscape

Technology is removing a number of the barriers

to entry that once insulated our business. We face
competition from many different directions, with
relatively new players providing more segmented
offers to our customers and clients. Technology giants,
payment specialists, retailers, telecommunication
companies, crowd-funding initiatives and aggregators
are all encroaching on the market for traditional banking
services. Our customers, in turn, are willing to consider
these offers.

Banks strive to act in the interests of their customers.
Safe banking requires specific knowledge of financial
services, in-depth knowledge of customers, and rigorous
risk-management systems. As competition from outside
the banking sector continues to increase, we have to
become faster, more agile and more innovative.

[T Read more in the “Our strategy and how we create
value” chapter.

Our long track record and strong brand place us well
to seize these opportunities and become a better
company for all of our stakeholders. We are a leader
in digital banking, and we have scale combined with
local market expertise. We are investing in building
profitable, mutually beneficial relationships with our
customers based on the quality of our service and the
differentiating experience we offer them. We intend
to continue working hard to win their hearts and
minds, demonstrating our concern for them and all our
stakeholders. We intend to be even clearer about the
strategic choices we make. The diagram below shows
what we perceive to be our strengths, weaknesses,
opportunities and threats based on assessments by
management.

Our perceived strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats *

Strengths

- Well-known, strong brand with positive recognition
from customers in many countries

- Leader in digital banking
- Sustainability leader

- Strong capital and liquidity position; solid financial
and operating performance

- Global network provides competitive advantage

- Presence in growth markets with moderate to
strong economic growth

- Omnichannel distribution strategy

Opportunities

- Maintain trust by demonstrating care, especially
towards customers, and being more transparent
about our strategic choices

- Further improve the customer experience by
accelerating innovation and improving efficiency

- Cultural change. Tap more into employees’ talents

- Grow faster than the market by offering a
differentiating customer experience

- Further use competitive advantage of Wholesale
Banking global network

Weaknesses

- High interest-income dependency

- Some legacy IT/operational systems
- Need for more agility

- Efficiency could be improved

- Diversity challenges

Threats
+ Low interest rate environment

- Basel 3.5 capital requirements remain unresolved
and could negatively impact our role as facilitator
of the economy

- Regulatory environment increasingly complex, with
heightening execution risk

- Lack of an international level playing field

- Potential competition from new entrants to the
market

- Financial sector has an unfavourable public image
in many countries

- Cybercrime

1 This information constitutes forward-looking statements as referenced in the “Disclaimer” and is not intended to be a complete list of such
matters. For more information on what can impact ING Group's results of operations and financial position, please see “Additional Information,

Risk factors” on page 345 of the Annual Accounts.

10



Report of the
Executive Board

The world around us - continued

Overview material topics and how we manage these

Customer centricity

Innovative business developments
Customer privacy and data security
Enhancing customer financial
capabilities

Stability of IT systems and platforms
Usability and accessibility of our
products and services

Fair communication about our
products and services

Responsible lending and debt
prevention

®© © 00 0O

Financial performance
Pricing of products and services
Managing risks

Fair operating practices

Regulatory developments
Anti-competitive behaviour prevention
Corruption prevention

Sustainable finance and investment
policies

0060

Stakeholder engagement

Transparency and openness
Trust

©0

Human capital

= = @ Diversity and equal opportunities,
preventing discrimination
@ Being a good employer

= Material topics linked to the elements
of our Strategy

Material topics primarily covered by our policies,
governance framework and/or laws

What matters most to our stakeholders
From customers to business partners, shareholders,
employees, non-governmental organisations (NGOs),
regulators, governments and society at large - different
stakeholders expect different things from us. We strive to
respond to their views and concerns.

To improve as an organisation, we need to continuously
identify and understand the most important topics for
our stakeholders and how these relate to the actions
and decisions we take. This helps us balance competing
expectations and address topics in an informed way.

We conduct a materiality assessment every year,

where we gather input from stakeholders and ING's
management to assess what matters the most to them

11

and our business. We identify the issues with the highest
priority for stakeholders and the biggest potential
impact on our business. This guides us in our strategic
decision-making, stakeholder engagement agenda and
reporting framework.

In 2015 we conducted a quantitative survey with input
from more than 1,500 respondents across five countries,
covering six stakeholder groups. In 2016 we built on
these results, adding a qualitative element to delve
deeper.

A mediq, trend and peer analysis was performed to
capture new emerging topics and to ensure the topics
reported in 2015 were still relevant. Results were used
as input in detailed discussions with stakeholders
including customers, NGOs, academics, shareholders,
employees and regulators. They were asked to rate
the material topic on importance and to choose one
or two recommendations for ING to focus on, including
emerging topics. This qualitative approach increases
our understanding of our stakeholders’ priorities and
confirms that we are truly aligned with them.

m Read more in the “Non-financial appendix” for a
detailed process description on the 2016 materiality
assessment and the matrix.

We learned, for example, that both stakeholders and
ING regard innovative business developments as one

of the most important topics, considering factors such
as disruptive technologies across industries, the threat
from both small fintechs and giants such as Facebook
and Google and the opportunities that advanced data
analytics provide in serving our customers. Innovation is
a strategic priority for ING.

[1] Read more in the “Our strategy and how we create
value” chapter about innovation.

Sustainable finance and investment policies gained
awareness across all stakeholder groups - from NGOs
and governments to investors and customers. All expect
ING to have a long-term vision and to set measurable
environmental and social targets. We strive to use our
position as a global bank to spur environmental and
social progress.

We see our purpose - to empower people to stay a step
ahead in life and in business - as inherently sustainable.
We promote good financial decision-making and
empowerment. Next to that, our focus is on what we
call sustainable transitions - our own transition, with our
environmental programme helping us meet our targets
for water, waste and energy reduction; our customers’
transitions, by helping them become more sustainable;
and society’s transition, by funding sustainable projects
and clients.

m Read more in the “Retail Banking” and “Wholesale
Banking” chapters.
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Also gaining importance as a topic across stakeholder
groups is managing risks, both financial and non-
financial, such as environmental and social risk.
Stakeholders expect ING to move beyond improving our
risk-management capabilities to also engage with clients
to help them improve their own environmental and
social performance.

[:D Read more in the “Risk and capital management”
chapter.

The pricing of products and services assumed
greater importance. This is strongly influenced by
external factors such as the current low interest rate
environment, reduced margins, increasing requlatory
costs, and a shift towards a fee-based model.

[:D Read more in the “Our strategy and how we create
value” chapter.

A more detailed overview of the opportunities and risks
related to the material topics and our approach and
performance is summarised in the table on pages 15 to
18. The table serves as a summary to the content within
different chapters, covering future outlook, objectives,
indicators and results.

Balancing our responsibilities

Different stakeholders may have competing concerns.
Sometimes these are even contradictory. Here, we
outline some of the dilemmas we face in balancing these
different interests.

Stimulating sector change vs anti-
competitive behaviour

Banks are scrutinised on whether they have robust
policies when dealing with sensitive sectors such as
animal husbandry and manufacturing, as well as
important topics such as climate change and human
rights. ING has policies that uphold our values. Our
comprehensive and detailed Environmental and Social
Risk (ESR) framework sets out a clear checklist when
deciding which companies or activities to finance and
under which conditions.

We also believe it is important to discuss these
challenges with other banks to learn from each

other and reach common ground to really create
sustainable change across the sector. We try to do this
through working groups with our regulators and other
stakeholder organisations.

We recognise that collaborating on a good cause, even
with the best of intentions, could trigger questions
about anti-competitive behaviour. This might lead to a
situation where parties would be inclined to choose the
safe side and not work together rather than pursue a
joint sustainable approach between banks that might
have more impact. We would find such a situation
unfortunate, but would still continue to strive for
sustainable progress.
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Customer centricity vs negative interest
rates vs profitability

In traditional banking, banks attract customers’ savings
and then either invest them or loan that money to others.
They do this while managing accompanying risks (like
payment default) and earning income on the loans and
investments. The idea has always been that customers
who save money with a bank earn a certain interest. This
is deducted from the bank’s investment and loan revenue
to get net interest margin. But what happens when
negative interest rates come into play? And how does that
impact a bank’s ability to make a profit?

Like it or not, negative interest rates are a reality. The
monetary policy behind them aims to encourage
households to spend, rather than save. However it is
not yet clear that this works, and ING is working hard to
avoid being forced to implement negative rates on retail
deposits.

However, if banks don't lower their retail savings rates
below zero in a negative interest rate environment,

net interest margins would be impacted, worsening
profitability. Other solutions would have to be found,
such as increasing margins on lending or implementing
other fees, which could reduce market transparency.
From our point of view, none of these are desirable
because they would conflict with customers’
expectations about fair pricing.

Innovative financial technology companies:
threat or opportunity?

Innovative financial technology companies (fintechs) are
growing as competitors in financial services, providing a
customer experience that is superior to what banks offer.
Banks must adapt and evolve to survive.

ING believes that we should rely on our strengths

and perceive these developments as an opportunity
rather than a threat. We have the advantages of
scale, capital, a large customer base, marketing and
distribution know-how and experience. When it comes
to fintechs, ING's strategy is to pursue partnerships
with those that can really add value for our customers,
leveraging each other’s strengths.

We are currently partnering with more than 65 fintechs.
In Germany, for example, we are cooperating with several
young financial tech companies on video identification
(Web-ID), photo transfers (Gini Pay) and verifying
payments by fingerprint (SmartSecure App by kobil).

m Read more in the “Improving the customer
experience” chapter.
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Innovation vs data protection

Capturing and analysing data helps us understand our
customers’ needs and preferences, allowing us to offer
them more tailored products and improved service.

As a bank we collect and store vast amounts of data,
such as customer profiles, payment transactions,
complaints and more. Besides giving us meaningful
insights to better understand our customers, it improves
the accuracy of our internal and external reporting,

for example to regulators. On its own, raw data has
little value, that is why we are working to standardise
global data management. At the same time, we see an
increasing focus on data security across all industries.
For banks, this especially relates to people’s personal
financial information.

Customers trust us to store their data with care and
safety. This trust is also at the core of our relationship
with our customers. We abide by our legal obligations
to protect customer data, which can differ country to
country. The wishes of our customers and clients are
critical whenever data is processed for services and
offers. In cases where we rely on consent, the customer
can withdraw their consent at any time.

[D Read more in the “Improving the customer
experience” chapter.

Being a responsible employer vs adapting
to a changing environment

With over 54,000 employees, we aim to be a responsible
employer that provides staff with good working
conditions and opportunities for growth. In the digital
world, human touch remains important. Therefore we
strive to create an entrepreneurial, open, collaborative,
innovative and energetic culture that attracts and
motivates employees and helps to deliver on our
Customer Promise.

We offer training and opportunities for staff to develop
professionally, improving people’s general employability,
whether with ING or for future positions outside the
company. We see this as part of our responsibility as an
employer.

However, change is a constant and we - like all
companies - must periodically adapt to evolving
business requirements. This can lead to job losses. ING is
committed to helping employees to find new roles and/
or supporting them in learning new skills to better equip
them for their next role.

[:D Read more in the “People” chapter.

D:I Read more in the issue table in the “Non-financial
appendix’.
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More information

Opportunities & Risks

Customer centricity

Opportunities:

Driven by changing customer needs, banks
have an opportunity to make their products
and services available anytime, anywhere.
Advanced data analytics will help banks to
understand customers’ needs and
preferences, and allow banks to offer more
personalised products and services.

Banks are strictly regulated and are therefore
less flexible when it comes to developing new
ways to improve the customer experience.
However, partnerships with external financial
technology companies - usually start-ups -
who can move faster will strengthen the
bank’s transition towards digitalisation.

Risks:

Customer expectations are changing, enabled
by technology, forcing banks to go digital.
Inherent in that are risks related to privacy
and data security. Banks must adhere to legal
obligations and ensure customer data is
handled with the utmost care in a world
where cyber-attacks are on the rise, both in
frequency and intensity.

Fintechs are very focused in their product and
services offerings and cater to specific
customer needs, targeting segments
underserved by traditional banks.

Material topic

o Innovative business

developments

Fintechs are developing
rapidly and our customers’
expectations are evolving
every day. It is up to us to
adapt and innovate to
remain relevant.

At the same time, the
transition to a circular
economy will change the
business models of our
clients and, related to that,
their financial needs.

Customer privacy and data
security

It is our duty to handle our
customers’ data with the
utmost care. We strive to be
transparent about what we
do with the personal data of
customers, suppliers and
business partners, and only
to process personal data for
specific business purposes.

Enhancing customer
financial capabilities

Helping people make
smarter financial decisions
through transparent tools,
tailored offers and expert
advice.

Stability of IT systems and
platforms

Securing the stability of
ING's IT systems and
platforms, such as payment
services, internet banking
and apps.

Usability and accessibility
of our products and
services

We want to stand out by
making banking available to
our customers anytime,
anywhere through our
digital-first approach,
complemented by advice
when needed, with
omnichannel contact and
distribution possibilities.

15

Our approach and performance

ING believes that innovative businesses are
built on a culture of innovation.

The third edition of our annual Innovation
Bootcamp attracted 1,194 ideas. The
Innovation Fund is currently supporting four
initiatives. And by the end of 2016, ING had
more than 65 fintech partners, of which we
invested in 11.

In 2016, more than 2,000 employees were
trained in the PACE methodology, a
structured process to accelerate innovation
at ING.

All business units have adopted Global Data
Protection Policies (GDPPs) that qualify as
Binding Corporate Rules. In each business
unit and at bank level, a data protection
executive is responsible for maintaining
GDPP compliance.

The GDPP is currently being revised to
comply with new EU General Data
Protection Regulation 2016/679 which must
be adhered to by May 2018.

In 2016, more than 23.9 million people felt
financially empowered by ING, a 16.6%
increase compared to 2015. We introduced
products and services such as “Kijk Vooruit”
and My Money Coach to help people make
better financial decisions.

The Focused Reliability Initiative was
launched in 2015 to find permanent
solutions for system reliability issues in the
Netherlands and Belgium. Continuing the
programme in 2016, ING’s channel
availability improved to 99.75% on average
in the Netherlands, Belgium and Wholesale
Banking.

ING's customers are already digital and
increasingly mobile. Digital channels now
account for 98% of contact with retail
customers and mobile interactions
increased by more than 50% during 2016.
ING’s promise to deliver services anytime,
anywhere implies a commitment to make
these products and services accessible and
inclusive to all sections of society. ING in
Poland, for instance, makes use of
technology to help deaf customers who
have previously had to bring an interpreter
with them to do their banking. And in 2016,
there was a strategic shift from traditional
microfinance portfolios in India and Turkey
to a more diversified portfolio, both in
location and the mix of financial services
offered.

[T creating a culture of
innovation section in
the “Improving the
customer experience”
chapter.

[T Providing a
differentiating
customer experience
section in the “Retail
Banking” chapter.

[T Data privacy and
security section in the
“Improving the
customer experience”
chapter.

[T1 Balancing our
responsibilities:
Innovation vs data
protection in “The world
around us” chapter.

[T Financial empowerment
section in the “Retail
Banking” chapter.

[T Relaibility and stability
section in the
“Improving the
customer experience”
chapter.

[T] Introduction section in
the “Improving the
customer experience”
chapter.

[T Providing a
differentiating
customer experience
section in the “Retail
Banking” chapter.

[T Financial empowerment
and Financial inclusion
sections in the “Retail
Banking” chapter.
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More information

Opportunities & Risks

Customer centricity (continued)

Opportunities:

Simplifying business and operating models will
help banks enhance the customer experience
while reducing costs and risk.

Customers prefer a trusted institution acting
as a store of value, as a source of finance and
as a facilitator of transactions, providing
traditional (well-established) banks with an
advantage over the new entrants and
fintechs.

As distribution and communication channels
become more direct and available 24/7,
customers expect instant and continuous
access to their funds and our services. The
organisation must evolve accordingly.

Banks should embrace regulatory intent to
create sound, secure, unbiased businesses,
where requlatory compliance is embedded in
the processes and values of day-to-day
operations.

Risks:

Low interest rates, including negative rates in
some countries, are putting banks’ net interest
income and net interest margin under
pressure. Increased regulatory requirements
have an impact on the way banks do
business. For instance, enhanced regulation
on capital and liquidity will continue to
increase regulatory costs. And uncertainty
around European regulation on bank taxes,
risk-weight calculation and loss-absorption
requirement is hampering the new ways of
doing business.

New EU regulations, such as PSD2, are
opening up financial services to competitors
outside the sector thereby reducing the
barriers for entry.

Material topic

G Fair communications about

products and services

We communicate clearly
and easily to customers on
products and services.

Responsible lending and
debt prevention

We have responsible
lending activities and
prevent customers from
going into financial distress.

Financial performance*

Being a financially healthy
and stable company is
important to us and our
stakeholders.

Pricing of products and
services

A fair price for our products
and services increases
accessibility for our
customers and is important
for our competitiveness in
the marketplace.

Managing risks
(financial risks* and
non-financial risks)

Managing risks is at the
heart of what we do and
can have a material impact
on our business and society.
Safe banking requires strong
risk management, both
financial and non-financial.

Our approach and performance

We believe banking should be about clear
products, plain language, fair prices and
simple processes.

To ensure fair pricing and communication on
our products and services, we have a
Product Approval and Review Process (PARP).
Customers are able to provide feedback on
products and services through ratings and
online communities via ING websites.

In Wholesale Banking, we continued with
our transformation programme, Wholesale
Target Operating Model (Wholesale TOM),
further driving simplification, business
growth and innovation across the network

ING believes financially empowered people
contribute to a healthy economy and this
helps drive social progress. We offer all
kinds of activities to prevent customers
from going into financial distress and to
ensure responsible lending.

ING Group recorded a robust commercial
and financial growth in 2016, with a
full-year 2016 net profit of EUR 4,651
million, an increase of 16% year-on-year.
We have already met several of our
Ambition 2020 targets, including those for
capital, leverage ratio and dividend.

With deposits at the ECB already earning
negative interest rates, we have to
continuously balance customer
expectations with the prices we offer to
remain profitable. To address this trade-off,
we actively manage our interest rate risk
exposure and successfully maintained the
net interest margin on our core lending in
2016. To manage this challenge moving
forward we are proactively containing
costs, developing new offerings at fair
pricing that help empower our customers
and generate fee-based income.

By end-2016 our total number of
customers stood at 35.8 million, an
increase of around 3 million compared to
2014 when we launched the Think Forward
strategy.

We experienced healthy lending growth
and declining risk costs resulting from
active management of non-performing
loans. ING Bank’s nonperforming loans
(NPLs) expressed as a percentage of lending
credit outstandings further improved. The
NPL ratio decreased at the end of 2016 to
2.1% from 2.5% at the end of 2015.

ING Bank’s loan-to-deposit ratio rose to
1.05 compared to 1.04 at the end of 2015,
mostly due to growth of the loan book.

[T Providing a
differentiating
customer experience
section in the “Retail
Banking” chapter.

[T Delivering a
differentiating
customer experience
section in the
“Wholesale Banking”
chapter.

[T Financial empowerment
section in the “Retail
Banking” chapter.

[T] Environmental and
Social Risk management
section in the “Risk and
capital management”
chapter.

[T “Facts and key figures”,
“Our strategy and how
we create value” and
“The world around us”
chapters.

[T “Our strategy and how
we create value”
chapter.

[T More information on
both our financial and
non-financial risks
(including ESR) in the
“Risk and capital
management” chapter.

* The material topics with asterix (*) are not part of the KPMG assurance engagement in relation to the non-financial information. Financial risks are an integral part

of the audited consolidated annual accounts.
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Opportunities & Risks

Fair operating practices

Opportunities:

With regulatory initiatives such as Single
Supervisory Mechanism (SSM) - the new
system of banking supervision for Europe -
banks could benefit from harmonised
supervision that can enhance the creation of
one digital platform across borders.

Financing and investing in the transition to a
fair and green economy will help create
corporate and societal value in mid- to long
term.

Risks:

Increased involvement of (local) governments
in financial systems through policy making

and the lack of coordination among requlators

may hinder the emergence of a level playing
field among the traditional banks and
newcomers.

Besides government involvement,
stakeholders are pushing banks to include
environmental and social issues such as
climate-change risk and human rights in
financing and investing decisions.

Anti-competitive behaviour and corruption
can damage our reputation and have a direct
impact on our license to operate.

Material topic

0 Regulatory developments

Monitoring regulatory
developments and aiming
to act in accordance with
the expectations of society.

Anti-competitive behaviour
prevention*

ING's role and activities in
preventing anti-competitive
behaviour, anti-trust and
monopoly practices.

Corruption prevention*

ING's role and activities in
preventing corruption
practices.

Sustainable finance and
investment policies

Having clear policies guiding
our finance and investment
decisions; supporting clients
in improving their
environmental and social
practices; identifying
customers and projects that
provide sustainable
solutions and outperform
their sector on
environmental or social
performance.

Our approach and perform

ING monitors external developements to
ensure we can assess the impact of and
respond to relevant initiatives.

In order to identify, discuss and align our
response to important regulatory
developments, ING has set up two internal
steering committees, one dealing with
Supervision and Prudential Regulation and
the other dealing with Business Conduct
Regulation.

Anti-competitive behaviour undermines
ING's values and vision to see customers
empowered as it limits choices and restricts
the market. It is ING’s policy to fully comply
with all competition laws applicable to its
entire range of activities.

Further, for non-financial risks topics, global
education and awareness in the form of
e-learning modules, awareness sessions
and material is provided.

Bribery and corruption are criminal offences
and are clear violations of the ING Values.
ING has a zero tolerance policy on bribery
and corruption. We expect all our
employees to always do business in
accordance with the highest standards of
ethical behaviour and honesty.

Further, for non-financial risks topics, global
education and awareness in the form of
e-learning modules, awareness sessions
and material is provided.

We promote activities that have a positive
impact on society through financing
sustainable transitions and increasing
sustainable assets under management
(SAuM). In 2016, our sustainable transitions
financed (STF) was 34.3 billion and our
SAuM was 3.3 billion. Furthermore, our
strengthened Environmental and Social Risk
(ESR) framework guides our decisions for
client engagement and assessing finance
proposals.

More information

[T Progress on regulatory
initiatives that are most
relevant to us in “The
world around us”
chapter.

[T] “Corporate governance”
chapter.

[T] Statementon
anti-bribery principles in
the “Risk and capital
management” chapter
and “Non-financial
appendix”.

[T] Key developments
section in the “Risk and
capital management”
chapter.

[T Accelerating the
financing of sustainable
transitions section in
the “Wholesale
Banking” chapter.

[T Socially Responsible
Investment section in
the “Retail Banking”
chapter.

[T Environmental and
Social Risk management
section in the “Risk and
capital management”
chapter.

* The material topics with asterix (*) are not part of the KPMG assurance engagement in relation to the non-financial information. Financial risks are an integral part
of the audited consolidated annual accounts.

17



Report of the
Executive Board

The world around us - continued

More information

Opportunities & Risks

Stakeholder engagement

Opportunities:

Customers tend to trust banks over new
entrants and fintechs. Being transparent
about what's in our portfolio, shows the
diversity of investments and loans covering all
sectors. Furthermore it shows banks have
nothing to hide and are open to discussions.

Risks:

A lack of openness and transparency between
banks and their stakeholders may lead to a
mismatch between expectations and banks’
services. Trust is another important element
for both customer and society.

A lack of all these elements could lead to an
unfavourable public image from both
customers and society, possibly leading to a
decrease in customers and increased
regulation.

Human capital

Opportunities:

More diverse companies are more successful
in attracting and retaining talent, relate to
customers better, have higher employee
engagement and are better at decision-
making. Also, motivated, enabled and
energised employees, being the primary
resource and ambassadors of a bank, enhance
the business performance of banks.

Risks:

Employees are the primary resource and
ambassadors of the company. Losing our
employees, or not having a diverse group of
employees, could lead to sub-optimal
performance/results (financial risks) as well as
a reputational risk.

Material topic

o Transparency and

openness

Being transparent and open
about our investments,
products and services, and
other topics to help the
business move forward and
earn the trust of our
stakeholders.

Trust

Maintaining the confidence
of our stakeholders by
acting with professionalism
and integrity and placing
the customer at the heart
of everything we do via our
Customer Promise.

Diversity and equal
opportunities, preventing
discrimination

Ensuring ING's employees
are diverse and have equal
career opportunities. Also,
striving to create an
inclusive corporate culture
that welcomes,
acknowledges, respects and
benefits from each other's
differences.

Being a good employer

Creating an entrepreneurial,
open, collaborative,
innovative and energetic
culture within an
organisation to ensure we
attract and motivate our
employees and deliver on
our Customer Promise.
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Our approach and performance

Being transparent and open about our
investments, products and services, and
other topics is helping the business move
forward and earning the trust of our
stakeholders. We aim to find the right
balance between providing the
transparency and openness that society
and NGOs ask of us, while respecting our
customers’ privacy.

The ING Orange Code - a set of values and
behaviours that sets out our way of
working - provides a framework for a shared
culture uniting all our employees around
the world. We put “integrity above all”. In a
survey in 2016, 79% of employees said
they were aware of the code.

In 2016, the number of retail primary
relationships grew by more than 8% to 9.7
million, indicating customers’ trust in us.

We introduced a diversity manifesto,
“Success through difference”, in January
2016 that applies to all employees
worldwide. This policy sets out what
diversity means at ING, why it is important,
and what employees can do. Discrimination
is against the law, which is reflected in ING’s
policies.

The Bloomberg Financial Services
Gender-Equality Index was published for
the first time in May 2016. ING was ranked
as one of the most transparent financial
sector companies for diversity and social
equality.

ING’s Winning Performance Culture (WPC)
survey looks at how engaged, enabled and
energised employees are. A WPC survey
was conducted in September 2016. Around
70% of employees responded. ING achieved
an overall engagement score of 77%,
exceeding the 70% target it had set.

[T Balancing our
responsibilities section
in “The world around
us” chapter.

[T simplified balance
sheet in the
“Non-financial
Appendix” chapter.

[T “People” chapter
(Orange Code).

[T “Our strategy and how
we create value”
chapter.

[T] who we are section in
the “People” chapter.

[T1 Employee engagement
section in the “People”
chapter.
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Our strategy and how we create value

ING's purpose is to empower people to stay

a step ahead in life and in business. This

is founded on our belief that the role of a
financial institution is to support and promote
economic, social and environmental progress
at the same time as it generates healthy
returns for shareholders. In this chapter we
explain how our Think Forward strategy helps
us fulfil that purpose, achieve financial and
commercial success and create value for all
our stakeholders.

Our strategy and progress

ING continued in 2016 to successfully implement

the Think Forward strategy based on our purpose to
empower people to stay a step ahead in life and in
business. We further improved the value proposition

for customers that aims to provide them with a
differentiating customer experience. And we accelerated
our transformation to address the increasing pace of
digitalisation and disruption in the financial services
industry.

The approach to the customer experience we offer is
based on our Customer Promise. This is our pledge to
customers to be clear and easy, available anytime and
anywhere, to empower and to keep getting better. We
do that by striving to be leaders in the digital customer
experience based on easy access, simplified products
and services, and tools to help customers make smart
financial decisions.

The success of our strategy is reflected in the growing
number of customers who want to bank with us, the
high level of customer satisfaction and the growth of
our lending franchise. By end-2016 our total number
of customers stood at almost 36 million, an increase of
more than a million year-on-year. Primary customers
also increased to 9.7 million, on track to achieve our
target of 10 million primary customers by 2017; and
we have now increased that ambition to 14 million
primary customers by 2020. We enjoyed high customer
satisfaction scores in many of our markets, achieving
number one Net Promoter Scores (NPS) in 7 of our

13 retail markets. And our net core lending grew
during 2016 by more than six percent, supporting the
economies of the countries where we are active.

One of the ways ING is fulfilling its purpose to empower
customers is by offering products, services and tools that
make it easier for customers to manage their money
and make better financial decisions. In 2016, ING in
Spain introduced My Money Coach, a free digital service
that uses answers customers provide on their personal
situation, risk appetite and financial knowledge to design
a personalised plan to help them achieve their savings,
investment and retirement goals. Last year we also
expanded the range of the successful online Financially
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Fit planning tools in the Netherlands. Similar digital
advisers are part of our offering or are being developed
In Belgium, France, Poland and Spain.

Last year, we launched Moje ING in Poland, an
omnichannel customer interface offering an easy
overview of a customer’s finances and financial planning
tools and based on our successful Genoma platform in
Spain. In the Netherlands we also introduced the “Kijk
Vooruit” (or “Look Ahead”) tool, which enables users

to gain more control over their finances through an
overview of future planned and predicted transactions.

ING believes that banking can play a significant role in
creating a fairer and greener economy. This includes
helping our clients to develop more sustainable business
models, supporting clients who develop solutions to
environmental and social challenges and also clients
who are environmental outperformers in their sectors.
ING’s sustainable transitions financed (STF) came to
more than EUR 34 billion in 2016. One notable deal

we were involved in was UK waste operator Shanks
Plc's merger with the leading Dutch waste processor
Van Gansewinkel Groep. ING served as advisor and
underwriter for this deal that will create one of Europe’s
leading players in recycling and illustrates ING's
commitment to the circular economy.

Accelerating Think Forward

While we are achieving successes with our strategy,
rapid developments in technology, customer behaviour
and the competitive landscape mean we need to

speed up our pace of transformation in order to offer
customers a differentiating experience in the future.
These trends are evident in a number of ways. We see
the continuing digitalisation of banking - especially the
rapid growth of mobile devices as the main customer
interface. We also see that technology is reducing
barriers to enter the financial services markets,
resulting in a wave of newcomers targeting segments
underserved by traditional banks. In addition, new
regulations are opening up Europe’s payment market to
non-banks and we are seeing the development of digital
ecosystems that allow users to access social media,
online purchases, services and payments all in one app.

Low interest rates are also decreasing returns for
customers and depressing banks’ interest margins. And
regulatory changes are increasing the cost of capital,
limiting banks’ capacity to continue to provide certain
types of services at a reasonable price. This means

we need to look to new offerings that can provide
consumers an alternative, for example to low yielding
savings accounts, and generate fee income for the bank.
We also need to reduce our operating costs without
compromising on the customer experience that we
deliver.

To keep up with these developments and remain

among the leaders in digital banking, we need to offer a
customer experience that's instant, personal, frictionless
and relevant - one that meets the expectations
customers have from their interactions with other
leaders in the online digital experience.
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The future of banks is not banking as we know it today.
This is challenging us as a bank to re-think who we are.
We believe we should be providing our customers, both
retail and wholesale, with one platform that extends
beyond banking. It should provide customers with their
complete financial picture across all institutions, with
actionable insights so that they are empowered to make
smart financial decisions. We also envisage connecting
our customers to solutions offered by third parties.
And we will connect our ecosystem to selected digital
ecosystems, to be visible and present in the places
where customers go when they are online.

To help us achieve this, we announced In October

2016 an investment of EUR 800 million in continued
digital transformation to further improve the customer
experience and accelerate growth in primary customers
and lending. This effort will be overseen by a newly
created chief transformation officer role at Management
Board Banking level that will be filled by Roel Louwhoff,
who will combine the new role with his current one as
chief operating officer.

Our goal is to ultimately converge our different banking
models into one globally scalable platform. As a first
step, we will move to an intermediate state (2016-2021)
where we will converge businesses with similar customer
propositions that can benefit from a more standardised
approach and economies of scale.

In the Netherlands and Belgium, we intend to improve
our customer experience by moving to an integrated
banking platform, leveraging the combined strengths of
the omnichannel capabilities of the Netherlands with the
relationship model and advice capabilities of Belgium. In
our Challenger markets, we will work towards a Model
Bank, with one retail strategy and harmonised retail
proposition focused on increasing customer interaction,
and supported by a shared services organisation.
Germany'’s Welcome banking platform will further
digitalise our business there and enable us to pilot

key elements of the future integrated platform, which
we plan over time to open to non-customers and for
selected third parties. In Wholesale Banking we will
continue our Target Operating Model (TOM) programme,
further driving simplification, business growth and
innovation.

In this intermediate state we are also laying the bank-
wide, shared foundation that will allow us to develop into
a single, integrated platform in the future. This comprises
global process management, global data management,
modular architecture, bank-wide shared services and
cloud-based services.

We will fund this journey and respond to headwinds

on the economic growth and requlatory fronts through
additional cost management and income diversification.
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Elements of our strategy

Our Think Forward strategy was launched in March 2014
and guides everything we do. In this section we give you
an overview of the strategy with references to where
you can look in the Annual Report for examples and
additional information and how our strategy links to the
material topics identified by our stakeholders.

Strategic priorities

To deliver on our Customer Promise and create a
differentiating customer experience, we have identified
four strategic priorities:

1. Earn the primary relationship

The better we know our customers, the better we will be
able to empower them to make smart financial decisions
and continue to be relevant for them. We can do this
best when they do a range of banking with us and when
we are the bank our customers go to for their daily
transactions. We call that the primary relationship.

In Retail Banking, we define the primary relationship as a
customer with a payment account with recurrent income
and at least one other product with ING. In Wholesale
Banking, we aim to increase primary relationships

by increasing our so-called “flow” relationships (e.g.
transaction services, working capital solutions) and the
percentage of relationships where we are the client’s lead
finance provider.

In 2016, the number of retail primary relationships grew
by more than eight percent to 9.7 million, putting us
well on track to reach our ambition of 10 million primary
retail customers in 2017. We have now increased our
ambition to 14 million primary customers by 2020.

Material topics: financial performance, pricing of
products and services, fair communication about
products and services, enhancing customers’ financial
capabilities, responsible lending and debt prevention,
trust, transparency and openness.

2. Develop data analytics

The relationship between banks and their customers,
as in other industries, is increasingly a digital one.
Digitalisation challenges banks to maintain intimacy
with a customer who they rarely meet face to face.
But the digital interface also provides a wealth of data
on customers’ preferences and needs that gives banks
important insights they can use to provide the kind

of experience customers now expect from businesses
they interact with online. Developing analytic skills is
essential to serving customers in a digital world. This
is not only important for improving customer services,
but also for preventing fraud, improving operational
processes, reducing risks and generating services that go
beyond traditional banking so we can stay relevant for
customers.
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Our strategy and how we create value - continued

Our strategy on a page

With the launch of our Think Forward strategy in March 2014, a one-page
overview was created to show our new strategy in a clear and visual way
to all our stakeholders.

’ Purpose

Empowering people to stay a step

ahead in life and in business

P> Customer QA © ®

Clear and Easy Anytime, Anywhere Empower Keep Getting Better

\V4

P strategic Creating a differentiating customer experience
Priorities 1 Earnthe primary relationship
2 Develop analytics skills to understand our customers better

3 Increase the pace of innovation to serve changing customer needs

4 Think beyond traditional banking to develop new services and business models

. Enablers Simplify & Operational Performance Lending

Streamline Excellence Culture Capabilities
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To make this happen, an international Advanced
Analytics team based in Frankfurt and Amsterdam acts
as a centre of excellence and supports all business units.
At the same time, local advanced analytics teams have
been established in Belgium, the Netherlands, Poland,
Spain, Turkey and in Wholesale Banking.

Our Chief Data Management Officer oversees the
implementation of global data management together
with local data officers.

Material topics: customer privacy and data security,
managing risks

3. Increase the pace of innovation to serve
changing customer needs

Customer expectations, new technologies and new
competitors are transforming banking. Through
innovation, we can increase efficiency, improve the
customer experience and gain competitive advantage.
Our PACE methodology is designed to encourage

fast experimentation and turn ideas quickly into new
products and services for customers. We also promote
an internal culture of innovation through our employee-
driven Innovation Bootcamps. To speed up the pace

of innovation we also partner with outside parties,
including fintechs. As of the end of 2016, we were
partnering and in some cases also investing in more
than 65 fintechs in various areas, like instant lending,
factoring and customer loyalty.

[1] Read more in the “Improving the customer
experience” chapter.

Material topics: innovative business developments,
usability and accessibility of our products and services

4.Think beyond traditional banking to develop
new services and business models

Thinking beyond traditional banking is crucial given that
disruption in the banking industry puts a significant
portion of revenues at risk. Our payments value chain

is already under threat from many bank and non-

bank players. To be successful, banks need to expand
the concept of what a bank is and what it means to
customers. We envisage doing this by creating an open
digital platform that also includes relevant offers from
third parties, providing a complete financial view for
customers in one place - including of their holdings at
other institutions - so they are empowered to make
better financial decisions, and also by finding ways to be
relevant to customers earlier in their purchasing decision
process. In 2016, ING developed the Yolt aggregation
platform, which offers users a view of their complete
financial holdings across institutions. Yolt is currently
being user tested in the UK.

[:D Read more in the “Improving the customer
experience” chapter.

Material topics: innovative business developments,
sustainable finance and investment policies
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Enablers

Four strategic enablers support the implementation

of our strategy: simplifying and streamlining our
organisation, further striving for operational excellence,
enhancing the performance culture within our company
and diversifying our lending capabilities.

1. Simplify & streamline

Simplify and streamline refers to ING’s aim to become

a more effective, cost-efficient and agile organisation
with the flexibility to respond to fast-changing customer
needs and low-cost competitors. In the Netherlands

we have introduced agile working based on end-to-

end, multidisciplinary teams. These teams are focused
on delivering customer improvements from design to
product delivery at lower cost and with shorter time to
market than previously required. We have also introduced
targeted operating models (TOMs) to streamline our
Finance, HR, Procurement and Risk functions.

Material topics: usability and accessibility of our
products and services, fair communication about
products and services

m Read more in the “Improving the customer
experience” chapter.

2. Operational excellence

Operational excellence requires continuous focus to
ensure that ING's operations deliver a seamless and
flawless customer experience. Our operational excellence
vision concentrates on delivering the Customer Promise.
To meet changing customer expectations arising from
increasing digitalisation, we aim to converge to a single
platform for financial services that will deliver a uniform
customer experience across borders. This will be based
on simplified and standardised products and systems
supported by modular architecture, integrated and
scalable IT systems, and shared services. While pursuing
this ambition we are also investing to provide stable IT
systems and platforms to ensure we are there for our
customers when they need us and to provide them with
the highest standards of data security.

Material topics: stability of IT systems and platfoms,
usability and accessibility of our products and services

m Read more in the “Improving the customer
experience” chapter.

3. Performance culture

A strong performance culture is key to achieving the
bank’s ambitions and deliver on our Customer Promise.
Following the introduction in 2015 of the Orange Code
- a new set of values and behaviours that sets out our
way of working - we are taking a number of steps to
strengthen performance culture. These include a Think
Forward leadership programme designed to develop
the leadership behaviours we need to achieve the
strategy. It is currently being rolled out to top managers
and will later be offered to over 6800 managers. We
are working to improve performance management

for all employees through the Step Up Performance
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Management framework. This replaces a backward
looking performance assessment with a real-time review
process that seeks to empower employees and make
them more accountable for their own performance and
development. The process has been rolled out to all
employees in Spain, managers in Belgium and around
200 senior leaders globally. Step Up will be introduced
to all employees from 2017 onwards. We are also
committed to accelerating the development of diversity,
including in areas such as gender, age, background,
sexual orientation, physical ability and religious beliefs.
That is why we introduced a diversity manifesto,
“Success through difference”, in January 2016 and

have a range of initiatives in place designed to improve
diversity and foster an inclusive culture.

Material topics: diversity and equal opportunities,
preventing discrimination, being a good employer

[1] Read more in the “People” chapter.

4. Lending capabilities

Broadening and diversifying our lending capabilities

to continue to grow our client franchises is our fourth
strategic enabler. To do so, we are seeking opportunities
in retail, SME and consumer lending, as well as focusing
on Wholesale Banking lending growth in our Challengers
& Growth Markets businesses and in our specialised
Industry Lending franchise. In 2016, a number of
innovative products and services that support ING's
Customer Promise were launched. Customers in Poland,
Romania, Spain and Turkey can now get personal loans
instantly online based on advanced analytics that
enables ING to use data it already has rather than asking
the customer to provide it.

Material topics: financial performance, sustainable
finance and investment policies, enhancing customer
financial capabilities

[I:l Read more in the “Retail Banking” and “Wholesale
Banking” chapters.

Geographical presence and strategic
approach

ING has a presence in over 40 countries. Though our local
businesses vary in terms of their market positions all are
guided by our purpose of empowerment and strategy

to provide customers with a differentiating customer
experience.

Market Leaders

These are our businesses in mature markets in the
Benelux where we have strong positions in retail and
wholesale banking. Our strategy is to grow in selected
segments, continue to invest in digital leadership with
a digital-first model, deliver on operational excellence
programmes and create greater cost efficiency in order
to fund business expansion in growth markets.
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Challengers

These are businesses in markets where we offer both
retail and wholesale banking services. Our retail activities
are mainly direct-banking offered online with a significant
cost advantage over traditional banks. Our strategy is to
leverage our strong savings franchises in these markets to
expand into payments accounts and increase the number
of primary customer relationships. We are also using our
direct banking experience to grow the lending business at
low cost in areas like consumer and SME lending. And we
are using our strong savings businesses to fund expansion
of Wholesale Banking, particularly to support clients in
Industry Lending and working capital solutions.

Growth Markets

These are businesses with a full range of retail and
wholesale banking services in markets with expanding
economies and strong growth potential. We are investing
to achieve sustainable franchises and will focus on digital
leadership by converging to the direct-first model and by
prioritising innovation.

Wholesale Banking

We are a network bank for our clients across Europe
with global reach and strong positions in a number of
global franchises, including Industry Lending, Financial
Markets and Transaction Services. We are investing in our
business transformation programme Target Operating
Model and are targeting growth in our corporate client
base, Industry Lending and Transaction Services. In
Challenger countries we are expanding our lending
activities to build locally optimised balance sheets and
sustainable franchises.

Our performance

The good progress we made in 2016 implementing the
Think Forward strategy and providing a differentiating
banking experience for customers resulted in strong
commercial and financial performance. ING Group

net result of EUR 4.7 billion and underlying net result
Banking of just under EUR 5 billion were driven by robust
commercial growth at resilient margins and declining risk
costs and achieved despite increasing requlatory costs.

Our focus on primary customer relationships helped us
to achieve healthy and balanced growth in our lending
to customers and in customer deposits. Net core lending
grew by nearly EUR 35 billion and customer deposits
increased by EUR 28.5 billion in 2016, both rising around
six percent. Lending is well diversified across regions
and categories, with particularly strong growth in the
Challengers & Growth Markets and Industry Lending in
Wholesale Banking. We also saw substantial progress in
fee and commission income, particularly in Challengers
& Growth Markets where we are increasingly becoming
the primary bank for customers.

We believe that this strong profitability and growth and
the important steps we are taking to accelerate the
strategy position us well to continue to be successful

in the future and provide a superior experience for
customers.
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All your finances at your fingertips with Yolt
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Ambition 2020 financial targets

We have published financial targets for 2020 reflecting
our ambitions. These include a common equity Tier 1
ratio for ING Group above the prevailing fully-loaded
requirement, currently estimated to be 11.75%, plus a
comfortable management buffer, a leverage ratio above
4 percent, a 50-52 percent underlying cost/income ratio
and an underlying return on equity to be determined
when outstanding regulatory issues are clarified.

As of year-end 2016, we were on track to meet all of our
Ambition 2020 targets. Our CET1 ratio of 14.2% was well
ahead of regulatory requirements and the leverage ratio
rose to 4.8%. The Board proposes to pay a total 2016
dividend of EUR 2,560 million, or EUR 0.66 per ordinary
share, subject to the approval of shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting in May 2017. This comprises
the previously announced interim dividend of EUR 0.24
paid in August 2016 and a final dividend of EUR 0.42 per
ordinary share. We aim to pay a progressive dividend
over time.

How we create value

The role of a financial institution is to support and
promote economic, social and environmental progress
leading to a better quality of life for people in society,
while generating adequate returns for shareholders.
This is what the value we create for and with our
stakeholders, such as customers and shareholders,
should be about. This naturally fits with our purpose:
“empowering people to stay a step ahead in life and in
business”.

The value creation model on pages 26 and 27 illustrates
what we do and how we create value with our
stakeholders through our unique Customer Promise to
be clear and easy, to make financial services available
anytime and anywhere, to empower and to keep getting
better for customers. The framework of the International
Integrated Reporting Council serves as a basis for this
model.

Our services and products

We add value by delivering products and services that
aim to empower people and fuel economic growth.
Examples of that are payments services, which help
companies run smoothly, and mortgages, which help
people buy homes.

Our people

We believe that in addition to assisting customers a bank
should also provide employees the means to be the best
they can be. ING employees are encouraged to develop
their talents and take charge of their own careers. We
believe that investing in people not only generates more
engaged and higher performing employees, but results
in more satisfied customers and improved business
performance.
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Financial

As a bank, our value chain involves the inflow and
outflow of money. We facilitate payments and
transactions. We also take in savings and transform
them by making them available in the form of loans, at
the same time managing the associated risks. Our 2016
profitability was strong, enabling us to support economic
development by paying wages, taxes and dividends.

Innovation The rapid pace of global technological
developments is undeniable. We place a high priority
on innovation within ING to keep pace with the change
around us and meet changing customer needs. We

are experimenting with agile working to increase the
pace of innovation. We also create intellectual capital
through the expertise we are developing in areas like
environmental and social risk management, sustainable
finance and data analytics. We aim to share knowledge
via different networks and, for example, our ING
Economics Department publications.

Social and network

We add value for our customers by making banking
more accessible guided by our Customer Promise: clear
and easy, anytime and anywhere, empower, keep
getting better. Many consumers feel challenged when
making financial decisions. We see an important role
we can play in empowering customers with products,
services and tools that make it easier for them to handle
their money matters and make sounder financial
decisions. We also contribute our expertise in public
forums to raise awareness of consumer behaviour,

to contribute to improved products and services for
consumers and to promote sounder public policy.

Environmental capital

Our activities impact the environment. This includes
the direct impact we have from the operations of our
buildings, from IT systems and from business travel.
However, our indirect impact on the environment is
much greater through our financing portfolio and

our procurement supply chain. We are committed to
reducing our own footprint by 20 percent in 2020 and
to working closely with both customers and suppliers to
help them adapt and take advantage of opportunities
in the low-carbon economy of the future. This is
demonstrated by our increased number of sustainable
transitions financed and sustainable assets under
management in 2016.

Our value creation model

As a global bank we bring more to society than just

our financial value. Our value creation model shows in

a simplified way how we create value for and with our
stakeholders, as well as major external trends that have
an influence on that. As a financial institution, our input
is in the areas of finance, our people, innovation and
environmental capital. We impact society across all the
capital outputs defined in the International Integrated
Reporting Council (IIRC) value creation framework. More
information and context to the numbers below can be
found throughout this report.
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How we create value

Trends impacting the
banking landscape

Digitalisation of banking is continuing.

Technology reduced barriers to enter the financial services

markets which has resulted in a wave of newcomers

targeting segments underserved by traditional banks.

Europe's payments market is opening to non-banks.

Low interest rates are decreasing returns for
customers and depressing banks' interest margins.

Ecosystems are developing, allowing users to access
social media, online purchases, services and
payments all in one app.

Regulatory changes are increasing the cost of capital.

A need to reduce operating costs.
The transition to a low carbon economy continues.

The political landscape is changing.

©

Value in

- The expertise, capacity and energy ~ Our people
of over 54,000 employees
+ Strong belief in diversity

- Focus on performance culture

7]

+ Large customer base  Financial
- Solid financial position

+ Healthy cost-income ratio

- Innovation to enhance customer experience  Innovation
and/or move beyond banking
- Innovation to improve operational excellence

- Developing thought leadership

- Environmental programme  Environmental
- Sustainable procurement
- ING supports UN Sustainable Development
Goals, particularly SDG 8 and 12

- Developing thought leadership
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Value out

Products & services - Making banking easier

+ Customers value our products and services
- Supporting economies of countries where we
are present
Our people - Being a good employer
- Strong employee engagement scores
- Impact of changing banking landscape and
technology on people

Financial + Strong financial results

+ Ensuring stability
- Shareholder value
- Paid taxes and regulatory costs

Innovation - Move fast and fail fast innovations

- External collaborations

Social & network + Customers empowered to make better financial

decisions

- Better awareness of how consumers make
financial decisions leading to improved products
and services

Environmental + Support progress

- Responsible lending
+ Own environmental footprint

Impact on society

Sustainable and inclusive economic growth
consistent with UN's Sustainable Development
Goal 8.

Financially empowered people who contribute to
a healthy economy.

Enhanced skills set and employability of
adolescents through volunteering and donation
programmes.

Economic development and job creation in
emerging countries through impact finance.

Responsible consumption and production
consistent with UN's Sustainable Development
Goal 12.

Direct environmental and social impact through our
reduced operational footprint, respectively human
rights focus.

Indirect impact by supporting clients in addressing
environmental and social challenges impacting
their business.

Knowledge creation on pioneering themes (e.g.
Circular Economy) through thought leadership.
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How we create value
(deep dive)

Value in

Our people
The expertise, capacity and energy of over
54,000 employees
+ EUR 70 million spent on training and development.
- Employees submitted 1,194 ideas through Innovation
Bootcamp.
+ More than 2,000 employees trained in PACE
methodology.
- Introduction of a new global Employee Value
Proposition (EVP).
+ Wholesale Banking expertise in a variety of sectors.
- Advanced analytics teams in five countries and in
Wholesale Banking operations.
Strong belief in diversity
- Diversity manifesto introduced in all ING countries.
+ More than 1,000 employees across eight countries
have gone through unconscious bias workshops. ower C[emo
Focus on performance culture xo? @ N
- Distinctive culture through Orange Code. Sy
+ 99% of employees took part in a formal performance
management process.
+ Launch of kudos, ING's online compliment tool.
- Almost 300 Performance management workshops -
with around 1,000 managers in 15 countries. Prov'd'ng pagmeqts
& transaction services

Financial

Large and growing customer base

- Well-known, strong brand with positive recognition
from customers in many countries.

- Over 35 million customers entrust us with payments
and their deposits.

Solid financial position

- EUR 49.8 billion shareholders’ equity and EUR 152.4

Empowering people
to stay a step ahead
in life and in business

billion debt securities, bank deposits and subordinated Facilii&ating Delivering
loans. saving customer
Increased profitability and healthy development & lending experience

of costs
- Increased focus on fee income to compensate for low ;
interest rates.

- Focus on cost control; decreasing cost/income ratio o,

A\
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Innovation 9 bette,

Innovation to enhance customer experience and/or

move beyond traditional banking

- Digital channels account for 98% of contact with retail
customers; mobile interactions increased by more
than 50% during 2016.

- Innovation Fund to finance initiatives.

- Data analytics to identify customer needs
and tailor services and products accordingly.

Innovation to improve operational excellence

- Target Operating Models (TOMs) to streamline
Finance, HR, Procurement and Risk functions.

+ PACE methodology to experiment and quickly turn
ideas into new products and services.

- Cybercrime programme to mitigate any security threat.

Developing thought leadership

+ Developed thought leadership on blockchain.

Environmental

Environmental programme

+ Global Environmental Management System (EMS)
in place.

- 15014001 EMS certification for head office and
operations in the Netherlands.

Sustainable procurement

+ Global supplier qualification (SQ) process.

ING supports UN Sustainable Development Goals

- ING focuses in particular on SDG 8 and 12.

Developing thought leadership

- Creating thought leadership on Circular Economy e.g.
by joining the Ellen MacArthur Foundation as a
CE100 member.

+ Adherence to Dutch Sector Agreement on
Human Rights.

[
An\)‘:\me‘
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Value out

Products & services

Customers value our products and services

- Our number of primary customers increased by more
than 8%.

- Customers in 7 out of 13 countries rank ING as #1 bank.

Making banking easier

- Retail customers now can get a mortgage twice as
fast as before in the Netherlands.

- Inside Business in 17 countries providing real-time
insights and single point of access to manage financial
transactions.

- In Wholesale Banking, simplified requirements for
accounts and payments services, reducing paperwork for
applications from 836 to 47 pages.

- Channel availability improved to 99.8%.

Supporting economies of countries where we are present

- Lending grew by EUR 35 billion

- EUR 282 billion outstanding in mortgages

- Instant lending platforms developed.

Our people

Being a good employer

+ Human Capital Return on Investment 2.59.

+ Improved employability and helping employees to find
new opportunities.

- ING ranked as one of the most transparent financial
sector companies in the Netherlands when it comes to
diversity and social equality in Bloomberg Financial
Services Gender-Equality Index.

- The Top Employer Institute gave several ING operations in
Europe the highest classification.

+ Of our managers of managers, 29.3% were women.

Performance culture

+ 79% of employees globally indicated they were aware of
the Orange Code.

+ Almost 33,000 employees signed up as kudos users and
more than 143,000 compliments were sent amongst
employees.

Strong employee engagement scores

- Employee engagement score of 77%.

Impact of changing banking landscape and technology

on people

- We anticipate 7,000 jobs will be impacted by the
acceleration of the Think Forward strategy.

Financial

Strong financial results

- Fees and interest results: EUR 15.7 billion.

Ensuring stability

+ 14.2% Common Equity Tier 1 ratio.

- Low credit risk due to diversified nature of lending
portfolio Wholesale Banking.

Shareholders value

+ EUR 2,560 million dividend.

Paid taxes and regulatory costs

- Responsible tax principles: global effective tax rate
for continuing activities of 27.4%.

Innovation

Move fast and fail fast innovations

- Innovation Fund financed 20 initiatives in 2016.
External collaborations

- More than 65 fintech partners.

+ 11 investments.

Social & network

+ 23.9 million customers feel financially empowered
by ING initiatives.

- 95,227 adolescents reached through PFY UNICEF
programme.

+ ING is a founding member of the Think Forward Initiative.

- 10% of Groenbank’s balance sheet for impact
activities, including education and research.

- ING funds research, makes donations and shares its
knowledge, with employees volunteering as guest
lecturers.

Environmental

Support progress

- EUR 34.3 billion sustainable transitions financed.

+ EUR 3.31 billion sustainable assets under management.
Responsible lending

- ESRis applied to 100% of our corporate loans.

Own environmental footprint

- CO, emissions decreased by 27%.

* 91% of our global electricity use is from renewables.
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Retail Banking

Retail Banking performed well in 2016 despite
the low interest rate environment and higher
regulatory costs. Our digital-first operating
model continued to provide a clear and

easy, anytime and anywhere experience for
customers, supported by tools and advice
that empower them to make smart financial
decisions. We will bring together our Retail
Banking operating models to create a banking
platform that will speed up innovation, offer a
superior customer experience across borders
and integrate with third-party providers to
offer customers services that go beyond
traditional banking.

Who are we?

Retail Banking provides products and services to
individuals, small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs)
and mid-corporates. We serve more than 35.8 million
customers in a variety of markets.

Market Leaders are businesses in the Netherlands,
Belgium and Luxembourg where we have strong market
positions in Retail Banking and Wholesale Banking.

Challengers are businesses in Australia, Austria, the
Czech Republic, France, Germany, Italy and Spain
where we aim to build a full bank relationship, digitally
distributed at low cost.

Growth Markets are those expanding economies that
offer above average growth potential: Poland, Romania
and Turkey. In addition, ING has stakes in the Bank of
Beijing (China), TMB (Thailand) and Kotak Mahindra Bank
(India).

In most markets ING offers a full range of retail banking
products and services, covering payments, savings,
investments and secured and unsecured lending. ING
pursues a digital-first approach, complemented by
advice when needed, with omnichannel contact and
distribution possibilities.

Challenges

Regulatory costs have continued to increase and weigh
heavily on the bank’s expenses. In 2013, regulatory costs
made up four percent of total underlying expenses. In
2016 they accounted for nine percent.

These cost increases have coincided with a low interest
rate environment which adversely impacts banks’
interest income generating capabilities. This environment
is unlikely to change in the foreseeable future. Add

to that slow economic growth, a new competitive
landscape and changes in customer behaviour, and it
becomes apparent that all banks will need to re-think
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their business models. To address these challenges,
banks need to cut costs, for example through increased
digitalisation and efficiency. They also need to look to
relevant new offers for customers that can generate new
revenue streams, such as fee income.

Overall, there were many different challenges and trends
impacting our retail businesses in 2016. For instance, in
the Netherlands we saw a major shift in the mortgage
market to non-bank suppliers (especially insurance
companies and pension funds). Also in the Netherlands
as well as Belgium, there was more prepayment
financing of mortgages brought on by low interest
rates. Demand for SME lending was also low, particularly
in the Netherlands, brought on by a slow recovery in
some sectors. Each of our retail businesses in their own
competitive environment have had to overcome both
local and global challenges.

Providing a differentiating customer
experience

Our customer promise

Technology and digitalisation are accelerating. Mobile
interactions are growing quickly and mobile devices are
becoming the channel of choice for customers, leading
to more consistent digital customer behaviour.

ING's strategic priorities unite around the goal of offering
a differentiating customer experience. Underpinning that
experience is ING's Customer Promise: to be clear and
easy, with an anytime, anywhere service offering that
empowers customers to make smart decisions. We also
promise to keep getting better.

ING uses the Net Promoter Score (NPS) to measure
progress in offering a differentiating customer
experience. Our aim is to achieve a number one NPS
ranking, with a 10-point lead compared to our main
competitors in each retail banking market. Based on a
rolling average of NPS scores over 2016, ING was ranked
number one in 7 of our 13 major markets. Our number
one positions were in Australia, Austria, France,
Germany, Poland, Romania and Spain.

We are increasingly innovating in pursuit of a better
customer experience. A significant number of customers
are self-directed. They expect to be able to choose from
clear and easy products and services that are available
to them when and where they want them.

Technology and advanced analytics allow ING to use
data it already has rather than asking the customer to
provide it. Customers in many countries can apply for
a loan anytime, anywhere - a significant improvement
on having to supply large amounts of paperwork when
applying for a loan.

Instant Lending allows customers in Poland, Romania,
Spain and Turkey to get a personal loan instantly online.
There is no requirement to submit income declarations.
Credit risk decisions are taken within minutes.

Spain introduced an initiative to offer small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) loans of up to EUR 100,000.
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The process was developed following the bank’s
partnership with Kabbage, a leading US-based technology
platform. Credito Negocios makes use of full credit scoring
and real-time risk monitoring and allows SMEs to get a
loan within 10 minutes, based on real-time business data.
The lending process is reduced to a few minutes from the
days it previously took to process applications.

Twyp (The Way You Pay), ING’s new social payments
app, allows users (not just ING customers) to send and
receive money instantly. Instead of lengthy and difficult
to remember IBANS, users can access mobile phone
numbers in their contact list to transfer money. It is as
easy as sending a text and useful for paying back small
amounts to friends, for instance. There are currently
300,000 registered users in Spain.

The app was initially also launched in the Netherlands
but has now been discontinued there as part of a “fail
fast” approach to innovation. It became clear that
there was limited customer demand and insufficient
differentiation with an existing service.

Expanding further on the Twyp app platform, in 2016
Twyp Cash was also launched. Customers in Spain can
conveniently withdraw money with their smartphone
when paying for other purchases, avoiding ATM fees. This
is available at more than 3,500 supermarkets and fuel
stations.

In Poland, Moje ING provides a one-stop shop for
managing personal finances for customers. Launched in
early 2016, and reusing some of Spain’s digital banking
platform Genoma, Moje ING offers customers a simple
overview of their finances and access to an easy-to-use
financial planning tool.

To ensure fair pricing and communication on our
products and services, we have a Product Approval and
Review Process (PARP). Customers are able to provide
feedback on products and services through ratings and
online communities via ING websites.

Financial empowerment

ING wants people to make the right financial decisions
and in doing so improve their day-to-day finances. ING
believes financially empowered people contribute to a
healthy economy and this helps drive social progress.
In this way ING promotes sustainable and inclusive
economic growth as part of the UN's Sustainable
Development Goals.

ING has a three-way approach to financially empower
customers. First, we want to offer clear and easy
products and services anytime, anywhere. ING in
Poland, for instance, makes use of technology to help
deaf customers who have previously had to bring an
interpreter with them to do their banking. Partnering
with Migam.pl, ING is the first Polish bank to feature
online sign language interpreters. The service is now
present in all branches.
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Think Forward Initiative (TFI)

The Think Forward Initiative is an open-source
initiative by ING, CEPR (Centre for Economic Policy
Research), EMC, Microsoft, Dimension Data and
Deloitte. Its goal is to empower people to make
financial decisions that are better for them and
ultimately better for society. It does this by gaining a
deeper understanding of how people make financial
decisions.

The first step was taken at the Think Forward Summit
in February 2016 in Brussels, where more than 120
academics, European and national policy-makers,
consumer organisations, and leaders from the
financial and technology sectors gathered for a
“meeting of minds”.

Following post-summit sessions, it was agreed to
develop practical solutions and present the first
results at the 2017 Think Forward Summit.

Notifying overdrawn customers

Bank customers reqularly overdraw their account
despite many of them having enough savings to
balance their overdraft. With higher interest rates on
overdrafts and a low interest rate on savings, this is
costly for them. While for some this is a conscious
decision, others are simply unaware. To address this,
ING in the Netherlands proactively sent messages to
a group of customers in a pilot, alerting them of their
overdraft and how to balance their account using
their savings. Around 16 percent of those informed
took action, this saves them money and keeps them a
step ahead in managing their finances.

Secondly, ING wants to offer the right information and
tools at the right time. In the Netherlands ING has the
Financially Fit programme where it offers a broad set of
products and services that support customers in making
better financial decisions. For example, the Kijk Vooruit
(or Look Ahead) tool gives users more control over their
finances through an overview of planned and predicted
transactions. ING in Spain introduced My Money Coach,
a free digital service that helps customers make smart
savings, investment and retirement decisions. My Money
Coach designs a personalised savings and investment
plan to help customers achieve their financial goals. It is
based on Coach Epargne offered by ING in France.

Using the Dutch Financial Fit Test, several business
units introduced financial tests in 2016. German
customers, for example, can now identify both
strengths and weaknesses in their finances through the
“DiBadurchblicker” app. The app compares the user’s
financial situation to others and makes budgeting
suggestions and provides goals. Despite being a
minimum viable product, it attracted more than 77,000
visits in 2016.



Report of the
Executive Board

Retail Banking - continued

Lastly, ING wants to make an impact on the
communities we operate in, and on society in general.
We put an emphasis on young people because to
become a financially capable adult you need to start
developing the right skills at a young age. ING funds
research, makes donations and shares its knowledge
and expertise. For example BAKCYL, an initiative of the
Warsaw Institute of Banking that has Polish colleagues
teaching students about financial challenges. Also ING
and UNICEF's Power for Youth partnership aims to reach
335,000 adolescents in six less-developed countries by
2018, helping them to develop the social and financial
knowledge and skills needed to build a brighter future.

To see if we are making improvements in the financial
behaviour of customers and society, we measure our
performance. That is why in 2016 we announced our
ambition to make 25 million people feel financially
empowered by 2020. In 2016, 23.9 million people felt
financially empowered and we had more than 101.9
million interactions with customers and non-customers
through financial empowerment initiatives.

More information on the measurement of these
numbers can be found in the Non-financial
data reporting protocol at www.ing.com/16ar1
(PDF - 876 kb).

Austria goes full service

While some European banks have downsized
operations in Central and Eastern Europe, ING sees
opportunities for growth and deepening of customer
relationships in becoming a full-service bank in
Austria.

The first new product of ING in Austria is a current
account, the ING-DiBa Giro and Gehaltskonto. It
features instant opening online, no fees, free debit/
credit card, plus a feature that ensures those that
shop over their limit (up to EUR 50) won't be charged
with debit interest.

An estimated 83 percent of all mobile phones in
Austria are smart phones. ING in Austria, which
started there as a direct bank dedicated to savings,
has adopted a “mobile-first” approach with “banking
in your pocket” as its campaign slogan.

Apart from a new current account, the pipeline for
new customer features and services will expand
further in 2017.

We aim to achieve a real impact for customers and
society at large with our financial empowerment
activities. However, we encounter challenges in
measuring the impact of our products and services.
ING works continuously with a number of internal and
external experts to refine and improve the way we
measure this so we can gain a better understanding of
how we can contribute to empowering our customers.
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Earning the primary relationship

ING wants to build primary relationships with customers,
earning their loyalty so that they consider us the first
bank with which they conduct their financial business.
As a result, ING understands customers better and

is equipped to offer them the right solutions at the

right time. We know that primary customers are eight
times more loyal compared to non-primary customers
because there is more interaction with the customer
which in turn deepens the relationship. Primary relations
are better for the customer and also for the bank.

We define a retail primary relationship as a customer
that has recurrent income on their ING payment account
and is active with at least one other ING product.

ING is striving to earn 14 million primary retail customers
by 2020. It is well on track. By the end of 2016, we had
9.7 million primary customers, an 8.1% increase on the
previous year.

Knowing our customers

ING aims to use data to drive decision-making and
generate analytical insights that allow it to personalise
customer interactions. By doing that it empowers
customers, which in turn earns primary relationships for
the bank.

Data is an important asset - along with people,

processes and systems - underpinning ING's ambition

to become a next-generation digital bank. The bank’s

efforts in this area include:

- Redesigning data platforms into more customer-
centric environments. Organising information around
the customer (not systems or processes), allows ING to
identify relevant insights and put them to work for the
benefit of both the bank and its customers.

+ Building the bank’s data and communication
capabilities to interact immediately with customers. To
be relevant, we need to be timely. Our customer-facing
platforms offer multiple touch points to interact with
customers. Testing insights by providing information
to customers and getting their feedback helps us to
continue improving services.

- Effective data management builds the foundation
for analytics. Local chief data officers have been
appointed for our Market Leaders segment, Wholesale
Banking, Finance, Risk, Procurement and HR.

Thinking beyond traditional banking

With new regulation opening up financial services to
competitors from beyond the sector and low economic
growth putting pressure on traditional sources of income,
it is important that Retail Banking develops new products
and services that are distinct from those traditionally
offered by banks.

We are embracing this opportunity. Finding new
solutions, new ways to make things easier and
continuing to improve the customer experience are
integral to our overall strategy.


http://www.ing.com/16ar1
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On top of your balance with “Look Ahead”
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Keeping track of their bank balance
is now a lot easier for ING’s Dutch
customers. The “Look Ahead” feature
in the mobile app is a “crystal ball”
that gives a view 35 days into the
future. It uses advanced analytics

to show planned and predicted
transactions, helping customers to
keep a grip on their finances and
avoid going into the red.
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ING undertook several such initiatives in 2016, including
Payconiqg, a method of making payments via mobile
phone in online and offline shops in an easy way
without a credit or a debit card. ING joined forces with
two Belgian banks, KBC and Belfius to develop Payconig.
The mobile app has gone live in Belgium. It allows for
payments to be integrated with additional features and
services, including loyalty programmes and peer-to-peer
payments. All users require is a connection to a current
account.

ING Invoice Solutions, an online platform for SMEs
to manage their sales invoices from start to finish is
another Belgian initiative.

With standardised steps and automated tasks, clients
can use it to gain greater control over their company'’s
finances.

Developed in partnership with Zervant and Basware,
ING Invoice Solutions features a user-friendly interface
where clients can easily make offers, turn them into
invoices, create projects and track time as well as send
out invoices in whatever form their counterparty prefers
(electronically as a PDF, in an email or on paper).

One idea that stemmed from the bank’s first Innovation
Bootcamp in 2014 is Direct Lease, which aims to make
leasing for SMEs and mid-corporates far simpler and
quicker by letting customers handle their leases online.
Direct Lease went live in 2016. Now, with just a few clicks,
customers can create different scenarios for leasing their
asset, get instant credit approval and turn the chosen
scenario into a contract. They can then manage their
contracts online during the lease.

In October 2016, ING announced its re-entry into the
UK retail banking market with a free mobile app to help
people keep track of their finances. Yolt allows users to
manage money matters with different banks in one
place. It is one of the first examples of a bank in the UK
providing a platform for customers to manage money
held by competitors. The app integrates a user’s bank
accounts (including savings and credit card accounts)
in one mobile dashboard. It also lets them know how
many days are left until payday, predicts their bank
balance based on their direct debits and points out any
significant changes in their spending patterns.

Accelerating Think Forward

The next chapter of Think Forward is a story of
convergence with all parts of the company collectively
moving toward one ING. ING will become faster and
more efficient by standardising its offer across borders.
The goal is a single global banking platform but there is
some way to go yet.

Retail Banking plans to come together, pick the

best practices from across the company and use
those globally, allowing ING to create a uniform and
differentiating customer experience and enabling us to
innovate faster.
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In the Netherlands and Belgium, ING intends to improve
the customer experience by moving to harmonise the
business models and integrate banking platforms. We
intend to combine the omnichannel capabilities of the
Netherlands, with the relationship model and advice
capabilities of Belgium. The intended combination would
provide scale advantages to ING's 11-million customer
base, creating one value proposition, one strategy, one
set of systems, one culture and one organisation - but
with two legal entities and two balance sheets.

ING's Challengers businesses such as Spain, Italy,
France, the Czech Republic and Austria, will also shift

to a common banking platform called Model Bank. This
will be highly scalable, so that countries can add new
products and services as needed, and other countries
can come on board in the future. An example of this is
the adoption of Spain's Genoma omnichannel approach
in Poland (ING Moje).

Model Bank will use a central and shared IT service
centre, and high levels of standardisation. The move
is designed to keep costs low across all markets and
increase the pace of innovation.

In Germanuy, the plan is to make operations even more
efficient through investments in IT systems. The end
result should be a constant stream of mobile innovations
to captivate the customer, and a seamless switch
between mobile and other channels such as online and
the contact centre (omnichannel).

While these steps will benefit customers they will come
at a price for our staff. Some jobs will change in nature or
location and some will be eliminated. We anticipate that
as many as 7,000 jobs will be impacted.

Socially responsible investment

ING has been providing socially responsible investment
(SRI) strategies for customers in select retail countries
since 1999. SRI strategies consist of dedicated portfolios
of sustainable investment funds, or of bonds and equity
of individual sustainable companies.

Retail customers in Belgium, Luxembourg, Germany and
the Netherlands are given the opportunity to invest in
SRIinvestments. In the Netherlands the Bank applies a
robust assessment and excludes companies in specific
sectors, such as tobacco or coal mining, as well as
companies that exhibit controversial behaviour, such as
violations of human rights. In other countries, it is only
possible to invest in sustainable funds that use these
screening methods.

SRI opportunities cover all asset classes, including
government bonds, corporate bonds, investment funds
and index trackers. At the end of 2016, sustainable
assets under management (SAuM) for customers were
EUR 3,306 million, up from EUR 2,573 million in 2015.


https://yolt.com/
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Sustainable assets under management

in EUR million at year-end 2016* 2015 2014

Sustainable investment portfolios ? 2,596 2,011 1,517
Sustainable structured products 140 143 15
Sustainable investment funds

(incl. CS ING SRI Index Fund) 570 419 92
Subtotal 3,306 2,573 1,624
Correction to eliminate double

counting ? = - 86
Total sustainable assets under

management 3,306 2,573 1,538

1 The 2014 and 2015 figures are based on Benelux. In 2016
the SAuM figures also include Germany.

2 The Sustainable investment portfolios are managed by ING.

The other sustainable assets are managed by others, but kept
at ING accounts.

3 There used to be an overlap with allocated assets in the
sustainable investment funds and the managed sustainable
investment portfolios. In 2014 the Netherlands decided to align the
calculation methodology with that of Belgium and Luxembourg.
There has therefore been no double counting.

ING Groenbank

ING Groenbank is a 100 percent subsidiary of ING Bank
NV.. It finances sustainable investment by offering
lending services at favourable rates to a variety of Dutch
sectors. These include organic farming, renewable
energy generation, sustainable construction and the
re-use of waste materials. All assets covering ING
Groenbank loans must receive Dutch government
accreditation. This helps ING Groenbank accurately
quantify the sustainable impact of its investments.

In 2016, ING Groenbank made a strategic shift in its
lending portfolio by increasing the volume of loans to
SME and mid-corporate clients. New channels were
opened to offer lending services to clients in commercial
real estate as well as structured finance transactions

for clients operating small to medium-sized renewable
energy generation projects.

Due to a more favourable overall economic climate,
ING Groenbank profited from increases in investment
volumes throughout the aforementioned sectors.

Financial inclusion

In addition to its lending services for green investments,
ING Groenbank also directs up to 10 percent of its
balance sheet towards impact activities, including
education and research. In 2016, there was a strategic
shift from traditional microfinance portfolios in India and
Turkey to a more diversified portfolio, both in location
and the mix of financial services offered. Groenbank now
acts as a catalytic fund to initiate impact investments in,
and outside, ING. ING Groenbank research supported the
finance sector’s appetite for more SME finance. “A Billion
to Gain 2016" looked at the role technological innovation
can play in unlocking micro/SME finance opportunities.

33

(g Trophy cabinet

- ING earned top prizes at The Banker's 2016 Best
Bank Awards in London, winning the Global Bank of
the Year and best bank awards in the Netherlands,
Belgium and Western Europe.

+ ING’s emphasis on innovation in banking was
recognised in an award for Western Europe’s Best
Digital Bank by Euromoney magazine.

- ING in Spain was voted the “best bank for customer
experience” for the second year running by Spain’s
Customer Experience Measurement Index (IMEX).

- Gazeta Bankowa awarded ING Poland “Best Bank” in
the category of Large Commercial Bank.

- ING in Australia was recognised as the “Financial
Institution of the Year” and outgoing country head
Vaughn Richtor the “Finance Industry Executive of
the Year” by the Retail Banking Awards in Australia.

- ING in Poland customer service has been recognised
with the Bank taking home the main award in
Poland’s Golden Banker competition. The bank was
also ranked first in the “Best Bank in Social Media”
category.

+ ING in Romania was awarded the “Most Innovative
Bank of the Year” while ING Home Bank was
declared the “Online Service of the Year” by
MasterCard in Romania.

- First prize in Mortgage Banking at “friendly banks”
ranking in Poland.

Results

Total Retail Banking

Retail Banking posted a strong set of 2016 results,
although net result declined to EUR 2,671 million

from EUR 3,091 million in 2015, primarily due to the
restructuring charges and impairments related to

the intended digital transformation programmes as
announced at ING's Investor Day on 3 October 2016.
Underlying net result (excluding divestments and special
items in both years) rose to EUR 3,294 million from EUR
2,782 million in 2015. The underlying result before tax
increased 15.8 percent to EUR 4,579 million in 2016,
driven by higher income and lower risk costs.

Compared with 2015, underlying income increased 4.7
percent to EUR 11,791 million. This was mainly due

to higher income in the Other Challengers & Growth
Markets, while the increase in the Benelux and Germany
was limited. Income growth was supported by a EUR
200 million gain on the sale of Visa shares and higher
revenues from Bank Treasury, while 2015 included a
EUR 127 million non-recurring charge related to the
Italian and Belgium mortgage portfolios. Interest results


https://www.ing.com/Newsroom/All-news/ING-named-Global-Bank-of-the-Year.htm
https://www.ing.com/Newsroom/All-news/ING-named-Global-Bank-of-the-Year.htm
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increased two percent, mainly due to volume growth

in most countries and higher margins on consumer

and business lending. This was partly offset by margin
pressure on current accounts due to lower reinvestment
yields. Commission income rose 5.1 percent, particularly
in the Challengers & Growth Markets.

The net production of customer lending (excluding

Bank Treasury, currency impacts and transfers of
WestlandUtrecht Bank mortgages to NN Group) was EUR
10.3 billion in 2016. Net core lending, also excluding the
run-off in the WestlandUtrecht Bank portfolio, increased
by EUR 12.2 billion, driven by growth outside of the
Netherlands. Net customer deposits (excluding Bank
Treasury and currency impacts) grew by EUR 25.4 billion
in 2016.

Underlying operating expenses increased 2.5 percent

to EUR 6,606 million compared with 2015, mainly

due to further increases in regulatory costs. Excluding
regulatory costs, expenses declined 0.6 percent on a year
ago. Additional expenses related to strategic projects
and selective business growth in the retail Challengers

& Growth Markets, as well as additional provisioning for
Dutch SME clients with interest rate derivatives, were
offset by the benefits from the running cost-saving
programmes and a EUR 95 million one-off expenses
adjustment in Belgium. The underlying cost/income ratio
improved to 56.0 percent from 57.2 percent in 2015.

Risk costs declined 30.3 percent to EUR 606 million,
mainly visible in the Netherlands and Germany. By
contrast, risk costs in Turkey increased.

Market Leaders

Retail Netherlands

The underlying result before tax of Retail Netherlands
rose to EUR 1,705 million from EUR 1,495 million in 2015,
due to lower risk costs, while income was resilient due to
stable interest margins and higher revenues from Bank
Treasury.

Underlying income rose 0.7 percent to EUR 4,436

million. The interest result slightly declined, mainly
caused by a decline in lending volumes and margin
pressure on current accounts, partly offset by higher
margins on savings and lending. The lower lending
volumes were partly caused by the continued transfer
of WestlandUtrecht Bank (WUB) mortgages to NN Group
and the run-off in the WUB portfolio. Net core lending
(excluding the WUB portfolio, Bank Treasury products
and movements in the mortgage hedge) declined by
EUR 4.2 billion. The decline was both in mortgages and
other lending; the latter reflecting subdued demand in
business lending. Net customer deposits (excluding Bank
Treasury) grew by EUR 7.1 billion. Commission income
rose by EUR 31 million, or six percent, and investment
and other income was up EUR 32 million, in part due to a
gain on the sale of Visa shares.

Underlying operating expenses increased 3.4 percent
on 2015, mainly due to higher regulatory costs and an
additional provision for Dutch SME clients with interest-
rate derivatives, while 2015 included some smaller
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restructuring provisions. These factors were partly offset
by the benefits from ongoing cost-savings initiatives.
From the existing cost-savings programmes announced
since 2011, which aim to realise EUR 657 million of
annual cost savings by the end of 2017, EUR 562 million
has already been realised.

Risk costs declined to EUR 171 million, or 32 basis points
of average risk-weighted assets, from EUR 433 million
in 2015. The decline was both in business lending and
residential mortgages, reflecting improvements in the
Dutch economy and housing market.

Retail Belgium
Retail Belgium includes Record Bank and ING in
Luxembourg.

The underlying result before tax of Retail Belgium rose
13.7 percent to EUR 961 million in 2016, compared with
EUR 845 million in 2015, reflecting lower expenses and
slightly higher income.

Underlying income increased 1.1 percent to EUR 2,573
million, from EUR 2,546 million in 2015, supported

by higher Bank Treasury revenues and a gain on the
sale of Visa shares. The interest result declined 0.9
percent, mainly due to lower margins on savings and
current accounts, as well as on mortgages due to lower
prepayment and renegotiation fees, which was largely
offset by increased volumes in most products. The net
production in the customer lending portfolio (excluding
Bank Treasury) was EUR 4.8 billion, of which EUR 1.7
billion was in mortgages and EUR 3.2 billion in other
lending. The net inflow in customer deposits was EUR
1.4 billion. Commission income was 3.0 percent lower.
Investment and other income rose by EUR 58 million,
driven by the Visa gain.

Operating expenses declined by EUR 94 million, or 6.1
percent to EUR 1,438 million, due to a EUR -95 million
one-off expense adjustment in 2016.

Risk costs increased by EUR 6 million to EUR 175 million,
or 54 basis points of average risk-weighted assets.

The increase was mainly in business lending due to a
few specific files, while risk costs for mortgages and
consumer lending declined.

Challengers & Growth Markets
Retail Germany
Retail Germany includes Interhyp and ING in Austria.

Retail Germany's underlying result before tax increased
4.2 percent to EUR 1,055 million, compared with EUR
1,012 million in 2015. This increase was supported by a
net release in risk costs, partly offset higher expenses.

Underlying income rose 0.7 percent to EUR 1,923 million,
from EUR 1,910 million in 2015, supported by a gain

on the sale of Visa shares. The interest result increased
3.4 percent following continued business growth, partly
offset by lower margins on most products. Net inflow

in customer deposits (excluding Bank Treasury) was

EUR 9 billion in 2016. The net production in customer
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lending (excluding Bank Treasury and movement in the
mortgage hedge) was EUR 3.8 billion, of which EUR 3
billion was in mortgages and EUR 0.8 billion in consumer
lending. Commission income rose 6.4% to EUR 183
million. Investment and other income was EUR 53 million
lower, due to lower gains on the sale of bonds and less
positive hedge results, which was partly compensated by
a EUR 44 million gain on the sale of Visa shares.

Operating expenses increased 5.2 percent to EUR 886
million, from EUR 842 million in 2015. The increase was
mainly due to a higher headcount to support business
growth and customer acquisition, as well as investments
in strategic projects. This was partly offset by lower
regulatory costs. The cost/income ratio was 46.1 percent,
compared with 44.1 percent in 2015.

Risk costs turned to a net release of EUR 18 million from
a net addition of EUR 57 million in 2015, reflecting a
benign credit environment in the German market and
model updates for mortgages.

Retail Other

Retail Other’s underlying result before tax rose to EUR
858 million, from EUR 604 million in 2015. The increase
was largely attributable to a EUR 109 million gain on the
sale of Visa shares in 2016, while 2015 included a EUR
97 million of non-recurring charges in Italy related to
increased prepayments and renegotiations of fixed-term
mortgages.

Total underlying income increased by EUR 451 million,
or 18.7 percent, to EUR 2,859 million. Excluding the gain
on Visa shares in 2016 and the one-off charge in Italy
in 2015, underlying income grew by 9.8%. This increase
was mainly attributable to revenue growth in most
businesses and was furthermore supported by a EUR 32
million one-time gain from the reduction of ING’s stake
in Kotak Mahindra Bank. The interest result rose 8.9%
due to volume growth in most countries and higher
margins on lending, partly offset by lower margins

on current accounts. The net production (excluding
currency effects and Bank Treasury) in both customer
lending and customer deposits was EUR 7.8 billion in
2016. Commission income rose 15.1% on the back of
continued client and volume growth in most countries.

Operating expenses increased by EUR 129 million, or 8.1
percent, to EUR 1,723 million. This increase was mainly
due to increased regulatory costs as well as higher IT
and professional-services expenses related to strategic
projects. The cost/income ratio improved to 60.3 percent
from 66.2 percent in 2015.

The addition to the provision for loan losses was EUR
278 million, or 57 basis points of average risk-weighted
assets, up from EUR 210 million, or 45 basis points of
average risk-weighted assets. The increase was mainly
attributable to higher risk costs in Turkey.
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Conclusion

Collectively, ING's Retail Banking units again performed
well in 2016. By lending money and providing customers
with the tools to help make smart financial decisions, we
continued to empower people in life and in business.

Customer satisfaction was again high with 7 out of 13
retail units holding number one NPS positions.

ING also earned top prizes at The Banker’s 2016 Best
Bank Awards in London winning the Global Bank of the
Year and best bank awards in the Netherlands, Belgium
and Western Europe.

Financially, Retail Banking posted strong 2016 results
driven by higher income and lower risk costs. The
underlying result (before tax) increased by 15.8 percent
to EUR 4,579 million. This was achieved despite the low
interest rate environment and higher regulatory costs.

Retail Banking continued to pursue a digital-first
operating model with a clear and easy, anytime and
anywhere experience for customers. It also made
progress in earning an increased number of primary
relationships.

In 2016, the bank announced an intention to converge
our various banking models into one to create an
integrated digital platform that can cater to all our
customers' financial needs and provide new and relevant
offers to enhance the customer experience. Such a
transformation should put our business on a solid footing
for the future.
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Wholesale Banking performed well in 2016.
We continued to implement the Think Forward
strategy and to take initiatives to enhance the
customer experience. We have successfully
grown the business while maintaining a
prudent risk profile. We are strongly committed
to sustainability. We try to minimalise our own
environmental footprint and we support clients
with their own transition to more sustainable
business. We will continue accelerating

our strategy and transforming the way we

do business to serve clients better, easier

and faster.

Who are we?

Wholesale Banking (WB) is a primary-relationship-driven
European bank with global reach. We want to help
clients to achieve their ambitions. We aim to provide a
differentiating and seamless client experience through
specialised and integrated services across the globe,
supported by new technologies.

In addition to the basic banking services of lending,
payments and cash management and treasury, WB
provides tailored banking solutions in areas including
corporate finance, commercial finance (factoring),
equity markets and debt capital markets to help our
clients achieve their business goals. Through our global
franchises in Industry Lending we serve clients across
sectors where we have proven expertise. We support
clients in realising their sustainability ambitions.

International network

We facilitate clients’ business through our international
network of offices in over 40 countries across Europe, the
Americas, Asia and Australia. This extensive international
network is a key element of our value proposition

to clients. We continuously invest in our network to
serve clients better and to seize growth opportunities

in different regions. This included in 2016 the launch

of trade commodity finance services in New York. We
also expanded and strengthened our network and
presence to support clients in China, Sweden and India.
We extended our network in 2016 with the opening of a
new securities branch in Seoul. This offers capital market
products to both local and international corporate
clients and financial institutions in South Korea. We have
been active in Seoul for 25 years and became one of
the leading international banks in the country offering

a full range of corporate and investment banking
products. In 2016, we also applied to the Colombian
Finance Superintendence for a licence to operate as a
Representative Office in Colombia.

Delivering a differentiating customer

experience
WB aims to be the bank of choice for its clients. In
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Industry Lending this means becoming the lead lender,
in Debt Capital Markets the lead financing bank and in
Transaction Services and Financial Markets increasing
the volume of flow products. In 2016, we continued to
implement the Think Forward strategy and deliver on
our priorities. We have successfully grown the business
while maintaining a prudent risk profile. We grew net
core lending by EUR 22.6 billion and risk costs decreased
to 24 bps of average risk-weighted assets (RWA) in 2016.
We continued to grow lending in Germany, redeploying
the liabilities created in our low-cost German bank.

We are selective and grow in market segments that
show healthy growth, while aiming to ensure that our
portfolio remains appropriately diversified and within our
risk appetite.

We continued with our transformation programme,
Wholesale Target Operating Model (Wholesale TOM),
further driving simplification, business growth and
innovation across the network.

In 2016, we took additional steps to improve the client
experience and to deliver on our Customer Promise to

be clear and easy, anytime and anywhere, empower
people and keep getting better. InsideBusiness, our digital,
cross-border banking platform, offers clients real-time
insights and a single point of access to manage all their
financial transactions on any device. After rolling out the
platform in the Netherlands and Belgium in 2015, we have
extended it to clients in 15 more countries. In 2017, we
will include countries in Asia and the Americas. In 2016,
we also increased our InsideBusiness offering with more
products and services available online, including a mobile
app, support for intercompany loan administration,
confirmations and reporting for financial markets
transactions, and a self-service administration function.

We continued to innovate to offer clients better
products. An example of innovation is the development
of a Virtual Cash Management solution. This next-
generation payments and cash management solution
allows clients to manage cash, payments and collections
in a multi-bank set-up, using virtual accounts and a self-
service portal. This solution will be introduced across the
ING network in 2017.

ING partners with fintechs to stimulate innovation. WB
for example is working with fintech Owlin to provide
sector-relevant dashboards that convert three million
news sources into real-time actionable intelligence,
which ING's Lending Services, Financial Markets and Risk
Management divisions can use in conversations with
our clients.

We aim to establish ourselves in the market as a
thought leader on blockchain. We have successfully
trialled fixed-income trading between 40 of the world's
largest banks via the international R3 consortium. In
2016, ING won the Global Finance Innovation Award for
Top Innovators in Transaction Services in the Process
Innovation category in recognition of our efforts to
transform our documentation processes for payments
and cash management. Transaction Services simplified
the requirements for accounts and payments services,
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adapting these to include a single set of banking
conditions across 18 countries.

Our global business has received recognition and awards
from leading publications in the financial industry,
showcasing our success as a client-focused bank.
Overall, league table positions in EMEA and Western
Europe continued their upward trend, supported by
continued strong performance in industry lending.

? Trophy cabinet

+ The Banker: Best Global Bank

- The Banker: Best Bank Western Europe

- The Banker: Best Bank the Netherlands

- The Banker: Best Bank Belgium

- Global Finance: Best Bank in Western Europe

- Euromoney: Best Digital Bank Western Europe

- Treasury Management International (TM):

Best Bank Payments & Collections CEE

- Treasury Management International (TMI):

Best Cash Management Solution in Technology &
Innovations (TMI)

- Global Finance: Best Bank for Working Capital
Optimisation in Western Europe and the same
award for CEE

- Merger Market: Benelux M&A Financial adviser of
the year

? Green Bond recognition

ING won Environmental Finance Green Bond Awards
in the categories “Biggest Issuer” and “Bond of the
Year" This is a recognition of ING’s role as leader in
the sector and of our pioneering effort in raising
awareness for green bonds. The award for “Corporate
Bond of the Year” went to leading European electricity
transmission system operator TenneT, for which ING
was adviser and underwriter.

Accelerating the financing of sustainable
transitions

ING is committed to helping facilitate the transition to
a fairer, greener economy by financing clients who are
environmental outperformers compared to industry
peers, and projects that address environmental and
social challenges. We measure the above with our
sustainable transitions financed (STF).

In 2016, WB introduced an ambition to increase the
amount of STF to EUR 35 billion by 2020. At year-end
2016, our STF amounted to EUR 34.3 billion. This is

an increase of more than EUR 10 billion compared to
year-end 2015, driven partly by new transactions and
partly by continous improvement of our processes for
identifying sustainable transactions and clients. (See
graph “sustainable transitions financed” for a breakdown
of STF growth.) To drive growth, we train and encourage
employees to engage with our clients in finding strategic
financing solutions for their sustainability ambitions.
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Such solutions are provided through a variety of
products, including corporate loans and project finance
loans. We also offer finance through innovative green
products like green loans and green bonds. We nearly
met our 2020 ambition for sustainable transitions
financed in 2016. We plan to revisit this ambition in 2017
in our continued drive to accelerate our STF.

Our financing and investment policies and practices
include strict social, ethical and environmental risk
criteria. We also aim for our financing activities to have
a positive impact on the environment and society. Our
approach to positive impact initially concentrated on the
positive environmental impact of our financing. Following
the launch of the Sustainable Development Goals, we
developed a structured approach that will enable us to
also include the positive social impact of the projects we
finance. We primarily focus on promoting sustainable
and inclusive economic growth (goal 8) and sustainable
consumption and production (goal 12).

More information on ING's commitment to the
Sustainable Development Goals can be found at
www.ing.com/16ar2.

We also recognise the need to tighten sustainability
assessments and ensure that the financing we label as
sustainable is truly significant in its contribution to the
environment and society. For this purpose, the different
sustainability teams within ING are currently working on
refining and strengthening our client and transaction
assessment criteria. Furthermore, we are working to
continuously improve our assessment scope and screen
our entire loan book against the STF criteria (for detailed
STF definition, see glossary page 445). The graph below
shows the growth of our STF portfolio in 2016 attributable
to new business and due to improved assessment scope.

Sustainable transitions financed

in EUR million at year-end

40,000

35000 34,268
30,000
25,000 23,804
20,000 19,476 -
15,000
10,000

5,000

0
2014 2015 2016
Baseline

M Growth (new business) *
H Growth (improved assessment) 2

1 Growth (new business) 2016: EUR 7,030 million.

2 Growth (improved assessment) 2016: EUR 3,434 million;
growth attributed to improved processes, methodology
and assessment scope for identifying STF within our
existing portfolio
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Total sustainable transitions financed *

in EUR million at year-end 2016 2015 2014
ING Groenbank ? 745 875 836

Renewable Energy 3 4,658 3,187 1,730
Sustainable Real Estate “ 7,207 998 389
Other projects ® 1,638 1,274 379

Environmental Outperformers © 20,020 17,470 16,142

Total 34,268 23,804 19,476

1 For more information on the boundaries of the number reported,
please refer to non-financial data reporting protocol on ing.com.

2 ING Groenbank finances projects within and outside of the
Netherlands. In line with Dutch tax authority guidelines the
amount of green loans on the Groenbank balance sheet is over 70
percent. For more details on ING Groenbank, please see the “Retail
Banking” chapter.

3 Includes biomass, geothermal, hydro, solar, offshore and onshore
wind power generation. In 2016, we improved the process for
extracting renewables data from our system, which gives a more
complete overview of our exposure.

4 Sustainable real estate grew by EUR 6.2 billion in 2016. This is
largely due to an improved data collection process which allowed
us to identify existing loans that qualify as sustainable. The
development of innovative tools and green products for clients,
staff training and setting ambitious targets helped drive new
sustainable business.

5 Includes projects involving energy efficiency, greenhouse gas
reduction, climate change mitigation, waste management, water
efficiency, public transport and social welfare.

6 As of year-end 2014, ING reports on loans to clients who have been
identified as environmental outperformers compared to industry
peers based on independent reputable data providers or internal
client assessments.

The table demonstrates our inclusive approach to
sustainability throughout our entire global lending
portfolio. On the one hand, we finance projects in
specific sustainable areas, including renewable energy,
sustainable real estate, public transport, water and
waste management. At the same time, through our
client and transaction assessments, we identify those
clients with the best environmental record in their sector
(outperformers). We focus on those outperforming
clients in all sectors, which we finance based on our
Environmental and Social Risk (ESR) framework.

[:D Read more on our ESR framework in the “Risk and
capital management” chapter.

6 Beatrice Offshore Windfarm

In Europe, the Utility, Power and Renewable platform
closed a project financing for the Beatrice Offshore
Windfarm. ING acted as one of the six bookrunners
and mandated lead arrangers in this landmark

GBP 1.96 billion transaction.

Whether as an underwriter, issuer, or member of

the ICMA Green Bond Principles, ING has been at

the forefront of the development of the sustainable
bond market. When we issued our first green bond

in November 2015, we promised to disclose how the
proceeds would be used, as well as the projects’ positive
impact on the environment in terms of emissions
avoided.
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The bond proceeds have now been fully allocated, with
24 percent going to new projects. This is higher than our
initial commitment of 20 percent. We have worked with
an external expert to develop a framework for measuring
the positive environmental impact of renewable energy
projects. Based on this framework, we estimate that
these projects decrease the amount of emissions by

744 kilotonnes of carbon annually, which is comparable
to the annual carbon emissions of 93,000 Dutch
households.

@ Landmark green bond transactions

ING’s highly experienced team has been actively
involved in a series of landmark green bond
transactions for a wide range of clients: French utility
EDF, Bank of China, Turkish development bank Tirkiye
Sinai Kalkinma Bankasi A.S. (“TSKB") and Spanish
utility Iberdrola. Furthermore, we supported the Dutch
dairy company Royal Friesland Campina, Dutch utility
Tennet and Swiss utility Repower with their inaugural
Green Schuldscheins and helped Dutch utility
Alliander raise green funding from investors.

ING is responding to the developing needs and
expectations of clients and society regarding the circular
economy. Our support has so far taken the form of
thought leadership. In 2016, we published a report

on how companies can make their business model
more circular.

For more information, see the report “From assets to
access” at www.ing.com/16ar3. (PDF - 937 kb).

We are also working on the challenge of defining our
role as a financier in this pioneering area. There is as yet
no blueprint for how banks can service clients’ circular
business needs. To address that, we are working to
co-create a way ahead with clients and platforms like
the Ellen MacArthur Foundation. We joined the Ellen
MacArthur Foundation as a CE100 member to share and
further broaden our knowledge on the topic and drive
the development of new business models to support
more clients in circular business. We are currently
supporting companies that want to grow their business
in the circular economy with strategic investments,
equity and subordinated debt.

@ Shanks

ING acted as adviser and underwriter to international
waste-to-product business Shanks Group’s merger
with leading Dutch waste processor Van Gansewinkel
Groep. The merger will create one of Europe’s leading
players in recycling. This transaction strengthens
ING’s commitment to the circular economy, as both
Shanks and Van Gansewinkel put circular economy at
the heart of their businesses by making new products
out of waste.


http://ing.com
http://www.ing.com/16ar3
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ING for a sustainable future

In our view, the circular economy

is the answer to solving the
problem of the depletion and
scarcity of resources. In 2016, ING
acted as sole underwriter in the
merger of international waste-to-
product business Shanks Group

plc and leading Dutch recycler

Van Gansewinkel Groep, creating
Europe’s leading player in recycling.
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Accelerating Think Forward - moving
towards 2020

The Think Forward strategy empowers us to achieve
our WB ambitions and fulfil our purpose. Given the
challenging macroeconomic environment, the fast-
moving changes in our industry and the fact that
technology and digitalisation are moving faster than
expected, we need to accelerate our strategy.

[:D Read more in the “Our strategy and how we create
value” chapter.

In 2016, ING launched a number of strategic
programmes and initiatives to accelerate change and to
stay a step ahead. At the ING Investor Day in October,
ING announced its intention to begin converging to one
digital banking platform. This addresses the trend that

in an increasingly virtual world, customer needs and
expectations are converging. This makes it all the more
important for ING to operate as one integrated company
across borders.

Wholesale TOM Transformation programme
The ING of the future will be one digital platform, with
one brand, and with the same differentiating experience
for all our customers, wherever they are in the world.
WB is leading the way within ING, having already
standardised products, processes and client experience
as part of the Wholesale TOM transformation.

Wholesale TOM aims to enhance the client experience
across products and countries. It does this by
standardising our products and channels, harmonising
our client services and improving our mobile and online
offering. In 2016, we continued to concentrate on
decommissioning legacy systems and on migrating
services to global operating hubs in Manila and
Bratislava that provide services directly to our clients
across different businesses, locations and time zones.
Wholesale TOM has increased efficiency and reduced
complexity for our clients. With EUR 305 million in cost
savings as per the end of December 2016, we expect
to meet our cost savings target of EUR 340 million by
the end of 2017. These cost savings are partly being
reinvested in our business, and we will continue to drive
simplification, business growth and innovation through
extensions of the programme. In 2016, we announced an
additional restructuring provision of EUR 70 million.

Financial Markets’ (FM) strategic measures
FM will continue to develop its client-driven franchise,
delivering a differentiating experience by offering
multiple market and trading products efficiently

and effectively. At the same time, FM is adjusting to
changing market circumstances, higher regulatory
costs and more rigorous regulatory standards. Following
the ING Investor Day in October, we announced our
intention to strengthen FM's focus on areas in the
business that are best aligned to its core clients and WB
strategy, to converge functions into one location and to
consolidate certain business lines. Some products will be
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discontinued, including the equity derivatives offering to
financial institutions. These changes will not reduce our
continued commitment to Benelux cash equities, global
commodity derivatives and linear equity derivative
financing franchises.

FM is also streamlining certain trading functions in
Western Europe by reducing roles in Amsterdam and
Brussels and combining these in London. This will
create a more efficient trading platform alongside our
investments in e-commerce.

Putting our strategy into practice - our
business activities in 2016

Industry Lending

Industry Lending is a high value-added product for
clients and ING. Our Industry Lending teams provide
financing to clients in selected markets based on
specialist industry knowledge and expertise. Industry
Lending is broadly diversified across sectors and
geographies. Its activities are grouped into the Energy,
Transport & Infrastructure Group, the Specialised
Financing Group, the International Trade and Export
Finance Group, and Real Estate Finance. Risks are
controlled in a number of ways. These include careful
selection by industry and sub-sector, country and
client, transactional structure and collateral value of
assets. Industry Lending has a track record of disciplined
growth. It continues to grow in selected industries and
markets whose underlying dynamics create attractive
opportunities for our clients. This lending asset growth
also supports ING Bank’s balance sheet optimisation,
whilst delivering a solid return on equity.

The Energy, Transport and Infrastructure Group (ETIG)
specialises in capital-intensive industry sectors such as
natural resources, transportation, utilities and power,
and infrastructure. ETIG financings are typically longer
tenor loans via senior secured debt with strong structural
credit risk protection or collateral value. ETIG performed
well in 2016 in terms of profitability, risk costs and
growth. Market declines in oil and commodity prices at
the end of 2015 continued into early 2016. The effects
varied according to the type of commaodity and the
underlying business - lower commodity prices are not
necessarily bad news for all our clients. While some
sub-sectors have come under pressure, interesting
opportunities remain in the natural resource space.
Similarly, in Transportation Finance, we see attractive
areas of growth. In Power and Utilities, ING is supporting
many of its clients in the renewables area.
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< Nagi PV GK

Nagi PV GK, a Japanese incorporated company, a
subsidiary of BCPG Japan (BCPGJ), is developing

a 14 MW solar photovoltaic farm in the Okayama
Prefecture, on Honshu island, in Japan. The solar PV
farm is expected to produce up to 16,300 MWh of
electricity per year, the equivalent of powering over
4,500 homes. Nagi PV GK can prevent up to 12,500
tonnes of CO, emissions per year. The project will
help Japan to reach its goal to meet a 25 percent
renewable energy target by 2030. ING acted as sole
Mandated Lead Arranger, IRS Swap Arranger, Facility
and Security Agent and Account Bank in the JPY 3.86
billion project financing. For ING, being involved in this
project means that we can build upon our experience
and best practices with financing green projects.

The Specialised Finance Group (SFG) coordinates

global teams that primarily arrange, underwrite and
lend against clients’ business cash flows. They are
active in sectors such as telecommunications, media
and technology, and healthcare. They also provide
specialised support for the insurance industry. Exposures
are mostly medium term in established markets. We
apply careful industry and client selection criteria. In line
with our primary relationship strategy, we aim to lead
transactions to maximise the value delivered to clients.
SFG has continued to perform well in 2016 in terms

of volume growth, risk costs and profitability. This is
testament to our sector expertise and close cooperation
between the different WB teams.

@ WestConnex

WestConnex is the largest transport project being
undertaken in Australia. It is to be delivered over
three stages, with separate financing to be raised

for each stage. ING's Utilities, Infrastructure &

Project Finance (UIP) in Sydney acted as Joint MLA,
Bookrunner and Swap Arranger in the AUD 1.75 billion
financing of WestConnex (Stage 1). The project will
significantly reduce congestion across Sydney’s
motorway network and provide improved access to
the city’s central business district. WestConnex is the
first primary syndication to be undertaken since the
inception of the UIP business in Sydney and highlights
ING's market position. UIP's acknowledged motorway
sector expertise developed from over 70 motorway
transactions was one of the key reasons for success
of this deal.
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International Trade and Export Finance (ITEF) supports
international trade in commodities such as oil, oil
products, metals and grains. The largest part of ITEF is
the Trade and Commodity Finance Group (TCF). Most
business is short term, self-liquidating trade-related
finance, often collateralised, with comprehensive credit
risk mitigations. Commodity prices have been low and
at times volatile. ING's TCF clients are not speculators
and largely avoid or hedge commodity price risk:

their business model primarily depends on trading
and logistics to deliver commodities when and where
their clients require, not on profit from price volatility.
Consequently the commodity price movements have
had limited effect on TCF clients, and our risk costs
remained low. ING has carried on supporting its clients,
and has continued to build primary relationships. Our
ability to innovate has underpinned our continued
success.

@ Trailstone Goup

An example is the financing of Trailstone Group,

a US-based, diversified and international physical
commodity trading company. As sole lead manager,
ING drew on experience and expertise in the area
of the structuring of borrowing base facilities and
insights into gas and power trade flows. Its gas and
power borrowing base facility was a market first,
underlining both ING WB's innovation capabilities
and its leadership position in trade and commodity
financing.

Real Estate Finance (REF) primarily lends to investors in
income-producing real estate backed by first mortgages.
In Europe and selected premier global property markets
we are one of the leading bookrunners in syndicated

real estate finance loans. The year was characterised

by market caution, primarily because of concerns

over political instability in Europe. However, there was
abundant liquidity, partly driven by interest from Asian
investors. We saw strong activity in France, Germany and
the Netherlands.

Real Estate is one of the sectors where improvements in
energy efficiency in existing buildings can have a large
impact on lowering CO, emissions. Our international
transactions increasingly involve high-grade sustainable
real estate collateral. In the Netherlands for example
we support clients through our innovative Sustainability
App and with the transition to a sustainable portfolio.
At year-end, Sustainable Real Estate Finance totalled
EUR 7.2 billion, making up 23 percent of the total REF
portfolio.
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General Lending and Transaction Services
General Lending

General Lending is offered to corporate clients as the
anchor product in a broader relationship typically
involving flow products in FM or Transaction Services. It is
typically less complex than Industry Lending with more
standardised transactions. Client teams focus on cross-
sell opportunities with other bank products.

@ Lidl

ING acted as sole lender and sole arranger in the
EUR 90 million financing of supermarket chain Lidl's
two distribution centres which are considered the
most sustainable in the Netherlands with their
efficiency, state-of-the-art logistics and equipment.
They hold the highest levels of the BREEAM
certification.

Transaction Services

Transaction Services supports our client’s core processes
and daily financial operations with tailor-made,
integrated solutions and advice. It comprises Payments
& Cash Management, Trade Finance Services, Working
Capital Solutions and Bank Mendes Gans, our cash
pooling business. These are all activities that require

a clear focus on operational excellence. After strong
performances in previous years, Transaction Services
(TS) met headwinds in 2016. Regulatory challenges and
negative euro interest rates both drove TS income down.
Across all our TS products, we continued to concentrate
on innovation and further developing our services to
Corporate and Fl clients.

ING is an important player in the issuing (corporate
cards) and the retail payment markets. Both product
lines generate fee-based income. ING achieved year-
on-year growth of over 35 percent with our corporate
card offering. These solutions, including the innovative
virtual card, help our clients to reduce the cost of
administrative procurement and provide short-term
working capital. Our European POS and e-commerce
payment proposition is a key element in building the
primary relationship for retailers in Europe.

Despite a challenging yield curve, Payments & Cash
Management'’s growth prospects improved this year. The
exit of a global competitor has strengthened our position
as a top payments and cash management provider in
the Benelux and enhanced our ranking amongst the top
league pan-European cash management banks.

Trade Finance Services (TFS) finances, settles and
mitigates risks of international trade for clients in all
markets globally, but primarily in Asia, the Middle East,
Central and Eastern Europe and Latin America. Lower
import and export trade volumes, combined with

lower commodity prices and lower interest rates, are
putting pressure on income derived from Trade Finance
Services activities. This decline has been partly offset by
increased use of risk mitigation instruments by clients.
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Working Capital Solutions (WCS) combines ING's
Supply Chain Finance and Trade Receivables activities
and is a key growth area for WB, offering substantial
opportunities for our clients to achieve efficiency
benefits. We believe the underlying short-term and
capital-efficient nature of this asset class makes it
an attractive area for us to expand. This year, despite
fierce pricing competition and unfavourable market
circumstances in the steel and oil sectors, WCS's
business continued to grow.

Bank Mendes Gans (BMG) is a specialist bank providing
global liquidity management services, including
multi-currency, multi-bank cash-pooling and netting
solutions to multinational corporations. BMG selectively
onboarded new clients in 2016.

@ Porr AG

ING was involved in the closing of a landmark EUR 180
million Guarantee Facility for Porr AG, which is one of
the largest construction companies in the Austrian
market, active in building, civil construction and
underground engineering. The deal is a novelty with
a syndicate consisting only of insurance companies
fronted by ING as the only issuing bank. ING led the
transaction and facilitated the syndication process
acting as Coordinator, Bookrunner Mandated Lead
Arranger, Issuing Bank, Documentation and Facility
Agent. The facility will be used for the issuance of
guarantees on a multi-currency basis (EUR, PLN, CHF,
CZK and other) to cover the whole business cycle of
Porr’s projects in respective countries. One of the key
reasons for the deal’s success is ING’s presence in
Porr's key markets and its capabilities to provide local
guarantees in local currencies and local language.
Apart from these advantages, the client also
benefited from the excellent risk rating of the insurers
and ING, all A-rated, as the rating of the guarantee
issuing bank is getting more an more important in
international project guarantees.

Financial Markets

Financial Markets (FM) is a well-diversified business
targeting developed markets and emerging economies.
It focuses on interest rates, currencies and credit
products. It aims to serve ING's institutional, corporate
and retail clients with relevant financial markets
products.

Through FM we also provide our clients with a gateway
to global institutional markets. A multi-product global
sales force offers a full range of products and services
across three main business lines: FX, Rates and Credit
Trading; Global Equity Products; and Global Capital
Markets. We provide clients with hedging solutions to
mitigate financial risk in all markets. We also provide
investment solutions to meet specific investment
objectives, as well as financing solutions through
clients’ public or private debt or equity issuance, or
through securities financing. In Debt Capital Markets we
continue to transform the business into a consistent



Report of the
Executive Board

Wholesale Banking - continued

top-10 European player in our chosen areas of focus.
These areas of focus include supporting existing clients,
maintaining our position as Dutch bank of choice for
issuers, and capitalising on our continued balance sheet
support for Russia, Turkey, Poland and Romania.

We intensified our focus on increasing client activity with
further expansion of the Global Account Management
(GAM) initiative. A global account manager is responsible
for FM clients’ needs at holding company level, while
working closely with client relationship managers within
ING to better understand and serve client needs. This
now accounts for 50 percent of FM client revenues, up
from 30 percent in 2015. The GAM approach now has
two tiers depending on the global or local nature of the
client relationship.

Collaboration between Industry Lending teams
continued with increased cross-buy, flow and tailored
solutions for specific financial needs. However, the
continuing low interest rate environment and negative
Euribor fixings have made derivative hedging less
attractive. This impacted volumes in the first quarter.
Volumes returned to anticipated levels towards the end
of the year, but were not strong enough to make up for
the early year shortfall.

FM has defined a clear strategy for e-commerce. We

will offer electronic trading solutions to FM clients, ING
sales and traders to improve client relationships and
profitability, and optimise risk distribution while reducing
cost. ING offers electronic trading for the majority of

our products, adding value for our clients via speed,
transparency and better controls.

Key challenges

Our business, market and regulatory environments
remained challenging in 2016. WB has a strong market
position and performance. However, like our peers, we
face headwinds including low interest rates, increasing
regulatory scrutiny and costs, overcapacity in the
European banking sector, and the potential impact of
Basel 3.5. WB is actively addressing these challenges.

Business, market and regulatory
environment

Markets in 2016 opened with concerns about the
Chinese economy. Declines in Chinese equities led to
weakness in equity markets worldwide. This, together
with the continuing decline in oil prices, impacted
markets. As with our peers, this resulted in a challenging
first quarter, although markets and profitability returned
with a strong performance in the second quarter.
Markets were more stable through the rest of the year
and profitability returned to more consistent and regular
levels, although important political events, such as Brexit
and the US presidential election, did trigger short-term
spikes in volatility.

In the current low interest rate environment deposits
placed at the ECB are earning negative interest. This
makes it important to sustain lending returns and
develop client propositions that generate fee income. For
some time, we have been charging a negative interest
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rate to both financial institutions and corporate clients
who maintain high cash balances in their euro current
accounts. We may need to consider further action

and expand the scope of clients that will be charged
should the low interest environment and negative rates
continue.

In early 2016, oil prices recovered. However, the
historic low oil prices that preceded that did not have a
significant effect on ING's financing to the oil and gas
related business thanks to the relatively limited direct
exposure to oil prices and the high quality of our lending
book. Furthermore, many of our long-term facilities are
protected against risks, for example through offtake
agreements, fixed price contracts, and/or guarantees
provided by export credit agencies. Lending credit
outstanding to the oil and gas industry was EUR 36.3
billion at the end of 2016.

Lending credit outstanding to the metals and mining
industry was EUR 14.9 billion at the end of 2016. We
have a conservative and selective approach to new
deals, renewals and refinancing, and we maintain focus
on high-credit quality names, low-cost producers and
industry leaders.

Country portfolios

Geo-political unrest continued in Ukraine in 2016. The
non-performing loan ratio of our Ukrainian lending book
was 45 percent at year-end 2016. ING continued to
carefully monitor the developments in Turkey, where
the non-performing loan ratio at year-end 2016 was 3.1
percent (including Retail Banking activities).

[] Rread more in “The world around us” chapter.

Climate change

ING sees climate change as one of the biggest
challenges of our time. We are committed to reducing
the impact of our own operations and helping clients
reduce theirs. While we have actively measured and
managed our carbon footprint for more than a decade,
we still face challenges in measuring the indirect impact
of our lending activities. In order to take the next step
in tackling this challenge, in 2016, we conducted a pilot
to measure the emissions performance of two specific
asset classes within our lending portfolio. We worked
closely with an external consultant who helped us
develop a methodology and tool for carbon accounting.
This pilot yielded valuable insights into how we might
measure the impact of our entire portfolio but also
uncovered the challenge of data availability. Therefore,
we welcome initiatives like the Financial Stability Board
Taskforce for climate-related financial disclosure (TCFD)
which aims to provide guidance to the financial sector
on the topic of measuring and disclosing climate-related
risk and impact. Such initiatives will help us and our
clients achieve measurement with comparable results.
We believe this level of awareness will steer action on
climate change.

I:I] Read more on the challenges and opportunities
related to CO, impact measurement, including next
steps, in the “Non-financial appendix’.
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Results

Wholesale Banking recorded strong results in 2016. The
net result, however, declined to 1,754 million from EUR
1,841 million in 2015, fully caused by the restructuring
charges and impairments related to the digital
transformation programmes as announced at ING's
Investor Day in October 2016. Excluding these charges,
underlying net result rose by EUR 62 million to EUR 1,903
million, reflecting excellent performance in Industry
Lending, steady volume growth across industries

and products, and a lower level of risk costs. Despite
regulatory costs that continued to increase, underlying
operating expenses remained broadly flat year-on-year.

The underlying result before tax was EUR 2,668 million,
up 5.3 percent from 2015. Credit and debt valuation
adjustments (CVA/DVA) were EUR -71 million in 2016,
compared with EUR 181 million in 2015. Excluding CVA/
DVA impacts, the increase in pre-tax result was 16.4
percent.

Industry Lending posted an underlying result before
tax of EUR 1,736 million, up 14.4 percent compared
with 2015, driven by continued business growth in
Structured Finance and Real Estate Finance at attractive
margins. The underlying result before tax from General
Lending & Transaction Services rose by 31.3 percent to
EUR 613 million, due to lower expenses and risk costs.
Income growth was limited as volume growth was
largely offset by some pressure on margins. Financial
Markets' underlying result before tax fell to EUR 134
million from EUR 462 million in 2015, largely due to the
afore mentioned negative swing in CVA/DVA impacts.
The underlying result of Bank Treasury & Other was

EUR 185 million, up from EUR 87 million in 2015, which
was negatively impacted by a EUR 92 million impairment
on an equity stake. Excluding this impairment, the
pre-tax result increased by EUR 6 million as higher Bank
Treasury results were offset by lower results in the run-
off businesses, mainly due to lower sales results in the
Real Estate Development portfolio.

Underlying income increased 0.7 percent to EUR 5,608
million, compared with 2015. Excluding CVA/DVA impacts,
income rose 5.4 percent driven by strong volume growth
in lending and higher income in Bank Treasury. The

net production of customer lending (excluding Bank
Treasury and currency impacts) was EUR 21.8 billion in
2016. Wholesale Banking's net core lending book (also
excluding Lease run-off) grew by EUR 22.6 billion, due

to strong growth in Structured Finance and General
Lending & Transaction Services. The inflow in customer
deposits (excluding Bank Treasury and currency impacts)
was EUR 3.1 billion. The interest result rose 6.0 percent
on 2015, whereas commission income increased by

4.3 percent.
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Underlying operating expenses increased 0.5 percent to
EUR 2,572 million, mainly due to higher requlatory costs
and an increase in FTEs to support business growth. This
increase was largely offset by benefits from cost saving
initiatives, and lower IT change costs. The previously
announced restructuring programmes are on track to
realise EUR 340 million of annual cost savings by the end
of 2017. At the end of 2016, EUR 305 million of annual
cost savings had already been realised.

Risk costs declined to EUR 368 million, or 24 bps of
average risk-weighted assets, from EUR 478 million, or
33 bps of average risk-weighted assets, in 2015. Lower
risk costs were mainly visible in General Lending and to
a lesser extent Industry Lending, in part due to larger
releases on Ukraine clients.

Conclusion

Wholesale Banking performed well in 2016, maintaining
a prudent risk profile. Clients are at the heart of our
strategy. We serve them across the globe with a range
of products and services, helping them to meet their
ambitions. We will continue to broaden our international
network.

In 2016, we further increased the digital service offering
to clients, empowering them to do their business
anytime, anywhere. We also succeeded in increasing the
number of primary relationships.

We believe our role is to facilitate and finance the
transition to a sustainable society. Our financing of
sustainable projects and clients that are environmental
outperformers compared to industry peers rose to EUR
34.3 billion at year-end, illustrating our support for a
greener economy. We closed several notable deals
and we launched a number of initiatives to encourage
businesses to become more sustainable.

Wholesale Banking plays an important part in ING's
strategy. We will continue to accelerate our Think
Forward strategy. ING is on a path of convergence
towards one digital banking platform. We are proud
that our transformation programme, Wholesale TOM,

is leading the way within ING, resulting in an improved
and more uniform experience for clients. In 2017, we will
continue with our transformation programme. We will
also continue to innovate to meet the changing needs
and expectations of clients and support their business.

A number of external awards underscored our success

in meeting the needs of clients. We appreciate this
recognition of our work that motivates us to keep getting
better while delivering a differentiating experience to our
clients.
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A company is only as good as its people.

ING is made up of over 54,000 employees from
different countries, cultures, backgrounds,
education and experience. We value diversity
and our success depends on it. ING needs
every position filled with capable, motivated
professionals. To do that, we have put a series
of programmes in place aimed at further
developing the skills and attributes needed to
achieve our goals.

Our people strategy

Our people strategy centres around creating greater
leaders and better managers to engage employees and
empower them to deliver on ING’s customer promise.
At the same time, it equips employees to own their
positions and become the best they can be.

We have a distinctive culture: entrepreneurial, open,
collaborative, innovative and energetic. But we also
recognise that there are areas where we can improve

- such as diversity - and that from a people perspective,

working in a changing environment can bring challenges.

Who we are

Our more than 54,000 employees are drawn from a
wide variety of backgrounds and are active in over 40
countries. We aim to have a workforce that reflects the
diversity of our customer base and to foster an inclusive
culture. It is important that our people feel comfortable
being themselves irrespective of who they are, what
they believe or where they come from.

Why diversity is important and what we
are doing in this area

We value diversity. Our success depends on it. That

is why we introduced a diversity manifesto, “Success
through difference”, in January 2016 that applies to all
employees worldwide. This official bank policy sets out
what diversity means at ING, why it is important, and
what employees can do.

ING believes that there is a clear link between more
diverse leadership and better financial performance.
More diverse companies are more successful at
attracting and retaining talent, relate to customers more
effectively, have higher employee engagement and are
better at decision-making.

ING is committed to accelerating the development
of diversity, including in areas such as gender, age,
background, sexual orientation, physical ability and
religious beliefs.

Different diversity challenges exist in each of our
locations and business units. In several markets, such
as the Benelux, we need to do more to make gender
balance more representative.
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The bank is working to increase the number of women in
leadership positions, ie employees that manage others.
ING, as with many financial organisations, is finding this
a challenge. Of our managers of managers, 29.3 percent
were women as of end-2016.

With the support of our Leadership Council, ING has
introduced a range of initiatives to promote the inclusion
of women in leadership positions. These include:

- Diverse interview and decision panels in the
recruitment process.

- Inclusion of more female candidates on succession
lists.

- Tracking and analysing the number of female
appointments, promotions and leavers to gain more
insight into problems and potential solutions.

- Actively supporting flexible working.

Earlier this year, Isabel Fernandez was appointed to ING's
Management Board Banking (MBB) as head of Wholesale
Banking, the first-ever woman appointed to the board.

Overcoming unconscious bias

ING has encouraged managers from a variety of
business units to attend workshops that help them
understand their unconscious biases, promoting more
objective people decisions. We all have these biases. By
being aware of them we can learn to be more objective.

More than 1,000 employees across eight countries,
including the bank’s Leadership Council and the Human
Resources Management Team, have participated in the
course.

External recognition for diversity

The Bloomberg Financial Services Gender-Equality Index
was published for the first time in May 2016. ING was
recognised as one of the most transparent financial
sector companies for diversity and social equality.

The index measures how companies disclose gender
statistics and company policies and practices. It also
provides investors and organisations with standardised
data on these statistics and policies.

In October, we also saw an improvement in scores within
the Workplace Pride Global Benchmark Survey - an
external measurement of lesbian, gay, bi-sexual and
transgender (LGBT) workplace inclusion. In 2016, we
achieved a top-tier score of 70 percent compared to a
median score of 61 percent in the Finance and Industry
sector. This has increased from 63 percent in 2015, and
51 percent in 2014.

Internal networks

We encourage employees to participate in a number of

internal networks that stimulate diversity. These include:

- Crossing - a network concentrating on cultural
diversity.

- Lioness - a network to help women realise their
ambitions.

+ Gala - a community focusing on LGBT inclusion.

+ Ring - a networking community for young employees
up to 36 years of age.

« Experience - a network for senior employees.
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HeForShe programme leads to real action
for Turkish mothers

Since March 2016, Turkey has supported the UN's
HeforShe initiative, a programme that aims to

create a gender equal world. ING in Turkey regularly
organises HeforShe dinners for mothers working at
the bank. Colleagues share their experiences, hold
discussions and create communities so they can
develop practical solutions for the advancement of
women, including special leave, increased networking
opportunities for female colleagues and monitoring of
women in leadership positions.

ING in Turkey is a signatory to the UN's Women'’s
Empowerment Principles (WEP). With 35 percent of
women in leadership it exceeds the WEP’s criterion.
Fifty-five percent of employees are women.

How we work

What does ING believe in and what sets it apart from
other companies? In January 2015, the Orange Code was
launched, a framework for a common corporate culture
to unite employees, based on input from employees
themselves.

The Orange Code, which is based on the principle of
“integrity above all”’, comprises:

- Values that set the standard. The non-negotiable
promises we make to the world no matter what.
- We are honest.
= We are responsible.
+ We are prudent.

- Behaviours. The commitments we make to each other
and the standards by which we measure each other's
performance:

+ You take it on and make it happen.
+ You help others to be successful.
- You are a step ahead.

The Orange Code underpins all people processes and
tools including performance management. We also have
ongoing local and global communication programmes
around living the Orange Code to make sure it is
embedded within ING.

June saw the launch of kudos, ING's online compliment
tool. Employees can send compliments to colleagues
for displaying Orange Code behaviours. ING believes
that compliments can shape people’s behaviour and
lead to better performance. Regular compliments lead
to more positive emotions, stimulate behaviour directly
linked to the Orange Code and ultimately foster a more
productive culture.
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At the end of 2016, more than 33,000 employees
had signed up as kudos users and just under 143,000
compliments were sent.

In a recent survey, 97 percent of employees globally,
indicated they were familiar with the Orange Code, 79
percent were aware of the Code and 18 percent said that
they had heard of it (“it rings a bell”).

Banker’s Oath

Since April 2015, all new employees working for ING in
the Netherlands take the Banker’s Oath routinely. The
oath contains a set of principles affirming the banking
industry’s commitment to maintain high standards of
ethical behaviour. A disciplinary sanction mechanism is
linked to breaches of these principles.

An Ethics Centre of Expertise (ECE) and a Banker’s Oath
Committee were also established to support employees
in dilemma management. The ECE provides training
and a methodology (a so-called “seven-step approach”)
which is used in dilemma discussions and to support
balanced decision making in dilemmas experienced by
employees and management.

The Banker’'s Oath Committee was established to provide
a platform for employees and management to discuss
more complex dilemma cases. Advice is also given to
help ethical decision-making and to resolve dilemmas.

How we attract and motivate employees
Trends in the market and ING’s own business strategy
determine long-term skill requirements and allocation of
resources.

The labour market is a global marketplace and the bank
has recruitment challenges in some areas. To ensure

we have the resources we need at the right place and
time, we have to be able to identify talent, internally and
externally.

Internal mobility plays an important part in this. To
better facilitate internal people moves, job opportunities
are made more accessible and transparent for
employees within the company. A new internal careers
site will be launched early in 2017.

Job rotation, international assignments and job swaps
help to optimise our talent management strategy.
Employees are encouraged to apply for any position
or training that fits their skills and experience. We aim
to give qualified internal employees preference over
external candidates and are committed to a positive
employee experience for staff from the moment they
apply for a job until the moment they leave.
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ING Top Employer and a Great Place to Work

The Top Employer Institute is an independent
organisation that measures employee offerings
against an international standard. For employees,

the classification illustrates that ING is a top-ranked
company in its culture, in how we deal with each
other and in the way we deal with human talent.

The Top Employer Institute gave individual certificates
to Spain, Poland, France, Belgium and the UK as well
as awarding us Top Employer Europe status.

Austria, Germany (including Interhyp), Luxembourg
and Spain were all recognised by the US-based Great
Place to Work Institute in 2016. The institute analyses
feedback from more than 10 million employees in 50
countries representing some 6,000 organisations.

To obtain recognition as a Great Place to Work,
employees from each ING country are surveyed and
their responses collated to provide an overall ranking.

Employer branding

In 2016, ING introduced a new global Employee Value
Proposition (EVP). The EVP provides a consistent point
of reference for all of the bank’s employer branding
activities. It sets out the qualities ING looks for in its
people and what the company offers.

The EVP consists of two layers:

- Distinctive: These are the promises that make ING
different. These are very much linked to the Orange
Code.

- Competitive: While these promises might not set us
apart, they are still important as they represent what
the bank needs to offer to attract and retain good
people. They include work-life balance, emphasis on
good performance and the importance of respecting
one another.

The starting point in formulating the EVP was an
extensive global research project to identify the benefits
of working at ING. Input came from external surveys
held across 12 different markets, with responses from
students, professionals and employees.

The EVP will be used to guide the employee experience
underpinning HR processes, as well as being central to
our employer brand positioning.

Employee engagement

We believe there is a direct link between employee
engagement and business performance and our ability
to serve customers. ING regularly measures employee
engagement and is committed to taking the actions
identified.

ING's Winning Performance Culture (WPC) survey looks at
how engaged, enabled and energised employees are. A
WPC survey was conducted in September 2016. Around
70 percent of employees responded. ING achieved an
overall engagement score of 77 percent exceeding the
70 percent target it had set. The survey identified a
range of improvement areas on a global and local level.
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Engagement scores, on a country level, ranged from 64
percent to 84 percent. Following the survey, HR and local
management teams develop action plans which aim to
address the improvement areas identified.

Communication is also an important part of employee
engagement. Global and local communication teams
collaborate to make sure employees are engaged in
our strategy and direction on a global and local level.
In 2016, we also undertook roadshows around the
globe where our CEO and Management Board Banking
members visited 16 countries to help explain the
acceleration of the Think Forward strategy. A further 12
visits are also planned for early in 2017.

Equipping employees to become the best
they can be

Leadership development

Creating greater leaders and better managers is pivotal
to ING's people strategy. The bank needs effective
leaders to engage employees and empower them to
deliver on its Customer Promise.

ING manages the performance of senior managers
centrally. It aims to ensure that all performance
management activities are coordinated and
implemented to the highest standards.

ING continued to run its distinctive banking training
platform for senior leaders, the Think Forward Simulation.
The training simulates operations at a bank and is fully
aligned with the priorities of the Think Forward strategy.
Over 100 leaders from 15 countries attended this
training in 2016.

We also introduced a new Think Forward Leadership
Programme specifically designed to develop the
leadership behaviours needed to achieve our strategy.
The Think Forward Leadership programme was piloted in
the fourth quarter of 2016 and will be introduced from
January 2017. Designed for the Management Board
and two hierarchical levels below, it has been tailor-
made for the bank and is based on results from ING's
2015 Organisational Health Index survey. Eventually
the programme will be broadened and made available
globally to around 6,800 managers.

ING recognises that being fit to lead is not just about
expertise and experience. The programme takes an
all-inclusive approach to developing leadership. It targets
specific proficiencies, but also encourages and equips
participants to reflect on and develop their mental,
spiritual and physical wellbeing.

Early career talent development

The ING International Talent Programme (IITP) is
designed to ensure the bank has the right talent in the
right place to help meet future leadership needs. The
programme selects and develops top graduates who are
ambitious, international and have high growth potential.
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The IITP features six tracks: Wholesale Banking, Retail
Banking, Finance, Risk, HR and IT. It is primarily delivered
by ING staff. In 2016, ING recruited 130 IITP trainees of
which 53 percent were female and 47 percent male.
This was in line with an ambition to have at least 50-50
gender balance by 2016.

Development and training

ING encourages employees to take the lead in their own
personal and career development. It allocates a budget
for employees for training, professional development
and personal development. Around EUR 70 million was
spent on training and development in 2016.

More than 72 percent of learning is carried out via online
channels. Globally, much of this training is offered online
through the ING Learning Centre. Here, a variety of
educational and business reading, inspirational videos
and e-learning courses are made available. This includes
the compulsory Promoting Integrity Programme, online
training for all employees designed to strengthen our
risk culture.

Online learning includes a global e-learning programme,
Get Orange, which supports ING's local onboarding
programmes in welcoming new employees to the
company. The programme introduces them to ING's
strategy, culture and way of working. Get Orange is
available in almost all ING countries. All new joiners are
invited to participate.

Work-life balance

We need people to be at their best. That can only
happen when they are rested, healthy and enjoying

life. ING is an ambitious company and that can bring
challenges as employees seek to combine their personal
and professional commitments. Nevertheless, we

are committed to a positive work-life balance. Local

HR teams support this ambition with tailored work-

life balance programmes to suit both business and
employee needs.

ING also encourages employees to contribute to positive
change in society and the communities where they

live. A wide range of local programmes gives employees
opportunities to contribute their time or to make a
financial contribution to worthwhile causes. In 2016 we
donated over EUR 13.5 million to various charities and
just under 50,000 company hours.

Managing performance

Stepping up performance management
A strong performance culture is needed if the bank is
to achieve its ambitions and deliver on its Customer
Promise.

Employees are required to take personal responsibility
for becoming the very best they can be. ING's approach
to performance management supports this. In 2016, 99
percent of employees took part in a formal performance
management process.
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We are also working to improve performance
management through the Step up Performance
Management practice. It replaces a backward-looking
review process with real-time improvement that aims to
empower employees and make them more personally
accountable for their own performance and growth.

Step up Performance Management includes:

- Stretch ambitions: personal “stretch” aspirations that
drive personal growth and make a tangible difference
to the bank.

- Validation sessions: objectives and outcomes of mid-
year review and year-end evaluations are validated in
management team discussions and against peers to
ensure relevance and consistency.

+ Continuous improvement conversations: informal
coffee-corner conversations designed to provide
instant, meaningful feedback that immediately
improves performance.

- Recognition management: An approach where
managers are fully empowered and responsible for
continually deciding on tailored recognition including
financial recognition in line with standard guidelines.

As part of the rollout, almost 300 workshops involving
more than 1,000 managers were held in 2016 in 15
countries. The process was also introduced to all
employees in Spain, managers in Belgium and around
200 senior leaders globally. The implementation is
ongoing and will be introduced to all employees from
2017 onwards.

Remuneration

ING has compensation and reward packages in place to
attract, recruit and retain highly qualified employees.
Our Employee Value Proposition (EVP) sets out the
various rewards and benefits received by employees

in return for their performance. Remuneration is just

one of these. Our promise includes personal growth
opportunities, an open and dynamic environment as well
as a forward-thinking mentality.

People planning for the future
Organisational requirements continually change so we
need to stay a step ahead in strategic people planning.

ING is developing its HR analytics and HR intelligence
capabilities to aid business performance and employee
well-being. The goal is to understand what most makes
a difference to employees so investments can be made
in the right places.

The Human Capital Return on Investment indicator
shows ING's profitability in relation to total employee
costs. This ratio helps ING to identify the influence of

HR contributions, such as performance management,
training and development, automation and
organisational structures, on the bank’s profitability. We
are improving in this area. In 2016, the indicator was 2.59
compared to 2.48 in 2015 and 2.30 in 2014.
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Changing resource requirements

Like all companies, ING periodically restructures activities
in line with business requirements. In some instances
this may lead to job losses.

In October 2016, ING announced its intention in
many countries and business units to start a path of
convergence towards one digital banking platform.
The various measures and intentions announced

are expected to have a significant impact on many
colleagues. It means some functions will change
significantly in nature. It may require changes in the
location of some functions. Certain positions may no
longer be there in the future. While not all plans are
finalised, we anticipate that over the coming five years
around 7,000 jobs will be impacted, including 950
positions held by external suppliers.

It is always extremely difficult to announce such
proposals, because of the possible consequences for
many colleagues. We intend to build on our good track
record of treating affected colleagues with respect
and care, doing our utmost to help them find new job
opportunities.

HR Mobility in the Netherlands

In the Netherlands, HR Mobility provided assistance
to redundant colleagues in multiple locations. To
prepare colleagues for a future outside ING, we
closely monitor the external job market. Redundant
colleagues are supported during the period preceding
any redundancy and are helped with interview
preparation - internally and externally. Activities
included:

= Job link events were held in Amsterdam, Arnhem
and Leeuwarden. Around 935 colleagues attended
these events which included around 1,000 speed
dates, helping every participant to walk away with
at least four new networking contacts.

- Mobility events for secretaries at a specialist
secretarial agency in which 86 colleagues
participated.

- Ninety IT colleagues met with external companies
and IT specialist job organisations as part of our
External Job Matches project with 68 percent of
participants finding a new job within four months
after leaving ING.
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Bankwide shared services

ING continues to look at different ways to help
standardise, consolidate and optimise operational
processes across the bank so that it can address new
client demands rapidly and efficiently. In some areas,
we are looking to further centralise operational and IT
tasks bringing people together to create larger, more
specialised skill pools in single locations.

This could mean that some activities could be
transferred to our existing shared service centres, for
example in Bratislava or Bucharest, or outsourced to
external providers as part of our strategy to converge
towards one digital banking platform. This is not new
for ING. We have already standardised and streamlined
some of our Wholesale Banking and IT operations and
have centres of excellence in several locations.

Supporting colleagues in transition

We recognise that it is not always easy for colleagues
to find new jobs within the banking industry. ING is
committed to helping employees to find new roles and/
or supporting them in learning new skills so they are
better equipped for their next role, whether that be
inside or outside of ING.

Collective bargaining and employee
consultation

Human rights are fundamental and universal. ING
upholds the rights proclaimed in the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights and aims to respect human
rights in all global operations. Where countries have
weaker labour laws, ING abides by its own human rights
policy, developed in accordance with the International
Labour Organisation convention.

ING upholds freedom of association for all employees
and recognises the right to collective bargaining as laid
down by International Labour Organization convention
Numbers 87 and 98. We seek to judge employees only
on their merit and skills. Our policy is not to discriminate
by social origin, gender, age, background, sexual
orientation, physical ability or religious beliefs.

ING always aims to treat employees with respect and
communicate with them fairly and transparently. How
we consult employees depends on local legislation and
culture. In some countries, employee consultation is

a legal requirement. In much of Europe it is arranged
via works councils. At a bank-wide level, ING aims to
encourage local employee participation in countries
where employee consultation is not already formally
established.
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Improving the customer experience

To keep pace with customers’ evolving needs
and continue delivering on our Customer
Promise we have to be innovative and

move fast to turn ideas into products and
services that create differentiating customer
experiences. This requires an innovative
culture and a willingness to connect and
cooperate with others. We also have to be
operationally excellent, efficient and comply
with regulations.

ING's customers are already digital and increasingly
mobile. Across ING, digital channels now account for
98 percent of contact with retail customers and mobile
interactions increased by more than 50 percent during
2016.

Digital customers have different expectations, driven

by their various online experiences. No matter where
they are in the world, people want seamless interaction
across multiple devices and channels. They want
products and services - not just financial ones - that are
simple, save time and can be accessed when and where
they need them.

Meeting these expectations requires simple, standardised
processes and systems and an IT architecture that is
integrated, and globally scalable. Our systems and
platforms should be able to plug into others, both inside
the bank and within third-party ecosystems.

In a world that is increasingly digital and where financial
products and services are increasingly commoditised, we
strive for a differentiating customer experience that will
set us apart.

Converge

ING has a head start. We are already a digital leader in
banking and we are pan-European. We have a unique
opportunity now to converge our capabilities into one
borderless digital financial platform: the go-to place

for all our customers’ financial needs and an open
ecosystem offering our products and services along with
third-party offerings.

We intend to invest EUR 800 million in our digital
transformation to deliver a consistent, first-class
experience for our customers everywhere. To drive the
execution of this strategic priority, COO Roel Louwhoff
was appointed as Chief Transformation Officer in 2016.
We also set up a robust transformation governance
model to ensure we achieve our intermediate goals for
2020.

We are laying a strong foundation on which to converge

ING onto a single platform for financial services. This
encompasses global process management, global data

50

management, modular architecture, a cloud-based
infrastructure and operational efficiency through bank-
wide shared services.

To ensure customers everywhere have the same
experience and level of service we are standardising
processes and re-using best practices across the
business to standardise our systems and platforms.

In Germany, we are developing the Welcome banking
platform, which will be open to non-ING customers and
third parties; the Model Bank to be rolled out in Austria,
the Czech Republic, France, Italy, Poland and Spain, will
be a standardised platform for six million users; and
through the Wholesale TOM (target operating model) we
are creating a superior client experience for Wholesale
Banking customers around the globe, based on
simplified systems and uniform products and services.
In the Netherlands and Belgium we also intend to move
to an integrated banking platform with a harmonised
business model and shared operating model as part of
our Orange Bridge programme.

Technology

In 2016, we started developing TouchPoint Architecture
(TPA), our own modular architecture that will enable our
strategy. With TPA we can build generic components
that can be used across businesses and countries to
create a consistent customer experience. This unlocks
our global scalability, speeds up innovation so we can
bring new experiences to more customers faster, and
makes it easier to integrate our systems with those of
third parties.

The ING private cloud is another enabler. It went live
in 2016, starting in the Netherlands, and provides a
single global platform on which we can standardise
and automate our infrastructure. Migrating business
applications onto the private cloud further simplifies
our IT landscape and optimises the use of our IT
infrastructure to speed up the pace of innovation and
improve the customer experience.

Reliability and stability

Excellent delivery requires our services to be available
to customers when and where they need them.

Some countries’ legacy IT and operational systems
obstruct this; here, remedial actions have been taken.
For example, in the Netherlands and Belgium the
Focused Reliability Initiative was launched in 2015 to
find permanent solutions for issues that impacted the
availability of online channels (internet, mobile) and
payments processing. We continued the programme in
2016 to further improve the reliability of our financial
services to customers. As a result, ING's channel
availability towards our customers improved to 99.75
percent on average in the Netherlands, Belgium and
Wholesale Banking.

Operational excellence

Standardising and simplifying our systems, processes
and ways of working are key to becoming a leaner,

more customer-responsive organisation that delivers a
consistent customer experience everywhere. Operational
excellence also allows us to respond faster and more
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efficiently to regulatory demands and new technology
standards in the rapidly evolving digital environment.

To step up operational excellence we launched a global
programme to improve 11 end-to-end bank-wide
processes by standardising them based on the best
practices from across the organisation. This will lead to
fewer errors and help us work faster, more effectively
and more efficiently. For example, getting a consumer
loan varies from 10 minutes in one ING country to 10
days in another. On average it takes 3-4 days. ING aims
to halve this to 1-2 days in all countries.

In addition to consumer loans, the identified processes
include contact centre operations, opening a current
account, getting a mortgage, small business loans and
Wholesale Banking lending.

We also see enormous potential in using robotics and
artificial intelligence to improve accuracy, cycle time and
productivity. Creating systems that can autonomously
learn to perceive the world will allow us to address

key challenges and provide personal assistance on a
large scale.

Shared services

We took steps in 2016 to improve the operational
excellence of our shared services and align bank-

wide support functions such as Procurement, Human
Resources, Finance and Risk Management. We are
looking to further centralise operational and IT tasks

by bringing people together to create larger, more
specialised skill pools in single locations. This could mean
transferring some activities to shared service centres, for
example in Bratislava or Bucharest, or outsourcing others
to external providers as part of our strategy to converge
to one digital banking platform.

This is not new for ING. We have already successfully
standardised and streamlined some of our Wholesale
Banking and IT operations and have Centres of
Excellence in several locations. We are convinced this will
allow us to respond faster to new client needs, improve
our IT capabilities and boost the efficiency of our digital-
first model, helping it to evolve into a true competitive
advantage.

Data management

Another area we are standardising is global data
management. As a bank we collect and store vast
amounts of data, such as customer profiles, payment
transactions, complaints and more. This information can
give us meaningful insights to better understand our
customers and provide them with more personalised
products or services. At the same time, it gives
customers a complete personal financial picture that
empowers them to predict the financial impact of their
decisions. It also improves the accuracy of our internal
and external reporting.

51

We understand the sensitivities around data collection
and privacy and comply with legal and regulatory
requirements. We are transparent about how we handle
customer data and seek customer consent when using
data to personalise our offering. (see Data privacy and
security below).

However, raw data in itself has little value. It has to
be sorted, harmonised and put into context to be
meaningful for ING and our customers. Global data
management is therefore a key priority to ensure the
quality, integrity, usability and security of our data.

In 2016, we started using ING Esperanto, a set of
common terms that harmonises our data definitions. We
also implemented data lakes, cloud-based repositories
for storing and accessing vast amounts of data by
authorised ING employees. We aim for 95 percent of our
core data to be in the Esperanto language by the end

of 2017.

Data privacy and security

Earning and keeping the trust of our customers is of
paramount importance. Customers trust us to keep their
- and our own - data safe and to offer reliable products
and services. We comply with our legal obligations to
protect customer data, which can differ from country

to country.

We are transparent about what we do with the personal
data of customers, suppliers and business partners

and only process personal data for specific business
purposes. Our approach can be summarised as: the
right people use the right data for the right purpose.

We consider the wishes of our customers and corporate
clients, which is critical whenever data is processed for
services and offers. In cases where we rely on consent
the customer can withdraw this consent at any time.

All business units have adopted the global data
protection policy (GDPP) that qualifies as binding
corporate rules. In each business unit and at bank level, a
data protection executive is responsible for maintaining
GDPP compliance and compliance with local privacy
laws. Local data protection officers provide expertise and
support. The GDPP is currently being revised to comply
with the new EU General Data Protection Regulation
2016/679, which must be adhered to by May 2018.

We continuously invest in our security organisation and
systems to protect the data of customers. In a world
where cyber-attacks are on the rise, both in frequency
and intensity, we have created an agile cybercrime
resilience control environment designed to predict,
protect against, detect, respond and mitigate e-banking
fraud, distributed denial of service (DDoS) attacks and
targeted attacks.

We maintain strong global alliances with the financial
industry, law enforcement authorities, governments
and internet service providers to jointly fight cybercrime.
ING's responsible disclosure programme encourages
ethical hackers to report vulnerabilities they might
discover in ING's online services.
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Innovation Bootcamp at ING
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We take a holistic approach to counter the complex and
constant threat of cybercrime by combining prevention
with detection and rapid response. We also provide
e-banking fraud awareness training for employees and
clients which, in addition to maturing controls, has
resulted in e-banking fraud damages stabilising at low
levels across our organisation.

The advanced analytics capabilities we are developing to
better understand and service customers also play a key
role in combatting criminal activity. Pattern recognition
and advanced algorithms help to predict and detect, and
thus prevent, fraudulent activity.

Creating a culture of innovation

Next to operational excellence we will continue

to innovate to remain relevant to customers in a

digital world. By being innovative we can turn ideas

into products faster and use new technologies, like
blockchain and artificial intelligence, to improve our
efficiency, make things easier for customers and define
future competitive advantage. In future, customers could
even interact with smart machines (robots or virtual
personal assistants and smart advisors) rather than with
impersonal menus and buttons on a phone.

Our approach to innovation is built around making
banking easier for customers; stimulating a culture that
is open to new ideas; and connecting and cooperating
with others to innovate faster.

We use a structured process called PACE to accelerate
innovation within ING. In 2016, more than 2,000
employees were trained in the PACE methodology

(a combination of the Lean Startup, Agile Scrum and
Design thinking methods). We also launched the PACE
Accelerator, an intensive 18-week programme that
speeds up the time to market by testing ideas for new
products and services through experimentation and
customer validation. The programme is running in six
businesses across the bank.

In early 2017, we will set up a Innovation Council to
define and align priorities and measure the bank’s
innovation progress. It will replace the Innovation Fund
Steering Committee. We will also set up Business Unit
Innovation Councils for each country and bundle large
internal start-up initiatives in a Scale-up Portfolio.

This will help speed up ING’s transformation into an
innovation-enabled organisation offering customers an
integrated digital ecosystem beyond traditional banking.

To bring internal ideas to fruition, the Innovation Fund
continued in 2016 to finance concepts developed by
the business units, particularly when these can be
shared and replicated in other countries. It supported
20 initiatives in 2016. These include FM Katana, a data-
driven dashboard for bond traders. Since 2014, the fund
has financed 29 ideas in total. In addition, the Chief
Innovation Office supported initiatives such as Yolt, our
UK cross-bank aggregator.

Another way we source ideas is through our annual
Innovation Bootcamp. It encourages employees to

53

come up with innovative ways to improve the customer
experience. A total of 1,194 ideas were submitted to

the third edition in 2016. The winners receive funding to
develop their concepts further. Innovations from previous
Bootcamps that were commercially released in 2016
include Startarium, a starter platform for entrepreneurs
in Romania, Direct Lease, for small and medium-sized
enterprises in Belgium and the Netherlands, and digital
safety box Safe & Sound in Germany.

In total, 16 employee innovations have been

transferred to the business since 2014. Some are still in
development. Six were shelved. One of these is Kid'ING,
an app to help teenagers become more money literate.
It won the 2015 Innovation Bootcamp but the pilot in
Belgium only attracted 250 users. In 2016, we also pulled
our instant payments app Twyp (The Way you Pay) from
the Dutch market following feedback from users that
they preferred their existing mobile banking app. Twyp is
still widely used in Spain where the mobile banking apps
have less functionality.

The use of advanced analytics to improve the customer
experience led to innovations in 2016 such as Kijk Vooruit
(Look Ahead), a mobile app showing customers direct
debits due up to 35 days in advance. It has 750,000
users in the Netherlands (where 2.5 million people use
the banking app). More than 50% rate it favourably.

Connect and cooperate

We work in an agile way to bring products and services
to market quickly and use customer feedback to
improve and develop propositions for a better customer
experience. We also partner with external financial
technology companies - usually start-ups - whose
technologies and propositions we can adopt or embed
to move even faster. In return, these fintechs benefit
from our strong brand, extensive network and large
customer base. The ING Innovation Studio links start-ups
with internal teams globally to develop ideas into viable
products and services.

Our fintech partnerships are spread across several
countries and business areas such as instant lending,
payments and money management.

At the end of 2016, ING had more than 65 fintech
partners, of which we invested in 11. Among these

are Zervant, an e-invoicing and money management
platform for Belgian SMEs, and Kabbage, an alternative
credit scoring method incorporated into our SME lending
proposition in Spain. Thirteen partnerships were stopped,
mostly after unsuccessful or unsatisfactory proof of
concepts.

We are also working closely with 12 start-ups at Fintech
Village in Belgium and the ING Innovation Studio in
Amsterdam. These are our incubators where we link start-
ups with internal teams globally to develop ideas into
viable products and services. Products that emerged from
the Innovation Studio include Whydonate, an internal
portal for employees to donate to charitable causes

and CheckMetrix, a 360° dashboard for SMEs that gives
retailers insight into their customers’ buying behaviour.


https://www.startarium.ro/
https://www.yolt.com/
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Risk and capital management

Risk and C(]pit(]l ma nagement pl(]l:] a keg The mission of risk management is to properly identify,
H H H measure and manage these risks so that they are
role in supportlng our senior leaders as theg aligned with both our strategy and our appetite for risk.

implement the Think Forward strategg. ING puts a lot of effort into understanding, measuring

Financial and non-financial risk management and managing risks. We believe that we have set up an
. . X effective risk management framework and a strong risk
support our leaders in setting our commercial ~ management culture.

direction and are keg tools for sustainable ING's overall capacity to take risks is set out in the Risk

decision—making. CGpltOl management Appetite Framework. Within the framework, we monitor
a range of risk metrics to make sure that our risk profile
promOtes the success and gI’OWth of our is in line with our appetite for risk. ING also conducts

business bg ensuring that we de plOL_J COpItOl bank-wide and portfolio-specific stress tests to assess
efﬂcientlg at all levels of the bank. resﬂlence_ in specific mc_Jrket conditions. Un_derlglng
assumptions and metrics are reqularly reviewed to
ensure they stay relevant in a constantly changing
environment. ING's most important risks and control

Managing risks measures are regularly reported to and discussed by
Taking risks is an integral part of doing business. ING the Risk Committee of the Supervisory Board. Both the
faces both financial and non-financial risks. Financial financial and non-financial risk reports are reviewed in
risks arise when we extend loans to customers, take detail, including the status of ING's metrics with regard
their deposits, provide them with hedging solutions to solvency, liquidity, funding, credit and market risk.
and when we play our role as intermediary in financial
markets. Non-financial risks are those associated with m For more information on risk appetite and risk
failures in our processes, and with failure to comply metrics, please refer to the risk appetite framework
with rules, requlations, laws, and the ethical norms that section of the “Risk Management” chapter, part of the
are generally considered to apply to our people and consolidated annual accounts of this Annual Report.
activities.

Risk

Risk appetite ING’s risk governance framework

l

Governance
: First line of defence Second line of defence Third line of defence

Three lines of defence Risk Audit
Business line managers + Formulates and Independent and objective
have primary responsibility implements policies and assurance of the overall
for day-to-day risk procedures, sets limits effectiveness of internal
management and risk appetite controls

+ Executes transaction

approval processes
with veto right

+ Oversees, challenges
and supports the
optimisation of risk/
reward trade-off

Execution ‘l' ‘l’ ‘l’
Value creation/risk taking Alignment between risks taken and the risk appetite
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Three lines of defence
ING's governance framework establishes three lines of
defence to manage risk effectively.

The commercial departments, which have the primary
responsibility for day-to-day risk management, form the
first line of defence. They are accountable for identifying
and addressing the risks that occur in conducting their
activities, including originating loans and taking deposits,
within applicable frameworks and the institution’s limits.
They know our customers well and are best placed to act
in both customers’ and ING's best interests.

The independent risk management departments,
headed by the Chief Risk Officer (CRO), act as a second
line of defence. Their role is to make sure risk is properly
identified, measured, managed and reported. In order to
achieve that, they set policies, implement and operate
control frameworks, and have a deciding influence on
risk acceptance. They also ensure compliance with
internal and external requirements on an individual and
consolidated basis. Further, they support the commercial
departments and act where necessary to keep the risk
profile within the defined risk appetite. The CRO sits

on the Executive Board and the Management Board
Banking, ensuring risk remains a continuing topic for the
leadership team.

Corporate Audit is the bank’s third line of defence. It tests
and evaluates the risk governance and management,

as well as its internal control processes. It provides an
independent and objective assessment to improve the
functional effectiveness of the first two lines.

Taken together, we believe these three layers make for a
strong risk and control environment.

[I:l For more information on key risks, please refer to the
risk profile section of the “Risk Management” chapter,
part of the consolidated annual accounts of this
Annual Report.

Impact of changing customer expectations
ING operates in a rapidly changing world. To remain
relevant, we need to look closely at the quality of

the services we provide to our customers. Customer
expectations are changing drastically. Most retail
customers prefer to use digital channels; this is the main
interface for ING's communication. Although we face
competition from other banks, fintechs are challenging
the entire banking sector. These new entrants rely on
technology to deliver innovative financial services.

ING is responding to these changes with a strategy that
focuses on differentiating through leadership in digital
banking and increasing the digital interactions that we
have with our customers. Digitalisation is our strongest
asset and most effective barrier for new entrants, as
well as our best opportunity for increasing revenue and
efficiency in our distribution model.
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Although these aspects are commercial in nature, there
is a major impact on the risk management function. As
distribution and communication channels become more
direct and are available 24/7, customers expect instant
and continuous access to their funds and our services.
Our risk management function must evolve accordingly.
Therefore, ING has introduced a number of initiatives to
further improve the customer experience and to simplify,
standardise and automate our core risk processes. This
resulted in a new risk organisation starting on 1 March
2017. Risk management helps ensure that we provide
this convenience without compromising on our risk
standards.

Key developments

Uncertainty in the macroeconomic environment
persisted throughout 2016. Political and economic
instability in Turkey, the outcome of the Brexit
referendum in the United Kingdom, uncertainty about
US economic policy, a slowing Chinese economy, the
simmering conflict between Russia and Ukraine, as well
as volatility in commaodity prices (including oil prices)
further impacted markets worldwide. At the same time,
ING faced a further decline in interest rates, putting
pressure on its net interest margin.

Against this backdrop, ING's balance sheet demonstrated
its resilience. We experienced healthy lending

growth and declining risk costs resulting from active
management of non-performing loans. ING Bank's non-
performing loans (NPLs) expressed as a percentage of
lending credit outstandings further improved. The NPL
ratio decreased at the end of 2016 to 2.1% from 2.5% at
the end of 2015. This decrease was caused by a EUR 1.7
billion reduction in NPLs, mainly in residential mortgages
in the Netherlands and Real Estate Finance, combined
with an increase in total credit outstandings. For the oil
and gas portfolio, the NPL ratio increased to 2.1% from
1.8% at the end of 2015, mainly caused by higher NPL
amounts, as market conditions remained challenging.

In 2016, ING Bank maintained its liquidity position on a
consolidated level above minimum requirements. ING
Bank issued EUR 9.5 billion long-term debt, including
EUR 7.5 billion of long-term senior unsecured debt and
EUR 1.0 billion of CRD IV eligible Tier 2 securities. ING
Bank's loan-to-deposit ratio, excluding securities that
are recorded at amortised costs, rose to 1.05 compared
to 1.04 at the end of 2015, mostly due to growth of the
loan book.

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations is
resource-intensive and costly. Banks continue to be
faced with new and increasingly onerous regulatory
requirements, and we expect the scope and extent of
regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate to
generally increase further. ING is concerned that the
lack of coordination among policymakers and the lack
of clarity on future regulatory requirements is making it
increasingly difficult to actively support the economies
where we operate.
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Regulation is becoming increasingly more extensive and
complex. A recent example is the implementation of the
Common Reporting Standard (CRS) in 2016, which like
FATCA requires financial institutions to report detailed
client-related information to the competent authorities.
Customer due diligence (CDD) and transaction
monitoring impose obligations on financial institutions
to maintain appropriate policies, procedures and controls
to detect, prevent and report money laundering (AML),
terrorist financing, and fraud.

Despite our efforts to comply with applicable laws and
regulations, there are a number of risks in areas where
applicable regulations are unclear, subject to multiple
interpretations or under development, are in conflict with
each other, or where regulators revise their guidance

or courts overturn previous rulings. Meeting all these
requirements within the strict timelines that have been
set poses a significant operational challenge for banks.
Implementing the necessary processes and procedures
to effectively comply has significant implications for IT
systems and data, while people who have the necessary
knowledge and skills are scarce.

User Access Management (UAM) is an important
element of our control framework to mitigate
unauthorised and/or inappropriate access to our data
and information. The standards of controls on UAM
are high and best practices illustrate that the trends
are towards further increasing requirements. We have
identified control deficiencies related to UAM and a
central task force was formed to coordinate, assess,
monitor and track remediation efforts that resulted

in increased focus by the Executive Board, senior
management and ING staff. In 2017, management will
continue to enhance the internal controls, mitigation
and monitoring the progress of mitigation and
remediation.

Cybercrime is a continuous threat to companies in
general and to financial institutions specifically. Both
the frequency and the intensity of attacks increase on

a global scale. Threats from Distributed Denial of Service
(DDoS), targeted attacks (also called Advanced Persistent
Threats) and Ransomware intensify worldwide. ING Bank
builds on its cybercrime resilience, further enhancing the
control environment to protect, detect and respond to
e-banking fraud, DDoS and targeted attacks. Additional
controls continue to be embedded in the organisation

as part of the overall internal control framework and

are continuously re-assessed against existing and new
threats. During 2016 ING did not experience any cyber
incident that can be classified as material. ING provides
continuous reporting on cyber incidents to the ECB.

ING Bank also works on strengthening its global
cybercrime resilience including strong collaboration
against cybercrime with the financial industry, law
enforcement authorities, government (e.g. National
Cyber Security Center) and Internet Service Providers
(ISPs).
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To address non-financial risk, global education and
awareness in the form of e-learning modules, awareness
sessions and other materials were provided on topics
such as fraud and security, conflicts of interest, financial
economic crime (FEC) and an onboarding e-learning

for staff new to Operational Risk Management (ORM)
worldwide. We continue to develop e-learning modules
and campaigns to increase knowledge and awareness
around topics like market abuse, anti-bribery, corruption
and other financial/economic crimes. ING addresses
personal conduct-related integrity risks by committing
to conduct business in an honest and ethical manner
and taking a zero tolerance approach to bribery and
corruption in all of its relationships and business
dealings, wherever it operates.

[T] A comprehensive chapter on ING’s risk management
practices is part of the consolidated annual accounts
of this Annual Report.

Environmental and Social Risk Management
ING Bank makes a positive contribution to global
economic growth by promoting responsible lending

and investment practices. Transparency, openness and
regaining trust are material topics, both for ourselves
and our stakeholders. ING's Environmental and Social
Risk (ESR) policy framework underpins the choices we
make in a consistent and transparent manner on how,
where and with whom we do business.

The ESR policy framework gives ING Bank a competitive
advantage by helping us to stay a step ahead as new
environmental, social and human rights regulations are
implemented globally. It is reqularly updated to help ING
and our clients enhance gradually the implementation
of key standards of the UN Guiding Principles on Human
Rights and the OECD Guidelines for Multinational
Enterprises. Hence, the ESR policy framework also
provides guidance for compliance with new directives
and government decisions to combat climate change.

The ESR policy framework applies to all business
conduct globally. It is on the Wholesale segment

(34.6 percent of ING Bank’s assets) that we focus our
assessments and promote active ESR dialogue, as
Wholesale clients run a more substantial risk of being
involved with environmental and social issues. We have
been working with Wholesale clients for more than 15
years to support them in understanding and managing
their environmental and social impacts. The ESR policy
framework also applies to ING's retail activities for
mid-corporates and SMEs. This follows the framework’s
rationale and principles, but usually employs a simplified
version of the approach used for Wholesale clients.



Report of the
Executive Board

Risk and capital management - continued

ESR client assessment outcome per sector policy
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The ESR policy framework in action

We screen all ING clients across the entirety of our
relationship. The ESR policy framework incorporates
assessment tools that are used in ING's mainstream
processes and systems. It is therefore fully integrated
into reqular client and transaction reviews. The ESR
policy framework covers ESR-sensitive sectors and also
includes explicit restrictions for activities not in line
with ING Values (for example, companies involved in
manufacturing cluster munitions), which we will not
finance.

The graph above reflects portfolio figures per sector for
ESR client assessment outcomes relating to Wholesale
clients.

A client’s ESR risk profile is just the starting point when
assessing how the ESR policy framework will apply in
each specific business engagement. One of the most
important determinants of ING's ability to assess and
manage environmental, social and human rights-related
risks with a client is our proximity to the potential
impact. The type of financial product or service offered
to the client determines this proximity upfront and thus
the appropriate level of due diligence and mitigation
measures. The sector, operating context and geography
will also provide an initial indication of the degree of ESR
due diligence that is needed.

For example, the graph above highlights the risk profile
of ING's mining and metals portfolio. One of the clients
identified as high risk is Endeavour Mining, whose
relationship is managed by ING's Mining & Metals
(M&M) Structured Finance Team. The risk profile is high
as Endeavour's gold mines and projects are located

in high-risk countries including Mali, Burkina Faso, and
Ivory Coast. As part of ING's site visits in 2013, 2015
and 2016 the M&M Team discussed with Endeavour's
senior management the effective implementation of
their Health, Safety and Environment policies across all
their operations. The client provided information to ING
on local employment, sanitation, clean drinking water,
and the client’s contribution to local development.

As part of monitoring, the client provides regular
reports on compliance with international standards
and best practices. This example illustrates how ING
focuses on and establishes meaningful and informed
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client engagements that better support our clients
in managing environmental, social and human rights
impacts.

In 2016, 4,433 wholesale lending engagements were
assessed under the ESR policy framework. Engagements
categorised as ESR low (86%) and medium risk (8%)
were managed by local and regional risk management,
whereas engagements categorised as ESR high risk

(5%) required specialised advice by the ESR Department
headquartered in Amsterdam. In 2016, this Department
issued 214 advices which followed a deeper ESR
assessment. Out of 214 cases related to high-risk
engagement 47% received ESR positive advice, 26%
negative and 27% were granted positive advice subject
to conditions. These improvements play an important
role in the transition towards an improved environmental
and social performance on the ground.

The ESR policy framework follows mainstream approval
processes and it is applied by well-trained and
empowered people. In 2016, 545 risk, front office and
compliance colleagues participated in ESR-dedicated
training globally via webinars. Training also included
classroom sessions in ING Amsterdam, Bratislava,
Brussels, Paris, Frankfurt, Luxembourg, Geneva, Moscow
and Istanbul.

2016 2015 2014
Number of employees 545 479 375

The ESR policy framework contributed to ING being
ranked the most sustainable bank out of 395 banks
in 2016 by Sustainalytics, a global provider of
environmental, social and governance (ESG) research
and ratings. And we were again included in the DJSI
World Index and the Europe Index in the category
“banks”.

Our commitment to sustainability and a positive

ESR profile has also contributed to ING becoming the
Environmental Agent Bank to two large and complex
project financings where we take responsibility for
coordinating the environmental, social and human rights
information for the other lenders in the syndication.
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Developing best practice

Beyond stimulating higher environmental and social
performance in our portfolio, ING actively collaborates
with other institutions and regulators to address
environmental challenges that are sector- not just client-
specific.

- ING and climate change: In 2015, ING decided to
cease financing new coal-fired power plants and coal
mines and to continue to reduce our coal portfolio.
ING declined approximately 10 coal-related projects or
transactions in 2016 as a result of this policy.

- We recognise that regulators are increasingly
concerned with climate change risk as more countries
ratify the Paris Agreement. We participate in a
number of climate change initiatives, including round
tables. And ING has been engaging with the Financial
Stability Board Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures, which is developing voluntary, consistent
climate-related financial risk disclosures for use by
companies in providing information to stakeholders.

+ ING and Human rights: In October 2016, ING became
an adhering bank to the Dutch banking sector
agreement on international responsible business
conduct regarding human rights. The Agreement
aims to set the standard on how Dutch banks should
organise themselves in order to avoid human rights
impacts through the businesses they finance. One of
the challenges pointed out by ING during our human
rights presentation in the UN Forum on Business
and Human Rights was the need for alignment and
policy coherence on state and industry level in order
to ensure that those seeking to do “the right thing”
are not pushed out of competitive markets. ING is
increasing its efforts to engage with other financial
institutions in the Netherlands and globally to promote
a common level playing field in business and human
rights. This is done through our ongoing participation
in the Thun Group of banks, which promote dialogue
on human rights among banks, and through our
formal advisory role to the OECD on responsible
business conduct in the financial sector.

- ING and Biodiversity: As a member of the Round
Table for Sustainable Palm Qil (RSPO), we participate
in the RSPO Financial Institutions Task Force, which
discusses issues linked to deforestation in the palm
oil supply chain. In 2016, we supported the disclosure
of concession maps of palm oil suppliers’ plantations
in Southeast Asia. This improves transparency and
addresses illegal deforestation and fire monitoring by
attributing land to the owners.

- During 2016, we actively supported the Cross-Sector
Biodiversity Initiative (CSBI), a partnership between the
oil & gas industry (IPIECA), mining and metals (ICMM)
and the Equator Principles Association to develop
and share good practices related to biodiversity and
ecosystem services.
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By participating in the above initiatives, we aim to
contribute positively to a level playing field that provides
feasible and pragmatic feedback reflecting the views

of our clients, shareholders, employees, regulators and
other stakeholders.

Regulatory developments

Banks must contend with new fundamental reform
initiatives for some aspects of Basel Il that are evolving
into a so-called “Basel 3.5" capital regime. We are
disappointed by the continuing lack of clarity around
these reforms to capital rules to be set by the Basel
Committee. This uncertainty makes it increasingly
difficult for banks to actively support the economies
where they operate, particularly in financing areas such
as mortgages, SMEs and areas that structurally support
economic recovery, including utilities, renewables and
infrastructure.

One element of Basel Ill is the possible restriction on
distributable items (established in the EU in article 141
of the Capital Requirements Regulation). This limits the
ability of the bank to pay dividends, hybrid coupons and/
or management remuneration if its capital drops below
the sum of its Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 requirements and
combined buffer requirements, often referred to as the
Maximum Distributable Amount (MDA) trigger. As part of
the 2016 Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (see
more on SREP below), the ECB decided to split the Pillar 2
requirement into:

- Pillar 2 requirements (P2R), which are binding and thus
breaches have direct legal consequences.

- Pillar 2 guidance (P2G), which is not directly binding, so
a failure to meet P2G does not automatically trigger
legal action. Nonetheless, the ECB expects banks to
meet P2G and a breach of the P2G will lead to the ECB
taking fine-tuned measures based on the individual
situation of the bank.

Requirement and Guidance for ING Group
in 2017

ING Group has been notified of the European Central
Bank (ECB) decision on the 2016 Supervisory Review
and Evaluation Process (SREP), which sets the capital
requirements for 2017. The common equity Tier 1
requirement for ING Group was set at 9.0% in 2017. This
requirement consists of a 4.5% Pillar 1 requirement, a
1.75% Pillar 2 requirement, a 1.25% Capital Conservation
Buffer (CCB) and the 1.50% Systemic Risk Buffer (SRB)
that has been set separately for Dutch systemic banks
by the Dutch Central Bank (De Nederlandsche Bank).
This excludes Pillar 2 guidance, which is not disclosed.
ING Group's fully-loaded common equity Tier 1 ratio

of 14.2% at 31 December 2016 is well in excess of this
requirement.
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The CCB and the SRB are scheduled to phase in over

the coming years to 2.5% and 3.0% respectively by 1
January 2019. Consequently, the fully loaded Maximum
Distributable Amount (MDA) trigger level is expected to
rise from 9.0% in 2017 to 11.75% in 2019 and assumes

a stable Pillar 2 requirement. In the event that ING Group
breaches the MDA level it may face restrictions on paying
dividends, coupons on AT1 instruments and bonuses. We
believe that the impact from the Countercyclical Buffer
(CCyB) is negligible at this stage. With a 14.2% fully-
loaded Group CET1 ratio as at 31 December 2016, ING

is already in compliance with the expected fully-loaded
requirement of 11.75% as of 2019 .

ING Group SREP
MDA
restriction
level (11.75%)*
MDA
restriction ®
level (9.0%)* SO0
1.50 %
0
1.25% 250%
4.50 % 4.50 %
2017 CET1 SREP Expected CET1
2019 SREP
Il Management buffer (incl. P2G)
M SRB
| CCB
P2R
M Pillar 1

* Excluding CCyB which is negligible at this stage.

Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive
Since its adoption by the European Parliament in 2014,
the Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive (BRRD) has
come into effect in most EU countries after transposition
into national law, including in the Netherlands. The BRRD
aims to safeguard financial stability and minimise the
use of public funds in cases where banks face financial
distress or fail. To comply with the new rules, banks
across the EU need to have recovery plans in place and
to cooperate with resolution authorities to determine
and make feasible the preferred resolution strategy.

ING has set up a very comprehensive recovery plan to
ensure the bank’s readiness and support decisive action
to tackle financial crises on its own. Effective since 2012,
the plan is updated annually to make sure it stays fit
for purpose and to ensure ING's ability to act decisively.
In 2016, the plan was extensively updated to bring it in
accordance with the BRRD. The completeness, quality
and credibility of the updated plan is assessed annually
by ING's regulators.

To support orderly resolution, the BRRD requires banks to
meet minimum requirements for own funds and eligible

liabilities (MREL). In addition, ING as a Global Systemically
Important Bank (G-SIB) needs to comply with the total
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loss absorption capacity (TLAC) proposal published by
the Financial Stability Board (FSB) in November 2015.

Since 2012, ING has worked diligently with the different
resolution authorities to determine a resolution strategy
and to identify potential impediments to resolution.
Following an intensive discussion throughout 2016,

with the Single Resolution Board (SRB) and the national
resolution authority, De Nederlandsche Bank (DNB), we
concluded that ING Group should be our designated
resolution entity. In November 2016, we concluded that
ING Group should be our designated resolution entity.
At the end of January 2017, the Single Resolution Board
(SRB) informed us that it supports the designation of
ING Group as the point of entry. Henceforth, ING Group
will be the issuing entity for all TLAC/MREL eligible

debt consisting of Additional Tier 1, Tier 2 and senior
unsecured debt.

G-SIBs will be required to meet the TLAC requirement
alongside the minimum regulatory requirements set
out in the Basel lll framework. Specifically, they will

be required to meet a Minimum TLAC requirement of
at least 16% of the resolution entity's risk-weighted
assets (TLAC RWA Minimum) as from 1 January 2019
and at least 18% as from 1 January 2022. Minimum
TLAC must also be at least 6% of the Basel Il leverage
ratio denominator (TLAC Leverage Ratio Exposure

(LRE) Minimum) as from 1 January 2019, and at least
6.75% as from 1 January 2022. Buffer requirements
will come on top of the RWA requirement but not on
top of the leverage requirement. In addition, the Single
Resolution Board has assumed full power as per 1
January 2016. The work plan for the SRB in 2016 focused
on determining the preferred resolution strategy, the
resolution entity and the required amount of Minimum
Required Eligible Liabilities (MREL).

On 6 April 2016, ING Bank issued EUR 1 billion of Tier

2 bonds with an issuer substitution option through
exchange. Now that clarity has been provided on the
preferred resolution strategy, ING intends to use the
option to replace these ING Bank Tier 2 notes with ING
Group Tier 2 notes at similar terms through exchange.
The noteholders have agreed upfront to the terms and
conditions to exchange their ING Bank Tier 2 notes for
ING Group Tier 2 notes.

A consistent approach to capital
management

ING Group’s overall approach to capital management

is to make sure capital is adequate to cover the
economic risk at all levels and to ensure compliance with
regulations. ING Group reassesses these levels constantly
to ensure optimal capital use. The continued strength

of ING's capital position, the adequacy of our financial
position and our risk management effectiveness allow
us to empower people and businesses to realise their
goals. They make it possible to increase our lending
capabilities, pay dividend on common shares to
shareholders and invest in new technologies and best
practices. In this way, ING delivers shareholder returns
while at the same time investing in further innovation of
products and services.
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ING's Capital Management strategy is driven by its
strategic aims and its risk appetite. Our policy is to retain
sufficient financial flexibility to implement ING's strategy
in all market conditions. ING's risk appetite statements
form the basis of the capital plan. The capital plan sets
targets above the minimum regulatory requirements.
The risk appetite statements and targets are developed
and communicated to the different businesses in line
with capital allocation. Policies for recovery planning
and resolution are a natural extension of ING's capital
management policies and are fully aligned with ING’s
risk management framework.

Capital distribution

ING Group manages capital at Group as well as Bank
level and allocates capital within its different entities to
meet local capital requirements. ING's subsidiaries are
well capitalised. ING sets targets for individual businesses
above the minimum local capital requirements and aims
for an efficient distribution of capital. The capital provides
room for loan growth and supports the acceleration

of our Think Forward strategy to achieve continued
commercial growth, an improved customer experience
and quicker delivery of new products.

Stress testing

Stress testing is an integral component of our risk and
capital management framework. It allows us to (i) assess
potential vulnerabilities in our businesses, business
model or portfolios; (ii) understand the sensitivities of the
core assumptions in our strategic and capital plans; and
(iii) improve decision-making through balancing risk and
return.

In addition to internal stress test scenarios reflecting

the outcomes of the annual risk assessment, ING also
participates in regulatory stress test exercises. ING was
subject to the 2016 EU-wide stress test conducted by
the European Banking Authority (EBA) in cooperation
with the European Central Bank (ECB), De Nederlandsche
Bank (DNB), the European Commission and the European
Systemic Risk Board (ESRB). The adverse stress-test
scenario was set by the ECB/ESRB and covers a three-
year time horizon (2016-2018). The stress test was
carried out applying a static balance sheet assumption
as at December 2015, and therefore does not take

into account current or future business strategies and
management actions.

The results of the EBA stress test reaffirmed the
resilience of our business model and the strength

of ING's capital base. Our commitment to maintain

a robust, fully-loaded Group CET1 ratio in excess of
prevailing requirements remains. Under the hypothetical
baseline scenario and EBA's methodological instructions,
ING Group would have a fully loaded common equity
Tier 1 capital ratio (CET1) of 12.5% in 2018. Whereas,
under the hypothetical adverse scenario and EBA's
methodological instructions, ING Group would have a
fully loaded CET1 ratio of 9.0% in 2018.
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Capital developments at ING Group

2016 was an important year for ING Group, as it further
strengthened its capitalisation. The further regulatory
capital strengthening reflects strong profitability as

well as the sale of the remaining stake in NN Group.
Although the regulatory environment remains uncertain,
our strong capital position ensures we can continue to
support our customers to realise their financial futures.

In January 2016, ING successfully sold 33 million ordinary
shares of NN Group, and in February 2016 it exchanged
the final tranche of EUR 337.5 million mandatory
exchangeable subordinated notes, which had been
issued in 2014 as part of the anchor investment in NN
Group. These transactions reduced ING's remaining stake
in NN Group from 25.8% to 14.1%. In April 2016, ING sold
its remaining 14.1% stake in NN Group. The divestment
of NN Group is the final step of ING's programme to
divest all of its insurance and investment management
businesses as part of the restructuring agreement with
the European Commission. As a result of the sale of the
NN shares, Tier 1 instruments lent to NN Group no longer
need to be deducted from available Tier 1 capital. This
had a positive impact on available Tier 1 capital of EUR
0.8 billion.

In March 2016 a GBP 66 million grandfathered additional
Tier 1 security, which was fully on-lent to ING Bank, was
redeemed by ING Group on its first call date. In April
2016, ING Bank NV successfully issued EUR 1.0 billion of
CRD IV-eligible Tier 2 instruments. The transaction had
an issuer substitution option which gives ING the right to
exchange these for subordinated Tier 2 notes issued by
ING Groep NV.

In September 2016, ING Group redeemed USD 800
million 7.05% grandfathered Perpetual Debt Securities
which were on-lent to ING Bank NV.

In November 2016, ING issued USD 1,000 million
contingent convertible Securities which qualify as
Additional Tier 1 capital under CRD IV/CRR to strengthen
ING's capital base. The perpetual bond, that can be called
by ING Group five years after issuance, has a coupon of
6.875%.

ING Group's fully-loaded common equity Tier 1 ratio
was 14.2% at the end of 2016. The proposed dividend,
to be paid in May 2017, has already been excluded
from ING Group's capital base, in line with regulatory
requirements. The Group's phased-in common equity
Tier 1 ratio at the end of the year increased by
1.2%-point from the previous year to 14.1%, largely
due to higher capital and lower RWA. The fully loaded
CET1 ratio showed a slightly more positive development
compared to the phased-in ratio which is largely
explained by the larger reduction of the deduction of
significant investments in financial institutions due to
the sale of the NN Group shares. ING Group's phased-
in (transitional) common equity Tier 1 ratio of 14.1%
is well in excess of the 10.25 % common equity Tier 1
2016 requirement and the 9.0% common equity Tier
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12017 requirement. ING Group's fully-loaded Tier 1
ratio (including grandfathered securities) was 16.6% at
the end of 2016, while the total capital ratio (including
grandfathered securities) increased to 19.7%.

Dividend

ING's dividend policy aims to pay a progressive

dividend over time which will reflect considerations
including expected future capital requirements, growth
opportunities available to the Group, net earnings, and
regulatory developments. The Executive Board proposes
to pay a total cash dividend of EUR 2,560 million, or

EUR 0.66 per ordinary share, over the financial year
2016. This is subject to the approval of shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting in May 2017. Taking into
account the interim dividend of EUR 0.24 per ordinary
share paid in August 2016, the final dividend will amount
to EUR 0.42 per ordinary share and will be paid fully

in cash. The total amount of EUR 1,629 million is fully
covered by the remaining balance of “interim profits not
included in CET1 capital” at year-end 2016.

Capital development at ING Bank

ING Bank'’s capital position is primarily managed through
its published common equity Tier 1 ratio and leverage
ratio. These elements are the most widely used variables
for assessing bank capitalisation. ING Bank also takes
other constraints into account, including:

- Additional regulatory capital requirements, including
the amount of Tier 1 capital, total capital and the Basel
[ floor.

- Economic capital. Although it is currently not a
constraining factor, economic capital is used to
manage the bank’s risk profile and to set limits.

- Rating agency considerations. Each rating agency
provides a different analysis and specific topics may
need to be addressed.

A strong capital base

ING Bank continues to maintain a strong and high
quality capital level, with a fully-loaded common equity
Tier 1 ratio and a phased-in common equity Tier 1 ratio
of 12.6%, thereby complying with CRR/CRD IV solvency
requirements. A dividend from ING Bank to ING Group of
EUR 1.3 billion was paid in November 2016. The fourth
quarter 2016 profit of EUR 0.6 billion is not included in
the requlatory capital per December 2016 as this was
upstreamed as dividend to ING Group in February 2017

The sale of 2.5% of Kotak Mahindra Bank shares, which
was settled in October 2016, had no material impact on
ING's capital ratios. The fully-loaded and phased-in Tier
1 ratios respectively increased from 13.9% to 14.7% and
13.4% to 14.4%, primarily reflecting developments in
ING Bank’s common equity Tier 1 ratio. This was partly
offset by the redemption of the USD 800 million 7.05%
grandfathered Perpetual Debt Securities in September.
The total capital ratio (including grandfathered
securities) increased to 17.8%.
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In April 2016, ING Bank issued EUR 1 billion of Tier

2 bonds with an issuer substitution option through
exchange. Now that clarity has been provided on the
preferred resolution strategy, ING intends to use the
option to replace these ING Bank Tier 2 notes with ING
Group Tier 2 notes at similar terms through exchange.
The noteholders have agreed upfront to the terms and
conditions to exchange their ING Bank Tier 2 notes for
ING Group Tier 2 notes.

ING also demonstrated in 2016 the ability to generate
capital consistently through strong profitability. ING
currently has a strong capital position, meeting all
regulatory requirements and capable of withstanding
market challenges and new regulations. The strength
of the balance sheet provides a firm base to execute
further lending capabilities, serving customer needs, as
well as paying dividends.

I:I] Read more in the “Capital management”chapter, part
of the Consolidated annual accounts in this Annual
Report.
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Composition of the Executive Board
and Management Board Banking

Ralph Hamers Patrick Flynn

Roel Louwhoff

R.A.J.G. (Ralph) Hamers (50)

CEO and chairman of the Executive Board ING Group and chairman of
the Management Board Banking

Ralph Hamers was appointed a member of the Executive Board of ING
Group as of 13 May 2013. He was appointed chief executive officer
(CEO) and chairman of the Executive Board and of the Management
Board Banking on 1 October 2013. He is, among others, responsible
for Innovation, Legal, Corporate Strategy, Corporate HR, Corporate
Communications, and Corporate Audit Services.

P.G. (Patrick) Flynn (56)

CFO on the Executive Board ING Group and CFO on the Management
Board Banking

Patrick Flynn was appointed a member and chief financial officer
(CFO) of the Executive Board of ING Group as of 27 April 2009. He also
serves as a member and CFO of the Management Board Banking. He
is responsible for ING's finance departments, including Tax, Capital
Management, ING Group Investments, and Investor Relations.

W.F. (Wilfred) Nagel (60)

CRO on the Executive Board ING Group and CRO on the Management
Board Banking

Wilfred Nagel was appointed a member and chief risk officer (CRO)
of the Executive Board of ING Group as of 14 May 2012. Wilfred Nagel
became a member and CRO of the Management Board Banking as
of 5 October 2011. He is responsible for all of ING's risk management
departments.

JV. (Koos) Timmermans (56)

Vice-chairman of the Management Board Banking

Koos Timmermans was appointed a member and vice-chairman

of the Management Board Banking as of 1 October 2011. He

is responsible for, among others, advanced analytics, bank

treasury, group research, regulatory and international affairs, and
sustainability. Koos Timmermans has also assumed responsibility for
the Bank’s operations in the Benelux.
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Koos Timmermans

Aris Bogdaneris

M.I. (Isabel) Fernandez Niemann (48)

Head of Wholesale Banking and member of the Management Board
Banking

Isabel Fernandez joined ING and was appointed to the Management
Board Banking as of 1 September 2016. She was appointed head

of Wholesale Banking on 1 November 2016, succeeding William
Connelly. Before joining ING, Isabel Fernandez was Global Commercial
Leader and Head of Sales at General Electric.

R.M.M. (Roel) Louwhoff (51)

COO/CTO on the Management Board Banking

Roel Louwhoff was appointed a member and chief operations officer
(COO0) of the Management Board Banking as of 1 May 2014. He was
also appointed chief transformation officer (CTO) per 1 October 2016.
In this role, that he fulfils alongside his COO role, he is responsible for
operations of the bank-wide transformation that was announced in
October 2016. In his COO role, Roel is responsible for operations, IT
(including standardisation), data management, information security,
process management, and procurement.

A. (Aris) Bogdaneris (53)

Head of Challengers & Growth Markets and member of the
Management Board Banking

Aris Bogdaneris was appointed a member of the Management Board
Banking as of 1 June 2015. He is also head of Challengers & Growth
Markets, responsible for all markets where ING is active in both retail
banking and wholesale banking outside the Benelux.
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ING Shares

Share information

The authorised share capital of ING Groep NV. consists
of ordinary shares and cumulative preference shares.
Currently, only ordinary shares are issued, while a

right to acquire cumulative preference shares has been
granted to the ING Continuity Foundation. Each share
in the capital of ING Groep NV. gives entitlement to cast
one vote.

Listings

ING Group ordinary shares are listed on the stock
exchanges of Amsterdam and Brussels, and American
depositary receipts (ADRs) are listed on the New York
Stock Exchange (NYSE). Options on ING Group ordinary
shares and ADRs are traded on the Euronext Amsterdam
Derivative Markets and the Chicago Board Options
Exchange.

Key developments

On 25 April 2016, the annual general meeting of ING
Groep NJV. decided to abolish the Dutch depositary
receipt structure. Consequently, on 26 July 2016
depositary receipts for shares in ING Groep NV. were
converted into ordinary shares of ING Groep NV.. As a
result, holders of depositary receipts for shares in ING
Groep NV. became ordinary shareholders of ING Groep
NV. and the depositary receipts for shares ceased to
exist. In addition, ING's ADRs became automatically
linked to the underlying ordinary shares.

[I] Read more in the “Report of ING Trust Office"

[D Read more in the “Corporate governance” chapter on
the share capital of ING Group.

Shareholders and ADR holders with stakes
of 3 percent or more

Pursuant to the Dutch Financial Supervision Act,
shareholders and holders of ADRs of ING Groep NV.

are required to provide updated information on their
holdings once they cross threshold levels of 3%, 5%,
10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, 30%, 40%, 50%, 60%, 75% and
95%. As of 31 December 2016, ING Group is not aware of
shareholders, potential shareholders or investors with an
interest of three percent or more in ING Group other than
BlackRock Inc. and Artisan Investments GP LLC.
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Authorised and issued capital *

Year-end  Year-end
in EUR million 2016 2015
Ordinary shares
- authorised 147 3,480
- issued 39 928
Cumulative preference shares
- authorised 46 1,080
- issued = -
Number of shares in issue and shares
outstanding in the market *
Year-end  Year-end
in millions 2016 2015
Ordinary shares 3,878.5 3,870.2
Own ordinary shares held by
ING Group and its subsidiaries 0.6 15
Ordinary shares outstanding in
the market 3,877.9 3,868.7

Prices of ordinary shares *

Euronext Amsterdam by

NYSE Euronext in EUR 2016 2015 2014
Price - high 13.73 15.90 11.95
Price - low 8.55 10.35 9.50
Price - year-end 13.37 12.45 10.83
Price/earnings ratio 2 111 12.0 33.8
Price/book value ratio 1.04 1.01 0.81

1 Asof 26 July 2016, the depositary receipts were converted into
ordinary shares and the nominal value per share was reduced from
EUR 0.24 to EUR 0.01. Prior to that date, for year-end 2015 and
2014, the nominal value of (depositary receipts for) ordinary shares
was EUR 0.24.

Based on the share price at year-end and the earnings per ordinary
share for the financial year.

S}

Geographical distribution of ING ordinary shares
(in %) *

O

1 These figures are based on year-end 2016 estimates of
institutional share ownership provided by IPREO.

[l United States

7 United Kingdom

M France

M Germany

W Switzerland
Netherlands

M Rest of Europe
Rest of World




Other
information

Additional
information

Consolidated
annual accounts

Contents Report of the

Executive Board

Corporate
Governance

Parent company
annual accounts

ING Shares - continued

One-year price development of ING ordinary shares
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Sustainability ratings
ING Group's approach to sustainability is shaped by
our specific skills and expertise as a financial company,
our vision of the future and the expectations of

our stakeholders. Reviews of our performance by

External reviews of our sustainability performance

sustainability research and rating agencies help us to
improve our strategy and policies. ING's 2016 scores
and rankings in key sustainability benchmarks show our
progress and are as follows:

2016 2015 2014 2013
Dow Jones Sustainability Indices Score: Score: Score: Score:
(RobecoSAM) 90 (out of 100) 86 (out of 100) 82 (out of 100) 76 (out of 100)

Included in World
and Europe Index

Included in World
and Europe Index

Included in World
and Europe Index

Included in World
and Europe Index

Sustainalytics ?

Score:

86 (out of 100)
Position:

1 (out of 395
financial peers)

Score:

88 (out of 100)
Position:

3 (out of 409
financial peers)

Score:

77 (out of 100)
Position:

3 (out of 130
financial peers)

Score:

75 (out of 100)
Position:

6 (out of 196
financial peers)

CbP

(Carbon Disclosure Project) 2

Score:
A for climate
leadership

Position: Included

Score:

100 for disclosure
(out of 100)

and A for
performance
Position: Included

Score:

97 for disclosure
(out of 100)

and A for
performance
Position: Included

Score:

96 for disclosure
(out of 100)

and B for
performance
Position: Included

FTSE4 Good Index Series

Position: Included

Position: Included

Position: Included

Position: Included

Transparantie Benchmark (NL) Score: Score: Score: Score:
186 181 172 188
Position: Position: Position: Position:
20 (out of 512) 14 (out of 461) 18 (out of 409) 13 (out of 483)
Euronext Vigeo Europe Score: Score: Score: Score:
120 Index 54 (out of 100) 54 (out of 100) 54 (out of 100) 53 (out of 100)
(Vigeo) Position: Position: Position: Position: Included
Included Included Not included

1 Ranked 1st and Industry Leader of 395 listed banks by Sustainalytics in August 2016.
2 Starting 2016, CDP no longer separates disclosure and performance scores. A score of “A” represents the highest possible score across disclosure,
awareness, management, and leadership evaluation.
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Credit ratings

ING's short- and long-term credit ratings are shown

in the table below. Each of these ratings reflects only
the view of the applicable rating agency at the time
the rating was issued, and any explanation of the
significance of a rating may be obtained only from the
rating agency. A security rating is not a recommendation
to buy, sell or hold securities and each rating should

be evaluated independently of any other rating. There
is no assurance that any credit rating will remain in
effect for any given period of time or that a rating will
not be lowered, suspended or withdrawn entirely by
the rating agency if, in the rating agency’s judgement,
circumstances so warrant. ING accepts no responsibility
for the accuracy or reliability of the ratings.

Main credit ratings of ING at 31 December 2016

Standard & Poor’s

Rating Outlook
ING Groep NV. A- Stable
ING Bank NV. A Stable
- Short term A-1

Important dates in 2017 !

2017 Annual General Meeting

8 May 2017

Ex-date for final dividend 2016 (Euronext Amsterdam)
10 May 20172

Publication results 1Q2017

10 May 2017

Record date for final dividend 2016 entitlement (NYSE)
11 May 20172

Record date for final dividend 2016 entitlement
(Euronext Amsterdam)

11 May 2017

Payment date final dividend 2016 (Euronext Amsterdam)
18 May 20172

Payment date final dividend 2016 (NYSE)

25 May 20172

Publication results 2Q2017

2 August 2017

Ex-date for interim dividend 2017 (Euronext Amsterdam)
4 August 2017 2

Investor Relations

% To receive press releases and other ING news, you
can subscribe to the email service at www.ing.com.
You can also access the latest financial
information and press releases on our website
at www.ing.com/ir.

Investors and financial analysts may contact:
ING Group

Investor Relations (AMP C.03.049)

PO. Box 1800

1000 BV Amsterdam

The Netherlands

Telephone: +31 20 576 6396

E-mail: investor.relations@ing.com
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Moody’s Fitch

Rating Outlook Rating Outlook
Baal Stable A+ Stable
Al Stable A+ Stable
P-1 F1

Record date for interim dividend 2017 entitlement
(Euronext Amsterdam )

7 August 20172

Record date for interim dividend 2017 entitlement
(NYSE)

14 August 20172

Payment date interim dividend 2017 (Euronext
Amsterdam)

14 August 20172

Payment date interim dividend 2017 (NYSE)

21 August 2017 2

Publication results 3Q2017

2 November 2017

1 Alldates are provisional.
2 Only if any dividend is paid.

For more information, see the calendar on
www.ing.com/16ar4.
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About this report

Our stakeholders want to assess our ability to
create and sustain value in the short, medium
and long term. To do that, they need both
financial and non-financial information.

We believe that integrated reporting is a
better way to meet the requirements and
interests of all our stakeholders.

Our approach to integrated reporting

In our view a balanced integrated report contains
information both on our economic performance and
on the impact of our organisation on society and the
environment. By disclosing and explaining our financial
and non-financial results, strategy, governance, external
developments and the risks and opportunities we

face, we aim to enable our stakeholders to assess how
we create value and how we earn our income. Our
ambition is to further integrate financial and non-
financial information and advance towards concise and
connected reporting, focusing on material data points.

How we defined content for this report and
materiality

In drawing up content for this report we have taken

into account the topics that can have a material

impact on our business and society as well as risks and
opportunities, applicable regulation and trends.

The boundaries of our economic, environmental and
social impact differ. As a financial institution, we have a
direct impact through our own operations and processes,
but our impact in the value chain is more significant,
through credit, loans and investments. In ING’s
Sustainability Reporting Protocol, we describe the impact
per material topic, by stakeholder group. Additionally,
we report our impact on the society through our value
creation model on pages 26 and 27.

We are continually listening to key constituencies, and
as material topics change we adapt our reporting to

fit developing stakeholder expectations. As part of our
materiality analysis, we have consulted key stakeholder
groups - retail and business clients, investors,
employees, academia, civil society organisations, and
supervisors - via a structured stakeholder dialogue.

Our materiality assessment guides our reporting with
the aim of providing a more balanced and complete
picture of our performance over the reporting year. The
report including materiality disclosure is reviewed by the
Executive Board.

[T Read more in the “The world around us” chapter.

Audiences

This report is intended to serve the information needs
of key stakeholder groups that affect, and are affected
by our business: customers, employees, share- and
bondholders, supervisors, regulators, civil society
organisations, citizens and society at large. However, the
information needs of stakeholders differ. Therefore we
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also publish a concise and accessible online overview of
our results in 2016 on ING.com. This aims to share our
key figures and impacts with customers and society in a
clear and easy way.

For a concise and accessible overview of ING’s
2016 results, see www.ing.com/2016ar.

Sustainability rating agencies and analysts can find
the content they need for an in-depth analysis of our
performance on sustainability in this report and the
accompanying Non-financial Appendix.

Reporting guidelines

ING's integrated report, including the Non-financial
Appendix, is prepared in accordance with “the GRI
Standards: Comprehensive option” and Dutch Accounting
Standard 400. The content and quality criteria specified
by the standards (for example: sustainability context,
stakeholder inclusiveness, materiality, completeness,
balance, comparability, accuracy and reliability) are
integral to our reporting process. The Framework of the
International Integrated Reporting Council served as

a reference in drawing up the content for this report,
particularly for our value creation model.

Data compilation and boundaries

All financial data in this integrated report is extracted or
derived from, and in line with, our annual accounts. The
non-financial performance data published in this report
covers five topics: sustainable business, customers,

HR, environment and community investment. We
extract or derive data on sustainability-related business
activities, customers and HR from our regular business
systems, in line with the data in our annual accounts.
Data on environment and community investment is
gathered through an online data management system.
The centralised data processing team at ING Group

is assisted by an independent external agency that
helps to validate and process the large amount of
environmental data gathered from our operations
worldwide.

Scope and boundaries

Through our materiality assessment we ensure that all
material economic, social and environmental topics are
addressed in this report. The report covers the period

1 January to 31 December 2016 and is published on

16 March 2017. The data and content in the integrated
report and Non-financial appendix aim to provide

a concise, accurate and balanced account of ING's
economic, social and environmental performance

in 2016. Depending on the topic, our approach and
performance are explained either in text, by referring to
our policies or by providing data and progress on targets.

More information on the non-financial data, the
scope and data collection process of the different
performance indicators can be found in detail

in the non-financial data reporting protocol at
www.ing.com/16ar5.


http://www.ing.com/2016ar
http://www.ing.com/16ar5
http://www.ing.com/16ar5
http://www.ing.com/2016ar
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About this report - continued

Assurance

We value the accuracy and reliability of all information
and data in this report, both financial and non-financial.
Therefore assurance for this integrated report, including
the accompanying Non-financial Appendix, is provided
by KPMG Accountants NV. (KPMG).

KPMG has reviewed and provided a limited level of
assurance on the non-financial information of the report
of the executive board and the non-financial appendix
for the year 2016 as defined in the table on pages 15 to
18. The topics with asterix (*) in this table are out of the
assurance scope.

m See the assurance report of the independent
auditor on page 68. The chapters “Risk and capital
management” and “Remuneration report” are an
integral part of the audited consolidated annual
accounts.

KPMG audited the financial statements 2016 of ING
Group.

EEI See the independent auditor’s report on page 337.

Furthermore, KPMG audited ING Group's internal control
over financial reporting as of 31 December 2016, based
on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013
framework) (the COSO criteria).

ED See the report of the independent registered public
accounting firm on page 96.

Future-oriented statements

In this integrated annual report we also look forward and
share our vision, ambitions, strategy, opinion and plans
for the future. These forward-looking statements can be
recognised by terms such as:

- expect

- anticipate

- intend

- plan

- believe

- seek

- see

- will

- would

- target

- forecast

- of the opinion

- or similar terms.
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These forward-looking statements are based on
management'’s current beliefs and assumptions about
future activities and are subject to uncertainties.
Therefore our assurance provider cannot assure these
statements.

Feedback

This integrated report aims to give all our stakeholders
a balanced and complete overview of our activities
and ability to create and sustain value. We welcome
stakeholder reactions and views. Please send us your
feedback via communication@ing.com.

Report of the Executive Board

The Corporate Governance section starting on
page 77 is incorporated by reference in this Report
of the Executive Board.

Amsterdam, 13 March 2017

The Executive Board


mailto:communication@ing.com

Report of the
Executive Board

To the Supervisory Board and the
Shareholders of ING Group N.V.

Our conclusion

We have reviewed the non-financial information in the
Report of the Executive Board as defined in the table
on pages 15 to 18 and in the ‘Non-financial appendix’
(hereafter: the Non-financial Information) of ING Group
NV. (hereafter: ING Group) based in Amsterdam, The
Netherlands.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention
to indicate that the Non-financial Information is not
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
the GRI Standards for Sustainability Reporting and the
internally developed criteria as described in the section
‘About this report’.

The Non-financial Information includes prospective
information such as ambitions, strategy and
expectations. Inherently the actual future results may
differ from these and are therefore uncertain. We do
not provide any assurance on the assumptions and
achievability of prospective information in the Non-
financial Information.

Basis for our conclusion

We have performed our review on the Non-financial
Information in accordance with Dutch law, including
Dutch Standard 3000: “Assurance Engagements
other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”. This review engagement is aimed to
obtain limited assurance. Our responsibilities under
this standard are further described in the section ‘Our
responsibilities for the review of the Non-financial
Information’ below.

We are independent of ING Group in accordance with
the ‘Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van
accountants bij assurance-opdrachten’ (ViO, Code

of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation
with respect to independence) and other relevant
independence regulations in the Netherlands.
Furthermore, we have complied with the ‘Verordening
gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants’ (VGBA, Dutch
Code of Ethics).

We believe that the assurance evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our conclusion.

Key assurance matters

Key assurance matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our review of the Non-financial Information. We have
communicated the key assurance matters to the
Executive Board and the Supervisory Board. The key
assurance matters are not a comprehensive reflection
of all matters discussed. These matters were addressed
in the context of our review of the Non-financial
Information within the scope of our engagement as a
whole and in forming our conclusion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate conclusion on these matters.
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Assurance report of the independent auditor

1. Materiality of topics

Description:

The GRI Standards require to focus on (non-financial)
material topics. Material topics are those topics that
are sufficiently important to be reported as omission
could substantially influence stakeholders' decisions.
ING Group updated the materiality assessment process
in 2016 amongst others on the basis of a qualitative
stakeholder sessions to define which Non-financial
information has to be included. The materiality
assessment is subject to significant management
judgement and was therefore identified as a significant
area for our review.

Our response:

We reviewed the process that ING Group executed to
identify and prioritize the Non-financial Information

to be reported in the Report of the Executive Board.
We also conducted a media search and a peer
benchmark to assess potential material other topics to
be included and compared these with the Company’s
materiality assessment. We reviewed the results from
the materiality assessment against the Non-financial
Information included.

Our observation:

We found the materiality assessment process that ING
Group executed during 2016 to be sufficiently solid to
identify relevant material topics for inclusion. We also
observed that the material topics as identified in the
related process have been reflected in the Report of the
Executive Board.

2. Balance of the Non-financial Information

Description:

GRI requires that the Non-financial Information provides
a balanced picture of ING Group'’s (non-financial)
performance to its stakeholders. For a balanced
assessment of the overall performance of ING Group the
Non-financial Information has to reflect both positive
and negative aspects of the organization’s performance
as applicable. This area was significant to our review as
the assessment of the right balance is inherently subject
to a qualitative evaluation of the information gathered
and judgment about the extent to which specific
information needs to be included.

Our response:

Our assurance procedures included, among other
things, obtaining an understanding of the principles
and governance structure that ING Group applied to
collect and document information used in preparing
the Non-financial Information. We interviewed several
staff members responsible for the information gathering
and its qualitative evaluation as well as preparing and
reviewing the Non-financial Information of ING Group
and evaluated whether the Non-financial Information
reflects their insights. Finally, we performed an overall
assessment on the Non-financial Information based
on our knowledge of the company and all evidence
obtained to evaluate whether the Non-financial
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Assurance report of the independent auditor - continued

Information presents a balanced overall picture of ING
Group's non-financial performance.

Our observation:

We observed that the Non-financial Information reflects
the insights of several ING staff members involved in
the preparation of the Non-financial Information in a
balanced manner.

3. Sustainable transitions financed

Description:

ING Group reports on sustainable transitions financed.
These are defined as clients and projects that are
environmental and/or social outperformers in their
industry. In 2016, ING Group increased the coverage

of the company'’s loan book which has been assessed
against the definition and criteria for sustainable
transitions financed. This area was significant to our
review since we identified that sustainable transitions
financed serves as a material indicator for ING to
monitor its performance and reporting and because the
assessment of outperformers is inherently subject to
assumptions and judgement related to the criteria and
definitions.

Our response:

We reviewed the reporting process and internal control
framework, including the applicable definitions and
criteria. We interviewed several staff members to
understand the application of these definitions and
criteria and we requested underlying evidence for
some transactions classified as sustainable transitions
financed. Finally, we reviewed whether the criteria,
assumptions and limitations regarding the sustainable
transitions financed are sufficiently explained in the Non-
financial Information.

Our observation:

We observed that the definitions and criteria for
sustainable transitions as described in the internally
developed reporting criteria are sufficiently applied and
that the assumptions and limitations are adequatly
explained in the Non-financial Information.

Responsibilities of Executive Board for the
Non-financial Information

The Executive Board of ING Group is responsible for

the preparation of the Non-financial Information in
accordance with the GRI Standards and the internally
developed criteria as described in ‘About this report’.
The Executive Board is also responsible for such internal
control as it determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the Non-financial Information to be free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Our responsibilities for the review of the
Non-financial

Information Our responsibility is to plan and perform the
review assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain
sufficient and appropriate assurance evidence for our
conclusion.
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A review is aimed to obtain a limited level of assurance.
Procedures performed to obtain a limited level of
assurance are aimed at determining the plausibility of
information and are less extensive than a reasonable
assurance engagement. The procedures performed
consisted primarily of making inquiries of staff within
the entity and applying analytical procedures on the
information in scope. The level of assurance obtained in
review engagements is therefore substantially less than
the level of assurance obtained in an audit engagement.

We apply the ‘Nadere voorschriften accountantskantoren
ter zake van assurance opdrachten (RA)’ (Regulations

for Audit Firms Regarding Assurance Engagements) and
accordingly maintain a comprehensive system of quality
control including documented policies and procedures
regarding compliance with ethical requirements,
professional standards and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or errors and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
decisions of users taken on the basis of the information
in scope. The materiality affects the nature, timing and
extent of our review procedures and the evaluation of
the effect of identified misstatements on our conclusion.

We have exercised professional judgement and have
maintained professional skepticism throughout the
review, in accordance with the Dutch Standard 3000,
ethical requirements and independence requirements.

Our main procedures consisted of:

- Performing an analysis of the external environment,
obtaining an understanding of relevant social trends
and issues, and of the organization’s business;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of the reporting criteria
and its consistent application, including the evaluation
of the reasonableness of management's estimates;

- Evaluating the design and implementation of the
reporting systems and processes related to the Non-
Financial Information;

- Interviewing management and relevant staff at
corporate and business level responsible for the
sustainability’s strategy and policy;

- Interviewing relevant staff responsible for providing the
Non-financial Information, carrying out internal control
procedures on the data and consolidating the data as
included in the Non-Financial Information;

- An analytical review of the trends and data submitted
for consolidation at corporate level;

- Reviewing relevant data and evaluating internal and
external documentation, based on limited sampling, to
assess the accuracy of the information in scope.

Amsterdam
13 March 2017

KPMG Accountants N.V,,
Marc Hogeboom, Partner



Corporate
Governance

Chairman’s statement

In a fast-changing world with many
uncertainties, ING was able to achieve robust
results in 2016. More customers joined us,
customer satisfaction scores increased

and lending - supporting economies of the
countries where we are present - grew.

This shows that we are successfully achieving
our goal of a consistent customer focus and
are serving the needs of all stakeholders.

Uncertain external environment

2016 was a year of many uncertainties and unexpected
developments. The global economy showed weak
performance, growth in the US lost momentum and

the eurozone recovery was slow. Britain's decision to
leave the European Union and the outcome of the US
presidential elections added to the uncertainty. Financial
market volatility increased and the geo-political situation
became more complex. All of this contributed to an
overall feeling of instability and uncertainty for ING and
others.

A focused strategy

Operating in an environment of uncertainty requires

a focused strategy, disciplined management and the
agility to respond to unexpected events. ING has these
elements in place.

ING's strong performance since launching the Think
Forward strategy in 2014 proves that we are on the
right track. But given the challenging macro-economic
environment, the fast-moving changes in our industry
and the fact that technology and digitalisation are
moving faster than expected, we need to accelerate
change.

To do this, the Supervisory Board in 2016 approved

the intention to converge to a single digital banking
platform. This plan provides clarity on ING's direction
and on how ING can successfully grow its business

in a rapidly changing environment. The role of banks

is evolving. With the decision to invest in a scalable
platform, ING aims to ensure that it is properly prepared
for a fast-changing future.

The intended transformation is expected to impact
employees, particularly in Belgium and the Netherlands
where ING has announced it would lead to substantial
job reductions. While we know these measures are
necessary to realise our ambitions, the Management
Board is fully aware of the impact these changes have
on ING's people. ING has a track record of treating
employees with respect and care and has a wide range
of programmes in place to help those who face the
prospect of losing their job find new opportunities or
develop their skills to make them more employable in
the marketplace. We plan to continue to build on that.
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Topics on the agenda

In the “Report of the Supervisory Board” chapter you can
read more about the subjects we discussed and about
the most important topics on our agenda in 2016. |
highlight a few of these here.

In 2016 there were a large number of new regulatory
initiatives related to bank capitalisation, as well as
continued uncertainty about how and when additional
proposed measures might be implemented. The
Supervisory Board had many discussions on how these
requirements could develop and on how to define a
safe and adequate capital level. ING supports a stable
and safe banking sector. However, looking at all the
requirements regarding capital and regulatory costs,
we are concerned about the cumulative effects of these
measures and about the level playing field in Europe.
There is still an urgent need for more coordination to
ensure banks can continue to play their vital role in
stimulating economic growth.

This year the Supervisory Board spent considerable
time studying technological developments in banking
and the growing impact of fintechs on the industry.
The biggest challenge ING is facing is to move fast in

a changing world. IT plays a key role in this. It will be

a cornerstone in our future. The Supervisory Board
strongly supports partnerships such as those with
fintechs to speed up innovation and bring new and
better services to ING's customers. At the same time,
adapting IT so we can move ahead quickly is complex
and not always achievable in the timelines we have set
for ourselves. Also cybercrime adds to the complexity.
These developments remain a key area of attention for
the Supervisory Board.

In our Supervisory Board meetings we also expressed
our concerns about the image of banks and financial
institutions in society. Public trust is still an issue.

And sometimes it feels that we are an easy target for
politicians. This makes it all the more important to strike
a balance between the interests of all the stakeholders
and to maintain an open dialogue. In defining our role
and where we will focus, the Supervisory Board looks
more broadly than just to the interests of shareholders.
We seek to take the interests of all stakeholders into
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account. It is my view that this is the best way to ensure
our shareholders benefit in the long term.

Our role as Supervisory Board members has changed
markedly in recent years and now requires significantly
more time and effort to understand the business so
that we can properly fulfil our supervisory role. In 2016,
we participated in workshops and educational sessions,
we visited ING businesses and had sessions with senior
management representatives reporting directly to the
Executive Board and the Management Board Banking.

Corporate governance review

In 2015, ING conducted a review of its corporate
governance, including the depositary receipt structure
via the ING Trust Office. This structure was solely used to
prevent a minority of shareholders from taking control
of the decision-making process at the Annual General
Meeting (AGM). As the attendance rate at ING's AGM has
been steadily increasing in recent years, the purpose

of the depositary receipt structure has become less
relevant. Therefore this review resulted in a proposal to
amend ING's articles of association, which was adopted
at the 2016 AGM. As a result, holders of depositary
receipts became shareholders of ING. | am pleased that
this decision has been widely supported by investors,
investors' associations and proxy advisory bureaus. |
want to thank the ING Trust Office for its work in the
past and its co-operation in developing the proposal to
abolish the depositary receipt structure.

As the abolition of the depositary receipt structure
demonstrates, it is important to constantly review - and
if needed - adapt the corporate governance structure.
The ideal corporate governance structure does not exist.
The Supervisory Board and the Executive Board believe
that the current two-tier structure, which is the common
structure for Dutch banks, serves ING well.

Sustainability & diversity

Sustainability and diversity are important to be
successful. They require a long-term view, and | believe
that is a key element of building a great company.

I am proud of what ING has achieved in the field

of sustainability. You can read more about ING's
achievements in this report.
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Diversity is defined in many ways, including in terms of
gender and ethnicity. An emerging concept is diversity
of thought. People with different cultural and other
backgrounds contribute different views to the discussion.
Diversity of thought helps to discover new ways of doing
things.

We also have diversity of expertise and thought in our
Supervisory Board. At a time of rapid change for the
bank, it is helpful to have a Supervisory Board that is
based not just on financial experience, but also on
expertise from various other backgrounds and industries.
In my view you can always learn from this, especially
regarding change. One of the Supervisory Board's tasks is
to reflect on the risks of change. What risks are involved
in doing new things? What are the risks of not changing?
Drawing on diversity of thought is helpful in finding the
answers.

Commitment

ING is in a process of change, building upon its position
of strength. | realise that change is not easy, especially
when it impacts many of ING's employees. | am
therefore all the more impressed by the enthusiasm of
our people, their preparedness for and commitment to
change, to go in new directions, to put the strategy into
practice and to serve ING's customers every day. Thanks
to the dedication and hard work of ING's employees,
ING has been able to book good results and to earn a
position as one of the digital leaders among Europe’s
banks.

| am pleased with the progress we are making to fulfil
our purpose of empowering customers to stay ahead in
life and in business. And | am confident the important
steps we are taking to continue to do so in the future will
be successful.

“ v

Jeroen van der Veer
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
of ING Group

13 March 2017
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Important topics on the agenda of the
Supervisory Board in 2016 were the acceleration
of the bank’s Think Forward strategy, capital
requirements, the accounting for the NN anchor
investments, completion of the divestment of
NN Group, sustainability, the enhancement

of ING's internal controls and associated risk
mitigation, and developments in the regulatory
and external supervision landscape. The
committees of the Supervisory Board discussed
a range of subjects, the main ones being the
interests of ING's clients and other stakeholders,
the quarterly results, corporate governance,

risk management, human resources (including
culture and behaviours throughout ING) and
regulatory costs.

Supervisory Board meetings

The Supervisory Board met 12 times in 2016. On average,
98 percent of the Supervisory Board members were
present at the meetings. This attendance rate illustrates
that the members of the Supervisory Board are engaged
with ING and are able to devote sufficient time and
attention to ING’s affairs. The Executive Board and
Management Board Banking were present during each
Supervisory Board meeting. For part of the meetings
only the chief executive officer was present; this was
dependent on the nature of the topics addressed. Each
Supervisory Board meeting was preceded by a session
with only the Supervisory Board members present. The
members of the Supervisory Board also interacted with
senior management outside the reqular Supervisory
Board meetings for discussion and information

sharing purposes. This includes speed-meet sessions
which contribute to better mutual understanding

and alignment on what matters most to ING and

the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board finds it
important to strike a balance between the interests of
all the stakeholders and to maintain an open dialogue.
ING seeks to take the interests of all stakeholders into
account to ensure ING's shareholders benefit, with the
interest of the client remaining key.

The Executive Board has prepared the annual accounts
and discussed these with the Supervisory Board. The
annual accounts will be submitted for adoption at the
2017 Annual General Meeting as part of the Annual
Report.

Apart from closely monitoring the financial results

in 2016, the Supervisory Board's main focus points
during 2016 were the acceleration of the bank’s Think
Forward strategy, technological developments in
banking and the growing impact of fintechs on the
industry, capital requirements, the accounting for the
NN anchor investments, completion of the divestment
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of NN Group, sustainability, the enhancement of ING's
internal controls and associated risk mitigation, and
developments in the regulatory costs and external
supervision landscape (including bank capitalisation).
Also the results of the continuous dialogue between
ING and the external supervisors were standard agenda
items throughout the year.

Permanent education

The key theme in 2016 of the annual Supervisory Board
Knowledge Day was an in-depth update on the status of
the implementation of ING's Think Forward strategy and
anticipated developments. On the agenda were sessions
related to accelerating the Think Forward strategy, an
innovation and IT update, IT security and cybercrime,
the organisational health index, and updates from the
business lines and the COO domain. The Supervisory
Board was also updated on ING's annual talent review
achievements and developments including a trend
analysis summary.

In September 2016, the Supervisory Board visited Hong
Kong and Beijing for four days, allowing it to get a

better understanding of the Asian business activities
and how these relate and contribute to ING's strategy.
Presentations included Asian economics, trends and
challenges, ING's business and footprint in Asia, including
ING's relationship with the Bank of Beijing, and insights
into Asian financial industry fintechs and disruptors such
as Alibaba, WeChat and WeLab. The Supervisory Board
members also met with various clients and government
officials. A number of other educational sessions on
specific topics were organised for the Supervisory

Board throughout the year, including ones addressing
various developments in the regulatory and external
supervision landscape, financial reporting including

IFRS 9, compliance, sustainability and risk and capital
management.

Corporate strategy

In January 2016, the Supervisory Board held its meeting
on ING's strategy as well as the Medium-Term Plan
(MTP) 2016-2018. The MTP addresses the plans and

the financial and non-financial targets for the Group

as a whole and for the banking business specifically.
The Supervisory Board considered that positive results
would not take away the need to anticipate on potential
challenges that include economic and regulatory
uncertainty. Given the nature of challenges ahead

and the level of ambition of the MTP that included
significant growth projections, the Supervisory Board
concurred with the proposed acceleration of the Think
Forward strategy. The year 2016 therefore was a year
of transition, supported by the implementation of
transformation management, with the creation and
execution of a transformation roadmap per country.

In addition, dynamic forecasting was introduced, to
allow for a regular balance sheet evaluation in terms of
funding, liquidity and capital requirements.

A global transformation programme was developed to
realise the acceleration of the Think Forward strategy.
The basic starting point of the programme was ING's
value proposition, captured in multiple work streams.
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In August 2016, the Supervisory Board discussed

this. This strategy includes a number of initiatives

to further improve the customer experience, further
grow primary customers and lending, and increase
efficiency. Around the end of September 2016 further
aspects of the programme were discussed and
approved. Important drivers of the programme were
addressed such as the future of banking, the journey

of convergence, maintaining commercial momentum,
how to fund and drive the transformation, as well as risk
management. The importance was acknowledged of
taking into account the duty of care towards the Bank’s
stakeholders that may be impacted by the transition.
Accelerating Think Forward was announced on 3 October
2016, during the ING Investor Day.

In connection with accelerating Think Forward, the MTP
2017-2019 was discussed and approved by November
2016, an acceleration compared to previous years.

Financial and risk reporting

The fourth quarter and annual financial results for 2015
and 2016 were discussed in February 2016 and in March
2017 respectively. This included the related press release
and reports from the external auditor. The Executive's
Board assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness

of the risk management and control systems was also
discussed.

ING's Annual Report, for the second time in integrated
form, was reviewed and the annual accounts and the SOX
404 Report were approved, including the proposal to pay
a final 2015 dividend of EUR 0.65 per share, which was
approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
on 25 April 2016. The quarterly results were reviewed and
discussed in May, August and November 2016 with the
external auditor being able to issue an unqualified review
opinion on the financial results. On 3 August 2016, ING
Group declared an interim 2016 dividend of EUR EUR 0.24
per ordinary share, which is equal to the interim dividend
paid over the first half of 2015.

The draft agenda for the 2016 Annual General Meeting
was discussed and approved, including the publication
on the 2015 application of the Dutch Banking Code.

The Supervisory Board approved the annual review

of the risk appetite framework that was updated to
reflect recent requlatory changes. Throughout the year,
the Supervisory Board was informed in detail on the
potential risks for ING, including those relating to the
Panama Papers, Brexit and the political and economic
developments in various countries and regions.

In order to comply with the mandatory external auditor
rotation, KPMG is ING's new external auditor as per the
financial year 2016. KPMG declared independence from
ING per 1 October 2015 in its role as new auditor and it
was confirmed that KPMG's independence is compliant
with applicable rules and regulations. As of October 2015
EY facilitated the auditor transition. As per 28 September
2016, EY was no longer required to be independent in
accordance with independence regulations applicable to
audit firms.
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Throughout the year the Supervisory Board was updated
on and discussed regulatory risk including the associated
operational and anticipated financial impact. Since

the start of ECB supervision the increase in regulatory
reporting has been significant. Reporting timelines also
shortened and requested data granularity has increased,
in addition to local requirements to be met. ING aims to
safequard that all reporting processes and data quality
continue to be up to standards. The aggregate impact

of upcoming new regulatory reporting requirements is
expected to be substantial, also as a consequence of
additional capital requirements.

Internal Supervisory Board meetings
During the internal meetings of the Supervisory Board
(which were joined by the CEO, except when the annual
self-evaluation of the Supervisory Board or matters
concerning the CEO were discussed), the Executive
and Management Board Banking 2015 performance
assessments were discussed and approved. Also the
variable remuneration proposals for the employees in
scope relating to 2015 were discussed and decided on.
Furthermore the Executive and Management Board
Banking 2016 targets were approved.

The future composition of the Executive Board, the
Management Board Banking and the Supervisory

Board, its committees and potential candidates were

a recurring topic of discussion in light of various
developments. In addition ING's talent and succession
planning were discussed including the outcome of the
Annual Talent Review. Remuneration was also a recurring
agenda item. The Supervisory Board approved the
update of ING's Remuneration Framework 2017.

The Supervisory Board self-assessment was also on the
agenda. The action points resulting from last year’s
self-assessment were acted upon during the year. As
was the case in the previous year, an independent
external party facilitated the 2016 self-assessment
process for the (members of the) Supervisory Board
and its committees by drafting the questionnaires as
well as the reports with the results. The questionnaires
built upon the ones from the previous year were
designed in such a way that a comparison between
two consecutive years could be made. Similar as for
2015, input was also requested from several executives
who regularly interact with the Supervisory Board and
attend Supervisory Board meetings. The questionnaires
were completed in December 2016, after which in

the first quarter of 2017 bilateral meetings were held
between the chairman of the Supervisory Board and
each member (for the chairman, a bilateral meeting
was held between the vice-chairman and the chairman).
The respective committee results were then discussed
in each committee meeting, with the overall results and
conclusions being discussed in the internal Supervisory
Board meeting (without the Executive and Management
Board Banking members present). In general, the
performance of the committees was rated highly
overall and the performance of the Supervisory Board
was considered to at least have been maintained and
even improved in several areas since last year's review.
A number of suggestions were made as priorities for
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improving the performance of the Supervisory Board
over the coming year, such as increasing the focus on
business issues, having more in-depth discussion time,
and addressing the delegation of matters to be dealt
with between the Supervisory Board and its committees.
Additional key priorities identified were continued close
monitoring and assessment of the developments in
the regulatory and external supervision landscape as
well as in the areas of non-financial risk, compliance
and internal control. Attention will also continue to be
paid to the challenging role and countervailing power
of the Supervisory Board towards the Executive and
Management Board.

The Supervisory Board also met in closed sessions, with
Supervisory Board members only, in advance of the
regular Supervisory Board meetings. The purpose of
these pre-meetings is to have a “check-in" and to provide
the possibility for airing early concerns in advance of the
regular meetings.

Audit Committee meetings

In 2016, the Audit Committee met six times. On
average, 96 percent of the members were present at the
scheduled meetings.

The Audit Committee discussed the quarterly results,
the interim accounts and the annual accounts. Key
audit matters, as included in the auditors’ reports and
management letter were also a topic of discussion.

In addition to the financial results and accounts, the
subjects of the Audit Committee’s reqgular deliberations
also included financial reporting, auditor's independence
and fees, the overall internal control environment, the
internal controls over financial reporting, the external
auditor reports and management letters, and capital
management related matters. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the quarterly press releases related to
the results, the Annual Report, the 20-F form and the
SOX404 Report.

Specific attention was paid to a variety of other, related
topics as well, such as the divestment of NN Group
(including the accounting for the NN anchor
investments), financial reporting standards (IFRS 9), the
updated internal audit charter, netting of notional cash
pools, deferred tax, the governance of ING’s booking
centres around the world, the Dutch SME interest rate
derivatives case, the financial control enhancement plan,
the quarterly whistleblower report, CRR remuneration
disclosures and sector-wide reviews on market conduct.
User Access Management (UAM) was discussed as

an important element of the control framework over
financial reporting. These controls were discussed
extensively, and as a result requirements increased and
key control testing has been improved. In 2017 efforts
will be continued to further enhance ING's UAM.

All relevant items discussed by the Audit Committee
were reported to the Supervisory Board with the
Supervisory Board approving those items as required
from a governance perspective. Directly following the
Audit Committee meetings, the members of the Audit
Committee met with the internal and external auditors
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to seek confirmation that all relevant topics were
discussed in the Audit Committee meetings.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the
chairman of the Audit Committee regularly held
separate sessions with the independent external auditor,
the head of the Corporate Audit Services department
and the CFO. In addition he also met with different senior
managers.

Risk Committee meetings

The Risk Committee met four times in 2016 with

no absentees. As with the meetings of the other
committees, all relevant items discussed by the Risk
Committee were reported to the Supervisory Board with
the Supervisory Board approving those items as required
from a governance perspective.

In each Risk Committee meeting both the financial
and non-financial risk reports were discussed in detail
including the status of ING's metrics with regard to
solvency, liquidity, capital, credit risk, country risk and
market risk.

In addition a wide range of other topics were discussed,
such as IT risk, capital requirements, Customer Due
Diligence / Know Your Customer, expected loss and

loss given default limits, and Brexit. Also, other future
risks and various stress test scenarios were looked into,
ranging from regulatory uncertainty to continued low
interest rates.

Other important topics on the agenda related to risk
modelling and model validation, the regulatory risk
aspect, ensuring compliance with the CRD IV / CRR
requirements and the results of the continuous dialogue
between ING and the external supervisors related to risk
management.

As a standard practice, the annual risk appetite
statements, now also including one for profitability risk,
were reviewed and supported.

m Read more in the “Risk and capital management”
chapter and the Risk section in the Annual Accounts.

Nomination Committee meetings
The Nomination Committee met seven times in 2016
with no absentees.

In the first half of 2016 the Nomination Committee
discussed the hiring of Isabel Fernandez who was
appointed member of the Management Board Banking
as per 1 September 2016 and Head of Wholesale
Banking succeeding William Connelly as per 1 November
2016. In light of various developments In the second half
of 2016, future succession scenarios in general for the
Executive Board and the Management Board Banking
were discussed as well as the future composition of the
Supervisory Board. Various diversity related aspects were
taken into account, such as the minimum and optimal
size of a Supervisory Board combined with a sound and
reasonable balance in representation of geographies,
gender, and financial and generalist expertise. Several
potential candidates were discussed for various
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positions, including that of a candidate qualifying as
financial expert, as defined by the SEC in its final rule
implementing section 407 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, thereby taking into account ING's diversity policy.
This resulted in short lists of potential candidates to be
appointed to the Supervisory Board.

In addition, the outcomes and achievements following
the Annual Talent Review were discussed. The approach
for this year's process was shared with the Supervisory
Board and the 2016 results were discussed in January
2017. Both the process and reporting had improved
resulting in increased transparency. Improving diversity
at the higher management levels, senior management
succession planning and accelerating refreshment
continued to be focus points. Special attention was also
paid to performance management and how to enhance
the process and its effectiveness by means of fostering
continuous conversations between managers and
employees throughout the year. Attention was also paid
specifically to regrettable losses among senior managers
who left ING in 2016 for various reasons.

Remuneration Committee meetings
In 2016, the Remuneration Committee met seven times
with no absentees.

At the start of 2016 the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board informed the Remuneration Committee of the
results of the meetings he had with various Dutch
politicians and labour unions to discuss remuneration
of Dutch companies in general. Also the proposed
amendments to the existing remuneration for the
members of the management board were on the
agenda as was the renewal of the Supervisory Board's
remuneration policy. These were approved in the 2016
Annual General Meeting.

The Remuneration Committee reviewed the thresholds
above which the pool for variable remuneration may

be used for actually granting variable remuneration. It
discussed the variable remuneration pool and reviewed
the performance assessment for the Executive Board,
Management Board Banking, as well as the variable
remuneration proposals. The remuneration proposals for
Identified Staff were also reviewed, including potential
cases for holdback of deferred compensation by way of
malus.

In addition, the proposed 2016 targets for the Executive
Board and the Management Board Banking members
were approved.

The ING Bank remunerations framework was updated to
align with the renewed EBA guidelines that took effect
per 1 January 2017.

Throughout the year the Remuneration Committee
approved Identified Staff related remuneration matters,
based on ING's accompanying governance framework.
The framework itself was also reviewed with regard to
the boards’ approval and notification requirements.

E[:I Read more in the “Remuneration report” chapter.
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Corporate Governance Committee meetings
The Corporate Governance Committee met four times
with no absentees.

In 2016 the Committee discussed the agenda for the
2016 Annual General Meeting, including the publication
on the application of the Dutch Banking Code 2015.

During the first months of 2016 the Committee

had extensive discussions on the future corporate
governance of ING Groep NV. in preparation for the 2016
Annual General Meeting, including the abolishment of
the depositary receipt structure. External stakeholders
were consulted on various aspects of the corporate
governance of ING Groep NV. The proposed amendments
were discussed and approved by the 2016 Annual
General Meeting.

During the year the Committee also discussed the

draft proposal for the new Dutch Corporate Governance
Code that was published on 11 February 2016. The

final version of the revised Code was published on 8
December 2016. The new Code will take effect as per
the reporting year 2017 assuming it will be embedded
in Dutch law. The implications for ING are being assessed
and will be embedded in ING's governance to the extent
needed and applicable.

Furthermore, the Executive Board, Management Board
Banking and Supervisory Board charters were updated
and discussed. These will be updated again if needed
to cater for the new Dutch Corporate Governance Code
requirements.

The committee also discussed the results of the
continuous dialogue between ING and the external
supervisors related to corporate governance.

Composition of the Executive and the
Management Board

At the Annual General Meeting on 25 April 2016, no
changes to the Executive Board were proposed. As

per 1 September 2016, as first female member of

the Management Board Banking, Isabel Fernandez
joined ING. She succeeded William Connelly as head of
Wholesale Banking as per 1 November 2016.

Composition of the Supervisory Board

At the Annual General Meeting on 25 April 2016, Ann
Sherry was appointed a member of the Supervisory
Board. Joost Kuiper stepped down due to health reasons.
In May 2016, Mariana Gheorghe became a member of
the Risk Committee and Robert Reibestein became a
member of the Remuneration Committee.

[T] Rread more in the “Corporate Governance” chapter on
the composition of the Supervisory Board committees
at year-end 2016.

The Nomination Committee and the Supervisory Board
will continue to strive for an adequate and balanced
composition of the Supervisory Board when selecting
and nominating new members for appointment, taking
into account ING's diversity policy among other factors.
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Jeroen van der Veer Ann Sherry

Currently, only one Supervisory Board member, Eric
Boyer de la Giroday, qualifies as “non-independent”

as defined in the best practice provision 1.2.2 of the
currently applicable Dutch Corporate Governance Code.
According to this Code, no more than one person can
be non-independent. He is considered not independent
because of his position as Chairman of the Board

of Directors of ING Belgium S.A./NV. and his former
positions as a member of the Executive Board of ING
Groep NV. and vice-chairman of the Management Board
Banking of ING Bank NV.

Appreciation for the Executive Board and
ING employees

The Supervisory Board would like to thank the members
of the Executive Board and the Management Board
Banking for their hard work in 2016. Important
milestones were the successful completion of the NN
Group divestment that led to deconsolidation of NN
Group and the sale of a remaining stake of 14.1 percent
in April 2016. Also, the delivery on ING’s ambitions

and purpose through the Think Forward strategy

is something to be proud of, as is the delivery of a
programme to further accelerate this strategy to create
a scalable banking platform to cater for continued
commercial growth, an improved customer experience
and a quicker delivery of products. The Supervisory
Board would like to thank all ING employees for their
contribution in realising this and for continuing to serve
the interests of customers, shareholders and other
stakeholders of ING.
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Hermann-Josef Lamberti

Henk Breukink

Additional information

“Corporate governance” chapter, pages 77 to 89 and the
“Remuneration report” chapter, pages 97 to 106 for more
information, which are deemed to be incorporated by
reference here.

Amsterdam, 13 March 2017

The Supervisory Board
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This chapter reports on the application of the
Dutch Corporate Governance Code effective as
from 1 January 2009 (“Corporate Governance
Code"), at ING Groep NV. (“ING Group”),
including information on ING's share capital,
control, Executive Board, Supervisory Board
and external auditor.

This chapter, including the parts of this Annual Report
incorporated by reference, with the separate publication
“ING’s implementation of the Dutch Corporate
Governance Code” dated April 2010, (see www.ing.com),
together comprise the “corporate governance
statement” as specified in section 2a of the Decree with
respect to the contents of the annual report (“Besluit tot
vaststelling van nadere voorschriften omtrent de inhoud
van het jaarverslag”).

Recent developments

Corporate governance review 2015

As announced in the 2014 Annual Report, the Executive
Board and Supervisory Board, assisted by its Corporate
Governance Committee, have reviewed ING Group's
corporate governance, including the depositary receipts
structure, in 2015. An external law firm and a proxy
advisory firm have advised ING in this review. As part
of this review ING has also reached out to investors,
proxy advisors and other stakeholders to seek their
views on key elements of the corporate governance.
Also the board structure and the interaction between
the Supervisory Board and the ING organisation were
reviewed.

The outcome of the review was submitted to the 2016
Annual General Meeting, in the form of a proposal to
amend ING Group's articles of association, in particular
the provisions concerning the appointment, suspension
and dismissal of the members of the Executive Board
and of the Supervisory Board (see pages 83 and 85).

The Annual General Meeting adopted the proposed
amendments of the articles of association which implied
the abolition of the depositary receipts structure.

Legislative and requlatory developments
On 11 February 2016 the proposal for revision of the
Corporate Governance Code was published by the
Corporate Governance Code Monitoring Committee. The
final version of the revised Corporate Governance was
published on 8 December 2016. The Code is based on
the “comply or explain” principle and applies as from the
financial year 2017.

1 Dutch Bulletin of Acts (Staatsblad) 2009, 154.
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Corporate Governance Codes
Compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code

ING Group uses the Corporate Governance Code as
reference for its corporate governance structure and
practices.

% The Corporate Governance Code can be downloaded

from the website of the Dutch Corporate
Governance Code Monitoring Committee
(www.commissiecorporategovernance.nl).

The application of the Corporate Governance Code

by ING is described in the 2010 publication “ING's
implementation of the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code", which is available on the website of ING Group
(www.ing.com). This is to be read in conjunction with

this section and is deemed to be incorporated into this
section. In case there is a difference between the content
of ING's publication and this section, this section will
prevail.

Dutch Banking Code

The Dutch Banking Code (“Banking Code"), a revised
version of which was adopted by the Dutch Banking
Association in 2014, is applicable only to ING Bank

NV. and not to ING Group. The Banking Code can be
downloaded from the website of the Dutch Banking
Association (www.nvb.nl). Its application to ING Bank is
described in the “Application of the Dutch Banking Code
by ING Bank NV.", available on the ING Group website
(www.ing.com). This is to be read in conjunction with
the Annual Report of ING Bank N.V. ING Group voluntarily
applies the principles of the Banking Code regarding
remuneration to the members of its Executive Board
and considers these principles as a reference for its own
corporate governance. ING Group's remuneration policy
for the Executive Board and senior management is
compliant with these principles.

Differences between Dutch and US
corporate governance practices

In accordance with the requirements of the US Securities
and Exchange Commission, ING Group, as a foreign
private issuer whose securities are listed on the New
York Stock Exchange (“NYSE"), must disclose in its Annual
Report on Form 20-F any significant differences between
its corporate governance practices and those applicable
to US domestic companies under NYSE listing standards.

ING Group believes the following to be the significant
differences between its corporate governance practices
and NYSE corporate governance rules applicable to US
companies:

- ING Group has a two-tier board structure, in contrast
to the one-tier board structure used by most US
companies. In the Netherlands, a public limited
liability company (“naamloze vennootschap”) with
a two-tier board structure has an executive board as
its management body and a supervisory board that
advises and supervises the executive board. In general,
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members of the executive board are employees of
the company while members of the supervisory
board are not. The latter are often former state or
business leaders and sometimes former members of
the executive board. A member of the executive board
or other officer or employee of the company cannot
simultaneously be a member of the supervisory
board. The supervisory board must approve specified
decisions of the executive board. Under the Corporate
Governance Code, all members of the supervisory
board, with the exception of not more than one
person, should be independent. The definition of
independence under the Corporate Governance Code
however differs in its details from the definitions of
independence under the NYSE listing standards. In
some cases, Dutch requirements are stricter; in other
cases the NYSE listing standards are stricter. The
Audit Committee, Risk Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of ING Group are comprised of
members of the Supervisory Board.

- In contrast to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the
Corporate Governance Code contains a “comply-or-
explain” principle, offering the possibility of deviating
from the Code as long as any such deviations are
explained. To the extent that such deviations are
approved by the general meeting, the company is
deemed to be fully compliant with the Code.

- Consistent with Dutch law, the supervisory board
committees generally act only in an advisory capacity
to the supervisory board and, for instance, ING's
Remuneration Committee may not directly set the
compensation of the CEO.

- Dutch law requires that ING Group's external auditors
be appointed by the General Meeting and not by the
Audit Committee.

+ The articles of association of ING Group (“Articles
of Association”) provide that there are no quorum
requirements to hold a General Meeting, although
certain shareholder actions and certain resolutions
may require a quorum.

- The shareholder approval requirements for equity
compensation plans under Dutch law and the
Corporate Governance Code differ from those
applicable to US companies that are subject to

NYSE's listing rules that require a shareholder vote

on all equity compensation plans applicable to any
employee, director or other service provider of a
company. The results of such votes are advisory in
nature rather than binding. Under Dutch company
law and the Corporate Governance Code, binding
shareholder approval is only required for equity
compensation plans (or changes thereto) for members
of the executive board and supervisory board, and
not for equity compensation plans for other groups of
employees.
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Capital

Capital structure

The authorised capital of ING Group consists of ordinary
shares and cumulative preference shares. Currently, only
ordinary shares are issued, while a call option to acquire
cumulative preference shares has been granted to the
ING Continuity Foundation (“Stichting Continuiteit ING").
The acquisition of cumulative preference shares pursuant
to the call option is subject to the restriction that,
immediately after the issuance of cumulative preference
shares, the total amount of cumulative preference
shares outstanding may not exceed one-third of the
total issued share capital of ING Group (see page 93).

The purpose of this call option is to protect the
independence, the continuity and the identity of ING
Group against influences that are contrary to the
interests of ING Group, its enterprise and the enterprises
of its subsidiaries and all stakeholders (including, but
not limited to, hostile takeovers). However, the ordinary
shares are not used for protective purposes.

The Board of the ING Continuity Foundation is comprised
of four members who are independent of ING Group. No
(former) Executive Board member, (former) Supervisory
Board member, (former) ING Group employee or (former)
permanent adviser to ING Group is on the Board of

the ING Continuity Foundation. The Board of the ING
Continuity Foundation appoints its own members, after
consultation with the Supervisory Board of ING Group,
but without any requirement for approval by ING Group.

E[] Read more in the “Report of ING Continuity
Foundation” chapter.

ING Group’s authorised capital is the maximum amount
of capital allowed to be issued under the terms of the
Articles of Association. New shares in excess of this
amount can only be issued if the Articles of Association
are amended. For reasons of flexibility and to meet

the requirement as set forth in the Bank Resolution

and Recovery Directive (“BRRD") that the amount of
authorised share capital should at all times be sufficient
to permit the issuance of as many ordinary shares as
required for a potential future bail-in, ING Group seeks to
set the authorised capital in the Articles of Association
at the highest level permitted by law, which is five times
the actually issued share capital.

Issuance of shares

Share issuances are decided by the General Meeting,
that may also deleqgate its authority. Each year, a
proposal is made to the General Meeting to delegate
authority to the Executive Board to issue new ordinary
shares or to grant rights to subscribe for new ordinary
shares, both with and without pre-emptive rights to
existing shareholders.

In the context of ING's corporate governance review that
was performed in 2015-2016 the authorisation of the
Executive Board to issue ordinary shares was revised. The
new set-up and content has been discussed with many
investors, proxy advisors and other stakeholders and ING
has taken into account their feedback.
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The currently applicable share issue authorisation
enables the Executive Board to issue ordinary shares
(including the granting of rights to subscribe for
ordinary shares, such as warrants or in connection with
convertible debt instruments) for a period of 18 months,
ending on 25 October 2017:

1 up to 40% of the issued share capital, as a general rule
with pre-emptive rights of existing shareholders; plus

2 up to 10% of the issued share capital, with or without
pre-emptive rights of existing shareholders.

Specific approval by the General Meeting is required for
any share issuance exceeding these limits.

The share issue authorisation which will be proposed to
the 2017 Annual General Meeting will be along the same
lines. Its first element will enable the Executive Board

to issue up to 40 percent of the issued share capital by
means of a rights issue. This entails that the shares to
be issued will be offered to all shareholders in proportion
to their existing holdings of ordinary shares as nearly

as may be practical. However, the Executive Board and
Supervisory Board may exclude certain shareholders
from such a share offering for practical or legal reasons
such as record dates, fractional entitlements, treasury
shares, applicable legal restrictions on share offerings or
in the context of a syndicated rights issue.

In line with market practice, ING Group currently intends
to include the following categories of shareholders in
such a share offering by way of a rights issue:

1 Qualified investors as well as retail investors in the
Netherlands and the US (SEC registered offering).

2 Qualified investors in EU member states;

3 Retail investors in EU member states where ING has
a significant retail investor base, provided that it is
feasible to meet local requirements (in ING's 2009 rights
offering, shares were offered to existing shareholders
in Belgium, France, Germany, Luxemburg, Spain and
the UK, where ING believed the vast majority of retail
investors were located at that time); and

4 Qualified or institutional investors in Canada and
Australia.

Retail investors in Canada and Australia and investors in
Japan will not be included in such a share offering.

Shareholders who are not allowed to, do not elect
to, or are unable to subscribe to a rights offering, are
entitled to sell their rights in the market or receive
any net financial benefit upon completion of a rump
offering after the exercise period has ended.

This delegation of authority allows ING Group to respond
promptly to developments in the financial markets.
Without such delegation, should ING Group wish to

issue new shares, there would be an increased risk

that conditions in the financial markets may change
during the time needed to convene a General Meeting,
especially given the 42-day statutory convocation period
in the Netherlands.
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Transfer of shares and transfer restrictions
Shares not included in the Securities Giro Transfer system
(“Wet Giraal Effectenverkeer” system) are transferred

by means of a deed of transfer between the transferor
and the transferee. To become effective, ING Group has
to acknowledge the transfer, unless ING Group itself is a
party to the transfer. The Articles of Association do not
restrict the transfer of ordinary shares.

Shares which are included in the Securities Giro Transfer
system are transferred pursuant to the Securities Giro
Transfer Act (“Wet Giraal Effectenverkeer”). Shareholders
wishing to transfer such shares must instruct the
securities intermediary where their shares are
administered accordingly.

Repurchase of shares

ING Group may repurchase issued shares. Although the
power to repurchase shares is vested in the Executive
Board subject to the approval of the Supervisory

Board, prior authorisation from the General Meeting is
required for these repurchases. Under Dutch law, this
authorisation lapses after 18 months. Each year, a
proposal is made to the General Meeting to authorise the
repurchase of shares by the Executive Board.

Pursuant to this authorisation, no more than 10% of ING
Group's share capital may be held as treasury shares.
When repurchasing shares, the Executive Board must
observe the price ranges prescribed in the authorisation.
For the ordinary shares , the authorisation currently in
force stipulates a minimum price of one eurocent and a
maximum price equal to the highest stock price on the
Amsterdam stock exchange on the date on which the
purchase agreement is concluded or on the preceding
day of stock market trading.

Special rights of control

No special rights of control referred to in Article 10 of the
directive of the European Parliament and the Council on
takeover bids (2004/25/EC) are attached to any share.

Shareholders’ structure

Pursuant to the Dutch Financial Supervision Act (“Wet
op het financieel toezicht”), any person who, directly

or indirectly, acquires or disposes of an interest in

the voting rights and/or the capital of ING Group as a
result of which acquisition or disposal the percentage

of his voting rights or capital interest, whether through
ownership of shares, American depositary receipts
(“ADR") or any other financial instrument, whether
stock-settled or cash-settled, such as call or put options,
warrants, swaps or any other similar contract, reaches,
exceeds or falls below certain thresholds, is required to
notify in writing the Dutch Authority for the Financial
Markets (“Autoriteit Financiéle Markten”) immediately
after the acquisition or disposal of the triggering interest
in ING Group's share capital. These thresholds are 3%,
5%, 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, 30%, 40%, 50%, 60%, 75%
or 95% of the issued share capital of ING Group. The
notification will be recorded in a public register that is
held by the Dutch Authority for the Financial Markets.
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Details of investors, if any, who have reported their
interest in ING Group pursuant to the Dutch Financial
Supervision Act (or the predecessor of this legislation),
are shown on page 63.

ING Group is not aware of any investors (or potential
shareholders) with an interest of three percent or more
in ING Group other than those shown on page 63 as per
year-end 2016.

Pursuant to Regulation (EU) no. 236/2012 of the
European Parliament and the Council on short-selling
and certain aspects of credit default swaps, any person
who acquires or disposes of a net short position relating
to the issued share capital of ING Group, whether by

a transaction in shares or ADRs, or by a transaction
creating or relating to any financial instrument where
the effect or one of the effects of the transaction is to
confer a financial advantage on the person entering into
that transaction in the event of a change in the price of
such shares or ADRs, is required to notify, in accordance
with the provisions of the above-mentioned regulation:

a. The Dutch Authority for the Financial Markets if, as a
result of such acquisition or disposal the person’s net
short position reaches, exceeds or falls below 0.2% of
the issued share capital of ING Group and each 0.1%
above that.

b. ING Group if, as a result of such acquisition or disposal
the person’s net short position reaches, exceeds or
falls below 0.5% of the issued share capital of ING
Group and each 0.1% above that.

Investor Relations and bilateral contacts
with investors

ING Group encourages and recognises the importance

of bilateral communication with the investment
community. The Investor Relations department actively
manages communications with current and potential
shareholders, holders of ADRs, bondholders, and industry
analysts.

ING Group strives to provide clear, accurate and timely
financial information that is in strict compliance with
applicable rules and regulations, in particular those
concerning selective disclosure, inside information and
equal treatment. In addition to the Annual General
Meeting, ING Group communicates with its shareholders
and the investment community through earnings
announcements, presentations, and meetings with
analysts or investors.

ING Group publishes a comprehensive quarterly
disclosure package that includes extensive and detailed
financial figures with relevant explanatory remarks.
This information is discussed thoroughly on the day

of the earnings release during media, analyst and
investor conference calls. These are broadly accessible
to interested parties. The publication dates of quarterly
earnings releases are announced in advance on ING
Group's website.

ING Group participates in several industry conferences
and generally hosts one Investor Relations Day every
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two to three years. These events are announced in
advance on ING Group's website, and presentation
materials are made available in real time on the
website. This is in accordance with the applicable
regulatory requirements intended to ensure that all
shareholders and other market participants have

equal and simultaneous access to information that
could potentially influence the price of the company’s
securities. ING Group's Investor Relations Days can be
accessed by means of live webcasts. Investor Relations
Days or conferences in which ING Group participates will
not take place during the period immediately prior to the
publication of quarterly financial results.

ING Group strives to maintain an open and constructive
dialogue with current and potential investors, and

with industry analysts. The scope of such bilateral
communication may range from single investor queries
via email, to more elaborate discussions with analysts
or institutional investors that take place via telephone or
face-to-face. ING Group's Investor Relations department
is the main point of contact for these communications.
Executive Board members or Management Board
Banking or divisional management members may also
participate in investor meetings. These meetings are
not announced in advance, nor can they be followed

by webcast or any other means. Information provided
during such occasions is limited to what is already
publicly available.

If bilateral communication between ING Group and
investors is organised and/or facilitated through a broker,
an analyst or specialist salesperson representing the
broker may be present in the meeting.

In the event that any inside information is inadvertently
disclosed during any bilateral contacts, it is ING Group's
policy, in accordance with applicable regulations, to
publish such information as soon as possible.

ING Group may decide not to accommodate or accept
any requests or invitations to enter into a dialogue
with potential investors, or to accommodate or accept
such request or invitation under specific conditions. ING
does not initiate bilateral contacts during the period
immediately prior to publication of reqular quarterly
results.

Approximately 25 analysts actively cover and generally
issue reports on ING Group. A list of these analysts

can be found under “Analyst Coverage” in the Investor
Relations section of ING Group's website. During 2016,
ING Group did not provide any form of compensation
to parties that are directly or indirectly involved in the
production or publication of analysts’ reports, with the
exception of credit-rating agencies.

ING Group participated in 13 industry conferences during
2016. In total, there were approximately 700 meetings
(including conference calls) with institutional investors
and/or analysts during 2016. Conference presentations
and face-to-face meetings with investors and/or analysts
took place in 47 different cities across the globe.
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ING Group held an Investor Day on 3 October 2016.
“Accelerating Think Forward” was the theme of the
strategy update that CEO Ralph Hamers and other
executives presented at this event, which was held in
Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

The geographical distribution of ING Group's investor
base is diverse: an estimated 33% of our shares are held
in the United States, 21% in the United Kingdom, 10%
in France, 9% in Germany, 4% in Switzerland, 4% in the
Netherlands, 11% in rest of Europe and 8% in the rest of
the world.

These figures are based on the year-end 2016 estimates
of institutional share ownership provided by IPREO.

ED Read more in the “ING Shares” chapter.

General Meeting

Frequency, notice and agenda of General
Meetings

ING's General Meeting is normally held each year in April
or May to discuss the course of business in the preceding
financial year on the basis of the reports prepared by
the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board, and to
decide on:

+ The distribution of dividends or other distributions;

- The appointment and/or reappointment of members
of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board;

- Any other items requiring shareholder approval
pursuant to Dutch law; and

- Any other matters proposed by the Supervisory Board,
the Executive Board or shareholders in accordance with
the Articles of Association.

As of the Annual General Meeting of 2017 Corporate
Governance will only be a separate agenda item in case
of material corporate governance changes.

General Meetings are convened by public notice via

the ING Group website (www.ing.com) at least 42 days
before the day of the General Meeting. As of the date of
convening a General Meeting, all information relevant for
shareholders is made available via the ING Group website
and through its head office.

As provided in the Dutch Civil Code, implementing the
BRRD, ING Group’s Articles of Association permit to
shorten this convocation period to 10 days if (i) ING
Group meets the criteria for early intervention measures,
(i) resolution can be avoided by means of a capital
increase and (iii) a general meeting would be required to
enable ING Group to issue the required number of shares.

Information relevant for shareholders includes the notice
of the General Meeting, the agenda, the place and time
of the meeting, the address of the website of ING Group,
the verbatim text of the proposals with an explanation
and instructions on how to participate in the meeting
(either in person or by proxy), as well as the reports of
the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board. More
complex proposals, such as proposals to amend the
Articles of Association, are normally not included in the
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notice, but are made available separately on the website
of ING Group and at the ING Group head office.

Proposals by shareholders

Proposals to include items on the agenda for a General
Meeting that have been adequately substantiated under
applicable Dutch law can be made by shareholders
representing together a certain interest in ING's share
capital. As of 26 July 2016 the Articles of Association of
ING Group were amended to the effect that this interest
should represent at least one per cent of the issued
share capital.

Dialogue with shareholders

Shareholders are given the opportunity to contact ING
about the Annual General Meeting, via the Annual
General Meeting dedicated web page on the website of
ING Group (www.ing.com).

Record date

Pursuant to Dutch law, the record date for attending a
general meeting and voting on the proposals at that
general meeting is the 28th day before the day of the
general meeting. Only those who hold shares at the
record date are entitled to attend the general meeting
and to exercise other rights related to the general
meeting in question on the basis of their holding at
the record date, notwithstanding any subsequent sale
or purchase of shares. The record date is published in
the notice for the general meeting. If the shortened
convocation of 10 days is applicable (see above,
paragraph: “Frequency, notice and agenda of General
Meetings"), the record date is two days after the
convocation date.

In accordance with US requirements, the depositary sets
a record date for the ADRs, which date determines which
ADRs are entitled to give voting instructions. This record
date can differ from the record date set by ING Group for
shareholders.

Attending General Meetings

Holders of ordinary shares may attend a General
Meeting, or may grant in writing a proxy to a third-party
to attend the meeting and to vote on their behalf. Prior
to General Meetings, ING will make proxy forms available
on its website. For logistical reasons, attending the
General Meeting, either in person or by proxy, is subject
to the requirement that ING Group is notified in advance.
Instructions to that effect are included in the notice for
the General Meeting.

General Meetings are webcast via ING Group's website
(www.ing.com), so that shareholders who do not attend
the General Meeting in person may nevertheless follow
the meeting online.

Voting rights on shares

Each share entitles the holder to cast one vote at the
General Meeting. The Articles of Association do not
restrict the voting rights on any class of shares. ING
Group is not aware of any agreement pursuant to which
voting rights on any class of its shares are restricted.
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Proxy voting facilities

ING Group provides proxy voting facilities to its investors
via its website and solicits proxies from its ADR holders in
line with common practice in the US.

Proxy voting forms for shareholders are made available
on the website of ING Group (www.ing.com). By
returning the form, shareholders will give a proxy to an
independent proxy holder (a public notary registered
in the Netherlands) who will vote according to the
instructions expressly given on the proxy form. The
submission of these forms is subject to additional
conditions specified on such forms.

To encourage participation at the Annual General
Meeting, ING provides the EVO (e-voting) platform, an
online facility through which shareholders can register
for a meeting or appoint a proxy.

Main powers of the General Meeting
The main powers of the General Meeting are to
decide on:

- The appointment, suspension and dismissal of
members of the Executive Board and members of the
Supervisory Board, subject to a binding nomination or
a proposal of the Supervisory Board as set forth in the
Articles of Association.

- The adoption of the annual accounts.

- The declaration of dividends, subject to the power of
the Executive Board to allocate part or all of the profits
to the reserves - with approval of the Supervisory
Board - and the declaration of other distributions,
subject to a proposal by the Executive Board and
approved by the Supervisory Board.

- The appointment of the external auditor.

- An amendment of the Articles of Association, a legal
merger or division of ING Group, and winding-up of ING
Group, all subject to a proposal made by the Executive
Board with approval by the Supervisory Board.

- The issuance of shares or rights to subscribe for shares,
the restriction or exclusion of pre-emptive rights of
shareholders, and delegation of these powers to the
Executive Board, subject to a proposal by the Executive
Board which was approved by the Supervisory Board.

- The authorisation of a repurchase of outstanding
shares and/or a cancellation of shares.

In addition, the approval of the General Meeting is
required for Executive Board decisions that would be
expected to have a material effect on the identity or
nature of ING Group or its enterprise.

Reporting

Resolutions adopted at a General Meeting are generally
published on the website of ING Group (www.ing.com),
within one week following the meeting. The draft
minutes of the General Meeting are, in accordance

with the Corporate Governance Code, made available

to shareholders on the website of ING Group (www.ing.
com) no later than three months after the meeting.
Shareholders may react to the draft minutes in the
following three months, after which the final minutes are
adopted by the chairman of the meeting in question and
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by a shareholder appointed by that meeting. The final
minutes are made available on the website of ING Group
(www.ing.com). In a deviation from the provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code, shareholders will not have
the opportunity to react to the minutes of a General
Meeting if a notarial report of the meeting is made, as
this would be in conflict with the laws applicable to such
notarial report.

Executive Board

Appointment, suspension and dismissal
Members of the Executive Board are appointed,
suspended and dismissed by the General Meeting. For
the appointment of Executive Board members, the
Supervisory Board may draw up a binding list, which
may be rendered non-binding by the General Meeting.

A resolution of the General Meeting to render this

list non-binding, or to suspend or dismiss Executive
Board members without this being proposed by the
Supervisory Board, requires an absolute majority of the
votes cast. Additionally, this majority must represent
more than half of the issued share capital. This additional
requirement was tightened up (from one third to one
half of the issued share capital) in connection with the
abolition of the depositary receipts structure in 2016.
Also in connection with the abolition of the depositary
receipts structure in 2016, the Articles of Association
now exclude the possibility under Dutch corporate law
to waive this requirement in a second General Meeting.
Both additional elements, which deviate from what is
recommended under the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code, ensure that significant proposals of shareholders
cannot be adopted in a General Meeting with a

low attendance rate and can only be adopted with
substantial support of ING Group's shareholders.

Candidates for appointment to the Executive Board must
comply with the suitability and reliability requirements
as set out in the Dutch Financial Supervision Act and
must continue to meet these while in function.

Function of the Executive Board

The Executive Board is charged with the management
of ING Group. This includes responsibility for setting

and achieving ING Group's strategy, objectives and
policies, as well as the ensuing delivery of results. It also
includes the day-to-day management of ING Group. The
Executive Board is accountable for the performance of
these duties to the Supervisory Board and the General
Meeting. The responsibility for the management of

ING Group is vested in the Executive Board collectively.
The organisation, powers and modus operandi of the
Executive Board are detailed in the Executive Board
Charter, which was approved by the Supervisory Board.

The Executive Board Charter is available on the
website of ING Group (www.ing.com).

According to the Banker's Oath that is taken by the
members of the Executive Board, they must carefully
consider the interests of all stakeholders of ING. In that
consideration they must put the customer's interests at
the centre of all their activities.
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ING Group indemnifies the members of the Executive
Board against direct financial losses in connection with
claims from third parties, as far as permitted by law, on
the conditions laid down in the Articles of Association
and their employment or commission contract. ING
Group has taken out liability insurance for the members
of the Executive Board.

Profile of members of the Executive Board
The Supervisory Board has drawn up a profile to be used
as a basis for selecting members of the Executive Board.
It is available on the website of ING Group (www.ing.com)
and at the ING Group head office.

ING Group aims to have an adequate and balanced
composition of its Executive Board. The Supervisory
Board annually assesses the composition of the
Executive Board. In the context of such assessment,
ING Group aims to have a gender balance by having at
least 30% men and at least 30% women amongst its
Executive Board members.

However, because of the fact that ING Group needs

to balance several relevant selection criteria when
composing its Executive Board, the composition of the
Executive Board did not meet the abovementioned
gender balance in 2016 (no women). In accordance
with the diversity policy mentioned on page 45, ING
Group will continue to strive for an adequate and
balanced composition of its Executive Board in future
appointments, by taking into account all relevant
selection criteria including, but not limited to, gender
balance, executive experience, experience in corporate
governance of large stock-listed companies and
experience in the political and social environment.

Remuneration and share ownership
Members of the Executive Board are permitted to hold
shares in the share capital of ING Group for long-term
investment purposes. Transactions by members of the
Executive Board in these shares are subject to the ING
regulations for insiders. These regulations are available
on the website of ING Group (www.ing.com).

D:l Details of the remuneration of members of the
Executive Board, including shares granted to them,
together with additional information, are provided in
the “Remuneration report”.

Ancillary positions/conflicting interests
No member of the Executive Board has corporate
directorships at listed companies outside ING.

Transactions involving actual or potential
conflicts of interest

In accordance with the Corporate Governance Code,
transactions with members of the Executive Board

in which there are significant conflicts of interest

will be disclosed in the Annual Report. In deviation

2 The fourth EU Capital Requirements Directive 2013/36/EU
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from the Corporate Governance Code this however
does not apply if (i) such disclosure would be against
the law; (ii) the confidential, share-price sensitive or
competition-sensitive character of the transaction
prevents disclosure; and/or (iii) the information is so
competition-sensitive that the disclosure could damage
the competitive position of ING Group.

Significant conflicting interests are considered to

be absent and are not reported if a member of the
Executive Board obtains financial products and services,
other than loans, which are provided by ING Group
subsidiaries in the ordinary course of their business on
terms that apply to all employees. In connection with
the aforementioned, the term loans does not include
financial products in which the granting of credit is of a
subordinated nature, e.g. credit cards and overdrafts in
current account, because of a lack of materiality.

[] Foran overview of loans granted to members of the
Executive Board, see page 104 of the “Remuneration
report” chapter.

Information on members of the

Executive Board

R.A.J.G. (Ralph) Hamers, Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”)

(Born 1966, Dutch nationality, male; appointed in 2013,
term expires in 2017)

Ralph Hamers has been a member of the Executive
Board of ING Group since 13 May 2013 and was
appointed CEO and Chairman of the Executive Board
and the Managing Board Banking on 1 October 2013.
He is responsible for the proper functioning of the
Exective Board and the Management Board Banking
and its committees, formulating and implementing
ING's strategy, acting as main contact for the
Supervisory Board and also responsible for the following
departments: innovation, Legal, Corporate Strategy,
Corporate Human Resources, Corporate Communications
and Corporate Audit Services. He joined ING in 1991
and has held various positions including Global Head
Wholesale Banking Network from 2007 to 2010, Head
of Network Management for Retail Banking Direct &
International from 2010 to 2011, and CEO of ING Belgium
and Luxembourg from 2011 to 2013. He holds a Master
of Science degree in Business Econometrics/Operations
Research from Tilburg University, the Netherlands.

Relevant positions pursuant to CRD IV: 2
Chairman and CEO of the Executive Board of ING Groep
NV. and of the Management Board of ING Bank NV.

Other relevant ancillary positions:

Member of the Management Board of the Nederlandse
Vereniging van Banken (NVB), member of the Board

of the Institute of International Finance, Inc. and
member of the Supervisory Board of Foundation Royal
Concertgebouw Orchestra Amsterdam.
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P.G. (Patrick) Flynn, Chief Financial Officer
(HCFOH)

(Born 1960, Irish nationality, male; appointed in 2009,
term expires in 2017)

Patrick Flynn has been a member of the Executive

Board and CFO of ING Group since 27 April 2009.

He also serves as a member and CFO on the
Management Board Banking. He is responsible for

ING's financial strategy, including internal and external
reporting, budgeting, procurement, forecasting,

capital management, investments/acquisitions and
divestments, tax management, investor relations and
business performance reporting and analysis, including
measuring adherence to financial targets. He is a
Chartered Accountant, a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants Ireland, and a member of the
Association of Corporate Treasurers in the UK. He holds a
Bachelor's degree in Business Studies from Trinity College
Dublin.

Relevant positions pursuant to CRD IV:

Member and CFO of the Executive Board of ING Groep
NV., Member and CFO of the Management Board of ING
Bank NV.

W.F. (Wilfred) Nagel, Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”)
(Born 1956, Singaporean nationality, male; appointed in
2012, term expires in 2020)

Wilfred Nagel has been a member of the Executive
Board and CRO of ING Group since 14 May 2012. He

also serves as a member and CRO on the Management
Board Banking. He is responsible for ING's risk appetite,
risk-related policies, methodologies and guidance, risk
management and control activities performed by the
business. He was CEO of ING Bank Turkey until 5 October
2011, when he was appointed as a member of the
Management Board Banking. He joined ING in 1991 and
held various positions including Global Head Credit Risk
Management from 2002 to 2005 and CEO Wholesale
Banking in Asia from 2005 to 2010. He holds a Master's
degree in Economics from VU University Amsterdam.

Relevant positions pursuant to CRD IV:

Member and CRO of the Executive Board of ING Groep
NV. and Member and CRO of the Management Board of
ING Bank NV.; Non-Executive Board Member of Nidera
Capital BV.

Supervisory Board

Appointment, suspension and dismissal
Members of the Supervisory Board are appointed,
suspended and dismissed by the General Meeting. For
the appointment of Supervisory Board members, the
Supervisory Board may draw up a binding list, which
may be rendered non-binding by the General Meeting.

A resolution of the General Meeting to render this list
non-binding, or to suspend or dismiss Supervisory

Board members without this being proposed by the
Supervisory Board, requires an absolute majority of the
votes cast. Additionally, this majority must represent
more than half of the issued share capital. Also in
connection herewith this, the Articles of Association now
exclude the possibility available under Dutch corporate
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law to waive this requirement in a second General
Meeting. Both additional elements, which deviate from
what is recommended under the Corporate Governance
Code, ensure that significant proposals of shareholders
cannot be adopted in a General Meeting with a

low attendance rate and can only be adopted with
substantial support of ING Group's shareholders.

Candidates for appointment to the Supervisory

Board must comply with the suitability and reliability
requirements as set out in the Dutch Financial
Supervision Act and must continue to meet these while
in function.

Function of the Supervisory Board

The function of the Supervisory Board is to supervise the
policy of the Executive Board and the general course of
affairs of ING Group and its business, as well as to provide
advice to the Executive Board.

In line with Dutch company law, the Articles of
Association, the Corporate Governance Code as well
as the Supervisory Board Charter, all members of the
Supervisory Board are required to:

- act in accordance with the interests of ING Group and
the business connected with it, taking into account the
relevant interests of all stakeholders of ING Group;

- perform their duties without mandate and
independent of any interest in the business of ING
Group; and

- refrain from supporting one interest without regard to
the other interests involved.

According to the Banker's Oath that was taken by the
members of the Supervisory Board, they must carefully
consider the interests of all stakeholders of ING. In that
consideration they must put the customer's interests at
the centre of all their activities. Certain resolutions of the
Executive Board, specified in the Articles of Association,
in the Executive Board Charter and in the Supervisory
Board Charter, are subject to approval of the Supervisory
Board.

ING Group indemnifies the members of the Supervisory
Board against direct financial losses in connection with
claims from third parties as far as permitted by law on
the conditions laid down in the Articles of Association
and an indemnity statement.

ING Group has taken out liability insurance for the
members of the Supervisory Board.

Profile of members of the Supervisory
Board

The Supervisory Board has drawn up a profile to be
used as a basis for its composition. It is available on the
website of ING Group (www.ing.com) and at the ING
Group head office.

In view of their experience and the valuable contribution
that former members of the Executive Board can make
to the Supervisory Board, it has been decided, taking
into account the size of the Supervisory Board and
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ING's wide range of activities that such individuals may
become members of the Supervisory Board of ING Group.
Former Executive Board members must wait at least one
year before becoming eligible for appointment to the
Supervisory Board.

Former members of the Executive Board are not eligible
for appointment to the position of chairman or vice-
chairman of the Supervisory Board, unless they are
independent within the meaning of the Corporate
Governance Code.

After a former member of the Executive Board has been
appointed to the Supervisory Board, this member may
also be appointed to one of the Supervisory Board's
committees. However, appointment to the Audit
committee is only possible if the individual in question
resigned from the Executive Board at least four years
prior to such appointment.

ING Group needs to balance several relevant selection
criteria when composing its Supervisory Board but
strives for an adequate and balanced composition of
the board by taking into account all relevant selection
criteria including, but not limited to, experience in retail
and wholesale banking, gender balance, executive
experience, experience in corporate governance and
experience in the political and social environment.

The Nomination Committee assesses the composition of
the Supervisory Board at least annually. In the context
of this assessment, ING Group aims to have a gender
balance by having at least 30% men and at least 30%
women amongst its Supervisory Board members. After
the appointment of Ann Sherry at the Annual General
Meeting in April 2016, the composition of the Supervisory
Board met the above-mentioned gender balance (more
than 33% women). Other diversity related aspects are
taken into consideration as well in light of the overall SB
composition (read more on page 75 in the “Report of the
Supervisory Board” chapter).

Term of appointment of members of the
Supervisory Board

A member of the Supervisory Board retires no later than
at the end of the first General Meeting held four years
after his or her last appointment or reappointment.

In accordance with the Corporate Governance Code,
members of the Supervisory Board may, as a general
rule, be reappointed for two additional four-year terms.
Under special circumstances however, the Supervisory
Board may deviate from this general rule, for instance
in order to maintain a balanced composition of the
Supervisory Board and/or to preserve valuable expertise
and experience. As a general rule, members of the
Supervisory Board shall also resign at the end of an
Annual General Meeting in the year in which they attain
the age of 70 and shall not be reappointed. However,
the Supervisory Board may, at its discretion, decide to
deviate from this age limit. The schedule for resignation
by rotation is available on the website of ING Group
(www.ing.com).
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Ancillary positions/conflicting interests
Members of the Supervisory Board may hold other
positions, including directorships, either paid or unpaid.
CRD IV restricts the total number of supervisory

board positions or non-executive directorships with
commercial organisations that may be held by a
Supervisory Board member to four, or to two, if the
Supervisory Board member also has an executive board
position. The European Central Bank may, under special
circumstances, permit a Supervisory Board member

to fulfil an additional supervisory board position or
non-executive directorship. Positions with, inter alia,
subsidiaries or qualified holdings are not taken into
account in the application of these restrictions. Such
positions may not conflict with the interests of ING
Group. It is the responsibility of the individual member
of the Supervisory Board and the Corporate Governance
Committee to ensure that the directorship duties are
performed properly and are not affected by any other
positions that the individual may hold outside ING Group.

Members of the Supervisory Board are to disclose
material conflicts of interest (including potential conflicts
of interest) and to provide all relevant information
relating to them. The Supervisory Board - without the
member concerned taking part - then decides whether a
conflict of interest exists.

In case of a conflict of interest, the relevant member

of the Supervisory Board abstains from discussions

and decision-making on the topic or the transaction in
relation to which he or she has a conflict of interest with
ING Group.

Transactions involving actual or potential
conflicts of interest

In accordance with the Corporate Governance Code,
transactions involving members of the Supervisory
Board in which there are material conflicting interests
are disclosed in the Annual Report. In a departure from
the Corporate Governance Code this however does not
apply if (i) such disclosure would be against the law; (ii)
the confidential, share-price sensitive or competition-
sensitive character of the transaction prevents such
disclosure; and/or (iii) the information is so competition-
sensitive that disclosure could damage the competitive
position of ING Group.

Any relation that a member of the Supervisory Board
may have with ING Group subsidiaries as an ordinary,
private individual, is not considered a significant conflict
of interest. Such relationships are not reported, with the
exception of any loans that may have been granted.

m For an overview of loans granted to members
of the Supervisory Board, see page 105 of the
“Remuneration report”.

Independence

The members of the Supervisory Board are requested to
assess annually whether the criteria of dependence set
out in the Corporate Governance Code do not apply to
them and to confirm this in writing. On the basis of these
criteria, all members of the Supervisory Board, with the
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exception of Eric Boyer de la Giroday, are to be regarded
as independent on 31 December 2016. Eric Boyer de la
Giroday is not considered independent because of his
position as Chairman of the Board of Directors of ING
Belgium S.A./NV. and his former positions as member of
the Executive Board of ING Group and vice-chairman of
the Management Board Banking of ING Bank NV. On the
basis of the NYSE listing standards, all members of the
Supervisory Board are to be regarded as independent.

Committees of the Supervisory Board

On 31 December 2016, the Supervisory Board had five
committees: the Audit Committee, the Risk Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee.
An organisational chart of the five committees of the
Supervisory Board can be found below.

The organisation, powers and conduct of the Supervisory
Board are detailed in the Supervisory Board Charter
which can be found on www.ing.com.

Separate charters have been drawn up for the Audit
Committee, the Risk Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Corporate Governance Committee. These charters are
available on the website of ING Group (www.ing.com). A
short description of the duties for the five Committees
follows below.

The Audit Committee assists the Supervisory Board in
monitoring the integrity of the financial statements

of ING Group, and ING Bank N.V,, in monitoring the
compliance with legal and requlatory requirements

and in monitoring the independence and performance
of ING Group's internal and external auditors. On 31
December 2016, the members of the Audit Committee
were: Hermann-Josef Lamberti (chairman), Eric Boyer de
la Giroday, Isabel Martin Castelld, and Robert Reibestein.
No member of the Audit Committee was considered as a
“financial expert” as defined by the SEC in its final rules
implementing Section 407 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002. Eric Boyer de la Giroday is a financial expert as
defined in the Corporate Governance Code considering
his academic background as well as his knowledge and
experience in his previous role as board member and
vice-chairman of ING Groep NV. and ING Bank N.V.

The Risk Committee assists and advises the Supervisory
Board in monitoring the risk profile of ING as a whole as
well as the structure and operation of the internal risk
management and control systems. On 31 December
2016, the members of the Risk Committee were:

Robert Reibestein (chairman), Eric Boyer de la Giroday,
Mariana Gheorghe, Hermann-Josef Lamberti and Jeroen
van der Veer.

The Remuneration Committee’s tasks include advising
the Supervisory Board on the terms and conditions of
employment (including remuneration) of the members
of the Executive Board and on the policies and general
principles on which the terms and conditions of
employment of the members of the Executive Board
and of senior managers of ING Group and its subsidiaries
are based. On 31 December 2016, the members of

the Remuneration Committee were: Henk Breukink
(chairman), Robert Reibestein and Jeroen van der Veer.

The Nomination Committee’s tasks include advising the
Supervisory Board on the composition of the Supervisory
Board and Executive Board. On 31 December 2016, the
members of the Nomination Committee were: Jeroen
van der Veer (chairman), Henk Breukink and, Isabel
Martin Castelld.

The Corporate Governance Committee assists the
Supervisory Board in monitoring and evaluating the
corporate governance of ING as a whole and reporting
on this in the Annual Report and to the General Meeting.
It also advises the Supervisory Board on improvements.
On 31 December 2016, the members of the Corporate
Governance Committee were: Henk Breukink (chairman)
and Jeroen van der Veer.

% More information on the composition of the

Supervisory Board Committees can be found at
www.ing.com/16ar6, which is updated on a
reqular basis.

Company secretary
The Supervisory Board is assisted by the company
secretary Cindy van Eldert-Klep.

Remuneration and share ownership
Remuneration of the members of the Supervisory
Board is determined by the General Meeting and is
not dependent on the results of ING Group. Details of
the remuneration are provided in the Remuneration
report on page 97. Members of the Supervisory Board
are permitted to hold shares in the share capital of
ING Group for long-term investment purposes. Details
are given on page 97. Transactions by members of the
Supervisory Board in these shares are subject to the ING
regulations regarding insiders.

%’ More information on ING's regulations regarding
insiders can be found at www.ing.com/16ar7.

Supervisory board
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Information on members of the Supervisory
Board

J. (Jeroen) Van der Veer (chairman)

(Born 1947, Dutch nationality, male; appointed in 2009,
term expires in 2017)

Former Chief Executive Officer of Royal Dutch Shell plc.

Relevant positions pursuant to CRD IV:

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of ING Groep NV./
ING Bank N.V., Chairman of the Supervisory Board

of Koninklijke Philips Electronics NV., Member of the
Supervisory Board of Koninklijke Boskalis Westminster
NV. and Member of the Supervisory Board of Statoil ASA.

Other relevant ancillary positions:

Member of the Supervisory Board of Het Concertgebouw
NV. and Chairman of the Supervisory Council of the
Technical University of Delft.

H.J.M. (Hermann-Josef) Lamberti
(Vice-Chairman)

(Born 1956, German nationality, male; appointed in 2013,
term expires in 2017)

Former Chief Operating Officer of Deutsche Bank AG.

Relevant positions pursuant to CRD IV:

Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board of ING Groep
N.V./ING Bank NV., Non-Executive Member of the Board
of Directors of Airbus Group NV.,, (formerly European
Aeronautic Defense and Space Company NV.), Chairman
of the Supervisory Board of Addiko Bank (Austria),
member of the Supervisory Board of Lefdal Mine Data
Centre SA and member of the Supervisory Board of
Stonebranch.

The number of positions held by Hermann-Josef
Lamberti currently exceeds the maximum allowed under
CRD IV. Steps are being taken to reduce the number of
positions as required by CRD IV in the near future.

E.F.C.B. (Eric) Boyer de la Giroday

(Born 1952, Belgian nationality, male: appointed in 2014,
term expires in 2018)

Former Vice-Chairman Management Board Banking ING
Groep NV. and ING Bank NV.

Relevant positions pursuant to CRD IV:

Member of the Supervisory Board of ING Groep NV./ING
Bank NV. and Chairman of the Board of Directors of ING
Belgium S.A./NV.

Other relevant ancillary position:
Non-Executive Director of Instituts Internationaux de
Physique et de Chimie fondé par Ernest Solvay, asbl.

H.W. (Henk) Breukink
(Born 1950, Dutch nationality, male; appointed in 2007,
term expires in 2019)

Former Managing Director of F&C and country head for
F&C Netherlands (asset management firm).

Relevant positions pursuant to CRD IV:

Member of the Supervisory Board of ING Groep NV./ING
Bank NV., Chairman of the Supervisory Board of NSI NV.
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(real estate fund) and Non-Executive Director of Brink
Groep BV.

Other relevant ancillary position:
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Stichting Hoger
Onderwijs Nederland.

. (Isabel) Martin Castelld

(Born 1947, Spanish nationality, female; appointed in
2013, term expires in 2017)

Former Vice-President and Member of the Management
Committee of the European Investment Bank.

Relevant positions pursuant to CRD IV:

Member of the Supervisory Board of ING Groep NV./ING
Bank NV. and Member of the Supervisory Board of SACYR
S.A.

Other relevant ancillary positions:
Member of the Advisory Board of NEINVER S.A. and
Member of the Advisory Committee of GED Capital.

M. (Mariana) Gheorghe

(Born 1956, Romanian nationality, female, appointed in
2015, term expires in 2019)

Current Chief Executive Officer OMV Petrom S.A.

Relevant positions pursuant to CRD IV:

Member of the Supervisory Board of ING Groep NV./ING
Bank N.V., Chief Executive Officer of OMV Petrom S.A.,
Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board of OMV Petrom
Marketing SRL, Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board
of OMV Petrom Gas SRL and Member of the Supervisory
Board of OMV Petrom Global Solutions SRL.

A.C. (Ann) Sherry

(Born 1954, Australian nationality, female, appointed in
2016, term expires in 2020)

Former Chief Executive Officer Carnival Australia

Relevant positions pursuant to CRD IV:

Member of the Supervisory Board of ING Groep NV./ING
Bank NV., Member of the Supervisory Board ING Direct
(Australia), Member of the Supervisory Board Sydney
Airport Corporation and Member of the Supervisory
Board The Palladium Group.

Other relevant ancillary position:
Chairwoman of Carnival Australia (advisory role).

R.W.P. (Robert) Reibestein

(Born 1956, Dutch nationality, male; appointed in 2012 as
an observer, full member as of 2013, term expires in 2017)
Former senior partner of McKinsey & Company.

Relevant positions pursuant to CRD IV:

Member of the Supervisory Board of ING Groep NV./
ING Bank NV. and Member of the Supervisory Board of
IMC BV.

Other relevant ancillary position:
Member of the Supervisory Board of Stichting World
Wildlife Fund.
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Changes in the composition

In April 2016, the General Meeting appointed Ann Sherry
to the Supervisory Board, while Joost Kuiper resigned for
health reasons from the Supervisory Board.

Financial reporting

A description of the main features of ING Group's internal
control and risk management systems in relation to the
financial reporting process is included in the statement
with respect to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
on page 96, which is deemed to be incorporated by
reference herein.

Change of control provisions

Legal provisions

Pursuant to the terms of the Dutch Financial Supervision
Act, a declaration of no objection from the European
Central Bank must be obtained by anyone wishing to
acquire or hold a participating interest of at least 10
percent in ING Group and to exercise control attached
to such a participating interest. Similarly, on the

basis of indirect change of control statutes in the
various jurisdictions where subsidiaries of ING Group
are operating, permission from, or notification to,
local reqgulatory authorities may be required for the
acquisition of a substantial interest in ING Group.

Change of control clauses in material
agreements

ING Group is not a party to any material agreement
that becomes effective or is required to be amended or
terminated, in case of a change of control of ING Group
following a public bid as defined in section 5:70 of the
Dutch Financial Supervision Act.

ING Group subsidiaries may have customary change of
control arrangements included in agreements related

to various business activities, such as joint-venture
agreements, letters of credit and other credit facilities,
ISDA-agreements, hybrid capital and debt instruments,
insurance and reinsurance agreements and futures and
option trading agreements. Following a change of control
of ING Group (as a result of a public bid or otherwise)
such agreements may be amended or terminated,
leading, for example, to an obligatory transfer of the
interest in the joint venture, early repayment of amounts
due, loss of credit facilities or reinsurance cover, and
liquidation of outstanding futures and option trading
positions.

Severance payments to members of the
Executive Board

The contracts entered into with the members of the
Executive Board provide for severance payments,

that become due upon termination of the applicable
Executive Board member’s contract, including if this
occurs in connection with a public bid as defined in
section 5:70 of the Dutch Financial Supervision Act.
For purposes of calculating the amounts due, it is not
relevant whether or not termination of the employment
or commission contract is related to a public bid.
Severance payments to the members of the Executive
Board are limited to a maximum of one year’s fixed
salary, in line with the Corporate GovernanceCode.
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Amendment of the Articles of Association
The General Meeting may resolve to amend the Articles
of Association of ING Group, provided that the resolution
is adopted based on a proposal of the Executive Board,
which has been approved by the Supervisory Board.

An amendment of the Articles of Association must be
passed by notarial deed.

External auditor

At the Annual General Meeting held on 11 May 2015,
KPMG was appointed as the external audit firm for ING
Group for the financial years 2016 through 2019. This
appointment includes the responsibility to audit the
financial statements of ING Group for the financial year
2016, to audit the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting on 31 December 2016, to report on
the outcome of these audits to the Executive Board and
the Supervisory Board and to provide an audit opinion on
the financial statements of ING Group. Additionally KPMG
performs a review of the sustainability information in the
annual report to obtain limited assurance about whether
this information is free from material misstatement.

The external auditor may be questioned at the Annual
General Meeting in relation to its audit opinion on the
financial statements. The external auditor will therefore
attend and be entitled to address this meeting. The
external auditor attended the meetings of the Audit
Committee and Risk Committee and attended and
addressed the 2016 Annual General Meeting, at which the
external auditor was questioned on the audit opinion.

The external auditor may only provide services to ING
Group and its subsidiaries with the permission of the
Audit Committee.

ING Group provides the Audit Committee with a full
overview of all services provided by the external auditor,
including related fees, supported by sufficiently detailed
information. This overview is periodically evaluated by
the Audit Committee throughout the year.

More information on ING’s policy on external auditor
independence can be found at www.ing.com/16ar8.

Depositary receipts

Prior 26 July 2016, more than 99.9 percent of the issued
ordinary shares were held by ING Trust Office (“Stichting
ING Aandelen”). In exchange for these shares, ING Trust
Office issued depositary receipts. These depositary
receipts were listed on various stock exchanges (see
page 63 for an overview of the listings). Depositary
receipts could be exchanged upon request of the
holders of depositary receipts for non-listed ordinary
shares, without any restriction, other than payment of
an administrative fee of one eurocent (EUR 0.01) per
depositary receipt with a minimum of 25 euros (EUR
25.00) per exchange transaction.

The holder of a depositary receipt was entitled to receive
from ING Trust Office payment of dividends and other
distributions corresponding to the dividends and other
distributions received by ING Trust Office on an ordinary
share.


http://www.ing.com/16ar8
http://www.ing.com/16ar8

Corporate
Governance

Corporate Governance - continued

On 26 July 2016 the depositary receipts were exchanged
for ordinary shares and ING Trust Office no longer holds
any Shares in ING Group. As of this date, the depositary
receipt holders of ING Group automatically became
shareholders of ING Group and the depositary receipt
structure was abolished as approved by the Annual
General Meeting of 25 April 2016. The ADRs, representing
bearer depositary receipts issued by ING Trust Office,
which are listed at the New York Stock Exchange,
represent ordinary shares in ING Group as of 26 July
2016.

Any reference to “shares” and “shareholders” in this
Corporate Governance Chapter should also be read
as a reference to “depositary receipt of shares” and
“depositary receipt holders” that existed until 26 July
2016.

[:D The Board of ING Trust Office reports on its activities
through an annual report, which has been included on
pages 90 to 92.

Voting on the ordinary shares by holders of
depositary receipts as proxy of ING Trust
Office during 2016

Although the depositary receipts for shares did not
formally carry any voting rights, holders of depositary
receipts, in practice, ranked equally with shareholders
with regard to voting. ING Trust Office granted, subject
to certain restrictions, a proxy to a holder of depositary
receipts allowing such holder, in the name of ING Trust
Office, to exercise the voting rights attached to the
number of ordinary shares that corresponds to the
number of depositary receipts held by such holder of
depositary receipts. On the basis of such a proxy, the
holder of depositary receipts could vote such shares
according to his or her own discretion.

The following restrictions applied to the granting of
voting proxies to holders of depositary receipts by ING
Trust Office:

+ The relevant holder of depositary receipts had to
announce his or her intention to attend the General
Meeting observing the provisions laid down in the
Articles of Association.

- The relevant holder of depositary receipts could
delegate the powers conferred upon him or her by
means of the voting proxy, provided that the relevant
holder of depositary receipts had announced his or her
intention to do so to ING Trust Office observing a term
before the commencement of the General Meeting,
which term was determined by the ING Trust Office.

Voting instructions of holders of
depositary receipts to ING Trust Office
Holders of depositary receipts not attending a General
Meeting were entitled to give binding instructions to
ING Trust Office, concerning ING Trust Office’s exercise
of the voting rights attached to the ordinary shares. ING
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Trust Office followed such instructions for such number
of ordinary shares equal to the number of depositary
receipts for shares held by the relevant holder of
depositary receipts.

Voting on the ordinary shares by ING Trust
Office

ING Trust Office had discretion to vote in respect of
shares for which it had not issued voting proxies to
holders of depositary receipts and had not received any
voting instructions.

According to its articles of association and the Trust
Conditions, ING Trust Office was guided primarily by the
interests of the holders of depositary receipts, taking
into account the interests of ING Group and its affiliated
enterprises.

ING Trust Office promoted the solicitation of specific
proxies or voting instructions by holders of depositary
receipts. ING Trust Office encouraged the greatest
possible participation of holders of depositary receipts
and promoted the execution of voting rights in a
transparent way. At the same time it prevented a
minority of shareholders and holders of depositary
receipts from using a chance majority of votes to

the disadvantage of the shareholders and holders of
depositary receipts neither present nor represented at a
General Meeting of ING Group.
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The following report is issued in compliance
with the provisions of article 14 of the trust
conditions for registered shares in the share
capital of ING Groep NV. (“ING Group”) and
best-practice provision IV.2.6 of the Dutch
Corporate Governance Code.

Object

The Stichting ING Aandelen (the “ING Trust Office”), a
foundation organised under the laws of the Netherlands,
was incorporated on 22 January 1991. The articles of
association were most recently amended on 7 October
2010 (the “Articles of Association”). The most recent
amendments of the trust conditions for registered shares
in the share capital of ING Groep NV. (“Trust Conditions”)
date from 26 July 2016.

The object of the Trust Office, as described in the Articles
of Association, is as follows:

a. to acquire and administer against assignment of
depositary receipts, registered shares in the capital
of ING Groep NV, a public limited company with its
registered office in Amsterdam and any bonus shares
which may be distributed thereon or shares acquired
as stock dividend or by the exercise of subscription
rights and to issue exchangeable depositary receipts
for these shares, to exercise voting rights and all other
rights attaching to the shares, to exercise subscription
rights and to receive dividends and other distributions,
including proceeds of liquidation, subject to the
obligation to distribute the income to the holders
of depositary receipts, with the understanding that
depositary receipts shall be issued for bonus shares,
shares acquired as stock dividend and shares acquired
on behalf of holders of depositary receipts by virtue of
the exercise of subscription rights;

b. to foster the exchange of information between ING
Group on the one hand and the holders of depositary
receipts and shareholders in ING Group on the other;

c. to promote the solicitation of proxies of shareholders
other than the foundation itself and of specific proxies
and/or voting instructions of holders of depositary
receipts,
and further to engage in any activity which may be
related to the foregoing in the widest sense, whereby
all activities which entail commercial risk shall be
excluded from the foundation’s object.
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Activities

Board meetings

During the 2016 Reporting Year, the board of ING Trust
Office (the “Board”) held seven meetings. The topics
discussed in these meetings included:

- the Annual General Meeting of ING Group (“AGM") of 25
April 2016, the items on the agenda of the AGM, the
proxy voting results and the voting by ING Trust Office
during the AGM 2016;

+ the annual report and the annual accounts of ING Trust
Office, the results of the audit concerning the book
year 2015 and the applicable accountancy rules;

- the corporate governance review of ING Group,
including the preparation and the completion of the
exchange of depositary receipts of ING Group into
shares of ING Group;

- press releases of ING Group;

- the functioning of ING Trust Office and the composition
of the board;

- the meeting and the preparation of the meeting of
holders of depositary receipts of 25 April 2016;

- developments at ING Group on the basis of the
quarterly report Q1 2016, the annual report of ING
Group and the presentations of ING Group to analysts;
and

- preparation of the meetings with the chairmen of
the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board of ING
Group on the basis of public information and press
releases.

Meetings with ING Group

During the 2016 reporting year, the board had two
meetings with the chairmen of the Executive Board and
the Supervisory Board of ING Group. In these meetings,
among other things, the following topics were discussed:

- the results of ING Group as reported in the annual
report 2015 and the results of Q1 2016;

+ the corporate governance review of ING Group,
including the preparation and the completion of the
exchange of depositary receipts of ING Group into
shares of ING Group;

- the ratio requirements imposed by the ECB, Basel and
the Financial Stability Board;

- the legal structure of ING;

- several topics of the agenda of the AGM 2016, such
as the proposal to amend the corporate governance
resulting in the abolishment of the depositary receipt
structure and the share issue authorisation;

- risk related costs and exposure in certain countries;

- IT strategy and IT investments;

- the development of the cost/income ratio and of risk
costs;

+ impact of fintechs on the financial sector; and

+ innovation.
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Annual General Meeting ING Group 2016,
votes cast and voting behaviour

ING Trust Office attended the AGM 2016 and during this
meeting ING Trust Office gave an explanation of voting
with respect to agenda item (5A) Corporate governance/
amendment of the Articles of Association and agenda
item (9) Authorisation to issue ordinary shares. The
explanation of voting is included in the adopted minutes
of the AGM 2016, available on the website of ING Group
(www.ing.com).

Votes cast

During the AGM 2016, holders of around 57 percent of
the outstanding depository receipts used their voting
right, either by means of binding voting instructions to
ING Trust Office (around 56 percent of the outstanding
depository receipts), or by attending the meeting in
person or represented by a third party (around 1 percent
of the outstanding depository receipts). A more detailed
overview of these voting results can be found on the
website of ING Group (www.ing.com).

In accordance with the Articles of Association and

the Trust Conditions, ING Trust Office voted at its own
discretion on the shares for which it did not issue

voting proxies and for which it did not receive voting
instructions, representing around 43 percent of the total
votes that might be cast at the AGM 2016. In voting

on these shares, ING Trust Office was guided primarily
by the interests of all holders of depositary receipts,
taking into account the interests of ING Group and its
affiliated enterprise in accordance with article 4 of the
Trust Conditions and the best-practice and best-practice
provision IV.2.6 of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code.
ING Trust Office voted on these shares in favour of all
voting items on the agenda of the AGM.

Meeting of holders of depositary receipts
on 25 April 2016

The board convened a meeting of holders of depositary
receipts, which was held on 25 April 2016, shortly

after the AGM 2016. Holders of 0,1 percent of the total
number of depositary receipts issued were present or
were represented during this meeting.

The main topic of this meeting was the decision of the
Executive Board and the Supervisory Board to abolish the
depositary receipt structure subject to the condition that
the AGM resolved to amend the Articles of Association of
ING Group. The board explained its intention to amend
the Trust Conditions to facilitate a swift exchange of
depositary receipts ING for ordinary shares ING.

Moreover a report was made on the activities of ING
Trust Office and the board answered various questions
from holders of depositary receipts attending the
meeting. The minutes of the aforementioned meeting
are published on the website of ING Trust Office (www.
ingtrustoffice.com).

Abolition of depositary-receipts structure

As announced in the 2014 Annual Report of ING Group,
ING Group conducted a review of the company'’s
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corporate governance, including the depositary receipt
structure, in 2015. ING Trust Office was informed by
and discussed with ING Group the key elements of the
proposed amendments to the corporate governance.
One of these elements was the proposal to abolish the
depositary receipt structure. In this respect, ING Trust
Office was informed that ING Group recognised the
increased attendance rates at the AGM's over the past
five years. During the years 2010-2016, participation of
shareholders, other than ING Trust Office, and holders
of depositary receipts in the decision-making process
in annual general meetings of ING Group continually
increased from 41.3 percent to around 57 percent. On
average, the attendance rate was 54% over the past
three years.

At the request of ING Group, ING Trust Office advised

ING Group that it would cooperate in abolishing the
depositary receipt structure if the AGM of 25 April 2016
adopted the proposed amendments of the Articles

of Association. The AGM approved the proposed
amendments of the Articles of Association of ING Group,
which implied the abolition of the depositary receipt
structure.

On 13 July 2016, the Board of ING Trust Office
announced that the date of the conversion of depositary
receipts for shares into ordinary shares and the
amendment of the Trust Conditions had been set on 26
July 20186, (the “Conversion Date”) being also the date

of the amendment of the Articles of Association of ING
Group.

As of the conversion of depositary receipts for shares
into ordinary shares on the Conversion Date, the ING
Trust Office no longer holds any shares in ING Group. As
of this date, the depositary receipt holders of ING Group
became shareholders of ING Group and the depositary
receipt structure was abolished

The American depositary receipts, representing bearer
depositary receipts issued by ING Trust Office, which are
listed on the New York Stock Exchange, will be continued
to represent ordinary shares ING Group as of the
Conversion Date.

Depositary receipts

On 25 July 2016, the day before the Conversion Date,
the nominal value of administered ordinary shares
amounted to EUR 930,711,798 for which 3,877,965,825
depositary receipts were issued, each with a nominal
value of EUR 0.24. During the reporting year, the net
number of depositary receipts increased by 7,791,484.

The increase came about as follows:

Add:

conversion of shares into depositary receipts as of
1 January 2016 up to 25 July 2016:

7,792,484

Less:

conversion of depositary receipts into shares as of
1 January 2016 up to 25 July 2016:

1,000
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Composition and remuneration board

The members of the board are appointed by the board
itself for a maximum term of four years and may be
reappointed twice. Holders of depositary receipts may
make recommendations to the board on persons to
be appointed as members of the board. In connection
with this, the board informs them in a timely manner
regarding the reason why, and according to which
profile, a vacancy must be filled, and also in which
manner a recommendation should take place.

The board consisted during the 2016 Report Year of
Herman Hazewinkel, chairman, Mick den Boogert, Paul
Frentrop, Harrie Noy and Jolanda Poots-Bijl.

The board re-appointed Harrie Noy for a second term as
of 14 June 2016, ending on 13 June 2020. A profile and
an overview of relevant positions held by the members
of the board can be found on the website of ING Trust
Office (www.ingtrustoffice.com). All members of the
board stated that they meet the conditions regarding
independence as referred to in the Articles of Association
and in the Dutch Corporate Governance Code.

Harrie Noy and Jolanda Poots-Bijl stepped down on

31 December 2016. Herman Hazewinkel, chairman, Mick
den Boogert, Paul Frentrop remain the members of the
board in order to take care of a prudent winding down of
ING Trust Office.

The annual remuneration for the chairman of the Board
amounts EUR 25,000.00 and for the other members of
the Board EUR 20,000.00 in 2016.

Costs

In 2016, the costs of the activities of ING Trust Office
amounted to EUR 418,192 (2015 EUR 460,508).

An amount of EUR 204,250 (2015 EUR 282,430) is related
to the costs of administration of the depository receipts.
ING Trust Office was advised by a law firm in respect of
the termination of the depositary receipt structure. The
costs of the external advice amounted to EUR 54.904.

Other

The activities involved in the administration of shares are
performed by Administratiekantoor van het Algemeen
Administratie- en Trustkantoor BV., Amsterdam until

26 July 2016.

Contact details

The contact details of ING Trust Office are:
Jet Rutgers

Telephone +31 20576 1226

Email: jet.rutgers@ing.nl

Website: www.ingtrustoffice.com

Amsterdam, 13 March 2017
Board of Stichting ING Aandelen
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Stichting Continuiteit ING (“ING Continuity
Foundation”), a foundation organised under
the laws of the Netherlands, established in
Amsterdam, was founded on 22 January 1991.
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A call-option agreement concluded between ING
Continuity Foundation and ING Groep NV. (‘NG Group’)
vests ING Continuity Foundation with the right to acquire
cumulative preference shares in the share capital of

ING Group up to a maximum of 4.571 billion cumulative
preference shares. The acquisition of cumulative
preference shares by ING Continuity Foundation is
subject to the restriction that, immediately after the
issue of cumulative preference shares, the total amount
of cumulative preference shares may not exceed one-
third of the total issued share capital of ING Group. If
new shares other than cumulative preference shares
are subsequently issued, ING Continuity Foundation
may again exercise its right, subject to the provisions of
the preceding sentence. On acquisition of cumulative
preference shares, at least 25 percent of the nominal
value must be paid on said shares.

In 2016 the board of ING Continuity Foundation (the
“Board") held two meetings, on 5 April and 28 November.

The composition of the Board is currently as follows:
Sebastian Kortmann, chairman of the Board, Rob van
den Bergh, Allard Metzelaar, and Wim van Vonno.
Sebastian Kortmann was reappointed as of 13 May 2016
as chairman.

All members of the Board stated that they meet the
conditions regarding independence as referred to in the
Articles of Association of ING Continuity Foundation.

Amsterdam, 13 March 2017
Board of Stichting Continuiteit ING
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Conformity statement

The Executive Board is required to prepare
the Annual Accounts and the Annual Report
of ING Groep NV. for each financial year in
accordance with applicable Dutch law and
those International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) that were endorsed by the
European Union.
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Conformity statement pursuant to section
5:25c paragraph 2(c) of the Dutch Financial
Supervision Act (Wet op het financieel
toezicht).

The Executive Board is responsible for maintaining
proper accounting records, for safeguarding assets and
for taking reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities. It is responsible for selecting
suitable accounting policies and applying them on a
consistent basis, making judgements and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable. It is also responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal procedures
which ensure that all major financial information is
known to the Executive Board, so that the timeliness,
completeness and correctness of the external financial
reporting are assured.

As required by section 5:25¢ paragraph 2(c) of the Dutch
Financial Supervision Act, each of the signatories hereby
confirms that to the best of his or her knowledge:

+ the ING Groep NV. 2016 Annual Accounts give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of ING Groep NV. and the enterprises
included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

- the ING Groep NV. 2016 Annual Report gives a true and
fair view of the position at the balance sheet date, the
development and performance of the business during
the financial year 2016 of ING Groep NV. and the
enterprises included in the consolidation taken as a
whole, together with a description of the principal risks
ING Groep NJV. is being confronted with.

Amsterdam, 13 March 2017

R.A.]).G. (Ralph) Hamers
CEO, chairman of the Executive Board

P.G. (Patrick) Flynn
CFO, member of the Executive Board

W.F. (Wilfred) Nagel
CRO, member of the Executive Board
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Internal control over financial reporting
Due to the listing of ING shares on the new York Stock
Exchange, ING Group is required to comply with the SEC
regulations adopted pursuant op Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, SOX 404.

These regulations require that the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer of ING Group report

and certify on an annual basis on the effectiveness of
ING Group's internal controls over financial reporting.
Furthermore, the external auditors are required to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of ING Group's
internal controls over financial reporting.

SOX 404 activities are organised along the lines of the
governance structure, and involve the participation of
senior management across ING. Following the SOX 404
process, ING is in the position to publish an unqualified
statement which denotes that the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is effective as of 31
December 2016. The SOX 404 statement by the
Executive Board is included on this page, followed by the
report of the external auditor as issued on Form 20-F.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial
Reporting

In the assessment of the internal control over financial
reporting for the year ended December 31, 2015,

ING Group disclosed a material weakness related to

the determination of specific accounting policies for
certain aspects of the “anchor investment transaction”
undertaken in connection with the July 2014 IPO of

NN Group. ING remediated this material weakness

by revising and clarifying its accounting policy

controls related to complex divestiture transactions.
With regards to transactions with a high degree of
accounting complexity, ING enhanced the identification,
evaluation and documentation of alternative accounting
considerations and policy judgements, including the
communication and dialogue throughout the chain

of management and with the Audit Committee.
Furthermore, based upon self-assessment of in-house
accounting skills against transactions, management has
applied additional technical skills and resources to such
transactions, as appropriate.

Report of the Executive Board on internal
control over financial reporting

The Executive Board is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. ING's internal control over financial reporting is
a process designed under the supervision of our principal
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Section 404 Sarbanes-Oxley Act

executive and principal financial officers to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Our internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that:

+ Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of assets of ING;

- Provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts
and expenditures are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of our management and directors;
and

- Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use of
disposition of our assets that could have a material
effect on our financial statements.

Because if its inherent limitations, internal control

over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Executive Board assessed the effectiveness of

our internal control over financial reporting as of

31 December 2016. In making this assessment, the
Executive Board performed tests based on the criteria
of the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSO") in Internal Reporting -
Integrated Framework (2013 framework). Based on the
Executive Board's assessment and those criteria, the
Executive Board concluded that the Company's internal
control over financial reporting is effective as of 31
December 2016.

Our independent registered public accounting firm has
audited and issued their report on ING's internal control
over financial reporting, which appears on the following

page.
Amsterdam, 13 March 2017

R.A.]).G. (Ralph) Hamers
CEO, chairman of the Executive Board

P.G. (Patrick) Flynn
CFO, member of the Executive Board
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders
ING Groep N.V.

We have audited ING Groep NV.'s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based

on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). ING
Groep NV.'s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
“Report of the Executive Board on Internal Controls over
Financial Reporting”. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control

over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, assessing

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our

audit also included performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with international financial reporting standards, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
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Report of independent registered
public accounting firm

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control

over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, ING Groep NV. maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of ING
Groep NV. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016

and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2016, and our report dated
March 13, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements.

Amstelveen, the Netherlands
March 13 2017

KPMG Accountants N.V.
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Remuneration report

ING’s remuneration policy forms an integral
part of our strategy, performance culture and
risk management framework. Its objective

is to enable ING to retain and recruit expert
leaders, senior staff and other highly

qualified employees to ensure we meet our
responsibilities towards stakeholders, now and
in the future.

When looking at remuneration, our starting point is
our position as a global financial institution in a rapidly
changing marketplace.

ING is a global financial institution with a strong
European base. Its more than 54,000 employees offer
retail and wholesale banking services to customers

in more than 40 countries. More than 70% of

ING's employees work outside of the Netherlands,
approximately 70% of total income is earned outside of
the Netherlands and more than 95% of the investor base
is non-Dutch.

Remuneration policy ING

ING’s global remuneration policy complies with relevant
international and local legislation and regulations.

In determining compensation of ING's staff, we consider
a variety of factors, including but not limited to:

- The complexity of work

- The scope of responsibilities

+ The geographical location

- Risk alignment

- The (inter)national legal and requlatory landscape

- Perception in society

- Long-term objectives of ING and its stakeholders
These factors differ for each role, line of business and
country.

Performance Management

There is a strong link between our remuneration
approach and performance management. We have a
comprehensive performance management process in
place that aligns individual performance objectives to
the strategy of ING and its annual priorities in order to
build a sustainable and successful business for all our
stakeholders.

Performance is assessed against financial and non-

financial indicators. The targets that are individually

determined should represent a balanced range

of measures that support long-term sustainable

performance of the organisation and should take full

consideration of areas such as:

- Customer satisfaction, retention and growth

- Corporate social responsibility and sustainability

- Employee engagement, development and productivity

- Market share, growth rates, financial return and
value creation

- Operational effectiveness and efficiency

- Compliance with risk management policies and all
other internal policies and external legislation
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The outcome of the performance assessment is linked
to remuneration consequences such as moderate
adjustments to fixed salary or variable remuneration
awards (if appropriate).

Total direct compensation

ING aims to provide total direct compensation levels
which, on average, are at the median of the markets in
which we operate, benchmarked against relevant peer
groups.

ING believes that in principle fixed remuneration should
be considered sufficient to compensate employees for
their daily work. For some positions limited variable
remuneration opportunities apply.

Variable remuneration, where applicable, is primarily
focused on long-term value creation and based on
individual, business line and bank-wide performance
criteria.

In line with the Capital Requirements Directive (CRD

IV) and the Dutch Act on Remuneration Policies of
Financial Undertakings (Wet beloningsbeleid financiéle
ondernemingen, or WBFO), any variable remuneration

is based for at least 50% on non-financial performance
and subject to maximum ratios of variable remuneration
in relation to fixed remuneration for different categories
of staff.

For Identified Staff (i.e. staff that are considered to have
a material impact on the risk profile of ING, as selected
on the basis of the Regulatory Technical Standards
developed by the European Banking Authority,) a
maximum of 60% of total variable remuneration is
awarded upfront. The remaining part of the total
variable remuneration (a minimum of 40%) is deferred.
It is subject to a tiered vesting schedule over a period
of three years. Both the upfront part and the deferred
part are delivered at a maximum of 50% in cash and

a minimum of 50% in shares (or other equity-linked
instruments).

Shareholders’ mandate

Under the WBFO, financial institutions are permitted

to set a variable remuneration cap higher than 100%

of fixed remuneration for staff outside the European
Economic Area (EEA), provided that the higher cap is
approved by their shareholders. In 2015, approval was
given by the Annual General Meeting to increase the cap
up to 200% in performance years 2014 to 2016 for no
more than 1% of ING's staff globally.

Considering ING's international footprint and in order
to maintain its competitive position, the Executive
Board and the Supervisory Board wish to continue the
possibility to apply increased caps outside the EEA.

In the Annual General Meeting on 8 May 2017 the
shareholders will be asked to issue a new mandate

to subsidiaries of ING, to increase the maximum
percentage of variable remuneration compared to fixed
remuneration from 100% up to 200%. The mandate will
be requested for a period of five performance years,
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Remuneration report - continued

starting in 2017, and can only be applied to staff outside
the EEA working in the Corporate Staff, Wholesale
Banking and Retail Banking business lines. The total
number of staff that may be awarded more than 100%
variable remuneration will constitute no more than 1%
of the global ING staff base. The increased caps will not
limit the ability of ING to strengthen its capital base.

Risk mitigating measures

Our remuneration policy takes into consideration

risk, capital, liquidity and the likelihood and timing of
earnings. Based on applicable remuneration regulations,
specific risk adjustment mechanisms must be applied

in the pay-out process of variable remuneration. To this
end, ING operates a so called pre-award and post-award
assessment process when determining any variable
remuneration.

The pre-award risk assessment process aims to consider
the full range of any current and potential future risks.
As part of this process, ING takes into account both
company, business line and individual performance. In
addition, it applies a solvency test and a RoE test. Risk
requirements are set for all Identified Staff holding risk
taker roles, setting the minimum standard to be reached
during the performance year. Deviation from this may
lead to full or partial reduction of variable remuneration
via a so called risk modifier.

The post-award assessment process includes an analysis
as to whether the outcomes of the initial pre-award

risk assessment process were correct, providing ING

with a mechanism to adjust any variable remuneration
downwards. ING can apply holdback up to 100% of the
awarded and unvested deferred variable remuneration,
or clawback up to 100% of the paid and/or vested
variable remuneration from any (current or ex-) staff
member. Any decision to apply holdback or clawback is
at the discretion of the ING Supervisory Board.

To ensure the autonomy of staff in control functions
(such as risk management functions), financial
performance metrics are dependent on objectives
determined at the next higher organisational level (i.e.
not at the level of the business they directly control) and
the functional line is in the lead for the performance
assessment.

2016 Remuneration

The total amount of variable remuneration awarded
to all employees over 2016 was EUR 386 million,
compared to total staff expenses of EUR 5,039 million.
Variable remuneration includes both individual and
collective variable remuneration, such as profit-sharing
arrangements agreed with relevant trade unions.

In 2016, there were 17 employees, working in the
Corporate Staff, Wholesale Banking and Retail Banking
business lines, to whom total annual remuneration (fixed
and variable remuneration including employer pension
contributions) of EUR 1 million or more was awarded. The
majority of these employees (excluding the Executive
Board) work outside the Netherlands.
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Remuneration policy for the Executive
Board

The Executive Board remuneration policy is in line
with the remuneration principles that apply to all
staff, consisting of a combination of fixed and variable
remuneration (together “total direct compensation”),
including pension arrangements and benefits as
described below.

The performance targets for the Executive Board are
pre-determined annually by the Supervisory Board to
support delivery of the ING strategy.

The current remuneration policy for the Executive Board
was adopted by the Annual General Meeting (AGM) on
27 April 2010. Amendments to this policy were adopted
by subsequent AGMs:

- On 9 May 2011 in response to new regulatory
requirements.

- On 12 May 2014 with respect to pensions.

- On 11 May 2015 in order to lower the maximum
variable remuneration in line with legal requirements
and specify that variable remuneration be paid fully in
shares.

Total direct compensation

The Executive Board remuneration policy aims to award
total direct compensation slightly below the median

of comparable positions in the chosen peer group.

Bearing in mind international scope, complexity, revenue,
assets and market capitalisation, the companies in the
Euro Stoxx 50 index are the appropriate peer group for
ING. The index comprises 50 companies, including ING,
in a range of financial and non-financial industries from
12 countries within the Eurozone, mainly operating in
an international context. Total direct compensation

is determined in line with the relevant international
market environment and reviewed periodically by the
Supervisory Board. ING's Executive Board remuneration
policy is compliant with applicable laws and regulations,
including the WBFO, the Dutch Banking Code and the
Dutch Corporate Governance Code.

Variable remuneration

In line with legal requirements, variable remuneration
for the members of the Executive Board is limited to a
maximum of 20% of base salary at the time of award. It
is based for at least 50% on non-financial performance
criteria and fully paid out in shares. We do not pay
variable remuneration in cash.

The policy provides for an at-target variable
remuneration of 16% of base salary if performance
criteria are met. If performance criteria are exceeded,
the variable component can be increased by the
Supervisory Board from target to maximum, but may
not exceed 20% of base salary at the time of award. If
performance is below target, the variable component will
be decreased, potentially down to zero.
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Remuneration report - continued

The Executive Board remuneration policy combines

the short- and long-term variable components into

one structure, aiming to support both long-term value
creation and short-term company objectives. The
emphasis on long-term performance indicators within
the variable component of the compensation package is
increased by means of deferral, retention, holdback and
clawback mechanisms.

In line with applicable regulations, a maximum of 40% of
total variable remuneration is awarded “upfront” in the
year following the performance year. The remaining part
of the total variable remuneration (a minimum of 60%),
is deferred. It is subject to a tiered vesting on the first,
second and third anniversary of the grant date (one-
third per annum).

The entire variable remuneration is subject to post-
award assessment by the Supervisory Board. The post-
award assessment cannot lead to an upward adjustment
of the deferred variable remuneration.

Both the upfront part of the variable remuneration and
all deferred parts are fully awarded in shares. A retention
period of five years from the date of grant applies to

all share awards granted to Executive Board members in
their capacity as Board member. However, they are
allowed to sell part of their shares on the date of vesting
to pay tax on the vested share award.

Pension

As of 1 January 2015, all members of the Executive
Board participate in the Collective Defined Contribution
(CDC) pension plan with respect to their salary up to

a certain amount. As of 1 January 2016 this amount
was set at EUR 101,519 per year. As is the case with all
employees who earn a salary above that amount per
year, the Executive Board members are compensated
for the lack of pension accrual by means of a savings
allowance to be annually determined (see further details
on page 101).

Benefits

Executive Board members are eligible for additional
benefits (e.g. the use of company cars, contributions

to company savings plans and, if applicable, expatriate
allowances) as well as banking and insurance benefits
from ING in the ordinary course of their business. These
additional benefits are provided on the same terms that
apply to other employees of ING in the Netherlands. In
addition, tax and financial planning services are provided
to ensure compliance with the relevant legislative
requirements.
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Tenure

Members of the Executive Board who were appointed
prior to 2013 have an employment agreement with
ING Groep NV. Members who have been appointed as
of 2013 have a commission contract. The employment
agreement and the commission contract for Executive
Board members are for an indefinite period of time
and provide for an initial appointment for a period of
four years, with the possibility of reappointment by the
AGM. In the case of an involuntary exit, Executive Board
members are eligible for an exit arrangement limited to
a maximum of one year of base salary.

Supervisory Board discretion to review the
policy and the remuneration paid

Within the Executive Board remuneration policy

as adopted by the AGM and as described here, the
Supervisory Board annually determines the actual
remuneration for the Executive Board members based on
the advice given by the Supervisory Board Remuneration
Committee.

It is the responsibility of ING's Supervisory Board to take
into account the interests of all stakeholders, as well

as business continuity and sustainable growth, when
determining the Executive Board's remuneration.

The legal, regulatory and market environment is
continuously changing and this may further impact
ING. In order to ensure that ING can adapt to these
dynamic and uncertain factors, the Supervisory
Board will continue to re-evaluate the Executive Board
remuneration policy as and when required.

The Supervisory Board has the authority to impose
holdback and/or clawback on variable remuneration
awarded to a member of the Executive Board based
on the same criteria that apply to all staff within ING
(including inaccurate data and/or behaviour that led
to significant harm to ING). The Supervisory Board
also has the authority to adjust variable remuneration
if application of the predetermined performance
criteria results in undesired outcomes. The Supervisory
Board has decision-making authority in situations not
addressed in the policy.

Special employment conditions

Special employment conditions, such as commitments
required to secure the recruitment of new executives,
may be used in exceptional circumstances, subject to
approval by the Supervisory Board.
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Remuneration report - continued

2016 Remuneration Executive Board

The Executive Board remuneration for 2016 is in accordance with the Executive Board remuneration policy, with

the exception of the alignment to the benchmark. The policy as approved by the AGM, specifies that total direct
compensation should be slightly below the median of comparable positions in the Euro Stoxx 50 peer group. However,
- as the tables show on page 103 - the actual total direct compensation for the Executive Board, particularly for the
CEOQ, is significantly below the median.

2016 Executive Board base salary
In 2016, the Supervisory Board slightly increased the total (at target) remuneration of all Executive Board members by
2% with effect from 1 January 2016. Please see the first table on page 102 for more information.

2016 Performance indicators Executive Board
As indicated in the remuneration policy, the performance of the Executive Board is assessed based on financial and
non-financial indicators. For 2016, performance indicators applied included the following:

Performance indicators

Non-financial performance indicators Financial performance indicators

- Think Forward Strategy: improving customer - Underlying net result bank

experience and enabling commercial growth . Underlying return on IFRS equity ING Bank

- Strengthening ING's high performance culture
through the Step Up Performance Management
and Think Forward Leadership programmes - Underlying operating expenses

- Common equity Core Tier 1 ratio ING Bank

- Delivering multiple, innovative products to create a » Underlying cost/income ratio
differentiating customer experience

- Growing the number of primary retail customers

- Enhancing Finance and Risk capabilities and
optimising their organisation

- Driving digital transformation to improve customer
experience and realise further efficiency gains

- Increasing sustainable transitions financing,
strengthening environmental and social risk
management and increasing empowerment scores
(i.e. number of people who feel empowered by ING)

2016 Executive Board performance evaluation

On the next page, a table is included highlighting key achievements collectively accomplished by the Executive

Board in 2016 in the areas of strategy implementation, capability development, innovation, sustainability and

ING's (financial) performance. The table includes both financial and non-financial achievements against the overall
ambitions of ING and the specific performance indicators agreed with the Supervisory Board at the beginning of 2016.
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Remuneration report - continued

Key achievements

Strategy - Accelerated the Think Forward strategy to further improve the customer experience,
implementation further grow the number of primary customers and lending and increase efficiency.

- Launched four major programmes to drive digital transformation (i.e. Orange Bridge,
Model Bank, Welcome and WB TOM), while converging towards a global scalable
banking platform.

- Adopted One Way of Working to increase management understanding of the
integrated network and realise delayering throughout the organisation.

- Ranked number one in Net Promoter Scores relative to competitors in 7 of 13 retail

markets.
Capability - Invested in capability building of senior leaders at Management Board level and two
development hierarchical levels below, as well as all employees in Spain and senior managers in
Belgium, ahead of a global roll-out in 2017 of the Step Up Performance Management
programme.

- Developed the Think Forward Leadership Programme to support ING's leaders in
executing the Think Forward strategy in a manner desired by ING, with roll out planned
to all leaders and managers around the world.

- Enhanced overall organisation of the Finance and Risk functions in part through
progress on the target operating model projects for risk and finance and through
leadership planning combined with management delayering.

Innovation - Introduced insightful financial tools that make banking easier and more accessible for
customers, including:

- Mobile payments via Payconiq: just under 16,000 activated merchants.

+ ING Direct Spain's service Twyp Cash to withdraw money via smartphone: over
200,000 registered users in Spain.

- Instant Lending: Consumer loan production in Romania increased by 70% since
2015; Digital loan production in Poland increased by 45%.

- Moje ING in Poland for managing personal finances: in 2016 the number of users
increased fourfold compared to 2015.

- Improved ING's innovation capabilities through partnering with more than 65 fintechs
and ongoing internal efforts such as training more than 2,000 professionals in ING's
own innovation methodology called PACE.

Sustainability - Sustainable transitions financed increased to EUR 34.3 billion (2020 ambition: EUR 35

billion of sustainable transitions).

- Financially empowered 23.9 million people (2020 ambition: to make 25 million people
feel financially empowered).

- Demonstrated excellent performance on sustainability in the ratings (e.g. ranked
as number one Sustainable Bank out of 395 publicly listed banks by sustainability
research leader Sustainalytics and scored 90 out of 100 in the Dow Jones Sustainability
Indexes compared to an average industry score of 61).

ING’s (financial)

- Increased number of new retail customers by 1.4 million to 35.8 million; number of
performance

primary relationships up by 0.7 million to 9.7 million.

- Grew core lending by EUR 34.8 billion (6.5%); increased customer deposits by EUR 28.5
billion (5.6%).

- Achieved underlying net profit of ING Bank of EUR 4,976 million, up 17.9% from 2015.

- Realised underlying return on equity for ING Bank of 11.6% for 2016, up from 10.8% in
2015.

- Increased CET1 ratio of ING Group and ING Bank to 14.2% and 12.6% respectively.

- Underlying operating expenses (excluding requlatory costs) were stable at
EUR 8.6 billion.

- Improved underlying cost/income ratio to 54.2% from 55.9% in 2015.
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Remuneration report - continued

2016 Executive Board variable remuneration

The performance of the Executive Board is evaluated against financial and non-financial performance indicators.
Variable remuneration in 2016 of the CFO and CRO was based for more than 75% on non-financial performance
indicators. The variable remuneration in 2016 for the CEO was based for more than 50% on non-financial performance
indicators. As evidenced by the table on the previous page, the collective performance of the Executive Board
members was broadly ahead of target. There were minor differences in achievement of personal targets, this explains
why variable remuneration for the CEO was set at 19%, for the CFO at 18% and for the CRO at 18%.

The table below shows the remuneration awarded to the individual members of the Executive Board with respect to
the performance years 2016, 2015 and 2014.

Total direct compensation of the individual members of the Executive Board

2016 2015 2014

number number number
amounts in thousands of euros amount of shares amount of shares amount  of shares
Ralph Hamers
Base salary 1,663 1,630 1,270 -
Variable remuneration (fully in shares) * 316 23,092 293 28,404 - -
Patrick Flynn
Base salary 1,204 1,180 772
Variable remuneration (fully in shares) * 217 15,838 153 14,850 - -
Wilfred Nagel
Base salary 1,204 1,180 772
Variable remuneration (fully in shares) * 217 15,838 189 18,278 - -

1 The number of shares is based on the average ING stock price on the day on which the 2016 year-end results were published. The shares will
be awarded in May 2017.

In 2016, no holdback or clawback was applied to paid, unvested or vested variable remuneration of any of the
Executive Board members. The total direct compensation of former members of the Executive Board amounted to nil
for 2016, nil for 2015 and nil for 2014.

Pension costs

In 2015 and 2016, members of the Executive Board participated in the Collective Defined Contribution (CDC) pension
plan as part of the Executive Board remuneration policy. In 2014 the Executive Board participated in the Dutch Defined
Contribution Pension Plan.

The table below shows the pension costs of the individual members of the Executive Board in 2016, 2015 and 2014.

Pension costs of the individual members of the Executive Board

amounts in thousands of euros 20162 20151 2014
Ralph Hamers 26 25 230
Patrick Flynn 26 25 159
Wilfred Nagel 26 25 187

1 As from 1 January 2015 pension accrual only applies to salary up to an amount of EUR 100,000.
2 Asfrom 1 January 2016, this amount increased to EUR 101,519.

Benefits

The individual members of the Executive Board receive other emoluments, including savings allowances for the loss
of pension benefits for salary above EUR 101,519, employer contributions to savings schemes, reimbursement of
costs related to home/work commuting, costs associated with company cars and housing (for expats).

The other emoluments amounted in 2016, 2015 and 2014 to the following costs:

Other emoluments

amounts in thousands of euros 2016 20151 2014
Ralph Hamers 553 473 45
Patrick Flynn 403 433 178
Wilfred Nagel 370 322 34

1 The significant increase in 2015 results from the introduction of savings allowances to compensate for the loss of pension accrual for salary
above EUR 100,000 and the increase in base salaries in that year.
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Remuneration report - continued

Long-term incentives awarded in previous years
In 2016, no long-term incentives (other than the shares disclosed in the first table on page 102), were awarded to the
Executive Board members.

The long-term incentive plan (LTIP) in place at ING until 2010 included employee stock options and performance
shares. The ING employee stock options have a total term of 10 years and a vesting period of three years, after which
they can be exercised during the remaining seven years.

A retention period of five years from the grant date applies to all share and employee stock option awards granted to
Executive Board members. During this five-year period, the Executive Board members are only allowed to sell part of
their shares on the date of vesting to pay tax on the vested amount of the award.

Employee stock options

The table below contains information on the outstanding employee stock options and the movements during the
financial year of employee stock options held by the members of the Executive Board as of 31 December 2016, which
were all awarded to these board members in roles within ING prior to their appointment to the Executive Board.

Options held by the members of the Executive Board

Outstanding as

Outstanding as at 31

Number of at 31 December Exercised in Waived or December  Grant price in
options 2015 2016 expired in 2016 2016 euros Vesting date Expiry date
Ralph Hamers 8,504 0 8,504 0 €25.16 23 Mar2009 23 Mar 2016
14,889 0 0 14,889 €24.72 22 Mar 2010 22 Mar 2017
16,957 0 0 16,957 €16.66 13Mar2011 13 Mar 2018
19,985 0 0 19,985 €290 19Mar2012 19 Mar 2019
22,124 0 0 22,124 €7.35 17Mar2013 17 Mar 2020
Patrick Flynn 0 0 0 - - -
Wilfred Nagel 11,721 0 11,721 0 €2516 23 Mar2009 23 Mar 2016
9,530 0 0 9,530 €24.72 22 Mar 2010 22 Mar 2017
12,436 0 0 12,436 €16.66 13 Mar2011 13 Mar 2018

Shares
Deferred shares are shares conditionally granted, with the final shares awarded in three years (tiered), of which the
ultimate value of each deferred share will be based on ING's share price on the vesting date.

For the Executive Board members the following shares vested during 2016:

Shares vested for the Executive Board during 2016

Nr. of shares Nr. of shares

Shares Granting date Vesting date granted vested Vesting price
LSPP Deferred

Ralph Hamers * share units® 27 March 2014 27 March 2016 828 828 €10.95
LSPP Deferred

share units> 27 March 2013 27 March 2016 3,441 3,441 €10.95
LSPP Deferred

share units* 28 March 2012 28 March 2016 3,512 3,512 €10.95
LSPP Upfront

shares 11 May 2016 11 May 2016 11,362 11,362 €10.39
LSPP Upfront

Patrick Flynn shares 11 May 2016 11 May 2016 5,940 5,940 €10.39
LSPP Deferred

Wilfred Nagel shares® 15 May 2013 15 May 2016 2,489 2,489 €10.30
LSPP Upfront

shares 11 May 2016 11 May 2016 7,311 7,311 €10.39

1 Shares granted to Ralph Hamers in March 2013 and 2014 were awarded for his performance in positions prior to his appointment to the
Executive Board.

2 Upfront or deferred share units of Ralph Hamers are cash settled instruments, the ultimate value of which will be based on ING Group’s
share price at the vesting date.

3 Shares granted to Wilfred Nagel in 2012 and 2013 were awarded for his performance in positions prior to his appointment to
the Executive Board.
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Remuneration report - continued

Loans and advances to Executive Board members
The table below presents the loans and advances provided to Executive Board members and outstanding on 31

December 2016, 2015 and 2014.

Loans and advances to individual members of the Executive Board

amounts in
thousands
of euros 2016 2015 2014
Amount Average Amount Average Amount Average
outstanding interest Repay- outstanding interest Repay- outstanding interest Repay-

31 December rate ments 31 December rate ments 31 December rate ments
Ralph
Hamers 2,499 2.6% 0 2,499 2.5% 0 2,499 2.5% 98
Patrick
Flynn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Wilfred
Nagel 350 2.6% 150 500 2.0% 0 500 2.2% 250

ING shares held by Executive Board members
Executive Board members are encouraged to hold ING shares as a long-term investment to maintain alignment with
ING. The table below shows an overview of the shares held by members of the Executive Board at 31 December 2016,

2015 and 2014.

ING shares held by members of the Executive Board

number of shares 2016 2015 2014
Ralph Hamers 50,216 44,182 44,182
Patrick Flynn 89,134 85,084 85,084
Wilfred Nagel 122,334 115,707 81,285

2017 Remuneration Executive Board
In the diagrams below, the median 2016 total (at target) remuneration is shown for the CEO and other Executive

Board positions in the Euro Stoxx 50.

CEO
amounts in thousands of euros

CFO and CRO
amounts in thousands of euros

5,000 2,500
4,000 2,000 M Variable remuneration
3,000 1,500 M Fixed remuneration
2,000 1,000
1,000 500
0 0
Euro Stoxx 50  ING current Euro Stoxx 50 ING current
(2016 median at target (2016 median at target

level - at target)

level - at target)

Current remuneration levels of the ING Executive Board are below the median of the Euro Stoxx 50 benchmark, and
in the case of the CEO position, even significantly below. This remains a concern. ING needs to be able to attract and
retain the best (international) talent for its Executive Board. It is ING's aim to further reduce the gap between the
total direct compensation of ING's Executive Board and the median of the Euro Stoxx 50 peer group over time. In
determining executive remuneration, the ING Supervisory Board is aware of the public debate surrounding this topic
and strives to balance all stakeholder interests.

In this context, the Supervisory Board has decided to slightly increase the total (at target) remuneration of the CEO by
3% with effect from 1 January 2017. The remuneration of the other Executive Board members will remain the same.

In accordance with guidelines issued by the European Banking Authority (EBA), the variable remuneration of the
members of the Executive Board will, as from 2017, be subject to tiered vesting over a period of five years. This will be
applied for the first time in 2018 with regard to variable remuneration earned for the performance year 2017.

The Supervisory Board will continue to monitor the development of international remuneration policies and the
benchmarks and will continue to support the Executive Board remuneration policy of compensating slightly below the
median of the Euro Stoxx 50 benchmark. As such, annual reviews will be held and trends monitored.
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Remuneration report - continued

Remuneration Supervisory Board
Supervisory Board remuneration policy
On 25 April 2016, the AGM approved a new remuneration policy for the Supervisory Board. The policy aims to:

- Move to a simpler and more transparent structure

- Bring remuneration levels more in line with peers and with levels adequate to attract qualified (international)
Supervisory Board members

- Further align remuneration with increased responsibilities and time spent

The current Supervisory Board remuneration structure is set out in the below table:

Supervisory Board remuneration structure

Amounts in thousands of euros
Annual remuneration

Chairman Supervisory Board 125
Vice Chairman Supervisory Board 95
Supervisory Board Member 70
Committee fees (annual amounts)

Chairman Committee (excluding Corporate Governance Committee) 20
Member Committee (excluding Corporate Governance Committee) 10
Chairman Corporate Governance Committee 7,5
Member Corporate Governance Committee 5
Attendance fees (per meeting)

Attendance fee outside country of residence 2
Attendance fee outside continent of residence 7,5

In addition, members of the Supervisory Board are reimbursed for travel and business expenses.

2016 Remuneration Supervisory Board
The table below shows the remuneration, including attendance per Supervisory Board member.

2016 Remuneration Supervisory Board

2016 2015 2014
amounts in thousands of euros  Remuneration VAT ! Remuneration VAT Remuneration VAT
Jeroen van der Veer 178 37 122 26 118 25
Henk Breukink 115 24 83 17 76 16
Joost Kuiper 2 30 6 81 17 93 19
Mariana Gheorghe * 98 40
Robert Reibestein 114 24 76 16 78 16
Hermann-Josef Lamberti 149 111 81
Isabel Martin Castella 114 92 87
Eric Boyer de la Giroday 114 92 53

Ann Sherry 85

1 Asof 2013, the remuneration of members of the Supervisory Board living in the Netherlands is subject to VAT.

2 Joost Kuiper left the Supervisory Board as of 25 April 2016. The remuneration figures for 2016 reflect a partial year as a member of the
Supervisory Board.

3 Mariana Gheorghe is a member of the Supervisory Board as of 11 May 2015. The remuneration figures for 2015 reflect a partial year as a
member of the Supervisory Board.

4 Ann Sherry is a member of the Supervisory Board as of 25 April 2016. The remuneration figures for 2016 reflect a partial year as a member of
the Supervisory Board.

Compensation of former members of the Supervisory Board who are not included in the table above amounted to nil
in 2016, 62,000 in 2015 and EUR 309,000 in 2014.

Loans and advances to Supervisory Board members

Supervisory Board members may obtain banking and insurance services from ING Group subsidiaries in the ordinary
course of their business and on terms that are customary in the sector. The Supervisory Board members do not
receive privileged financial services. Currently there are no loans and advances outstanding to Supervisory Board
members.
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Remuneration report - continued

ING shares and employee stock options held by Supervisory Board members
Supervisory Board members are permitted to hold ING shares as a long-term investment. The table below shows the
holdings by members of the Supervisory Board at 31 December 2016, 2015 and 2014.

ING shares held by the members of the Supervisory Board

number of shares 2016 2015 2014
Jeroen van der Veer 119,469 119,469 119,469
Hermann-Josef Lamberti 5,700 5,700 5,700
Eric Boyer de la Giroday 47,565 47,565 43,094

The following table contains information on the employee stock options outstanding by, and awards vested for,
the members of the Supervisory Board.

Employee stock options on ING Groep NV. shares held by members of the Supervisory Board at 31 December 2016

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding

as at asat asat
31 December Expiredin 31 December Expiredin 31 December Expired in
number of stock options 2016 2016 2015 2015 2014 2014
Eric Boyer de la Giroday 226,864 92,984 319,848 69,542 389,390 23,181
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Central works council Bank (COR)
December 2016

L.G. (Bert) Woltheus, chairman

J. (Yoap) Brugmann, deputy chairman

F.E. (Ferry) van Wezel, secretary

Yvonne Vork (Works council Support)

Edward Boeijenga
W. (Wim) van den Brink
G.F. (Gerard) Dekkers
PE. (Egon) Gijsbers
Michiel van Lagen
Arie Noomen

M.A. (Margriet) Pel
Wouter Rietveld
Michel Rutte
Marinus Stoffers

Erik Timmerman

European works council

December 2016

Austria: O. (Otmar) Haneder

Belgium: J.P. (Jean Pierre) Lambert, H. (Herman) van Eesbeek,
F. (Franck) Goethals, Ahmed Sanhayi

Bulgaria: A. (Andrew) Nitov

Czech: Lukas Jenicek

Germany: N. (Norbert) Lucas, (chairman), Andre Fioritto
Hungary: G. (Géza) Bodor (deputy chairman)

Italy: C (Claudio) Casazza

Luxembourg: A. (Alain) Back,

Netherlands: Michel Rutte (secretary), Jan van Hest,
Maarten Kramer, Bert Woltheus, Judith Roosken
Poland: M. (Mariusz) Cieslik, Jakub Dzianowicz, Arthur Banasik
Romania: Adrian Piscu, Magdalena Nitu

Slovakia: Miroslav Fliega

Spain: Santiago Hernanz Gomez, Francisco Javier Diaz
Mosquera (deputy secretary)

United Kingdom: Mark Foley

Works council support: Miriam Rozenbrand,

Karin van de Schouw
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Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 December

in EUR million 2016 2015 2014
Assets

Cash and balances with central banks 2 18,144 21,458 12,233
Loansand advancesto banks 3 28,858 29,988 37,119
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4

- trading assets 114,504 131,467 136,959
- non-trading derivatives 2,490 3,347 4,384
- designated as at fair value through profit or loss 5,099 3,234 2,756
Investments 5

— available-for-sale 82,912 87,000 95,402
- held-to-maturity 8,751 7,826 2,239
Loansand advancesto customers! 6 563,660 700,807 703,279
Investments in associates and joint ventures 7 1,141 962 953
Property and equipment 8 2,002 2,027 2,100
Intangible assets 9 1,484 1,567 1,655
Current tax assets 314 322 289
Deferred tax assets 36 1,000 814 1,145
Other assets 10 14,722 12,261 12,612
Assets held for sale 11 2,153 165,532
Total assets 845,081 1,005,233 1,178,657
Liabilities

Deposits frombanks 12 31,964 33,813 29,999
Customer deposits! 13 522,942 664,241 669,672
Financialliabilities at fair value through profit or loss 14

— trading liabilities 83,167 88,807 97,091
- non-trading derivatives 3,541 4,257 6,040
— designated as at fair value through profit or loss 12,266 12,616 13,551
Current tax liabilities 546 590 450
Deferred tax liabilities 36 919 643 860
Provisions 15 2,028 964 1,017
Other liabilities 16 16,852 13,132 13,919
Debt securities in issue 17 103,234 121,289 126,352
Subordinated loans 18 17,223 16,411 18,158
Liabilities held for sale 142,132
Total liabilities 794,682 956,763 1,119,241
Equity 19

Share capitaland share premium 16,989 16,982 16,971
Other reserves 5,897 5,759 11,213
Retained earnings 26,907 25,091 23,160
Shareholders' equity (parent) 49,793 47,832 51,344
Non-controlling interests 606 638 8,072
Totalequity 50,399 48,470 59,416
Totalliabilities and equity 845,081 1,005,233 1,178,657

1 Loans and advances to customers and Customer deposits, as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, are adjusted as a result of a change in accounting policies.
Reference is made to Note 1 ‘Accounting policies’ - Changes in accounting policies in 2016.

References relate to the accompanying notes. These form anintegral part of the Consolidated annual accounts.

Reference is made to Note 1 ‘Accounting policies’ for information on Changes in presentation of the Consolidated annual accounts and
related notes.
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

for the years ended 31 December

in EUR million 2016 2016 2015 2015 2014 2014
Continuing operations

Interest income 44,182 46,321 48,169

Interest expense -30,941 -33,760 -35,865

Net interest income 20 13,241 12,561 12,304
Commission income 3,581 3,411 3,297
Commission expense -1,148 -1,093 -1,004

Net commission income 21 2,433 2,318 2,293
Valuation results and net trading income 22 1,134 1,283 297
Investment income 23 421 123 236
Share of result from associates and joint ventures 7 88 492 138
Result on disposal of group companies 24 1 2 195
Other income 25 173 66 97
Totalincome 17,491 16,845 15,560
Addition to loan loss provisions 6 974 1,347 1,594
Staff expenses 26 5,039 4,972 5,788
Other operating expenses 27 5,575 4,354 4,471
Total expenses 11,588 10,673 11,853
Result before tax from continuing operations 5,903 6,172 3,707
Taxation 36 1,618 1,637 971
Net result from continuing operations 4,285 4,535 2,736
Discontinued operations 28

Net result from discontinued operations 793 746
Net result from classification as discontinued operations 3 -470
Net result from disposal of discontinued operations 441 -918 -1,572
Totalnet result from discontinued operations 441 -122 -1,296
Net result (before non-controlling interests) 4,726 4,413 1,440
Net result attributableto Non-controlling interests 75 403 189
Net result attributable to Equityholdersofthe parent 4,651 4,010 1,251

References relate to the accompanying notes. These form anintegral part of the Consolidated annual accounts.

Reference is made to Note 1 ‘Accounting policies’ for information on Changes in presentation of the Consolidated annual accounts and

related notes.
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-
Consolidated profit or loss account of ING Group - continued

in EUR million 2016 2015 2014
Net result attributable to Non-controlling interests

- from continuing operations 75 69 79
- from discontinued operations 334 110
75 403 189

Net result attributable to Equityholders of the parent

- from continuing operations 4,210 4,466 2,657
- from discontinued operations 441 -456 -1,406
4,651 4,010 1,251
-]
in EUR 2016 2015 2014
Earnings per ordinary share 29
Basic earnings per ordinary share 1.20 1.04 0.13
Diluted earnings per ordinary share 1.20 1.03 0.13

Earnings per ordinary share from continuingoperations 29

Basic earnings per ordinary share from continuing operations 1.09 1.16 0.50
Diluted earnings per ordinary share from continuing operations 1.09 1.15 0.49
Dividend per ordinary share 30 0.66 0.65 0.12

References relate to the accompanying notes. These form anintegral part of the Consolidated annual accounts.

Reference is made to Note 1 ‘Accounting policies’ for information on Changes in presentation of the Consolidated annual accounts and
related notes.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive
Income

for the years ended 31 December

in EUR million 2016 2015 2014
Net result (before non-controlling interests) 4,726 4,413 1,440

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit or loss:

Unrealised revaluations property in own use 5 35 -30
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit asset/liability 35 -65 24 -289

Items that may subsequently be reclassified to the statement of profit or loss:

Unrealised revaluations available-for-sale investments and other revaluations 61 414 6,981
Realised gains/losses transferred to the statement of profit or loss -146 -92 -139
Changesin cash flow hedge reserve 77 -724 2,39
Transfer to insurance liabilities/DAC 601 -2,146
Exchangerate differences -254 1,697 2,374
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures and other income -14 -5 43
Total comprehensive income 4,390 5,535 10,628

Comprehensive income attributable to:

Non-controlling interests 529 1,291
Equityholders of the parent 4,390 5,006 9,337
4,390 5,535 10,628

References relate to the accompanying notes. These form anintegral part of the Consolidated annual accounts.

Reference is made to Note 36 ‘Taxation’ for the disclosure onthe income tax effects on each component of the other comprehensive
income.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Share Share-
capital and holders’ Non-

share Other  Retained equity  controlling Total
in EUR million premium reserves earnings (parent) interests equity
Balanceas at 1 January 2016 16,982 5,759 25,091 47,832 638 48,470
Unrealised revaluations available-for-sale investments and other
revaluations 80 80 -19 61
Realised gains/losses transferred to the statement of profit or loss -146 -146 -146
Changesin cash flow hedge reserve 111 111 -34 77
Unrealised revaluations property in own use 5 5 5
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit asset/liability 35 -65 -65 -65
Exchangerate differences -232 -232 -22 -254
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
and other income 251 -265 -14 -14
Totalamount recognised directly in other comprehensive income 4 -265 -261 -75 -336
Net result from continuing and discontinued operations 124 4,527 4,651 75 4,726
Total comprehensive income 128 4,262 4,390 - 4,390
Dividends 30 -2,521 -2,521 -32 -2,553
Changesin treasury shares 10 10 10
Employee stock option and shareplans 7 75 82 82
Balanceas at 31 December 2016 16,989 5,897 26,907 49,793 606 50,399

References relate to the accompanying notes. These form anintegral part of the Consolidated annual accounts.

Changes inindividual Reserve components are presented in Note 19 ‘Equity'.
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-
Consolidated statement of changesin equity of ING Group - continued

Share Share-
capital and holders’ Non-

share Other  Retained equity  controlling Total
in EUR million premium reserves earnings (parent) interests equity
Balanceas at 1 January 2015 16,971 11,213 23,160 51,344 8,072 59,416
Unrealised revaluations available-for-sale investments and other
revaluations -528 -528 114 -414
Realised gains/losses transferred to the statement of profit or loss -94 9% 2 -92
Changesin cash flow hedge reserve -715 -715 -9 -724
Unrealised revaluations property in own use 35 35 35
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit asset/liability 35 34 34 -10 24
Transfer to insurance liabilities/DAC 609 609 -8 601
Exchangerate differences and other? 1,662 1,662 35 1,697
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures -7 -7 2 -5
Totalamount recognised directly in other comprehensive income 996 996 126 1,122
Net result from continuing and discontinued operations 131 3,879 4,010 403 4,413
Total comprehensive income 1,127 3,879 5,006 529 5,535
Impact of partial divestment of NN Group -1,499 -270 -1,769 3,042 1,273
Impact of deconsolidation of NN Group -5,345 -5,345 -10,801 -16,146
Dividends 30 -1,393 -1,393 -118 -1,511
Coupon on Undated subordinated notesissued by NN Group -19 -19 -15 -34
Changesin treasury shares 28 28 28
Employee stock option and shareplans 11 105 116 1 117
Changesin the composition of the group and other changes 235 -371 -136 -72 -208
Balance as at 31 December 2015 16,982 5,759 25,091 47,832 638 48,470

1 Exchange rate differences and other include the transfer of Revaluation reserves to Other reserves due to the partial sale of NN Group in February 2015.
References relate to the accompanying notes. These form anintegral part of the Consolidated annual accounts.

Changes inindividual Reserve components are presented in Note 19 ‘Equity'.
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Consolidated statement of changesin equity of ING Group - continued

Share Share-
capital and holders’  Non-voting Non-

share Other Retained equity equity  controlling Total
in EUR million premium reserves earnings (parent)  securities interests equity
Balanceas at 1 January 2014 16,959 1,242 27,575 45,776 1,500 5913 53,189
Unrealised revaluations available-for-sale investments and
other revaluations 5,503 5,503 1,478 6,981
Realised gains/losses transferred to the statement of profit
or loss -133 -133 -6 -139
Changesin cash flow hedge reserve 2,001 2,001 393 2,39
Unrealised revaluations property in own use -30 -30 -30
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
asset/liability 35 -254 -254 -35 -289
Transfer to insurance liabilities/DAC -1,428 -1,428 -718 -2,146
Exchange rate differences and other 2,384 2,384 -10 2,374
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and
joint ventures -118 161 43 43
Totalamount recognised in other comprehensive income 7,925 161 8,086 1,102 9,188
Net result from continuing and discontinued operations 83 1,168 1,251 189 1,440
Total comprehensive income 8,008 1,329 9,337 1,291 10,628
Impact of deconsolidation of Voya 87 87 -5,100 -5,013
Impact of IPO NN Group -1,924 -1,327 -3,251 5,397 2,146
Repayment and premium on non-voting equity securities! -750 -750 -1,500 -2,250
Dividends -4 A
Impact of issuance Undated subordinated notesissued by
NN Group 986 986
Changesin treasury shares -14 -14 -14
Employee stock option and share plans 12 87 99 13 112
Changesin the composition of the group and other
changes 3,814 -3,754 60 -384 -324
Balanceas at 31 December 2014 16,971 11,213 23,160 51,344 - 8,072 59,416

1 In 2014, ING Group made the final repayment on the core Tier 1 securities of EUR 1.025 billion to the Dutch State. Including the final payment, the total amount
paid to the Dutch State was EUR 13.5 billion, which contained EUR 10 billion in principal and EUR 3.5 billion in interest and premiums and resulted in an annualised

return of 12.7% for the Dutch State.

References relate to the accompanying notes. These form anintegral part of the Consolidated annual accounts.

Changes inindividual components are presentedin Note 19 ‘Equity'.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the years ended 31 December

in EUR million 2016 2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
Result before tax! 6,342 6,193 2,682
Adjusted for: - depreciation 536 634 692
- changein provisions for insurance and investment contracts -1,499 -3,527
- addition to loan loss provisions 974 1,347 1,594
- other? 1,495 -100 1,912
Taxation paid -1,603 -1,450 -1,073
Changesin: - loansand advancesto banks, not available on demand -1,162 6,766 3,360
- trading assets 16,956 5,458 -23,676
- non-trading derivatives 1,812 -303 -3,022
- other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -3,401 -256 -553
- loansand advancesto customers? -29,656 -23,030 -13,901
- other assets -915 549 246
- deposits from banks, not payable on demand -342 5,179 3,353
- customer deposits? 23,493 17,970 19,015
- trading liabilities -5,634 -8,276 23,855
- other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 432 -1,582 -1,018
- provisions and other liabilities’ 90 2,977 2,080
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities 8,553 10,577 12,019
Cash flows from investing activities
Investments and advances: - associates and joint ventures -49 -40 -528
- available-for-sale investments -27,003 -47,858 -85,799
- held-to-maturity investments -1,731 -3,457 -315
- property and equipment -351 -353 -375
- assets subject to operating leases -64 -37 -34
- investments for risk of policyholders -2,417 -20,598
- other investments -288 -648 -6,831
Disposals and redemptions: - group companies (including cash in company disposed)? -6,926 -1,216
- associates and joint ventures* 1,071 1,175 2,505
- available-for-sale investments® 32,540 52,675 69,444
- held-to-maturity investments 630 1,219 1,172
- property and equipment 63 74 55
- assets subject to operating leases 12 17 3
- investments for risk of policyholders 7,566 28,003
- loans 1,295 3,201 1,167
- other investments 9 5 5,928
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities 31 6,134 4,196 -7,419
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Consolidated statement of cash flows of ING Group - continued

in EUR million 2016 2015 2014
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities 8,553 10,577 12,019
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities 31 6,134 4,196 -7,419

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from debt securities 106,174 139,424 143,628
Repayments of debt securities -123,748  -147,337 -149,604
Proceeds fromissuance of subordinated loans 2,070 3,159 4211
Repayments of subordinated loans® -1,042 -6,092 -3, 367
Repayment and premium paid on non-voting equity securities -2,250
Purchase/sale of treasury shares 10 34 -14
Proceeds from NN Group divestments and related transactions 1,040 2,733
Dividends paid 30 -2,521 -1,393

Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities -19,057 -11,165 -4,663
Net cash flow -4,370 3,608 -63
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 20,379 17,113 17,180
Effect of exchange rate changeson cash and cash equivalents 155 -342 -4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 32 16,164 20,379 17,113
1 Result before tax includes results from continuing operations of EUR 5,903 million (2015: EUR 6,172 million; 2014: EUR 3,707 million) as well as results from

discontinued operations of EUR 439 million (2015: EUR 21 million; 2014: EUR -1,025 million).

2 Changes in cash flows of Loans and advances to customers and Customer deposits are not impacted by the change in accounting policies, as described in Note 1
‘Accounting policies’ - Changes in accounting policies in 2016, on the basis that the change in policy does not comprise a change in actual cash flows for the
respective periods.

3 In 2015, Disposals and redemptions - group companies included EUR -7,975 million and EUR 997 miillion related to cash and cash equivalents of NN Group and
proceeds from the sale of shares of NN Group resulting in loss of control at the end of May 2015 respectively. (2014: EUR 950 million proceeds from the sale of
shares of Voya which resulted in loss of control in the first quarter of 2014).

4 Disposals and redemptions - associates and joint ventures includes EUR 1,016 million proceeds on the further sale of NN Group shares in January 2016 resulting in
loss of significant influence over NN Group (2015: EUR 995 million proceeds on the further sale of NN Group shares in September 2015; 2014: EUR 1,940 million
proceeds from the sale of Voya shares in September and November 2014).

5 Disposals and redemptions - available-for-sale investments includes EUR 1,375 million proceeds on the divestment of the remaining shareholding in NN Group in
April 2016.

6 Included in Repayment of subordinated loans is a cash outflow of EUR 128 million related to the third and final tranche of mandatory exchangeable subordinated

notes from the Anchor investors into NN Group ordinary shares in February 2016.

The defined contribution payment for pension plans was previously presented in ‘Adjusted for: other’ and is now presented in ‘provisions and other liabilities'.

Comparatives have been adjusted accordingly.

~

As at 31 December 2016, Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and balances with central banks of EUR 18,144 million (2015:
EUR 21,458 million; 2014: EUR 12,233 million). The decrease in cash and balances with central banks is as a result of the lowering of
excess liquidity and negative interest rates. Reference is made to Note 32 ‘Cash and cash equivalents'.

Comparison of the Consolidated cash flow statements between 2016, 2015 and 2014 isimpacted by NN Group. Included in the 2015
and 2014 cash flow statements respectively, are the NN Group cash flows for five months until deconsolidation at the end of May 2015
and NN Group cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2014, respectively.

References relate to the accompanying notes. These form anintegral part of the Consolidated annual accounts.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows of ING Group - continued

Interest and dividend received and paid

2016 2015 2014
Interest received 44,470 46,884 51,301
Interest paid -31,702 -34,306 -38,001

12,768 12,578 13,300

Dividend received 123 116 61
Dividend paid -2,521 -1,393 -

Interest received, interest paid and dividends received are included in operating activities in the cash flow statement. Dividend paid is
included in financing activities in the cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated annual accounts

amounts in millions of euros, unless stated otherwise

Notes to the accounting policies

Reporting entity

ING Groep N.V. is a company domiciled in Amsterdam, the Netherlands. Commercial Register of Amsterdam, number 33231073. These
Consolidated annual accounts, as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016, comprise ING Groep N.V. (the Parent company) and its
subsidiaries, together referred to as ING Group. ING Group is a global financial institution with a strong European base, offering a wide
range of retail and wholesale banking services to customers in over 40 countries.

Authorisation of the Consolidated annual accounts

The ING Group Consolidated annual accounts, for the year ended 31 December 2016, were authorised for issue in accordance witha
resolution of the Executive Board on 13 March 2017. The Executive Board may decide to amend the annual accounts as long as these
are not adopted by the General Meeting of Shareholders. The General Meeting of Shareholders may decide not to adopt the annual
accounts, but may not amend these.

Basis of preparation of the Consolidated annual accounts

The ING Group Consolidated annual accounts have been preparedin accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRSIC) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and the
relevant articles of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

ING Group applies International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU), which are IFRS Standards
and IFRS IC Interpretations as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) with some limited modifications such as
the temporary ‘carve out’ from IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ (herein, referred to as IFRS).

Under the EU carve out, ING Group applies fair value hedge accounting to portfolio hedges of interest rate risk (macro hedging). For
further information, reference is made to Note 1 ‘Accounting policies’, f) Principles of valuation and determination of results and Note
38 ‘Derivatives and hedge accounting'.

1 Accounting policies

a) Changesin accountingpolicies in 2016

ING Group has consistently applied its accounting policies to all periods presented in these Consolidated annual accounts. Other than
the change in accounting policy related to ‘Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities’, as described below, there were no changesin
accounting policies, effective from 1 January 2016, that materially impact ING Group.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ prescribes that a financial asset and a financial liability shall be offset whenthereisa
legally enforceable right to set off and in addition an ‘intention to settle ona net basis’ simultaneously (IAS 32.42).ING has both the
legally enforceable right (by contract) to set off the amounts under notional cash pooling arrangement as well as the intentionto
settle ona net basis. IFRS is principle based and does not prescribe how the intention to settle ona net basis is evidenced.

In April 2016, an Agenda Rejection Notice (ARN) was published by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) on balance sheet
offsetting of notional Cash Pooling products. The issue inthe ARN relates to the question whether certain cash pooling arrangements
would meet the requirements for offsetting under IAS 32. The IFRIC provided further clarification that the transfer of balances into a
netting account should occur at the period end to demonstrate an intentionto settle ona net basis.

As a result of the ARN, which is applicable from 6 April 2016, ING has changed its accounting policy and practice, and therefore as a
result performs physical transfers of cash balances of certain clients subject to cash pooling arrangements into a single netting
account on a period end basis to evidence the intentionto settle net. This change in accounting policyis accounted for retrospectively.
Comparative amounts are adjusted accordingly with further information as set out below.

Summary of impact of changes in accounting policies

The change in the accounting policy, as described above, has no impact on the Consolidated statements of profit or loss (including
earnings and diluted earnings per ordinary share), statements of comprehensive income, statements of cash flows and the
statements of changes in equity.

Comparative amounts in the Consolidated statements of financial position are impactedinthe line items Loans and advances to
customers, Total assets, Customer deposits and Total liabilities. These line items increase by EUR 163,464 million and EUR 185,801
million as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 respectively.

Reference is made to the Consolidated statement of financial position, Note 6 ‘Loans and advances to customers’, Note 13 ‘Customer
deposits’, Note 34 ‘Information on geographical areas’, Note 37 ‘Fair value of assets and liabilities’,Note 39 ‘Assets by contractual
maturities’, Note 40 ‘Liabilitiesby maturity’ and Note 43 ‘Offsetting financial assets and liabilities’.
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Notes to the Consolidated annual accounts of ING Group - continued

b) Changesin presentation of the Consolidated annual accounts andrelated notes
Following further restructuring and deconsolidation of the insurance business in 2014 and 2015, ING Group revised its presentation of
the Consolidated annual accounts to best present its core business and related results. Where relevant, comparative amounts are
adjusted accordingly. The main changes in the presentation of the Consolidated annual accounts and related notes are as follows:
The primary statements and other terms used in these statements are renamed as follows:
The ‘Consolidated balance sheet'is renamed to ‘Consolidated statement of financial position’;
The line item ‘Amounts due from banks’ is renamed to ‘Loans and advances to banks™:
The line item ‘Amounts due to banks’ is renamed to ‘Deposits from banks’;
The line item ‘Customer deposits and other funds on deposit'is renamed to ‘Customer deposits’;
The lineitem ‘Minority interest'is renamed to ‘Non-controlling interest’;
The ‘Consolidated profit and loss account’ is renamed to ‘Consolidated statement of profit or loss’; and
The naming of income and expense line items, specifically related to Interest and Commission, were simplified for further
clarification.
The Consolidated statement of financial positionis changed as follows:
The order of line items presented is changed to present assets, liabilities and equity in order of liquidity;
The line item ‘Real estate investments’is now included in the line item ‘Other assets’ and renamed to ‘Investment properties’;
‘Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities’ are now separately presented (previously included in the line items ‘Other
assets and liabilities’);
‘Provisions’, as previously included in the line item ‘Other liabilities', are now separately presented;
The line item ‘Subordinated loans’ includes the line item ‘Other borrowed funds’ (previously separately presented);
The presentation of equity is changed to more granularly present the components of ‘Shareholder’s equity (parent)’; and
The asset line items Loans and advances to banks, Loans and advances to customers, and the liability line items Deposits from
banks, Customer deposits, previously included amounts for Items to be settled. The Items to be settled amounts are now
includedin Other assets and Other liabilities respectively. On the basis of materiality, comparative amounts as at 31 December
2015 and 2014 have not been adjusted.
The Consolidated statement of profit or loss is changed as follows:
The order of line items presented is changed to present the components of ‘Total income’ more inline with the core business
of ING;
Valuation results on non-trading derivatives and Net trading income have been combined into one line;
Interest income on trading portfolio has been split into two lines: ‘Interest income on trading derivatives’ and ‘Interest income
on other trading portfolio’; and
Interest expense on trading liabilities has been split into two lines: ‘Interest expense on trading derivatives' and ‘Interest
expense on other trading portfolio’.
The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
The defined contribution payment for pension plans was previously presented in ‘Adjusted for: other’ and is now presentedin
‘provisions and other liabilities. Comparatives have been adjusted accordingly.

c) Changesin IFRS effectivein 2016

ING Group has applied a number of interpretations and amendments to standards for the first time for the annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Apart from the accounting policy change described above, the implementation of these changes had an
insignificant impact on the consolidated financial position, net result, other comprehensive income and related disclosures of ING
Group. ING Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment which has beenissued, but is not yet
effective.

d) Upcoming changesin IFRS after2016

Changes to IFRS effective in2017onwards

The following published amendments are not mandatory for 2016 and have not been early adopted by the group. These amendments
are effective for 2017 annual periods (and 2018 for part of the annual improvements cycle) but have not yet been endorsed by the EU.
The implementation of these amendments will have no significant impact on ING Group's results or financial position.

The list of upcoming changes to IFRS, which are applicable for ING Group:
Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes": Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised losses;
Amendments to |AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative’;and
Annual improvement cycle 2014 - 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated annual accounts of ING Group - continued

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ was issued by the IASBin July 2014 and endorsed by the EU in November 2016. IFRS 9 will replace IAS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and includes requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities, impairment of financial assets, and hedge accounting. The new requirements become effective as of 1 January
2018. ING Group has decided to apply the classification, measurement, and impairment requirements retrospectively by adjusting the
opening balance sheet and opening equity at 1 January 2018, with no restatement of comparative periods. ING has also chosen not to
early adopt changes introduced by IFRS 9 for financial liabilities where movements in own credit for financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss will be presented in other comprehensive income.

IFRS 9 Program governance and status

The structure of the IFRS 9 Program has been set-up based on the three pillars of the IFRS 9 standard: Classification and Measurement,
Impairment, and Hedge Accounting. These central work streams consist of experts from Finance, Risk, Bank Treasury, Operations and
the business. The IFRS 9 Technical Board consists of the heads of various Finance and Risk functions supporting the IFRS 9 Steering
Committee by reviewing the interpretations of IFRS 9, the central guidance, and instructions as prepared by the central work streams.
The IFRS 9 Steering Committee is the key decision making body and consists of senior managers from Group Finance, Finance
Operations, Retail Banking, Credit & Trading Risk, Risk Operations, Bank Treasury, Balance Sheet Risk Management, and Wholesale
Banking Lending Services. In addition, aninternational IFRS 9 network has been created within ING to connect all countries with the
central team to ensure consistency inimplementation. The Management Banking Board and the Audit Committee are periodically
updated about IFRS 9 and will be actively involved in future decisions.

In order toincrease transparency and comparability across banks, the Enhanced Disclosure Task Force (EDTF) published areportin
November 2015 on recommended disclosures on IFRS 9 that can help the market understand the upcoming changes as a result of
using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) approach. Given that IFRS 9is effective on 1 January 2018, the EDTF recommended disclosures for
the periods prior to the 2018 financial statements aimed at promoting consistency and comparability across internationally active
banks.

The IFRS 9 Program is being implemented across functions, businesses, and countries. The Group Accounting policies are also being
updated to align IFRS 9. In 2017, parallel runs will be performed to ensure IFRS 9 readiness on 1 January 2018.

Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9is built on a single classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model in which they
are managed and their cash flow characteristics. Financial assets are therefore classified in their entirety rather than being subject to
complex bifurcation requirements.

Two criteria are used to determine how financial assets should be classified and measured at Amortised Cost, Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVPL):

1. TheBusiness Model assessment is performed to determine how a portfolio of financial instruments as a whole is managed in
order to classify it as Hold to Collect, Hold to Collect & Sell, or Other Business Model; and

2. Contractual cash flow characteristics test is performed to determine whether the financial instruments give rise to cash flows
that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI).

In 2016, the central team finalised a Business Model Blueprint based on the structure of the organisation and all the entities across the
Group through discussions with various parties from the business, finance, and risk functions. The central team created and
communicated the Business Model templates that were later tailored by local project teams to fit the local organisation as well as
local business structure and product offering.

The central team also finalised an approach for performing the SPPI test and is inthe process of performing a detailed analysis of the
cash flow characteristics of our financial assets to detect whether they meet SPPI criteria. The SPPI test is performed on groups of
assets that have a set of similar characteristics resulting in a homogenous population. Where testing is being performed at a local
level, these local teams are trained and supported by the central team to ensure IFRS 9 is understood and implemented consistently
across the Group.

The focus in 2017 will be finalising SPPI testing and formalising the governance to embed the changes brought by IFRS Sinto everyday
business and financial reporting cycles to ensure ongoing compliance.

Impact

INGis currently assessing the impact of IFRS 9 on the classification and measurement of its financial assets. The classification and
measurement of financial liabilities remains essentially the same as under IAS 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated annual accounts of ING Group - continued

Impairment

Thgexpected credit loss (ECL) model more is more forward-looking, thanthe incurred loss model under IAS 39. The ECL estimates are
required to be unbiased, probability-weighted, and should include supportable information about past events, current conditions, and
forecasts of future economic conditions. The ECL should reflect multiple macroeconomic scenarios and include the time value of
money. The ECL model applies to all on-balance financial assets accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI such as loans and debt
securities, as well as off-balance items such as certain loan commitments, financial guarantees, and undrawn revolving credit
facilities.

Three stage approach

ING Group will apply the IFRS 9 three stage approach to measure expected credit losses:
Stage 1: 12 month ECL - performing
Financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition require, at initial recognitiona
provisionfor ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months (12 month ECL).
Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - under-performing
In the event of a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a provisionis required for ECL resulting from all possible
default events over the expected life of the financial instrument (Lifetime ECL).
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - non-performing
Financial instruments that move into Stage 3 once credit impaired and purchases of creditimpaired assets will require a Lifetime
ECL provision.

Key concepts

ING Group aims to align the definition of creditimpaired under IFRS 9 with the definition of default for prudential purposes. ING Group
considers a financial asset credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact onthe estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. ING Group’s definition of modification that does not result in a derecognition event refers to
any non-significant changes to contractual terms that impact the (timing of) contractual cash flows of that financial asset. In case the
modification results in a significant change to the contractual terms, the asset is derecognised.

ING Group established a framework for whether an asset has a significant increase in credit risk. Each asset will be assessed at the
reporting date on the triggers for significant deterioration. ING Group intends to assess significant increase in credit risk using a delta in
the lifetime default probability, forbearance status, watch list status, arrears and the more than 30 days past due backstop for stage 1
to stage 2 transfers. The stage allocation will be implemented inthe central credit risk systems. In 2017 analyses on the movements
between stages in both directions will be performed.

Measurement

The calculation of ECL will be based on ING Group’s expected loss models (PD, LGD, EAD) currently used for regulatory capital,
economic capital, and collective provisions in the current IAS 39 framework. The IFRS 9 ECL model builds on existing IRB models,
removes embedded prudential conservatism (such as PD floors), and includes forward-looking point in time information based on
macroeconomicindicators, such as unemployment rates and GDP growth. The expected loss parameters will be determined by using
historical statistical relationships and macroeconomic predictions. For the small portfolios outside the IRB approach, existing
framework for loan loss provisions will be applied to set the parameters to measure credit risk. The lifetimerisk assessment will be
based on historical observations enriched with forward-looking information. The data series will be shorter compared to the assets
under the IRB approach.

Tomeasure ECL, ING Group applies a PD x EAD x LGD approach. For stage 1 assets a forward looking approach on a 12 month horizon
will be applied. For stage 2 assets a lifetime view on the underlying parameters is taken. The Lifetime Expected Loss (LEL) is the
discounted sum of the portions of lifetime losses related to default events within each time window of 12 months. For stage three the
PD equals 100% and the LGD and EAD represent a lifetime view of the characteristics of facilities that are in default.

In 2016, enhanced data was collected from all source systems within ING and significant progress has been made in the
implementation of IFRS 9 concepts in the central credit risk system. Furthermore, ING Group's asset portfolios are splitinto a number
of sub-portfolios based on asset class and jurisdiction (e.g. mortgages in the Netherlands) in order to accurately measure ECL.

Impact

Bcsped on the IFRS 9 ECL model a more volatile impairment charge may be expected on the back of macroeconomic predictions.
Financial assets with high risk and long maturity profiles are expected to be subject to the biggest impact. A 12-month ECL will be
recognized for all financial assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk. IFRS 9 requires to calculate lifetime ECL for
those assets with asignificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired at the reporting date (i.e. Stage
2). This category did not exist under IAS 39. These factors combined with off-balance sheet items also in scope of the ECL model could
resultinan increase inthe total level of impairment allowances.
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Notes to the Consolidated annual accounts of ING Group - continued

ING expects that any negative effect on equity may be partly offset by the release of expected loss elements currently included in the
calculation of requlatory capital (i.e. the regulatory shortfall). Asthe impact cannot be quantified reliably as of 31 December 2016,
ING intends to quantify the potential impact of IFRS 9 no later than inthe Annual Report 2017.

Hedge Accounting

The IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements aim to simplify general hedge accounting requirements. Furthermore, IFRS 9 aims to align
hedge accounting more closely with risk management. All micro hedge accounting strategies as well as the macro cash flow hedge
accounting are in scope of IFRS 9. Macro fair value hedging is not in scope of IFRS 9.

ING Group performed an assessment of the impact of the new hedge accounting requirements. Based on the outcome of this
assessment, ING Group has made a decision to continue applying IAS 39 for hedge accounting including the application of the EU
carve out as explicitly permitted by IFRS 9. ING Group will implement the revised hedge accounting disclosures as required by IFRS 7
‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ as per 1 January 2018.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers'is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and has been
endorsed by the EUin September 2016. IFRS 15 introduces afive-step approach for recognising revenue as and when the agreed
performance obligations are satisfied. Agreed performance obligations are individual promises made to the customer that delivers
benefit from the customers perspective. Revenue should either be recognised at a point-in-time or over-time depending on the service
being delivered to the customer. The standard may be applied retrospectively, although transitional relief isavailable. Fees related to
the effective yield of the loan whichis presented in Interest income and bank guarantee fees are not inthe scope of IFRS 15. INGis
currently assessing the revenue stream for commissionincome.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

In January 2016, the IASBissued IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ the new accounting standard for leases. The new standard is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and will replace IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease’. IFRS 16 is not yet endorsed by the EU. The new standard removes for lessee accounting, the distinction between
operating or finance leases, resulting in all leases being treated as finance leases. Allleases will be recognised on the statement of
financial position with the optional exceptions for short-term leases with alease term of less than 12 months and leases of low-value
assets (for example mobile phones or laptops). A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The main reason for this change is
that this approach will result in a more comparable representation of alessee’s assets and liabilities in relation to other companies
and, together with enhanced disclosures, will provide greater transparency of a lessee’s financial leverage and capital employed. The
standard permits alessee to choose either afull retrospective or a modified retrospective transition approach. Furthermore the
standard provides some practical options and exemptions to ease the costs of transition. Lessor accounting remains substantially
unchanged. ING will adopt the standard at its effective date and is currently assessing the impact of this standard.

e) Critical accounting policies

ING Group has identified the accounting policies that are most critical toits business operations and to the understanding of its results.
These critical accounting policies are those which involve the most complex or subjective decisions or assessments, and relate to loan
loss provisions, goodwill impairments, provisions, and the determination of the fair values of financial assets and liabilities. In each
case, the determination of these items is fundamental to the financial condition and results of operations, and requires management
to make complex judgements based on information and financial data that may change in future periods. As a result, determinations
regarding these items involve the use of assumptions and subjective judgements as to future events and are subject to change, as the
use of different assumptions or data could produce significantly different results. For a further discussion of the application of these
accounting policies, reference is made to the applicable notes to the consolidated financial statements and the informationin section
f) ‘Principles of valuation and determination of results".

Loan loss provisions

Loan loss provisions are recognised based on an incurred loss model. Considerable judgement is exercised in determining the extent of
the loan loss provision (impairment) and is based on management’s evaluation of the riskinthe portfolio, current economic
conditions, loss experience in recent years and credit, industry, geographical, and concentration trends. Changes in such judgements
and analyses may lead to changes in the loan loss provisions over time.

The identification of impairment and the determination of the recoverable amount are inherently uncertain processes involving

various assumptions and factors including the financial condition of the counterparty, expected future cash flows, observable market
prices, and expected net selling prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated annual accounts of ING Group - continued

Future cash flows in a portfolio of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment, are estimated on the basis of the
contractual cash flows of the assets inthe portfolio and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similarto
those in the portfolio. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions inthe
historical period that do not exist currently. Current observable data may include changes in unemployment rates, property prices,
and commodity prices. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed reqularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Goodwill impairment

ING assesses at each reporting period, whether there is an indication that an intangible asset may be impaired. Irrespective of whether
thereis an indication of impairment, intangible assets with anindefinite useful life, goodwill acquired in a business combination, and
intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested annually for impairment. Goodwill is allocated to groups of CGUs (that is, the
group of cash generating units or CGUs) for the purpose of impairment testing. These groups of CGUs represent the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is tested for impairment by comparing the carrying value of
the group of CGUs to the best estimate of the recoverable amount of that group of CGUs. The carrying value is determined as the IFRS
net asset value including goodwill. The recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Several methodologies are applied to arrive at the best estimate of the recoverable amount. Impairment of goodwill, if applicable,
isincludedinthe statement of profit or loss in Other operating expenses.

The identification and measurement of impairment is aninherently uncertain process involving various assumptions and factors,
including financial condition of the counterparty, expected future cash flows, statistical lossdata, discount rates, observable market
prices, etc. Estimates and assumptions are based on management’s judgement and other information available prior to the issuance
of the financial statements. Significantly different results can occur as circumstances change and additional information becomes
known.

Provisions

A provisioninvolves a present obligation arising from past events, the settlement of whichis expected to result in an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits, however the timing or the amount is uncertain. Provisions are discounted when the effect of
the time value of money is significant using a pre-tax discount rate. The recognition and measurement of provisions is aninherently
uncertain process involving determining when a present obligation exists and estimates regarding amounts and timing of cash flows.
Even in consultation with legal experts, the amount provisioned can remain sensitive to the assumptions used which may have a
range of outcomes that is difficult to quantifu.

Reorganisation provisions include employee termination benefits when the Group is demonstrably committed to either terminating
the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal, or providing termination
benefits as aresult of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.

A liabilityis recognised for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy
that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the liability is recognised only upon reaching the specified minimum threshold.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

All the financial assets and liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, whereas financial assets and liabilities classified as held-for-
trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets classified as available-for-sale are subsequently
measured at fair value infinancial statements.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell anasset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. It uses the assumptions that market participants would use and takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability. Fair values of
financial assets and liabilities are based on unadjusted quoted market prices where available. Such quoted market prices are primarily
obtained from exchange prices for listed financial instruments. Where an exchange price is not available, quoted prices in an active
market may be obtained from independent market vendors, brokers, or market makers. In general, positions are valued at the bid
price for along position and at the offer price for a short position or are valued at the price within the bid-offer spread that is most
representative of fair value in the circumstances. In some cases where positions are marked at mid-market prices, afair value
adjustment is calculated. When markets are less liquid there may be a range of prices for the same security from different price
sources, selecting the most appropriate price requires judgement and could result in different estimates of fair value.
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For certainfinancial assets and liabilities quoted market prices are not available. For these financial assets and liabilities, fairvalue is
determined using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques range from discounting of cash flows to various valuation models,
where relevant pricing factors including the market price of underlying reference instruments, market parameters (volatilities,
correlations and credit ratings), and customer behaviour are taken into account. ING maximises the use of market observable inputs
and minimises the use of unobservable input in determining the fair value. It can be subjective dependent on the significance of the
unobservable input to the overall valuation. All valuation techniques used are subject to internal review and approval. Most data used
inthese valuation techniques are validated on a daily basis.

When a group of financial assets and financial liabilities are managed on the basis of their net risk exposures, it measures the fair
value of agroup of financial assets and liabilities on net portfolio basis.

Toinclude creditriskin the fair value, ING applies both credit and debit valuation adjustments (CVA, DVA). Ownissued debt and
structured notes that are measured at fair value are adjusted for credit risk by means of a DVA. Additionally, derivatives valued at fair
value are adjusted for credit risk by a CVA. The CVA is of a bilateral nature as both the credit risk on the counterparty as well as the
creditriskon ING are included in the adjustment. All input data that is used inthe determination of the CVA is based on market implied
data. Additionally, wrong-way risk (when exposure to a counterparty is increasing and the credit quality of that counterparty
deteriorates) and right-way risk (when exposure to a counterpartyis increasing and the credit quality of that counterparty improves)
are taken into account inthe measurement of the valuation adjustment. ING applies an additional ‘funding valuation adjustment’
(FVA) based onthe market price of funding liquidity and is applied to the uncollateralised derivatives.

Valuation techniques are subjective in nature and significant judgement is involved in establishing fair values for certain financial
assets and liabilities. Valuation techniques involve various assumptions regarding pricing factors. The use of different valuation
techniques and assumptions could produce significantly different estimates of fair value.

Price testingis performed to assess whether the process of valuation has led to an appropriate fair value of the positionand to an
appropriate reflection of these valuations in the statement of profit or loss. Price testing is performed to minimisethe potential risks
for economic losses due to incorrect or misused models.

Reference is made to Note 37 ‘Fair value of assets and liabilities’ and the section ‘Risk management - Market risk’, paragraph ‘Fair
values of financial assets and liabilities for the basis of the determination of the fair value of financial instruments and related
sensitivities.

f) Principles of valuation and determination of results
Consolidation
ING Group (the Group) comprises ING Groep N.V. (the Parent Company), ING Bank N.V. and all other subsidiaries. The consolidated
financial statements of ING Group comprise the accounts of ING Groep N.V. and all entities in whichit either owns, directly or
indirectly, more than half of the voting power or over whichit has control of their operating and financial policies through situations
including, but not limited to:

Ability to appoint or remove the majority of the board of directors;

Power to govern such policies under statute or agreement; and

Power over more than half of the voting rights through an agreement with other investors.

Control exists if ING Group is exposed to variable returns and having the ability to affect those returns through power over the
investee.

A list of principal subsidiaries is included in Note 47 ‘Principal subsidiaries’.

A list containing the informationreferred toin Section 379 (1), Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code has been filed with the office of the
Commercial Register of Amsterdam, in accordance with Section 379 (5), Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered in assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

For interests ininvestment vehicles, the existence of control is determined taking into account both ING Group’s financial interests for
own risk and its role as investment manager.

The results of the operations and the net assets of subsidiaries are included in the statement of profit or loss and the statement of

financial position from the date control is obtained until the date control is lost. Ondisposal, the difference between the sales
proceeds, net of directly attributable transaction costs, and the net assets is included in net result.
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A subsidiary which ING Group has agreed to sell but is still legally owned by ING Group may still be controlled by ING Group at the
balance sheet date and therefore, still be included in the consolidation. Such a subsidiary may be presented as a held for sale disposal
group if certain conditions are met.

Allintercompany transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses and deficits on transactions between group companies are
eliminated to the extent that there is no impairment. Where necessary, the accounting policies used by subsidiaries are changed to
ensure consistency with group policies. In general, the reporting dates of subsidiariesare the same as the reporting date of ING Groep
N.V.

ING Groep N.V. and its Dutch group companies are subject to legal restrictions regarding the amount of dividends they can pay to their
shareholders. The Dutch Civil Code contains the restriction that dividends can only be paid up to an amount equal to the excess of the
company’s own funds over the sum of the paid-up capital and reserves required by law. Additionally, certain Group companies are
subject to restrictions on the amount of funds they may transfer inthe form of dividends, or otherwise, to the parent company.

Furthermore, in addition to the restrictions in respect of minimum capital requirements that are imposed by industry regulators inthe
countries in which the subsidiaries operate, other limitations exist in certain countries.

Use of estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements necessitatesthe use of estimates and assumptions. These estimatesand
assumptions affect the reported amounts of the assets and liabilities and the amounts of the contingent liabilities at the balance
sheet date, as well as reported income and expenses for the year. The actual outcome may differ from these estimates.

The process of setting assumptions is subject to internal control procedures and approvals, and takes into account internal and
external studies, industry statistics, environmental factors, and trends and regulatory requirements.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group, engaged in providing products or services, subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other segments monitored by management. A geographical area is a distinguishable component of the
Group engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic environments. The geographical analyses are based on the location of
the office from which the transactions are originated.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included inthe financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in euros,
which is ING Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transactions. Exchange rate differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
except when deferredin equity as part of qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Exchange rate differences on non-monetary items, measured at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value
gainor loss. Non-monetary items are retranslated at the date fair value is determined. Exchange rate differences on non-monetary
items measured at fair value through the revaluation reserve are included in the revaluation reserve in equity.

Exchange rate differences inthe statement of profit or loss are generally included in ‘Valuation results and net trading income’.
Reference is made to Note 22 ‘Valuationresults and net trading income’, which discloses the amounts included inthe statement of
profit or loss. Exchange rate differences relating to the disposal of available-for-sale debt and equity securities are considered to be an
inherent part of the capital gains and losses recognised in Investment income. As mentioned below, in Group companies relating to
the disposals of group companies, any exchange rate difference deferredinequityis recognised in the statement of profit or lossin
‘Result on disposal of group companies'. Reference is also made to Note 19 ‘Equity’, which discloses the amounts included in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Group companies

The results and financial positions of all group companies that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- Assetsand liabilities included in each statement of financial position are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;
Income and expenses included in each statement of profit or loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and
All resulting exchange rate differences are recognised in a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange rate differences arising from the translation of a monetary item that forms part of the net investmentina
foreign operation, and of borrowings and other instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operationis sold, the corresponding exchange rate differences are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
as part of the gainor loss onsale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Recognition of financial assets

All purchases and sales of financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale that
require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market convention (‘reqular way' purchases and sales) are
recognised at trade date, which is the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Loans and receivables are
recognised at settlement date, which is the date on which the Group receives or delivers the asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of afinancial asset, it derecognises the financial asset if it no longer has control over the asset.

Realised gains and losses on financial assets

For financial assets at amortised cost, realised gains and losses oninvestments are determined as the difference betweenthe sale
proceeds and (amortised) cost. For available-for-sale financial assets, the accumulated fair value adjustments in other comprehensive
income are included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is disposed. For equity securities, the cost is determined using a
weighted average per portfolio. For debt securities, the cost is determined by specificidentification.

Recognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the date that the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Such
contracts generally are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed or the contract is a derivative contract not exempted
from the scope of IAS 39.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished and the consideration paidis
recognised in profit or loss.

Classification of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include equity securities, debt securities, derivatives, loans and receivables, and
other, and comprise the following sub-categories: trading assets, non-trading derivatives, and financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss by management. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise the following sub-categories:
trading liabilities, non-trading derivatives, and other financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss by management.
Trading liabilities include equity securities, debt securities, funds on deposit, and derivatives.

A financial asset or financial liability is classified at fair value through profit or loss if acquired principally for the purpose of sellingin

the short term or if designated by management as such. Management will make this designation only if this eliminates a
measurement inconsistency or if the related assets and liabilities are managed on a fair value basis.
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Transaction costs on initial recognition are expensed as incurred. Interest income and expense from financial instruments is classified
at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in Interest income and Valuation results and net trading income in the statement of
profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Dividend income from equity instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss is generally recognised in Investment income in
the statement of profit or loss when the dividend has been declared. For derivatives reference is made to the ‘Derivatives and hedge
accounting’ section.

Investments

Investments (including loans quoted in active markets) are classified either as held-to-maturity or available-for-sale and are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Investment debt securities and loans quoted in active markets with fixed maturity
where management has boththe intent and the ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity. Investment securities
and actively traded loans intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or
changes ininterest rates, exchange rates or equity prices, are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include available-for-sale debt securities and available-for-sale equity securities. Available-for-sale
financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. For available-for-sale debt securities, the difference
between cost and redemption value is amortised. Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. Available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income from debt securities classified as available-for-sale is
recognisedin Interestincome inthe statement of profit or loss. Dividend income from equity instruments classified as available-for-
sale is recognised in Investment income inthe statement of profit or loss when the dividend has been declared. Unrealised gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in equity and are recycled to the statement of profit or loss as Investment
income when the asset is disposed. Investments in prepayment sensitive securities such as Interest-Only and Principal-Only strips are
generally classified as available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity for which the Group has the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity and which are designated by management as held-to-maturity assets are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less anyimpairment
losses. Interestincome from debt securities classified as held-to-maturityis recognised in Interest income in the statement of profit or
loss using the effective interest method. Held-to-maturity investments include only debt securities.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quotedin an active
market. They are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment losses. Loans and receivables include Cash and balances with central banks, Loans and
advances to banks, Loans and advances to customers, and Other assets and are reflected in these line items in the statement of
financial position. Interest income from loans and receivables is recognised in Interest income in the statement of profit or loss using
the effective interest method.

Credit risk management classification
Credit risk management disclosures are provided in the section ‘Risk management - Credit risk’ paragraph ‘Credit risk categories’. The
relationship between credit risk classifications in that section and the consolidated statement of financial position classifications above
is explained below:
Pre-settlement risk arises when a counterparty defaults on a transaction before settlement and ING Group has to replace the
contract by atrade with another counterparty at the then prevailing (possibly unfavourable) market price. The pre-settlement risk
classification mainly relatesto the statement of financial position classification Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(trading assets and non-trading derivatives) and to securities financing;
Money market risk arises when ING Group places short term deposits with a counterparty in order to manage excess liquidity and
among others relates to the statement of financial position classifications Loans and advances to banks and Loans and advances
to customers;
Lending risk arises when ING Group grants aloan to a customer, or issues guarantees on behalf of a customer and mainly relates
to the statement of financial position classification Loans and advances to customers and off-balance sheet items e.qg. obligations
under financial guarantees and letters of credit;
Investment risk comprises the credit default and migration risk that is associated with ING Group's investment portfolio and mainly
relates to the statement of financial position classification Investments (available-for-sale and held-to-maturity); and
Settlement risk arises when there is an exchange of value (funds, instruments or commodities) for the same or different value
dates and receipt is not verified or expected until ING Group has paid or deliveredits side of the trade. Settlement risk mainly
relates to the risk arising on disposal of financial instruments that are classified in the statement of financial position as Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (trading assets and non-trading derivatives) and Investments (available-for-saleand
held-to-maturity).
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Maximum credit risk exposure

The maximum credit risk exposure for items in the statement of financial positionis generally the carrying value for the relevant
financial assets. For the off-balance sheet items the maximum credit exposure is the maximum amount that could be required to be
paid. Reference is made to Note 44 ‘Contingent liabilities and commitments’ for these off-balance sheet items. Collateral received is
not taken into account when determining the maximum credit risk exposure.

The manner in which ING Group manages credit risk and determines credit risk exposures for that purpose is explained in the section
‘Risk management - Credit risk’ paragraph ‘Credit Risk Appetite and Concentration Risk Framework'.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost include the following sub-categories: preference shares classified as debt, debt securitiesinissue,
subordinated loans, and deposits from banks and customer deposits.

Borrowings are recognised initially at their issue proceeds (fair value of consideration received) net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the redemption
value is recognised inthe statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the statement of financial position, and the difference between the carrying
amount of the liability and the consideration paid is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for aloss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at the higher of the discounted best estimate of the
obligation under the guarantee and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation to reflect revenue recognition
principles.

Derivatives and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions
and valuation techniques (such as discounted cash flow models and option pricing models), as appropriate. Allderivativesare carried
as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair values are negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other contracts are measured as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to those of the host contract, the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss, and if a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes infair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. An assessment is carried
out when the Group first becomes party to the contract. A reassessment is carried out only when there is a change inthe terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the expected cash flows.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of
recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedge), hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable to a
recognised asset or liability or aforecast transaction (cash flow hedge), or hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation. Hedge
accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

At the inception of the transaction ING Group documents the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, its risk
management objective, together with the methods selected to assess hedge effectiveness. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inceptionand on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes infair values or cash flows of the hedged items.

ING Group applies fair value hedge accounting to portfolio hedges of interest rate risk (macro hedging) under the EU carve out. The EU
carve-out macro hedging enables a group of derivatives (or proportions) to be viewed in combination and jointly designated as the
hedging instrument and removes some of the limitations in fair value hedge accounting relating to hedging core deposits and under-
hedging strategies. Under the EU carve-out, hedge accounting may be applied to core deposits and ineffectiveness only arises when
the revised estimate of the amount of cash flows in scheduled time buckets falls below the designated amount of that bucket.
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ING Group applies fair value hedge accounting for portfolio hedges of interest rate risk (macro hedging) under the EU carve-out to its
retail operations. The net exposures of retail funding (savings and current accounts) and retail lending (mortgages) are hedged. The
hedging activities are designated under a portfolio fair value hedge onthe mortgages. Changes inthe fair value of the derivatives are
recognised inthe statement of profit or loss, together with the fair value adjustment on the mortgages (hedged items) insofar as
attributable tointerest rate risk (the hedged risk).

Fair value hedges

Changes inthe fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised inthe statement of profit
or loss, together with fair value adjustments to the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. If the hedge relationship no longer
meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the cumulative adjustment of the hedged itemis, inthe case of interest bearing instruments,
amortised through the statement of profit or loss over the remaining term of the original hedge or recognised directly when the
hedged item is derecognised. For non-interest bearing instruments, the cumulative adjustment of the hedged item is recognisedin
the statement of profit or loss only when the hedged item is derecognised.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes inthe fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognisedin
equity. The gainor loss relating to the ineffective portionis recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. Amounts
accumulated inequity are recycled to the statement of profit or loss inthe periods in which the hedged item affects net result. When
a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transactionis ultimately recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. When a forecast transactionis no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported
inequityis transferredimmediately to the statement of profit or loss.

Net investment hedges

Hedges of net investments inforeign operations are accounted for ina similar way to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the
hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognisedin equity and the gainor loss relating to the ineffective
portionis recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the
statement of profit or loss when the foreign operationis disposed.

Non-trading derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Derivative instruments that are used by the Group as part of its risk management strategies, but which do not qualify for hedge
accounting under ING Group's accounting policies, are presented as non-trading derivatives. Non-trading derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes inthe fair value takento the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported, in the statement of financial position when the Group
has a current legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends to either settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Offsetting is applied to certaininterest rate swaps for which the services of a central
clearing house are used. Offsetting is also applied to certain clients subject to cash pooling arrangements where the intention to settle
net is demonstrated via a physical transfer of cash balances into a single netting account on a period end basis.

Repurchase transactions and reverse repurchase transactions
Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (repos) are retained inthe consolidated financial statements. The counterparty
liabilityisincluded in Deposits from banks, Subordinated loans, Customer deposits, or Trading, as appropriate.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repos) are recognised as Loans and advances to customers, Loans and
advances to banks, or Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - Trading assets, as appropriate. The difference betweenthe
sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and amortised over the life of the agreement using the effective interest method.

Impairments of financial assets at amortised cost
ING Group assesses periodically and at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that afinancial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset,
but before the balance sheet date, (aloss event) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The following circumstances, among others, are
considered objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assetsis impaired:
+ The borrower has sought or has been placed in bankruptcy or similar protection and this leads to the avoidance of or delaysin
repayment of the financial asset;
The borrower has failed inthe repayment of principal, interest, or fees and the payment failure has remained unsolved for a
certain period;
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The borrower has demonstrated significant financial difficulty, to the extent that it will have a negative impact on the expected
future cash flows of the financial asset;

The credit obligation has been restructured for non-commercial reasons. ING Group has granted concessions, for economic or
legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the effect of whichis areductionin the expected future cash flows of
the financial asset; and

Historical experience, updated for current events where necessary, provides evidence that a proportion of a group of assets is
impaired although the related events that represent impairment triggers are not yet captured by the Group’s credit risk systems.

In certain circumstances ING grants borrowers postponement and/or reduction of loan principal and/or interest payments for a
temporary period of time to maximise collection opportunities, and if possible, avoid default, foreclosure, or repossession. When such
postponement and/or reduction of loan principal and/or interest payments is executed based on credit concerns it is also referred to
as forbearance. Ingeneral, forbearance represents animpairment trigger under IFRS. In such cases, the net present value of the
postponement and/or reduction of loan and/or interest payments is takeninto account inthe determination of the appropriate level
of Loan loss provisioning as described below. If the forbearance results in a substantial modification of the terms of the loan, the
original loanis derecognised and a new loanis recognised at its fair value at the modification date. The Group determines whether
there has been a substantial modification using both quantitative and qualitative factors.

The Group does not consider events that may be expected to occur in the future as objective evidence, and consequently they are not
used as a basis for concluding that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired.

In determining the impairment, expected future cash flows are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assetsin
the portfolio and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the portfolio. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable datato reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period
on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions inthe historical period that do not currently
exist. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, and thenindividually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for anindividually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the assetina
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which animpairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not includedin a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an asset carried at amortised cost has beenincurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not beenincurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account (Loan loss provision) and the amount of the loss is
recognised inthe statement of profit or loss under Addition to loan loss provision. If the asset has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics.
Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’
ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. The collective evaluation of
impairment includes the application of aloss emergence period to default probabilities (also referred to as loss identification period).
The loss emergence period is a concept which recognises that there is a period of time between the emergence of impairment triggers
and the pointintime at which those events are captured by the Group’s credit risk systems. Accordingly, the application of the loss
emergence period ensures that impairments that are incurred but not yet identified are adequately reflected inthe Group’s loan loss
provision. Although the loss emergence periods are inherently uncertain, the Group applies estimates to sub-portfolios (e.g. large
corporations, small and medium size enterprises, and retail portfolios) that reflect factors such as the frequency with which customers
inthe sub-portfolio disclose credit risk sensitive information and the frequency with which they are subject to review by the Group’s
account managers. Generally, the frequency increases in relation to the size of the borrower. Loss emergence periods are based on
historical experience and are validated, and revised where necessary, through regular back-testing to ensure that they reflect recent
experience and current events.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement inthe debtor's credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the provision. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

When a loanis uncollectable, it is written off against the related loan loss provision. Such loans are written off after all the necessary

procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are recognised inthe statement of profit or loss.
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In most Retail portfolios, ING Bank has a write-off policy that requires 100% provision for all retail exposure after two years (three
years for mortgages) following the last default date.

Impairments on other debt instruments (Loans and held-to-maturity investments) are part of the loan loss provision as described
above.

Impairment of available for sale financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
isimpaired. Inthe specific case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. Significant and prolonged are interpreted
on a case-by-case basis for specific equity securities; generally 25% and six months are used as triggers. If any objective evidence
exists for available-for-sale debt and equity investments, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference betweenthe acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less anyimpairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in net result -is removed from
equity and recognised inthe statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised on equity instruments can never be reversed. If,
ina subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the statement of profit or loss.

Investments in associates and joint ventures
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. Significant influence generally results froma
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, but alsois the ability to participate in the financial and operating policies
through situations including, but not limited to one or more of the following:

Representation on the board of directors;

Participationinthe policymaking process; and

Interchange of managerial personnel.

Joint ventures are entities over which the Group has joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control over an
arrangement or entity, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control. Joint control means that no party to the agreement is able to act unilaterally to control the activity of the entity. The
parties to the agreement must act together to control the entity and therefore exercise the joint control.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using the equity method
of accounting.

The Group's investment in associates and joint ventures (net of any accumulated impairment loss) includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. The Group's share of its associates and joint ventures post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition changes in reserves is recognised in equity. The cumulative post-acquisition changes are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Whenthe Group's share of losses in an associate or joint venture equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest inthe associates and joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless they provide evidence of animpairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates and joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group. The reporting dates of all significant associates and joint ventures are consistent with the
reporting date of the Group.

Property and equipment

Property in own use

Land and buildings held for own use are stated at fair value at the balance sheet date. Increases inthe carrying amount arisingon
revaluation of land and buildings held for own use are credited to the revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. Decreases inthe
carrying amount that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve directly in equity; all
other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Increases that reverse a revaluation decrease onthe same asset
previously recognised in net result are recognised inthe statement of profit or loss. Depreciationis recognised based on the fair value
and the estimated useful life (in general 20-50 years). Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis. On disposal, the related
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

The fair values of land and buildings are based on regular appraisals by independent qualified valuers or internally, similar to

appraisals of real estate investments. Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying amount when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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Equipment

Eguigment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of the assets is depreciatedona
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives, which are generally as follows: for data processing equipment two to five years,
and four to tenyears for fixtures and fittings. Expenditure incurred on maintenance and repairs is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss as incurred. Expenditure incurred on major improvements is capitalised and depreciated.

Disposals
The difference between the proceeds on disposal and net carrying value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss under Other
income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Borrowing costs are determined at the weighted average cost of capital of the
project.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date.

ING Group as the lessee
The leases entered into by ING Group are primarily operating leases. The total payments made under operating leases are recognised
inthe statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any penalty payment to be made to the lessoris
recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

ING Group as the lessor

When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable under Loans
and advances to customers or Loans and advances to banks. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the
receivable is unearned lease finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method
(before tax), which reflects a constant periodic rate of return. When assets are held subject to an operating lease, the assets are
included under Assets under operating leases.

Assets under operating leases
Assets leased out under operating leases in which ING Group is the lessor are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of the assets is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Acquisitions, goodwill and other intangible assets

Acquisitions and goodwill

ING Group's acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The consideration for each acquisitionis
measured at the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilitiesincurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued in exchange for control of the acquiree. Goodwill, being the difference between the cost of the acquisition
(including assumed debt) and the Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities as at the
date of acquisition, is capitalised as anintangible asset. Goodwill is only capitalised on acquisitions. The results of the operations of the
acquired companies are included inthe statement of profit or loss from the date control is obtained.

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent considerationis measured at its acquisition-date fair value. Contingent consideration arrangements
classified as an asset or a liability, are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
classified as equity, are not recognised.

Where a business combinationis achieved in stages, ING Group’s previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the acquired
entity are remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date ING Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if
any, is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognisedin other comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss, where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of. Acquisition related costs are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss asincurred and presented in the statement of profit or loss as Other operating expenses.

Until 2009, before IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ was revised, the accounting of previously held interests inthe assets and liabilities of

the acquired entity were not remeasured at the acquisition date and the acquisition related costs were considered to be part of the
total consideration.
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The initial accounting for the fair value of the net assets of the companies acquired during the year may be determined only
provisionally as the determination of the fair value can be complex and the time between the acquisition and the preparation of the
Annual Accounts can be limited. The initial accounting shall be completed within a year after acquisition. Adjustments to the fair value
as at the date of acquisition of acquired assets and liabilities, that are identified within one year after acquisition are recognised as an
adjustment to goodwill; any subsequent adjustment is recognised as income or expense. On disposal of group companies, the
difference between the sale proceeds and carrying value (including goodwill) and the unrealised results (including the currency
translation reserve in equity) is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Computer software

Computer software that has been purchased or generated internally for own use is stated at cost less amortisation and any
impairment losses. Amortisationis calculated on a straight-line basis over its useful life. This period will generally not exceed five
years. Amortisationis included in Other operating expenses.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are capitalised and amortised over their expected economic life, whichis generally between three and ten
years. Intangible assets with anindefinite life are not amortised.

Taxation
Income tax on the result for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
but itis recognised directly in equity if the tax relates to items that are recognised directly in equity.

Deferred income tax

Deferredincome taxis provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax basis of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax s provided on temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
difference will not reverse inthe foreseeable future. The tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward are recognised as
an asset where itis probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax related to fair value remeasurement of available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are recognised
directlyinequity, is also recognised directly in equity and is subsequently recognised in the statement of profit or loss together with
the deferred gainor loss.

Uncertain tax positions are assessed continually by ING Group and in case it is probable that there will be a cash outflow; a current tax
liability is recognised.

Other assets

Investment property

Investment properties are recognised at fair value at the balance sheet date. Changes in the carrying amount resulting from
revaluations are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Ondisposal, the difference between the sale proceeds and carrying
value is recognised inthe statement of profit or loss.

Property obtained from foreclosures

Property obtained from foreclosures is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price, less applicable variable selling expenses. Property obtained from foreclosures is included in Other assets - Property development
and obtained from foreclosures.

Property development
Property developed and under development for which ING Group has the intention to sell the property after its completionis included
in Other assets - Property development and obtained from foreclosures.

Property developed and under development for which ING Group has the intention to sell the property under development after its
completionand where there is not yet a specifically negotiated contract is measured at direct construction cost incurred up to the
balance sheet date, including borrowing costs incurred during constructionand ING Group’s own directly attributable development
and supervision expenses less any impairment losses. Profit is recognised using the completed contract method (on sale date of the
property). Impairment is recognised if the estimated selling price, less applicable variable selling expenses is lower than carrying value.
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Property under development for which ING Group has the intention to sell the property under development after its completion and
where there is a specifically negotiated contract is valued using the percentage of completion method (pro rata profit recognition). The
stage of completionis measured by reference to costs incurred to date as percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Property under development is stated at fair value (with changes in fair value recognisedinthe statement of profit or loss) if ING Group
has the intention to recognise the property under development after completion as real estate investments.

Disposal groups held for sale and discontinued operations

Disposal groups (and groups of non-current assets) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This is only the case when the sale is highly probable and the disposal
group (or group of assets) is available for immediate sale inits present condition; management must be committed to the sale, which
is expected to occur within one year from the date of classification as held for sale.

Upon classification as held for sale, the carrying amount of the disposal group (or group of assets) is compared toits fair value less
cost tosell. If the fair value less cost to sell is lower than the carrying value, this expected loss is recognised through a reduction of the
carrying value of any goodwill related to the disposal group and the carrying value of certain other non-current non-financial assets.
Any excess of the expected loss over the reduction of the carrying amount of these relevant assets is not recognised upon
classification as held for sale, but is recognised as part of the result on disposal if and when a divestment transaction occurs.

When a group of assets that is classified as held for sale represents a major line of business or geographical area the disposal group
classifies as discontinued operations. Upon classification of a business as held for sale and discontinued operations the individual
income and expenses are classified to Total net result from discontinued operations instead of being presented in the usual line items
inthe Consolidated statement of profit or loss. All comparative years inthe Consolidated statement of profit or loss are restated and
presented as discontinued operations for all periods presented. Furthermore, the individual assets and liabilities are presented in the
Consolidated statement of financial position as Assets and liabilities held for sale and are no longer included in the usual line items in
the Consolidated statement of financial position. Changes in assets and liabilities as a result of classification as held for sale are
includedin the notes in the line Changes in composition of the group and other changes.

Other liabilities
Defined benefit plans

The net defined benefit asset or liability recognised in the statement of financial positionin respect of defined benefit pension plans is
the fair value of the plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

Plan assets are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date. For determining the pension expense, the return on plan assetsis
determined using a high quality corporate bond rate identical to the discount rate usedin determining the defined benefit obligation.

Changes inplan assets that effect Shareholders’ equity and/or Net result, include mainly:
return on plan assets using a high quality corporate bond rate at the start of the reporting period which are recognised as staff
costs in the statement of profit or loss; and
remeasurements which are recognisedin Other comprehensive income (equity).

The defined benefit obligationis calculated by internal and external actuaries through actuarial models and calculations using the
projected unit credit method. This method considers expected future payments required to settle the obligation resulting from
employee service inthe current and prior periods, discounted using a high quality corporate bond rate. Inherent in these actuarial
models are assumptions including discount rates, rates of increase in future salary and benefit levels, mortality rates, trend rates in
health care costs, consumer price index and the expected level of indexation. The assumptions are based on available market data as
well as management expectations and are updated regularly. The actuarial assumptions may differ significantly from the actual
results due to changes in market conditions, economic and mortality trends, and other assumptions. Any changes in these
assumptions could have a significant impact on the defined benefit plan obligation and future pension costs.

Changes inthe defined benefit obligation that effects Shareholders’ equity and/or Net result, include mainly:
service cost which are recognised as staff costs in the statement of profit or loss;
interest expenses using a high quality corporate bond rate at the start of the period which are recognised as staff costs inthe
statement of profit or loss; and
remeasurements which are recognised in Other comprehensive income (equity).

Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income are not recycled to profit or loss. Any past service cost relating to a plan

amendment is recognised in profit or loss inthe period of the plan amendment. Gains and losses on curtailments and settlements are
recognised inthe statement of profit or loss when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

137



Consolidated
annualaccounts

Notes to the Consolidated annual accounts of ING Group - continued

The recognition of a net defined benefit asset in the consolidated statement of financial positionis limited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Defined contribution plans

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pensioninsurance plans ona
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as staff expenses inthe profit or loss when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or areduction inthe future payments is available.

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide post-employment healthcare and other benefits to certain employees and former employees. The
entitlement to these benefits is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of
a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment using an accounting
methodology similar to that for defined benefit pension plans.

Income recognition

Interest

Interest income and expense are recognised in the statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method. The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculationincludes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial
assets has been written down as aresult of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Allinterest income and expenses from trading positions and non-trading derivatives are classified as interest income and interest
expenses inthe statement of profit or loss. Changes in the ‘clean fair value’ are included in Valuation results and net trading income.

Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions are generally recognised as the service is provided. Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn
down are deferred (together with related direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan. Loan
syndication fees are recognised as income when the syndication has been completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan
package for itself or has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants. Commission and fees arising from
negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of, a transaction for a third party - such as the arrangement of the acquisition of shares
or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses - are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction. Portfolio and
other management advisory and service fees are recognised based on the applicable service contracts as the service is provided. Asset
management fees related to investment funds and investment contract fees are recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period the
service is provided. The same principle is applied for wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time. Fees received and paid between banks for payment services are classified as
commissionincome and expenses.

Lease income

The proceeds from leasing out assets under operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease
agreement. Lease payments received in respect of finance leases when ING Group is the lessor are divided into aninterest component
(recognised as interestincome) and a repayment component.

Expense recognition
Expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as incurred or when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a
decrease inan asset or an increase in aliability has arisen that can be measured reliably.

Share-based payments

Share-based payment expenses are recognised as a staff expense over the vesting period. A correspondingincrease in equity is
recognised for equity-settled share-based payment transactions. A liability is recognised for cash-settled share-based payment
transactions. The fair value of equity-settled share-based payment transactions are measured at the grant date, and the fair value of
cash-settled share-based payment transactions are measured at each balance sheet date. Rights granted will remain valid until the
expiry date, even if the share based payment scheme is discontinued. The rights are subject to certain conditions, including a pre-
determined continuous period of service.
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Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will
be complied with. Whenthe grant relates to an expense item, the grant is recognised over the period necessary to match the grant on
a systematic basis to the expense that it is intended to compensate. In such case, the grantis deducted from the related expense in
the statement of profit or loss.

Earnings per ordinary share
Earnings per ordinary share is calculated on the basis of the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. In calculating
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding:

Own shares held by group companies are deducted from the total number of ordinary shares inissue;

The computationis based on daily averages; and

In case of exercised warrants, the exercise date is taken into consideration.

The non-voting equity securities are not ordinary shares, because their terms and conditions (especially with regard to coupons and
voting rights) are significantly different. Therefore, the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the periodis
not impacted by the non-voting equity securities.

Diluted earnings per share data are computed as if all convertible instruments outstanding at year-end were exercised at the
beginning of the period. Itis also assumed that ING Group uses the assumed proceeds thus received to buy its own shares against the
average market price inthe financial year. The net increase inthe number of shares resulting from the exercise is added to the
average number of shares used to calculate diluted earnings per share.

Share options with fixed or determinable terms are treated as options in the calculation of diluted earnings per share, even though
they may be contingent on vesting. They are treated as outstanding on the grant date. Performance-based employee share options
are treated as contingently issuable shares because their issue is contingent upon satisfying specified conditions in addition to the
passage of time.

Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method, classifying cash flows as cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities. Inthe net cash flow from operating activities, the result before taxis adjusted for those items inthe
statement of profit or loss and changes initems per the statement of financial position, which do not result in actual cash flows during
the year.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances with central banks, treasury bills and other eligible bills, amounts due from
other banks, and deposits from banks. Investments qualify as a cash equivalent if they are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the date
of the cash flows.

The net cash flow shownin respect of Loans and advances to customers relates only to transactions involving actual payments or
receipts. The Additionto loanloss provision whichis deducted from the item Loans and advances to customers inthe statement of
financial position has been adjusted accordingly from the result before tax and is shown separately in the statement of cash flows.

The difference between the net cash flow in accordance withthe statement of cash flows and the change in Cash and cash
equivalents inthe statement of financial positionis due to exchange rate differences andis accounted for separately as part of the
reconciliation of the net cash flow and the change in Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

g) Parent company accounts

The parent company accounts of ING Groep N.V. are prepared in accordance with the financial reporting requirements included in Part
9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. In accordance with subsection 8 of section 362, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, the recognition and
measurement principles applied inthe Parent company accounts are the same as those applied in the Consolidated annual accounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated statement of financial position

Assets
2 Cash and balances with central banks

Cash and balances with central banks

2016 2015
Amounts held at centralbanks 16,408 19,753
Cash and bank balances 1,736 1,705

18,144 21,458

In 2016, the decrease in Cashand balances with central banks is mainly as a result of the lowering of excess liquidity.
Amounts held at central banks reflect on demand balances.
Reference is made to Note 41 ‘Assets not freely disposable’ for restrictions on Cash balances with central banks.

3 Loans and advances tobanks

Loans and advances to banks

Netherlands International Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Loans 10,381 11,549 18,483 17,497 28,864 29,046
Cash advances, overdraftsand other balances 3 531 2 425 5 956

10,384 12,080 18,485 17,922 28,869 30,002

Loan loss provisions -11 -14 -11 -14
10,384 12,080 18,474 17,908 28,858 29,988

Loans include balances (mainly short-term deposits) with central banks amounting to EUR 2,880 million (2015: EUR 1,104 million).

As at 31 December 2016, Loans include receivables related to securities in reverse repurchase transactions amounting to EUR 2,992
million (2015: EUR 1,092 million) and receivables related to finance lease contracts amounting to EUR 88 million (2015: EUR 114
million). Reference is made to Note 42 ‘Transfer of financial assets’ for information on securities lending as well as sale and repurchase
transactions. Reference is made to Note 6 ‘Loans and advances to customers’ for information on finance lease receivables.

As at 31 December 2016, the non-subordinated receivables amount to EUR 28,790 million (2015: EUR 29,924 million) and the
subordinated receivables amount to EUR 68 million (2015: EUR 64 million).

Reference is made to Note 41 ‘Assets not freely disposable’ for restrictions on Loans and advances to banks.
Noindividual loans and advances to banks has terms and conditions that significantly affect the amount, timing or certainty of
consolidated cash flows of the Group. For details on significant concentrations, refer to the section ‘Risk management - Credit risk’

paragraph ‘Credit Risk Appetite and Concentration Risk Framework’.

4 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2016 2015
Trading assets 114,504 131,467
Non-trading derivatives 2,490 3,347
Designated as at fair value through profit or loss 5,099 3,234

122,093 138,048
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Reference is made to Note 42 ‘Transfer of financial assets’ for information on securities lending as well as sale and repurchase
transactions.

Trading assets

2016 2015
Equity securities 9,513 14,799
Debt securities 9,863 14,316
Derivatives 38,231 39,012
Loans and receivables 56,897 63,340

114504 131,467

In 2016, the decrease is mainly caused by lower market activities.

As at 31 December 2016, Trading assets include receivables of EUR 56,020 million (2015: EUR 62,221 million) with regard to reverse
repurchase transactions.

Trading assets and trading liabilities include assets and liabilities that are classified under IFRS as Trading but are closely related to
servicing the needs of the clients of ING Group. ING offers institutional and corporate clients and governments products that are traded
on the financial markets. A significant part of the derivatives in the trading portfolio are related to servicing corporate clients in their
risk management to hedge for example currency or interest rate exposures. In addition, ING provides its customers access to equity
and debt markets for issuing their own equity or debt securities (securities underwriting). Although these are presented as Trading
under IFRS, these are directly related to services to ING's customers. Loans and receivables inthe trading portfolio mainly relate to
(reverse) repurchase agreements, which are comparable to collateralised lending. These products are used by ING as part of its own
regular treasury activities, but also relate to the role that ING plays as intermediary between different professional customers. Trading
assets and liabilities held for ING's ownrisk are very limited. From a risk perspective, the gross amount of trading assets must be
considered together with the gross amount of trading liabilities, which are presented separately on the statement of financial position
However, IFRS does not allow netting of these positions inthe statement of financial position. Reference is made to Note 14 ‘Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ for information on trading liabilities.

Non-trading derivatives

Non-trading derivatives by type

2016 2015
Derivatives used in
— fair value hedges 1,012 1,010
— cash flow hedges 438 917
- hedges of net investments in foreign operations 73 72
Other non-trading derivatives 967 1,348
2,490 3,347

ING Group holds warrants for 35 million shares and 26 million shares in NN Group N.V. and Voya Financial Inc. respectively.

Other non-trading derivatives mainly includes interest rate swaps and foreign exchange currency swaps for which no hedge
accounting is applied. As at 31 December 2016, Other non-trading derivatives includes EUR 175 million (2015: EUR 103 million) and
EUR 19 million (2015: EUR 58 million) related to warrants on the shares of Voya Financial Inc. and NN Group N.V. respectively.
Reference is made to Note 22 ‘Valuationresults and net trading income’.
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Designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Designated as at fair value through profit or loss by type

2016 2015
Equity securities 3 7
Debt securities 1,669 1,080
Loans and receivables 3,427 2,147
5,099 3,234

Includedin the Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss is a portfolio of loans and receivables whichis
economically hedged by credit derivatives. The hedges do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting and the loans are recorded at
fair value to avoid an accounting mismatch. The maximum credit exposure of the loans and receivables included in Financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss approximates its carrying value. The cumulative change in fair value of the loans
attributable to changes in credit riskis not significant.

The notional value of the related credit derivatives is EUR 260 million (2015: EUR 215 million). The change in fair value of the credit
derivatives attributable to changes in credit risk since the loans were first designated, amounts to EUR -8 million (2015: EUR -9 million)
and the change for the current year amounts to EUR 1 million (2015: nil).

The changes infair value of the (designated) loans attributable to changes in credit risk have been calculated by determining the
changes in credit spread implicit in the fair value of bonds issued by entities with similar credit characteristics.

As at 31 December 2016, Loans and receivables designated at fair value through profit or loss includes EUR 3,001 million (2015:
EUR 1,766 million) with regard to reverse repurchase transactions.

5 Investments

Investments by type

2016 2015
Available-for-sale
— equity securities - shares in third party managed structured entities 170 169
— equity securities - other 3,854 4,265
4,024 4434
— debt securities 78,888 82,566

82,912 87,000

Held-to-maturity
— debt securities 8,751 7,826
8,751 7,826

91,663 94,826

Investments held-to-maturity increased by EUR 0.9 billion. The increase is attributable to a new investment in USD government bonds
and bonds issued by financial institutions, offsetby a decrease in covered bonds.

In June 2016, the VISA transaction closed. As a result of this transaction, the Available-for-sale equity securities amounting to EUR 163
million, comprising ordinary shares held in VISA Europe Limited, were derecognised. As part of the upfront consideration, ING received
EUR 30 million preferred shares convertible into VISA Inc. class A ordinary shares. These preferred shares are classified as Available-for-
sale equity securities. Reference is made to Note 51 ‘Other events'.

In the fourth quarter of 2016, the merger between Equens SE (Equens) and Worldline was completed. The legal entity Equens ceased
to exist and was renamed equensWorldline SE. ING Group previously held 15.42%in Equens at EUR 34.7 million. As a result of the
merger, ING Group now holds a shareholding of 5.9%in the combined company at EUR 64.9 million. Reference is made to Note 23
‘Investment income’ for further information onthe results from the merger included inthe statement of profit or loss.
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In October 2016 ING sold 2.5% of Kotak Mahindra Bank shares representing a carrying value of EUR 456 million.

Exposure to debt securities
ING Group's exposure to debt securities is included in the following lines in the statement of financial position:

Debt securities*

2016 2015
Available-for-sale investments 78,888 82,566
Held-to-maturity investments 8,751 7,826
Loansand advancesto customers 7,471 9,625
Loansand advancesto banks 952 1,857
Available-for-sale investments and Assets at amortised cost 96,062 101,874
Trading assets 9,863 14,316
Designated as at fair value through profit or loss 1,669 1,080
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11,532 15,396

107,594 117,270

ING Group's total exposure to debt securities included in available-for-sale investments and assets at amortised cost of EUR 96,062
million (2015: EUR 101,874 million) is specified as follows by type of exposure:

Debt securities by type and line items per the statement of financial position - Available-for-sale investments and Assets at

amortised cost

Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity Loans and advances Loans and advances
investments investments to customers to banks Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Government bonds 41,985 46,104 6,688 5,500 858 874 49,531 52,478
Sub-sovereign,
Supranationalsand
Agencies 20,484 20,337 1,613 1,619 267 297 22,364 22,253
Covered bonds 11,297 11,949 100 350 1,820 2,119 882 1,787 14,099 16,205
Corporatebonds 1,345 1,177 791 1,036 2,136 2,213
Financialinstitutions'
bonds 2,020 1,865 351 363 70 64 2,441 2,292
ABS portfolio 1,757 1,134 350 357 3,384 4,936 6 5,491 6,433
Bond portfolio 78,888 82,566 8,751 7,826 7,471 9,625 952 1,857 96,062 101,874

Sub-sovereign Supranationals and Agencies (SSA) compriseamongst others, multilateral development banks, regional governments,
local authorities, and US agencies. Under certain conditions, SSA bonds may qualify as Level 1 High Quality Liquid Assets for the
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR).

Approximately 97% (2015: 91%) of the exposure inthe ABS portfoliois externally rated AAA up to and including A-.

Borrowed debt securities are not recognised in the statement of financial position and amount to nil (2015: nil).

Reference is made to Note 42 ‘Transfer of financial assets’ for information on securities lending as well as sale and repurchase
transactions.
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Changes in available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments

Changes in available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments

Available-for-sale Available-for-sale
equity securities debt securities Held-to-maturity Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Opening balance 4,434 2,718 82,566 92,684 7,826 2,239 94,826 97,641
Additions 80 1,279 27,073 42,976 1,731 3,457 28,884 47,712
Amortisation -144 -106 -87 -67 -231 -173
Transfers and reclassifications -92 -3,499 3,499 -92
Changesin unrealised revaluations 363 743 -102 -1,595 -70 -72 191 -924
Impairments -13 -117 -17 -13 -134
Disposals and redemptions -682 -216 -30,483 -48,331 -630 -1,219 -31,795 -49,766
Exchangerate differences -72 27 -16 469 -19 -11 -107 485
Changesin the composition of the group and
other changes 6 -6 -15 -15
Closing balance 4,024 4,434 78,888 82,566 8,751 7,826 91,663 94,826

Reference is made to Note 23 ‘Investment income’ for details on Impairments.

In 2016 ‘Changes in the composition of the group and other changes’ includes the modification of an Available-for-sale debt security
into newly issued shares.

Transfers and reclassifications of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments

Transfers and reclassifications of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments

Available-for-sale Available-for-sale
equity securities debt securities Held-to-maturity Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
To/from held-to-maturity -3,499 -3,499
To/from available-for-sale 3,499 3,499
To/frominvestment in associates and joint
ventures -82 -82
To/from other assets/other liabilities -10 -10
-92 - = -3,499 = 3,499 -92 -

In 2015, EUR 3.5 billion of mainly Government bonds previously classified as Available-for-sale debt securities were classified as Held-
to-maturity due to ING's intent and ability to hold these bonds until maturity.

Available-for-sale equity securities - Listed and Unlisted

2016 2015
Listed 3,539 3,804
Unlisted 485 630
4,024 4,434
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6 Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers by type

Netherlands?? International? Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Loansto, or guaranteed by, public authorities! 27,746 30,912 18,634 18,214 46,380 49,126
Loans secured by mortgages? 126,885 128,685 191,745 179,938 318,630 308,623
Loans guaranteed by credit institutions® 201 4,795 944 191 1,145 4,986
Personal lending? 4,376 5,636 18,722 17,041 23,098 22,677
Asset backed securities 3,380 4,936 3,380 4,936
Corporate loanst2 38,530 197,069 137,675 119,162 176,205 316,231

197,738 367,097 371,100 339,482 568,838 706,579

Loan loss provisions -2,349 -2,900 -2,829 -2,872 -5,178 -5,772
195389 364,197 368,271 336,610 563,660 700,807

N

The comparative amounts, as at 31 December 2015, are adjusted. Total Loans and advances to customers, as at 31 December 2015, increased by EUR 163.5 billon
from EUR 537.3 billion to EUR 700.8 billion mostly as a result of an increase in Corporate loans by EUR 146.1 billion from EUR 170.2 billion to EUR 316.2 billion.
Reference is made to Note 1 ‘Accounting policies’ - Change in accounting policies and Changes in presentation in 2016.

2 In 2016, Loans and advances to customers by type as at 31 December 2015 are adjusted. Certain Corporate Loans have been reclassified to Loans secured by
mortgages.

The decrease inLoans and advances to customers compared to 2015 is primarily due to a change in accounting policies implemented
in2016. Reference is made to Note 1 ‘Accounting policies’ - Changes in accounting policiesin 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, Loans and advances to customers includes receivables with regard to securities which have been acquiredin
reverse repurchase transactions amounting to EUR 47 million (2015: EUR 418 million).

Reference is made to Note 42 ‘Transfer of financial assets’ for information on securities lending as well as sale and repurchase
transactions.

Loans and advances to customers by subordination

2016 2015
Non-subordinated?! 562,363 699,510
Subordinated 1,297 1,297

563,660 700,807

1 The comparative amounts, as at 31 December 2015, are adjusted as a result of a change in accounting policies and a reclassification for Items to be cleared. Total
Loans and advances to customers, as at 31 December 2015, increased by EUR 163.5 billion from EUR 537.3 billion to EUR 700.8 billion. Reference is made to Note 1
‘Accounting policies’ - Change in accounting policies and Changes in presentation in 2016.

Noindividual loan or advance has terms and conditions that significantly affect the amount, timing or certainty of the consolidated

cash flows of the Group. For details on significant concentrations, refer to the section ‘Risk management - Credit risk’ paragraph ‘Credit
Risk Appetite and Concentration Risk Framework'.
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Loans and advances to customers and Loans and advances to banks include finance lease receivables and are detailed as follows:

Finance lease receivables

2016 2015
Maturities of gross investment in finance lease receivables
— within 1 year 2,492 2,690
— morethan 1 year but less than 5 years 6,282 6,004
— morethan 5 years 3,114 3,672

11,888 12,366

Unearned future financeincome on finance leases -1,254 -1,507

Net investment in finance leases 10,634 10,859

Maturities of net investment in finance lease receivables

— within 1 year 2,210 2,368
— morethan 1 year but less than 5 years 5,635 5,246
— morethan 5 years 2,789 3,245

10,634 10,859

Included in Loans and advancesto banks 88 114

Included in Loans and advancesto customers 10,546 10,745
10,634 10,859

The allowance for uncollectable finance lease receivables includes in the loan loss provisions an amount of EUR 282 million as at 31
December 2016 (2015: EUR 271 million).

Noindividual finance lease receivable has terms and conditions that significantly affect the amount, timing or certainty of the
consolidated cash flows of the Group.

Loan loss provisions by type

Netherlands International Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Loansto, or guaranteed by, public authorities 7 2 7 2
Loanssecured by mortgages 550 819 638 717 1,188 1,536
Loansguaranteed by credit institutions 2 1 12 15 14 16
Personal lending 122 177 620 712 742 889
Asset backed securities 2 2 2 2
Corporateloansand Credit Facilities 1,738 1,903 1,617 1,438 3,355 3,341
2,412 2,900 2,896 2,886 5,308 5,786
The closing balanceis included in
— Loans and advancesto banks 11 14 11 14
- Loans and advancesto customers 2,349 2,900 2,829 2,872 5,178 5,772
— Other provisions other 63 56 119
2,412 2,900 2,896 2,886 5,308 5,786
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Changes in loan loss provisions

2016 2015
Opening balance 5,786 5,995
Write-offs -1,494 -1,718
Recoveries 94 91
Increase in loan loss provisions 974 1,347
Exchangerate differences -55 38
Changesin the composition of the group and other changes 3 33
Closing balance 5,308 5,786

The Increase inloan loss provisions is presented as Addition to loan loss provisions in the Consolidated statement of profit or loss.

7 Investments in associates and joint ventures

Investments in associates and joint ventures

Fair value
of listed Balance
Interest invest- sheet Total Total Total Total
2016 held (%) ment value assets liabilities income  expenses
TMB Public Company Limited 30 729 861 21,439 19,275 685 489
Other investments in associates and joint ventures 280
1,141
Investments in associates and joint ventures
Fair value
of listed Balance
Interest invest- sheet Total Total Total Total
2015 held (%) ment value assets liabilities income  expenses
TMB Public Company Limited 30 801 732 20,956 19,074 630 419
Other investments in associates and joint ventures 230
962

TMB Public Company Limited (TMB) is an associate in which ING Group holds a 30% ownership interest. TMBis a financial institution
providing products and services to Wholesale, Smalland Medium Enterprise (SME) and Retail customers. TMB is domiciled in Bangkok,
Thailand and is listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

Other investments in associates and joint ventures are mainly investment property funds or vehicles operating predominantly in
Europe.

ING Group does not hold any interests in Investments in Associates and joint ventures that are individually significant to ING Group.
Other investments in associates and joint ventures represents alarge number of associates and joint ventures with an individual
statement of financial position value of less than EUR 50 million.

Significant influence for associatesin which the interest held is below 20%, is based on the combination on ING Group’s financial
interest and other arrangements, such as participationinthe Board of Directors.

In general, the reporting dates of all significant associates and joint ventures are consistent with the reporting date of the Group.
However, the reporting dates of certain associates and joint ventures can differ from the reporting date of the Group, but by no more
than three months.

Accumulated impairments of EUR 48 million (2015: EUR 24 million) have been recognised. The values presented in the tables above
could differ from the values presentedin the individual annual accounts of the associates and joint ventures, due to the fact that the
individual values have been brought inline with ING Group's accounting principles. Where the listed fair value is lower than the
statement of financial position value, animpairment review and an evaluation of the going concern basis has been performed.
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The associates and joint ventures of ING are subject to legal and requlatory restrictions regarding the amount of dividends it can pay
to ING. These restrictions are for example dependant onthe laws inthe country of incorporation for declaring dividends or as a result
of minimum capital requirements that are imposed by industry regulators in the countries in which the associates and joint ventures
operate. In addition, the associates and joint ventures also consider other factors in determining the appropriate levels of equity
needed. These factors and limitations include, but are not limited to, rating agency and regulatory views, which can change over time.

Changes in Investments in associates and joint ventures

2016 2015
Opening balance 962 953
Additions 49 24
Transfers to and from Investments/Other assets and liabilities 75 -10
Revaluations 38 5
Share of results 91 110
Dividends received -37 -33
Disposals -54 -125
Impairments =3
Exchangerate differences 20 20
Changesin the composition of the group and other changes 18
Closing balance 1,141 962

Additions
In 2016 additions are mainly due to several smaller investments in associates.

Transfers to and From Investments/Other assets and liabilities
In 2016 transfers included EUR 82 million reclassification from Available-for-sale equity securitiesto associates and EUR -7 million
reclassification from/to other assets and other liabilities.

Revaluations
In 2016, revaluations as presented in the table above of EUR 38 millionincludes, EUR 54 million relating to TMB, EUR 17 million relating
to Equens SE, and EUR -31 millionis due to other revaluations.

Share of results

In 2016, Share of results from associates and joint ventures of EUR 88 million as presented in the statement of profit or loss, includes:
Share of results, as presented in the table above of EUR 91 million mainly attributable to results of TMB amounting to EUR 68
million and a gain of EUR 21 million on disposal of shares held in VISA Europe Limited; and
Impairments of investments in associates and joint ventures of EUR -3 million.

In 2015, Share of results from associates and joint ventures of EUR 492 million as presented in the statement of profit or loss, included:
= Share of results, as presented in the table above, of EUR 110 million mainly attributable to results of TMB amounting to EUR 75
million and gain on disposal of Ivy Retail SRL and Ontwikkelingscombinatie Overhoeks C.V.amounting to EUR 10 millionand EUR 5
million respectively;
A net gain on Investments in associates held for sale of EUR 382 million, which comprised EUR 367 million from the merger of ING
Vysya with Kotak and EUR 15 million on the sale of ING Nationale Nederlanden PTE Polska, S.A.; and
Impairments oninvestments in associates and joint ventures of nil.

Disposals
In 2016, Disposals of EUR 54 millionis mainly attributable to the sale of Enterprise Center of EUR 40 million and capital repayment
CBRE Asia Value Fund of EUR 10 million.

In 2015, Disposals of EUR 125 million was mainly attributable to sale of lvy Retail SRL and Ontwikkelingscombinatie Overhoeks C.V. as
referred to above.

Exchange rate differences

In 2016, Exchange rate differences includes EUR 20 million, of which 28 million relates to TMB and EUR -9 million relates to Appia
Group (2015: EUR 11 millionrelated to TMB).
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8 Property and equipment

Property and equipment by type

2016 2015
Property in own use 881 982
Equipment 1,015 971
Assets under operating leases 106 74
2,002 2,027

ING uses external valuers to value propertyinown use. All properties are typically appraised by external valuers once every five years.

Changes in property inown use

2016 2015
Opening balance 982 1,020
Additions 9 10
Reclassifications
- Transfers to and from Investment properties 8
- Transfers to and from Other assets 4
8
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year
- Depreciation -15 -16
- Impairments -64 -17
- Reversal of impairments 5 14
-74 -19
Revaluationsrecognised in equity during the year 11 32
Disposals -38 -60
Exchangerate differences -17 -6
Closing balance 881 982
Gross carrying amount asat 31 December 1,656 1,823
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 December -504 -635
Accumulated impairments as at 31 December -271 -206
Net carrying value asat 31 December 881 982
Revaluation surplus
Opening balance 273 219
Revaluation in the year -17 54
Closing balance 256 273

The cost or the purchase price amounted to EUR 1,400 million (2015: EUR 1,551 million). Cost or the purchase price less accumulated
depreciation and impairments would have been EUR 625 million (2015: EUR 710 million) had property in own use been valued at cost
instead of at fair value.
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Changes in equipment

Data Fixtures and fittings

processing equipment and other equipment Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Opening balance 263 265 708 733 971 998
Additions 161 140 181 176 342 316
Disposals 5 -6 -20 -7 -25 -13
Depreciation -137 -125 -178 -186 -315 -311
Exchangerate differences 5 4 =5 -1 -10 -5
Changesin the composition of the group and other changes 46 -7 6 -7 52 -14
Closing balance 323 263 692 708 1,015 971
Gross carrying amount asat 31 December 1,274 1,092 2,432 2,482 3,706 3,574
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 December -950 -828 -1,740 -1,774 -2,690 -2,602
Accumulated impairments as at 31 December -1 -1 -1 -1
Net carrying value asat 31 December 323 263 692 708 1,015 971

9 Intangible assets

Changes in intangible assets

Goodwill Software Other Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Opening balance 985 1,061 567 574 15 20 1,567 1,655
Additions 93 134 93 134
Capitalised expenses 195 122 195 122
Amortisation -182 -265 -5 -5 -187 -270
Impairments -45 -15 -45 -15
Exchangerate differences -82 -70 -1 -1 -83 -71
Disposals -9 -1 -9 -1
Changesin the composition of the group and
other changes -6 -47 18 1 -47 13
Closing balance 903 985 571 567 10 15 1,484 1,567
Gross carrying amount asat 31 December 903 985 1,756 1,706 29 29 2,688 2,720
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 December -1,147 -1,128 -17 -12 -1,164 -1,140
Accumulated impairments as at 31 December -38 -11 -2 -2 -40 -13
Net carrying value asat 31 December 903 985 571 567 10 15 1,484 1,567
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Goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to groups of CGUs as follows:

Goodwill allocation to group of CGUs

Method used

for recoverable Discount Long term
amount rate growth rate Goodwill Goodwill
Group of CGU's 2016 2015
Retail Belgium Values in use 8.64% 0.45% 50 50
Retail Germany Values inuse 7.74% 0.45% 349 349
Fair value less
Retail Growth Markets? 2 cost of disposal 12.48% 3.19% 375 427
Wholesale Banking? Values inuse 8.80% 0.96% 129 159

903 985

1 Asof 2016, the group of CGUs Retail Central Europe is renamed to Retail Growth and enhanced with Asian stakes to align with segment reporting. This change has
no impact on goodwill allocated to this group of CGUs in 2016 and 2015.
2 Goodwill related to Growth Countries is allocated across two groups of CGUs EUR 375 miillion to Retail Growth and EUR 109 million to Wholesale Banking.

No goodwill impairment was recognised in 2016 (2015: nil). Changes in the goodwill per group of CGUs in 2016 is due to changes in
currency exchange rates.

Goodwill impairment testing

Impairment reviews with respect to goodwill are performed at least annually and more frequently if events indicate that impairments
may have occurred. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the lowest level at whichit is monitored for internal management purposes
and is referred to as a Cash Generating Unit (CGU), or group of CGUs. Goodwill is tested for impairment by comparing the carrying
value of the group of CGUs (that is, the group of cash generating units or CGUs) to the best estimate of the recoverable amount of that
group of CGUs. In compliance with IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’, the carrying value is determined on a basis that is consistent with the
way inwhich the recoverable amount of the CGU is determined. The actual IFRS capital is the basis for allocation of carrying value to
CGUs, adjusted for Retail/Wholesale splitusing a solvency allocation key which is based on the CGUs share of risk-weighted assets.

Methodology

Several methodologies are applied to arrive at the best estimate of the recoverable amount. Inline with IFRS, the recoverable amount
is determined as the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and Value in Use (VIU). Fair value less costs of disposal is based on
observable share prices (Level 1inputs inthe fair value hierarchy), observable Price-to-Book multiples of relevant peer banks (Level 2),
or based on a discounted free cash flow model (Level 3). The VIU calculationis based on a Dividend Discount model using five year
management approved plans. When estimating the VIU of a CGU, local conditions and requirements determine the capital
requirements, discount rates, and terminal growth rates. These local conditions and requirements determine the ability to upstream
excess capital and profits to ING Group. The discount rate calculationincludes other inputs such as equity market premium, country
risk premium, and long term inflation which are based on market sources and management’s judgement. The long term growth rate
for EU-countries is based on long-term risk-free rate by reference to the yield of a composite index consisting of Euro generic
government bonds, with a maturity of 30 years. For other countries, the growth rate includes long terminflation rate obtained from
market sources.

The carrying value of the CGUs exceeds the recoverable amount for 2016 and 2015 and therefore noimpairmentis required.

Sensitivity of key assumptions

Key assumptions in the goodwill impairment test model are the Price to Book ratios, share price of listed subsidiaries and the local
parameters for CET1, discount rate, and long term growth rates. The model was tested for sensitivity by changing the key parameters
inthe model to more conservative values. The sensitivity analysis did not trigger additional impairment considerations.

Software
Software, includes internally developed software amounting to EUR 395 million (2015: EUR 319 million).

As of 2016, the amortisation period for capitalised software is changed from three to five years. The change is applied prospectively.
The change results ina lower charge to the statement of profit or loss for the year. The change has no significantimpact onthe
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the statement of
profit or loss of ING Group in future years. Amortisation of software and other intangible assets is included in the statement of profit or
loss in other operating expenses. Reference is made to Note 27 ‘Other operating expenses'.
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10 Other assets
2016 2015
Net defined benefit assets 609 643
Investment properties 65 77
Property development and obtained from foreclosures 184 212
Accrued interest and rents 5,588 6,228
Other accrued assets 884 717
Amounts to be settled 4,815 2,087
Other 2,577 2,297
14,722 12,261

Disclosures inrespect of Net defined benefit assets are provided in Note 35 ‘Pension and other post-employment benefits'.

Property development and obtained from foreclosures

Property development and obtained from foreclosures

2016 2015

Property developed 109 141
Property obtained from foreclosures 75 71
184 212

Gross carrying amount asat 31 December 469 531
Accumulated impairments as at 31 December -285 -319
Net carrying value 184 212

Accrued interest and rents

As at 31 December 2016, the line item includes accruedinterest of EUR 1,939 million (2015: EUR 2,290 million) on trading derivative
assets and EUR 2,773 million (2015: EUR 2,895 million) on loans and available-for-sale bonds. Accrued interest on trading derivative
assets should be considered together with accrued interest on trading derivative liabilities as included in Other liabilities. Reference is
made to Note 16 ‘Other liabilities’. The remainder of the balance relates mainly to accrued interest on cash flow hedges, fair value
hedges and other non-trading derivatives.

Other accrued assets
In 2016, Other accrued assets increased by EUR 167 million, mainly due to card transactions.

Amounts to be settled

Amounts to be settled are primarily transactions not settled at the balance sheet date. They are short termin nature and are
expected to settle shortly after the balance sheet date. The increase in 2016 is partly attributable to the reclassification of Items to be
settled inrespect of securities transactions. Items to be settled in respect of securities transactions of nil,at 31 December 2016 (31
December 2015: EUR 1,499 million), were previously reported under Loans and advances to customers and Loans and advances to
banks. On the basis of materiality, comparative amounts as at 31 December 2015 have not been adjusted. Furthermore, the increased
balance, as at 31 December 2016, is due to higher market activity compared to year end.

Other
Other assets - Other relates mainly to other receivables in the normal course of business.
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11 Assets held for sale
As at 31 December 2015, Assets held for sale related to the investment of 25.75% in the associate NN Group which amounted to
EUR 2,153 million.

During 2016, ING Group sold its remaining shares in NN Group resulting in a net profit of EUR 448 million whichis recognisedin the
statement of profit or loss inthe line ‘Net result from disposal of discontinued operations’.

Reference is made to Note 28 ‘Discontinued operations’ and Note 51 ‘Other events'.
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Liabilities
12 Deposits from banks
Deposits from banks include non-subordinated debt from banks, except for amounts in the form of debt securities.

Deposits from banks by type

Netherlands International Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Non-interest bearing 1,304 449 1,063 449 2,367
Interest bearing 13,778 12,331 17,737 19,115 31,515 31,446
13,778 13,635 18,186 20,178 31,964 33,813

In 2016, ING participated inthe new targeted longer-term refinancing operations (TLTROI) of EUR 10.7 billion and early redeemed the
old TLTRO I tranches for EUR 8.7 billion.

The TLTRO aims to stimulate lending to the real economyinthe Eurozone. The interest rate on the TLTRO's is fixed over the life of each
operation at the benchmark rate of the European Central Bank.

Reference is made to Note 42 ‘Transfer of financial assets’ for information on securities lending as well as sale and repurchase
transactions.

13 Customer deposits

Customer deposits

2016 2015
Savingsaccounts 315,697 305,941
Credit balances on customer accountst 173,230 316,717
Corporate deposits 32,687 40,244
Other 1,328 1,339

522,942 664,241

1 The comparative amounts, as at 31 December 2015, are adjusted as a result of a change in accounting policies. Total Customer deposits, as at 31 December 2015,
increased by EUR 163.5 billion from EUR 500.8 billion to EUR 664.2 billion as a result of an increase in Credit balances on customer accounts. Reference is made to
Note 1 ‘Accounting policies' - Change in accounting policies and presentation in 2016.

Customer deposits by type

Netherlands® International Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Non-interest bearing 13,536 12,360 16,911 13,367 30,447 25,727
Interest bearing? 151,446 310,950 341,049 327,564 492,495 638,514

164,982 323,310 357,960 340,931 522,942 664,241

1 The comparative amounts, as at 31 December 2015, are adjusted as a result of a change in accounting policies. Total Customer deposits, as at 31 December 2015,
increased by EUR 163.5 billion from EUR 500.8 billion to EUR 664.2 billion. Reference is made to Note 1 ‘Accounting policies’ - Change in accounting policies in 2016.

Savings accounts relate to the balances on savings accounts, savings books, savings deposits, and time deposits of personal
customers. The interest payable on savings accounts, which is contractually added to the accounts, is also included.

Reference is made to Note 42 ‘Transfer of financial assets’ for information on securities lending as well as sale and repurchase
transactions.
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14 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2016 2015
Trading liabilities 83,167 88,807
Non-trading derivatives 3,541 4,257
Designated at fair value through profit or loss 12,266 12,616

98974 105,680

Trading liabilities
Trading liabilities by type

2016 2015
Equity securities 1,975 3,773
Debt securities 4,146 5,342
Fundson deposit 37,753 38,789
Derivatives 39,293 40,903

83,167 88,807

The decrease inthe trading liabilitiesis mainly due to a reduction of short positions, expiring contracts, and changes in fair value
resulting from market interest rates and exchange rates. Reference is made to Note 4 ‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ for information on trading assets.

Reference is made to Note 42 ‘Transfer of financial assets’ for information on securities lending as well as sale and repurchase
transactions.

Non-trading derivatives

Non-trading derivatives by type

2016 2015
Derivatives used in:
— fair value hedges 1,888 2,411
— cash flow hedges 671 1,167
— hedges of net investments in foreign operations 33 52
Other non-trading derivatives 949 627
3,541 4257

Other non-trading derivatives mainly includes interest rate swaps and foreign currency swaps for which no hedge accounting is
applied.

Designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Designated as at fair value through profit or loss by type

2016 2015
Debt securities 10,736 11,623
Funds entrusted 969 407
Subordinated liabilities 561 586

12,266 12,616

In 2016, the change inthe fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss attributable to changes in
creditriskis EUR 50 million (2015: EUR -163 million) and EUR 170 million (2015: EUR 119 million) on a cumulative basis. This change
has been determined as the amount of change infair value of the financial liability that is not attributable to changes in market
conditions that gave rise to market risk (i.e. mainly interestrate risk based on yield curves).
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The amount that ING Group is contractually required to pay at maturity to the holders of financial liabilities designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is EUR 11,720 million (2015: EUR 12,220 million).

15 Provisions

Provisions by type

2016 2015
Reorganisation provisions 1,482 670
Other provisions 546 294
2,028 964

Reorganisation provisions

Changes in reorganisation provisions

2016 2015
Opening balance 670 728
Additions 1,202 180
Unused amounts reversed -13 -15
Utilised -365 -226
Exchangerate differences -5 5
Changesin the composition of the group and other changes -7 -2
Closing balance 1,482 670

In 2016, ING Group recognised an additional reorganisation provision of EUR 1,032 million, forthe intended workforce reductions per
the intended digital transformation programmes as announced on ING's Investor Day on 3 October. The intended initiatives are
expectedto resultina reduction of ING's workforce mainly in Belgium and the Netherlands during 2016 to 2021.

In 2015, Additions to reorganisation provisions was mainly attributable to existing reorganisation initiatives in Retail Netherlands and
Belgium.

These initiatives are implemented over a period of several years and the estimate of the reorganisation provisions is inherently
uncertain. The provision at the balance sheet date represents the best estimate of the expected redundancy costs and are expected
to be sufficient to cover these costs.

Other provisions
Litigation Other Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Opening balance 187 190 107 99 294 289
Additions 235 105 120 8 355 113
Unused amounts reversed -46 -81 -6 -24 -52 -105
Utilised -28 -17 -19 -2 -47 -19
Exchangerate differences -1 -2 -1 -1 -2 -3
Changesin the composition of the group and other changes 6 -8 -8 27 -2 19
Closing balance 353 187 193 107 546 294

In 2016, Other provisions - other changes include amounts related to Letters of Credit / Guarantees of EUR 119 million. Ingeneral,
Other provisions are of a short-term nature. As at 31 December 2016, amounts expected to be settled within twelve months, amount
to EUR 322 million. The amounts included in other provisions are based on best estimates with regard to amounts and timing of cash
flows required to settle the obligation.

Included in Other provisions - Litigationin 2016 and 2015, is a provision related to floating interest rate derivatives that were sold in
the Netherlands. Reference is made to Note 27 ‘Other operating expenses’ and Note 45 ‘Legal proceedings'.
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Includedin Other provisions - Litigationin 2016, is a provision related to medical insurance plan damages for retired employees of ING
Belgium. Reference is made to Note 27 ‘Other operating expenses’ and Note 45 ‘Legal proceedings’.

16 Other liabilities
2016 2015
Net defined benefit liability 521 498
Other post-employment benefits 87 98
Other staff-related liabilities 498 349
Other taxation and social security contributions 495 565
Accrued interest 4,394 5,156
Costspayable 2,242 1,874
Share-based payment plan liabilities 26 26
Amounts to be settled 6,391 2,390
Other 2,198 2,176
16,852 13,132

Disclosures inrespect of Net defined benefit liabilities are provided in Note 35 ‘Pension and other post-employment benefits'.

Other staff-related liabilities
Other staff-related liabilities includes vacation leave provisions, variable compensation provisions, jubilee provisions, and
disability/iliness provisions.

Amounts to be settled

Amounts to be settledincreased compared to 31 December 2015 as a result of reclassification of Items to be settled in respect of
securities transactions. The items to be settled in respect of securities transactions of EUR 3,571 million, at 31 December 2016 (31
December 2015: EUR 2,257 million), were previously reported under Customer deposits and Deposits from banks. On the basis of
materiality, comparative amounts as at 31 December 2015, have not been adjusted. Furthermore, the remainingincrease, as at 31
December 2016, is due to higher market activity compared to year end.

Other
Other liabilities - Other relates mainly to year-end accruals. Included in Other liabilities - Other, are accruals related to ING's
contributions to the Deposit Guarantee Scheme (DGS) and the Single Resolution Fund (SRF).
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17 Debt securities in issue

Debt securities inissue relate to debentures and other issued debt securities with either fixed interest rates or interest rates based on
floating interest rate levels, such as certificates of deposit and accepted bills issued by ING Group, except for subordinated items. Debt
securities inissue do not include debt securities presented as Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. ING Group does not
have debt securities that are issued on terms other than those available inthe normal course of business. The maturities of the debt
securities are as follows:

Debt securities in issue - maturities

2016 2015
Fixed rate debt securities
Within 1 year 27,208 40,728
Morethan 1 year but less than 2 years 12,151 7,807
Morethan 2 yearsbut less than 3 years 7,365 11,192
Morethan 3 yearsbut less than 4 years 7,893 6,068
Morethan 4 yearsbut less than 5 years 8,674 7,845
Morethan 5 years 14,716 20,415
Total fixed rate debt securities 78,007 94,055
Floating rate debt securities
Within 1 year 13,278 10,483
Morethan 1 year but less than 2 years 2,724 6,056
Morethan 2 yearsbut less than 3 years 4,168 1,958
Morethan 3 yearsbut less than 4 years 793 2,827
Morethan 4 yearsbut less than 5 years 320 476
Morethan 5 years 3,944 5434
Totalfloating rate debt securities 25,227 27,234
Total debt securities 103,234 121,289

In 2016, the decrease in Debt securities inissue of EUR 18.1 billion is mainly attributable to a decrease inlong term maturity bonds of
EUR 9.1 billion, a decrease of EUR 6.5 billionin certificates of deposit, decrease of EUR 2.9 billion covered bonds, decrease in other debt
securitiesinissue EUR 2.1 billion, partially offset by anincrease in commerical paper of EUR 2.5 billion.

As at 31 December 2016, ING Group has unused lines of credit available including the payment of commercial paper borrowings
relating to debt securities inissue of EUR 12,015 million (2015: EUR 14,646 million).

18 Subordinated loans
Subordinated loans by group companies

2016 2015
ING Groep N.V. 7,203 7,265
ING Group companies 10,020 9,146

17,223 16,411

Subordinated loans issued by ING Groep N.V. have beenissued toraise Tier 1 capital for ING Bank N.V. Under IFRS these bonds are
classified as liabilities and for regulatory purposes, they are considered capital. Subordinated loans issued by ING Group companies
comprise, for the most part, subordinated loans which are subordinated to all current and future liabilities of ING Bank N.V.
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Changes in subordinated loans

2016 2015
Opening balance 16,411 18,158
New issuances 2,070 3,159
Repayments -1,252 -6,092
Exchange rate differences and other -6 1,186
Closing balance 17,223 16,411

In April 2016, ING Bank N.V. issued EUR 1,000 million CRD IV-eligible Tier-2 instruments. The transaction had anissuer substitution
option which gives ING the right to exchange these for subordinated Tier-2 notes issued by ING Groep N.V. ING has classified this
instrument as a financial liability because of the contractual interest payments and fixed maturity date.

In November 2016, ING Groep N.V. issued USD 1,000 million securities that qualify as Additional Tier 1 capital under CRR/CRD IV. The
issuance was inthe form of 5 Year Callable USD denominated Perpetual Additional Tier 1 Contingent Convertible Securities, with
coupon 6.875%. The securities are subject to full conversioninto ordinary shares of ING Groep N.V. inthe event that ING's phased-in
CET1ratio would fall below 7%. ING has classified this instrument as a financial liability because ING is obliged to deliver cash or
another financial asset, or to otherwise settle the instrument in such a way that it would be a financial liability (e.g. by delivering a
variable number of shares) upon the occurrence of an uncertain future event (i.e. a trigger event) that is beyond the control of both
the issuer and the holder.

In February, March, and September 2016 respectively, ING Groep N.V.redeemed the final tranche of subordinated loans from the
Anchor investors (EUR 338 million), GBP 66 million 5.14% Bond and the USD 800 million 7.05% ING Perpetual Debt Securities.

The average interest rate on subordinated loans is 4.94% (2015: 4.89%). The interest expense during the year 2016 was EUR 816
million (2015: EUR 901 million).

For additional information, reference is made to the Parent company annual accounts, Note 5 ‘Subordinated loans'.

ING Groep N.V.- Anchor investors
Subordinated loans issued by ING Groep N.V. include subordinated notes issued by the Anchor investors amounting to nil (2015: EUR
337.5million).

In 2014, EUR 1,125 million was received from three external investors (Asian-based investment firmsRRJ Capital, Temasek and Sea
Town Holdings International) in relation to the IPO of NN Group. This funding, which bears a 4% interest rate, was to be repaidinthree
tranches of NN Group shares. The number of shares in the repayment was variable, such that the fair value of the shares at
repayment date equalled the notional repayment amount, taking into account a discount inthe range of 1.5%to 3% of the market
price.

In July 2014, a first tranche of EUR 450 million of the mandatorily exchangeable subordinated notes was exchanged into NN Group
shares. InJune 2015, a second tranche of EUR 337.5 million of the mandatorily exchangeable subordinated notes was exchanged into
13.6 million NN Group ordinary shares and comprised a non-cash transaction. In February 2016, the remaining tranche, of EUR 337.5
million, was mandatorily exchanged. For further information, reference is made to Note 51 ‘Other events'.
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Equity
19 Equity
2016 2015 2014
Share capitaland share premium
- Share capital 39 928 925
- Share premium 16,950 16,054 16,046

16,989 16,982 16,971

Other reserves

- Revaluation reserve: Available-for-sale and other 3,830 3,896 6,838

- Revaluation reserve: Cash flow hedge 777 666 3,877

- Revaluation reserve: Property in own use 204 326 306

- Net defined benefit asset/liability remeasurement reserve -371 -306 -504

- Currency translation reserve -770 -538 -741

- Share of associates, joint ventures and other reserves 2,235 1,733 1,483

- Treasuryshares -8 -18 -46

5,897 5,759 11,213

Retained earnings 26,907 25,091 23,160
Shareholders' equity (parent) 49,793 47,832 51,344
Non-controlling interests 606 638 8,072
Total equity 50,399 48,470 59,416

Share capital and share premium
Share capital

Share capital

Ordinary shares (par value EUR 0.01)

Number x 1,000 Amount

2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

Authorised share capital 14,729,000 14,500,000 14,500,000 147 3,480 3,480
Unissued share capital 10,850,516 10,629,817 10,641,138 108 2,552 2,555
Issued share capital 3,878,484 3,870,183 3,858,862 39 928 925

Changes in issued share capital

Ordinary shares
(par value EUR 0.01)

Number x

1,000 Amount
Issued share capitalas at 1 January 2014 3,840,894 921
Issue of shares 17,968 4
Issued share capitalas at 31 December 2014 3,858,862 925
Issue of shares 11,321 3
Issued share capitalas at 31 December 2015 3,870,183 928
Issue of shares 8,301 2
Transfer to share premium -891
Issued share capitalas at 31 December 2016 3,878,484 39
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In 2016, ING Groep N.V. issued 8.3 million depositary receiptsfor ordinary shares (converted into ordinary shares per 26 July 2016)
(2015: 11.3 million and 2014: 18.0 million: depositary receipts for ordinary shares). These issues were made in order to fund obligations
arising from share-based employee incentive programmes.

During the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, held on 25 April 2016, it was decided to reduce the par value per ordinary share
from EUR 0.24 (2015 and 2014) to EUR 0.01. As a result of this, EUR 891 millionis attributed to the Share premium. For further
information, reference is made to the section ‘Depository receipts for ordinary shares', below.

In 2016 and 2015 respectively, ING Groep N.V.issued USD 1,000 million and USD 2,250 million Perpetual Additional Tier 1 Contingent
Convertible Capital Securities which can, in accordance with their terms and conditions, convert by operation of law into ordinary
shares if the conditions to such conversion are fulfilled. As a result of this conversion, the issued share capital canincrease by no more
than 111 million and 250 million ordinary shares, respectively. Reference is made to Note 18 ‘Subordinated loans’ and to the Parent
company annual accounts, Note 5 ‘Subordinated loans’.

Ordinary shares

All ordinary shares are in registered form. No share certificates have beenissued. Ordinary shares may be transferred by means of a
deed of transfer. A transfer of ordinary shares requires written acknowledgement by ING Groep N.V. Ordinary shares are listed on
various stock exchanges. The par value of ordinary shares is EUR 0.01 as of 26 July 2016, the date of amendment of the Articles of
Association of ING Groep N.V. (2015 and 2014: EUR 0.24). The authorised ordinary share capital of ING Groep N.V. currently consists of
14,729 million ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2016, 3,878 million ordinary shares were issued and fully paid.

Depositary receipts for ordinary shares
In 2016, ING Group proposed to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to amend the Articles of Association, whichincluded the
abolishment of the depositary receipt structure via Stichting Aandelen (ING Trust Office).

Following the adoption of the amendments to the Articles of Association, by the Annual General Meeting on 25 April 2016, the
depositary receipt structure was abolished on 26 July 2016. As a result of the amendments to the Articles of Association, a holder of a
depositary receipt became entitled to ordinary shares in ING in exchange for depositary receipts previously held.

The conversion of ING Groep N.V. depositary receiptsfor shares into ING Groep N.V. ordinary shares took place on 26 July 2016. Onthe
same date, the related changes to the Articles of Association, including the reduction of the nominal value of the shares from EUR 0.24
to EUR0.01, were implemented.

ING's American Depositary Receipts (ADR’s), which are traded onthe New York Stock Exchange, remainin place. Similarly, the separate
arrangement with the ING Continuity Foundation, regarding its call optionto acquire preference shares in ING Group under certain
circumstances, remains in place.

As per 26 July 2016, more than 99.9% of the issued ordinary shares were held by Stichting ING Aandelen (ING Trust Office).In
exchange for these shares, ING Trust Office issued depositary receipts. These depositary receipts were listed on various stock
exchanges. Depositary receipts could be exchanged upon request of the holders of depositary receipts for (non-listed) ordinary shares
without any restriction, other than payment of an administrative fee of EUR 0.01 per depositary receipt with a minimum of EUR 25 per
exchange transaction.

The holder of a depositary receipt was entitled to receive from ING Trust Office payment of dividends and distributions corresponding
to the dividends and distributions received by ING Trust Office on an ordinary share.

Ordinary shares held by ING Group (Treasury shares)

As at 31 December 2016, 0.0 million ordinary shares (2015: 1.5 million and 2014: 4.3 million - depositary receipts for ordinary shares)
of ING Groep N.V. with a par value of EUR0.01 (2015 and 2014: EUR 0.24) are held by ING Groep N.V. or its subsidiaries. The obligations
with regard to the existing stock option plan and the share plans will be funded either by cash or by newlyissued shares at the
discretion of ING Group.



Contents Report of the Corporate Consolidated Parent company Other Additional
Executive Board Governance annualaccounts annualaccounts information information

Notes to the Consolidated annual accounts of ING Group - continued

Share premium

2016 2015 2014
Opening balance 16,054 16,046 16,038
Issue of shares 5 8 8
Transfer from issued share capital 891
Closing balance 16,950 16,054 16,046

The increase inshare premium, as a result of the issue of ordinary shares, is related to share-based employee incentive programmes.

In 2016, the share premium increased by EUR 896 million, mainly as a result of a transfer from issued share capital as described
above.

Otherreserves
Revaluation reserve: Available-for-sale and other

Changes in revaluation reserve: Available-for-sale and other

2016 2015 2014
Opening balance 3,896 6,838 3,344
Unrealised revaluations 80 1,188 7,656
Realised gains/losses transferred to the statement of profit or loss -146 -94 -133
Transfer to insurance liabilities/DAC -254 -2,658
Impact of deconsolidation of NN Group -2,940
Impact of partial divestment of NN Group -855
Impact of IPO NN Group -874
Changesin composition of the group and other changes 13 -497
Closing balance 3,830 3,896 6,838

In 2016, the available-for-sale revaluation reserve decreased by EUR 154 million related to the release of previously recognised
revaluation reserves, included inthe line Unrealised revaluations in 2015, on shares held in VISA Europe Limited. Reference is made to
Note 5 ‘Investments’, Note 37 ‘Fair value of assets and liabilities’ and Note 51 ‘Other events.

In 2015 and 2014, Transfer toinsurance liabilities/DAC comprised the change ininsurance liabilities related to NN Group and Voya,
until deconsolidation at the end of May 2015 and the end of March 2014 respectively.

In 2014, Changes in composition of the group and other changes included EUR -502 million related to the deconsolidation of Voya.
Reference is made to Note 51 ‘Other events'.

Revaluation reserve: Cash flow hedge

Changes in revaluation reserve: Cash flow hedge

2016 2015 2014
Opening balance 666 3,877 1,879
Realised gains/losses transferred to the statement of profit or loss -4
Changesin cash flow hedge reserve 111 -65 3,105
Impact of deconsolidation of NN Group -2,507
Impact of partial divestment of NN Group -649
Impact of IPO NN Group -1,100
Changesin composition of the group and other changes 10 -3
Closing balance 777 666 3,877
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Revaluation reserve: Property in own use

Changes in revaluation reserve: Propertyin own use

2016 2015 2014
Opening balance 326 306 334
Unrealised revaluations 5 38 -28
Impact of deconsolidation of NN Group -9
Impact of partial divestment of NN Group -3
Impact of IPO NN Group -2
Changesin composition of the group and other changes -127 -6 2
Closing balance 204 326 306

In 2016, the EUR -127 millionis atransfer of revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
Reference is made to Note 51 ‘Other events’, for further information on NN Group divestment transactions.

Net defined benefit asset/liability remeasurement reserve
Reference is made to Note 35 ‘Pension and other post-employment benefits’.

Currency translation reserve

Changes in currency translationreserve

2016 2015 2014
Opening balance -538 -741 -2,161
Unrealised revaluations -76 -263 -53
Realised gains/losses transferred to the statement of profit or loss 481
Impact of deconsolidation of NN Group 26
Impact of partial divestment of NN Group 8
Impact of IPO NN Group 52
Exchangerate differences -156 432 940
Closing balance -770 -538 -741

Unrealised revaluations relates to changes inthe value of hedging instruments that are designated as net investment hedges.

In 2014, Realised gains/losses transferred to the statement of profit or loss related to the deconsolidation of Voya at the end of March
2014.

Reference is made to Note 51 ‘Other events’, for further information on NN Group divestment transactions.

Share of associates, joint ventures and other reserves

Changes in share of associates, joint ventures and other reserves

2016 2015 2014
Opening balance 1,733 1,483 1,644
Result for the year 124 131 83
Transfer to/fromretained earnings 265 -161
Changesin composition of the group and other changes 113 119 -83
Closing balance 2,235 1,733 1,483
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Treasury shares

Changes in treasury shares

Amount Number
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Opening balance -18 -46 -32 1,464,025 4,302,122 3,994,055
Purchased/sold 10 28 -6 -863,391 -2,810,775 351,252
Share-based payments -27,322 -43,185
Other -8
Closing balance -8 -18 -46 600,634 1,464,025 4,302,122
Retained earnings
2016 2015 2014
Opening balance 25,091 23,160 27,575
Transfer to/from share of associates and joint ventures reserves -265 161
Result for the year 4,527 3,879 1,168
Impact of partial divestment of NN Group -270
Dividend -2,521 -1,393
Coupon on Undated subordinated notesissued by NN Group -19
Repurchase premium -750
Impact of IPO NN Group -1,327
Employee stock optionsand share plans 75 105 87
Changesin composition of the group and other changes -371 -3,754
Closing balance 26,907 25,091 23,160

In 2016, a cash dividend of EUR 2,521 million was paid to the shareholders of ING Group.
In 2015, a cash dividend of EUR 1,393 million was paid to the shareholders of ING Group.

In 2015, the coupon on Undated subordinated notes issued by NN Group comprised coupon payments for the five months, until
deconsolidation of NN Group at the end of May 2015.

In 2014, the repurchase premium of EUR 750 million was paidinrelation to the repayment of the EUR 1,500 million non-voting equity
securities to the Dutch State.

In 2014, Impact of IPO NN Group related to the IPO of NN Group in July 2014.

In 2014, Changes in composition of the group and other changes included a decrease of EUR 3,279 millionin Retained earnings as
result of the transfer of part of the Net defined benefit asset/liability remeasurement reserve due to the financial independence of the
Dutch ING Pension Fund. Furthermore, Changes in composition of the group and other changes also included EUR 87 million related to
the deconsolidation of Voya.

For further information, reference is made to Note 30 ‘Dividend per ordinary share’ and Note 51 ‘Other events'.

Non-controlling interests
In 2015, Non-controlling interests decreased with EUR 7,434 million and was mainly related to the deconsolidation of NN Group.
Reference is made to Note 51 ‘Other events'.

Ordinary shares - Restrictions with respect to dividend and repayment of capital

The following equity components cannot be freely distributed: Revaluation reserves (being Available for-sale and other, Cash flow
hedge, and Propertyinown use), Currency translation reserve, Share of associates and joint ventures reserve, and the part of the
Retained earnings that relate to the former Stichting Regio Bank and the former Stichting Vakbondsspaarbank SPN.
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As at 31 December 2016, an amount of EUR 1,325 million (2015: EUR 1,201 million; 2014: EUR 1,070 million) related to the former
Stichting Regio Bank and the former Stichting Vakbondsspaarbank SPN is included.

ING Groep N.V. is subject to legal restrictions regarding the amount of dividends it can pay to the holders of its ordinary shares.
Pursuant to the Dutch Civil Code, dividends can only be paid up to an amount equal to the excess of the company'’s own funds over
the sum of the paid-up capital, and reserves required by law.

Moreover, ING Groep N.V.’s ability to pay dividends is dependent on the dividend payment ability of its subsidiaries, associatesand
joint ventures. ING Groep N.V. is legally required to create a non-distributable reserve insofar as profits of its subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are subject to dividend payment restrictions which apply to those subsidiaries, associatesand joint ventures
themselves. Such restrictions may among others be of asimilar nature as the restrictions which apply to ING Groep N.V., including
minimum capital requirements that are imposed by industry regulators in the countries in which the subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures operate, or other limitations which may exist in certain countries.

Legally distributable reserves, determined in accordance with the financial reporting requirements included in Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code, from ING Group's subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are as follows:

Legally distributable reserves

2016 ING Bank Other Total
Equity invested 43 540 171 43,711
Non-distributable reserves 7,310 69 7,379
Legally distributable reserves 36,230 102 36,332

Legally distributable reserves

2015 ING Bank Other Total
Equity invested 40,857 160 41,017
Non-distributable reserves 6,824 6,824
Legally distributable reserves 34,033 160 34,193

Legally distributable reserves

2014 ING Bank NN Group Other Total
Equity invested 38,064 13,549 122 51,735
Non-distributable reserves 7,411 6,134 13,545
Legally distributable reserves 30,653 7,415 122 38,190

Furthermore there are restrictions to the ability of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to distribute reserves to ING Groep N.V. as
a result of minimum capital requirements that are imposed by industry regulators in the countries in which the subsidiaries operate.

Minimum capital requirements for INGGroup's subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are as follows:

Minimum capital requirements - subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

2016 ING Bank Other Total
Equity invested 43,540 171 43,711
Totalregulatory capital 54,362
Required minimum total requlatory capital® 30,664

23,698 - -

* Requirement is based on Pillar | only.
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Minimum capital requirements - subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

2015 ING Bank Other Total
Equity invested 40,857 160 41,017
Totalregulatory capital 51,052
Required minimum total regulatory capital* 29,243

21,809 - -

* Requirement is based on Pillar I only.

Minimum capital requirements - subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

2014 ING Bank NN Group Other Total
Equity invested 38,064 13,549 122 51,735
Totalregulatory capital 46,015 14,173
Required minimum total requlatory capital* 27,501 4,683

18,514 9,490 - -

* Requirement is based on Pillar | only.

In additionto the legal and regulatory restrictions on distributing dividends from subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to ING
Groep N.V. there are various other considerations and limitations that are taken into account in determining the appropriate levels of
equityinthe Group's subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. These considerations and limitations include, but are not restricted to,
rating agency and regulatory views, which can change over time; it is not possible to disclose areliable quantification of these
limitations. Reference is also made to the ‘Capital Management' section.

Without prejudice to the authority of the Executive Board to allocate profits to reserves and to the fact that the ordinary shares are
the most junior securities issued by ING Groep N.V., no specific dividend payment restrictions with respect to ordinary shares exist.

Furthermore, ING Groep N.V. is subject to legal restrictions with respect to repayment of capital to holders of ordinary shares. Capital
may be repaid to the holders of ordinary shares pursuant to an amendment of ING Groep N.V.'s Articles of Association whereby the
ordinary shares are written down.

Pursuant to the Dutch Civil Code, capital may only be repaid if none of ING Groep N.V.'s creditors opposes such a repayment within two
months following the announcement of a resolution to that effect.

Cumulative preference shares (not issued)
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of ING Groep N.V.the authorised cumulative preference share capital consists of 4.6 billion
cumulative preference shares, of which none have beenissued. The par value of these cumulative preference sharesis EUR0.01.

The cumulative preference shares rank before the ordinary shares in entitlement to dividend and to distributions upon liquidation of
ING Groep N.V.

The dividend on the cumulative preference shares will be equal to a percentage, calculated on the amount compulsorily paid up or yet
to be paid up. This percentage shall be equal to the average of the Euro OverNight Index Average (EONIA) as calculated by the
European Central Bank during the financial year for which the distributionis made; this percentage being weighted on the basis of the
number of days for which it applies, and increased by 2.5 percentage points.

If and to the extent that the profit available for distributionis not sufficient to pay the dividend referred to above infull, the shortfall
will be made up from the reserves insofar as possible. If, and to the extent that, the dividend distribution cannot be made from the
reserves, the profits earned in subsequent years shall first be used to make up the shortfall before any distribution may be made on
shares of any other category.

ING Groep N.V.'s Articles of Association make provision for the cancellation of cumulative preference shares. Upon cancellation of
cumulative preference shares and upon liquidation of ING Groep N.V., the amount paid up on the cumulative preference shares will be
repaid together with the accrued dividend as well as any dividend shortfall in preceding years, insofar as this shortfall has not yet been
made up.
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Cumulative preference shares - Restrictions with respect to dividend and repayment of capital

ING Groep N.V. is subject to legal restrictions regarding the amount of dividends it can pay to the holders of its cumulative preference
shares, when issued. Pursuant to the Dutch Civil Code, dividends can only be paid up to an amount equal to the excess of the
company’s own funds over the sum of the paid-up capital, and reserves required by law.

Moreover, ING Groep N.V.'s ability to pay dividends is dependent on the dividend payment ability of its subsidiaries, associatesand
joint ventures. ING Groep N.V. is legally required to create a non-distributable reserve insofar as profits of its subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are subject to dividend payment restrictions which apply to those subsidiaries, associatesand joint ventures
themselves. Such restrictions may among others be of asimilar nature as the restrictions which apply to ING Groep N.V., including
minimum capital requirements that are imposed by industry regulators in t